Columbia Threadneedle Specialist Funds (UK) ICVC

Interim Report and Unaudited Financial Statements
Columbia Threadneedle Specialist Funds (UK) ICVC October 2024



Contents

Company Information*	2
Authorised Corporate Director's Report	3
CT UK Mid 250 Fund	4 – 7
CT UK Sustainable Equity Fund	8 – 12
CT UK Equity Alpha Income Fund	13 – 17
CT Sterling Medium and Long-Dated Corporate Bond Fund	18 – 21
CT Sterling Short-Dated Corporate Bond Fund	22 – 27
CT UK Fixed Interest Fund	28 – 32
CT UK Index Linked Fund	33 – 37
CT Pan European Focus Fund	38 – 41
CT US Equity Income Fund	42 – 48
CT Global Emerging Markets Equity Fund	49 – 52
CT Emerging Market Local Fund	53 – 57
CT Global Extended Alpha Fund	58 – 62
CT Global Equity Income Fund	63 – 69
CT Global Focus Fund	70 – 73
CT Global Social Bond Fund	74 – 78

$\label{lem:portfolio} \textbf{Portfolio Statements*:}$

CT UK Mid 250 Fund	79 – 80
CT UK Sustainable Equity Fund	81 – 82
CT UK Equity Alpha Income Fund	83
CT Sterling Medium and Long-Dated Corporate Bond Fun	d 84 – 85
CT Sterling Short-Dated Corporate Bond Fund	86 - 90
CT UK Fixed Interest Fund	91
CT UK Index Linked Fund	92
CT Pan European Focus Fund	93 – 94
CT US Equity Income Fund	95 – 96
CT Global Emerging Markets Equity Fund	97 – 99
CT Emerging Market Local Fund	100 – 101
CT Global Extended Alpha Fund	102 – 103
CT Global Equity Income Fund	104 – 105
CT Global Focus Fund	106 – 107
CT Global Social Bond Fund	108 – 113
Performance Summary*	114
Risk and Reward Profiles*	115 – 116
Important Information*	117 – 123
Directory*	124
-	

^{*}These pages, together with the investment reports of the individual funds comprise the Authorised Corporate Director's Report.

Company Information

Company

Columbia Threadneedle Specialist Funds (UK) ICVC (the Company) Registered Number IC000232

Registered Office

Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London EC4N 6AG

Board of Directors of the Company

Joseph LaRocque (Non-Executive appointed to the Board on 25 June 2024), Kirstene Baillie (Non-Executive) and the Authorised Corporate Director (the "ACD") who together form the Company Board.

Authorised Corporate Director (ACD) of the Company

Threadneedle Investment Services Limited

Board of Directors of the ACD

R Bajaj (Non- Executive)

K Cates (Non-Executive)

P Doel (Appointed to the Board on 27 November 2024)

M Fisher (Appointed to the Board on 6 June 2024)

.I Perrir

A Roughead (Non-Executive)

R Vincent

Authorised Corporate Director's Report

The ACD, on behalf of the Directors of the Company, has pleasure in presenting the Interim Report and Unaudited Financial Statements for Columbia Threadneedle Specialist Funds (UK) ICVC for the 6 months to 31 October 2024.

We hope that you find the report informative. Should you require any further information regarding any aspect of your investment, or about other Columbia Threadneedle products, we would be pleased to help. Alternatively, you may find it helpful to visit columbiathreadneedle.com for further information about Columbia Threadneedle.

Thank you for your continued support.

DIRECTORS' STATEMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Financial Conduct Authority's Collective Investment Schemes (COLL) Sourcebook, we hereby approve the Interim Report and Unaudited Financial Statements for each of the funds listed on page 1 (contents page) on behalf of the Board of the Company.

R Vincent

Director of the ACD

R Vincent

K Baillie

Authorised signatory on behalf of the ACD

12 December 2024

Non-Executive Director

Investment Report

Investment Objective and Policy

The Fund aims to achieve capital growth over the long term. It looks to outperform the FTSE 250 ex Investment Trusts Index over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of charges.

250 ex Investment Trusts Index over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of charges. The Fund is actively managed, and invests at least 90% of its assets in shares of companies listed on the London Stock Exchange, predominantly companies domiciled in the UK, or which have significant UK business operations.

The Fund selects companies considered to have good prospects for share price growth, from any industry or economic sector, focusing on companies included within the FTSE 250 ex Investment Trusts Index.

The FTSE 250 ex Investment Trusts Index currently comprises approximately 200 companies (excluding Investment Trusts) listed on the London Stock Exchange and is regarded as an appropriate performance measure of medium-sized UK companies. It provides a suitable target benchmark against which the Fund performance will be measured and evaluated over time.

The Fund is relatively concentrated, and typically invests in fewer than 55 companies, which may include shares of some companies not within the Index. The Fund may invest in other securities (including fixed interest securities) and collective investment schemes, when deemed appropriate. The Fund may also hold money market instruments, deposits, cash and near cash.

The Fund is not permitted to invest in derivatives for investment purposes, but derivatives may be used with the aim of reducing risk or managing the Fund more efficiently.

Performance of Net Accumulation Class 1 Shares*

Over the six months to 31 October 2024, the published share price of Class 1-Accumulation shares in the CT UK Mid 250 Fund has risen from 241.92p to 252.77p. For comparison, using noon prices, the performance of the Class 1 share class was 44.48% and 4-73% for the Class 2 share class compared to a return of 1.69% for the Morningstar UK Unit Trusts/OEICS - IA UK All Companies Peer Group (on a bid to bid basis, with income reinvested for a UK basic rate taxpaver).

For information purposes, using global close prices, the total return of the FTSE 250 Ex Investment Trusts Index was +4.98%.

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity
Wind-ca equities posted positive returns over the review period and outperformed the
FTSE All-Share. Investors were encouraged by better-than-expected corporate earnings,
the improving economic backdrop, declining inflation and the resulting expectations that
key central banks would start to reduce interest rates, which indeed transpired. All
Wis equities were also boosted by a surge in mergers and acquisitions (M&As) from
overseas companies and the prospect, and then reality, of Labour wrinning a substantial
majority in July's general election. The resulting hopes of an era of political stability
and growth-friendly policies from the new government proved particularly beneficial
for mid-cap stocks, which are perceived to be more sensitive to the domestic economy.
Meanyhile a manual consumer price inflation in the IK fell to 7.9½, in Mas bittime. Meanwhile, annual consumer price inflation in the UK fell to 2% in May, hitting the Bank of England's (BoE) target and buoying hopes of an interest-rate cut by the autumn. The BoE duly cut rates by 0.25% in August, but sticky services inflation and elevated wage growth stoked uncertainty about the trajectory of rate cuts.

UK equities succumbed to global sell-offs in early August and early September amid

fears of a US recession. The sell-off in August was exacerbated by the unwinding of the "yen carry trade" (where investors borrowed yen at low interest rates to invest in assets in other currencies offering higher potential returns) following a surge in the yen after the Bank of Japan's interest-rate hike at the end of July.

However, these sell-offs were short-lived and markets rebounded quickly both times, aided by hopes that the Federal Reserve would cut rates in September, which duly materialised. Towards the end of September and in early October, sentiment was also boosted by a slew of stimulus measures from China. However, as October progressed, the mood dafkened again amid concerns that the new UK governments first Budget might include higher taxes and government borrowing. While many of the policies announced were trailed in the prior weeks, the scale of the changes caused some surprise, notably the extent of extra borrowing. This led to a decline in the pound and reduced expectations for the pace of UK interst-rate cuts next year. More positively, some tax increases were less steep than had been feared, notably, businesses were cheered by a freeze on corporation tax. The chancellor also announced an increase in public investment to encourage a move towards a more productive economy. We initiated positions in Pets at Home, Dunelm, Molten Ventures, Breedon and Alphawave IP. However, these sell-offs were short-lived and markets rebounded quickly both times

Pets at Home is the leading UK retailer of pet supplies, food, toys and accessories; if also provides veterinarian and grooming services. We previously had concerns about the Competition and Markets Authority's ongoing investigation of the veterinary services markets, which could result in management being cautious about raising prices. However, we now believe that the review will have little impact on Pets at

prices. However, we now believe that the review will have little impact on Pets at Home, and we wanted to increase our exposure to domestic retail as we feel that the consumer environment has improved. Moreover, the firm has reached its peak investment phase, while execution risk is low, and earnings comparatives should become more favourable. In our view, Pets at Home is now well positioned to benefit from its investments in its digital platform and new distribution centres.

Dunelm is the UK's leading home fumishing retailer. The firm's relatively high purchase frequency rate and lower-ticket products mean it has an opportunity to build customer loyalty, while its pricing architecture supports a broad customer base. Dunelm also has the potential to roll out new stores, with the smaller 15,000 square-foot format suitable for Greater London, where the company is not currently well penetrated. The firm also boasts a scale advantage in procurement, with extensive use of direct sourcing. Another point of strendth is Dunelm's didial beneance; the company has consistently grown its market of strength is Dunelm's digital presence; the company has consistently grown its market share here and continues to invest in using data for personalised marketing. In addition we feel the holding offers attractive exposure to the domestic market; the company is well placed to benefit from improving consumer sentiment and rising housing transactions. Specialist venture-capital technology investor Molten Ventures has significant downside protection through its preference-share structure in almost all its investments; downside protection through its preference-share structure in almost all its investments; the preference shares temporally increase the ownership to limit the downside when investments are marked to market. The shares are trading at an approximately 42% discount to the company's net asset value, and we feel the potential for re-rating is significant. Meanwhile, we expect realisations (the return to a venture capitalist from its investments) to become easier, while M&A activity is slowly picking up in the venture-capital and private-equity segments. Motter Neturuse has sufficient liquidity, with the majority of assets being funded for the next year and a half, and a solid balance sheet, which means that the firm is well positioned for further portfolic investments.

Shares in construction materials company Breedon are attractively valued, and the

holding provides exposure to the UK infrastructure market. Demand is underpinned by long-term trends, including UK population growth and the government's plans to redress historic underinvestment in infrastructure. In addition, Breedon has strong momentum in Ireland, and the firm's US strategy has now been clarified. We also see potential for like-for-like comparatives to improve after a difficult first half of 2024. Meanwhile, costs and capital expenditure are stable, while the cost of goods sold is embedded in the aggregates business, meaning that higher sales volumes could lead

embeaded in the aggregates business, meaning that nighter sales volumes could lead to strong operational leverage and free cash flows.

Alphawave IP (also known as Alphawave Semil) provides wired connectivity solutions for data centres and A.I. It therefore stands to benefit from growing demand for AI servers. Following Alphawave Semi's exit from the Chinese market, we now have more confidence in the order book for the second half of the year and over 2025.

We topped up a number of existing holdings, including YouGov, Oxford Biomedica, Kitwave and ISpatial.

We exited nositions in Solirent Communications IDGen and Ascential after all three

We exited positions in Spirent Communications, IQGeo and Ascential after all three firms received takeover bids. Vistry was sold after it lowered its profit outlook – following news that cost projections at some of its developments were understated as we are concerned that the company's move to project accounting may uncover material issues at other sites. Other sales included OSB (also known as OneSavings Bank), Entain, Bytes Technology and Intermediate Capital Group.

Bank). Entain, Bytes Technology and Intermediate Capital Group. Following three months of uncertainty, the new government's first Budget has generally proved better than feared, notably in terms of tax increases. The extent of spending and borrowing has led investors to dial down expectations for the pace of interest-rate cust next year, which has the potential to dampen the outlook for domestically oriented equities, a characteristic of smaller companies. However, within a lower interest rate environment, we have conviction that quality growth businesses should perform well. The increases in the minimum wage and employers' National Insurance contributions might cost some businesses more in the short term, but they could also lead to a more productive and higher-wage economy over time. This bodes well for UK domestic companies and mid-cap equities. Many of the companies in which we are invested should be able to cover the additional costs with productivity quains, and, importantly, they have time to prepare for the additional costs with productivity gains, and, importantly, they have time to prepare for the changes and can make very small price rises, which we believe the market will accept.

AIM investors had priced in an overly pessimistic outcome that did not come to pass. The lack of full IHT relief could still deter IHT investors, but the new tax regime does The lack of full IHT relief could still deter IHT investors, but the new tax regime does not start until April 2026. There are no forced sellers in the market; instead, there is a potentially reduced investment flow from just one segment of investors. With such extreme value, especially, within high-quality global companies, we believe the current fanksape will become slowly more appealing to international investors. Meanwhile, household savings remain high, with Covid-era "piggy banks" still intact. This bodes well for credit growth, which, in turn, should support as ustained economic recovery. For now, consumers are wary of big-ticket purchases, but the prospect of lower interest rates should help overcome this. Additionally, with a stable government, the UK appears to be a relative safe haven given the political uncertainty in Europe and the US.

Given its discounted valuation versus both historical and global comparatives, the UK ordering discounted variation versions but instruction and global compliantives, in market is ready for growth. UK mid-cap stocks in particular are deeply discounted, and these companies should therefore remain attractive targets for overseas takeover and private-equity bids.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

for the	accounting	period 1	May	2024	to 31	October	2024
---------	------------	----------	-----	------	-------	---------	------

	2024 £000	2023 £000
Income		
Net capital gains/(losses)	2,091	(11,277)
Revenue	766	803
Expenses	(258)	(264)
Interest payable and similar charges	-	(1)
Net revenue before taxation	508	538
Taxation		-
Net revenue after taxation	508	538
Total return before equalisation	2,599	(10,739)
Equalisation	(25)	(3)
Change in net assets attributable to		
shareholders from investment activities	2,574	(10,742)

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2024

Assets:	50,150	
	50,150	
Fixed assets:	50,150	
Investments		53,951
Current assets:		
Debtors	355	1,149
Cash and bank balances	214	488
Total assets	50,719	55,588
Liabilities:		
Creditors:		
Other creditors	(58)	(1,324)
Total liabilities	(58)	(1,324)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	50,661	54,264

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024	2023
	£000	£000
Opening net assets attributable to shareholders	54,264	61,435
Amounts receivable on the issue of shares	924	1,192
Amounts payable on the cancellation of shares	(7,106)	(2,876)
	(6,182)	(1,684)
Dilution adjustment	5	-
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from		
investment activities (see statement of total return above)	2,574	(10,742)
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders	50,661	49,009

The comparatives used within the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders are for the corresponding period of the previous year. Therefore the opening net assets attributable to shareholders for the current year are at 30 April 2024 whilst the figure disclosed in the comparatives' closing net assets attributable to shareholders is at 31 October 2023.

*In pound Sterling and against UK peer group (See Performance summary on page 114).

2022

Comparative Table Disclosure

31/10/2024 30/04/2024 30/04/2023 31/10/2024 30/04/2023 31/10/2024 30/04/2023 31/10/2024 30/04/2023 31/10/2024 30/04/2023 31/10/2024 30/04/2023 31/10/2024 30/04/2023 20/02/2024 20/	Class 2 – Accumulation shares		
Opening net asset value per share (p) 240.36 250.60 271.82 269.70 279.8 Return before operating charges (p) 11.64 (6.58) (17.40) 13.06 (7.2	4 30/04/2023		
Return before operating charges (p) 11.64 (6.58) (17.40) 13.06 (7.2			
	5 302.10		
Operating charges (n) (2.01) (2.00) (4.57) (0.00)	9) (19.25)		
Operating charges (p) (2.01) (3.66) (3.82) (1.57) (2.8	6) (3.00)		
Return after operating charges (p)* 9.63 (10.24) (21.22) 11.49 (10.1	5) (22.25)		
Distributions (p) – (2.23) (1.19) – (3.7	4) (2.53)		
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) – 2.23 1.19 – 3.7	4 2.53		
Closing net asset value per share (p) 249.99 240.36 250.60 281.19 269.7	0 279.85		
*after direct transaction costs of (p) 0.23 0.21 0.35 0.26 0.2	3 0.39		
Performance			
Return after charges (%) 4.01 (4.09) (7.81) 4.26 (3.6	3) (7.37)		
Other information			
Closing net asset value (£000) 1,710 1,717 2,497 401 41	4 477		
Closing number of shares 684,242 714,523 996,514 142,524 153,46			
Operating charges $(\%)^{**}$ 1.56 1.56 1.09 † 1.5			
Direct transaction costs $(\%)^{***}$ 0.18 0.09 0.14 0.18 0.0	9 0.14		
Prices			
Highest share price (p) 270.93 252.16 274.23 304.36 281.6			
Lowest share price (p) 241.40 201.15 209.04 270.86 225.1	5 232.84		
Class L – Gross accumulation shares Class X – Accumula	tion shares		
31/10/2024 30/04/2024 30/04/2023¹ 31/10/2024 30/04/202			
Change in net assets per share			
Opening net asset value per share (p) 91.64 94.46 100.00 119.16 122.3	5 130.74		
Return before operating charges (p) 4.41 (2.45) (5.18) 5.76 (3.1	4) (8.30)		
Operating charges (p) (0.18) (0.37) (0.36) (0.03) (0.03)	5) (0.09)		
Return after operating charges (p)* 4.23 (2.82) (5.54) 5.73 (3.1	9) (8.39)		
Distributions (p) – (1.85) (1.48) – (2.8	5) (2.42)		
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) – 1.85 1.48 – 2.8			
Closing net asset value per share (p) 95.87 91.64 94.46 124.89 119.1	6 122.35		
*after direct transaction costs of (p) 0.09 0.08 0.13 0.12 0.1	0 0.17		
Desformance			
Performance	1) (6.42)		
Performance Return after charges (%) 4.62 (2.99) (5.54) 4.81 (2.6			
	4 4		
Return after charges (%) 4.62 (2.99) (5.54) 4.81 (2.69) Other information			
Return after charges (%) 4.62 (2.99) (5.54) 4.81 (2.60) Other information	0 3,000		
Return after charges (%) 4.62 (2.99) (5.54) 4.81 (2.60) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) 1 1 1 4 Closing number of shares 1,001 1,001 1,001 3,000 3,000 Operating charges (%)** 0.37¹ 0.42 0.40¹ 0.04¹ 0.04¹			
Return after charges (%) 4.62 (2.99) (5.54) 4.81 (2.60) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) 1 1 1 1 4 Closing number of shares 1,001 1,001 1,001 3,000 3,000	4 0.08		
Return after charges (%) 4.62 (2.99) (5.54) 4.81 (2.60) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) 1 1 1 4 Closing number of shares 1,001 1,001 1,001 3,000 3,000 Operating charges (%)** 0.37¹ 0.42 0.40¹ 0.04¹ 0.04¹	4 0.08		
Return after charges (%) 4.62 (2.99) (5.54) 4.81 (2.66) Other information Using net asset value (£000) 1 1 1 1 4 Closing number of shares 1,001 1,001 1,001 3,000 3,000 Operating charges (%)** 0.37° 0.42 0.40° 0.04° 0.04° Direct transaction costs (%)*** 0.18 0.09 0.14 0.18 0.0	4 0.08 9 0.14 3 132.10		

Comparative Table Disclosure

(continued)

Class Z – Accumulation shares

	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share			
Opening net asset value per share (p)	189.11	195.88	211.09
Return before operating charges (p)	9.15	(5.10)	(13.49)
Operating charges (p)	(0.92)	(1.67)	(1.72)
Return after operating charges (p)*	8.23	(6.77)	(15.21)
Distributions (p)	_	(2.94)	(2.17)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		2.94	2.17
Closing net asset value per share (p)	197.34	189.11	195.88
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.18	0.16	0.27
Performance			
Return after charges (%)	4.35	(3.46)	(7.21)
Other information			
Closing net asset value (£000)	48,545	52,128	58,456
Closing number of shares	24,599,897	27,565,105	29,842,473
Operating charges (%)**	0.91 [†]	0.91	0.90
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.18	0.09	0.14
Prices			
Highest share price (p)	213.51	197.11	213.10
Lowest share price (p)	189.93	157.73	162.83

^{**}The Operating charges are represented by the Ongoing Charges Figure (OCF) which is the European standard method of disclosing the charges of a share class of a fund based on the financial year's expenses and may vary from year to year. It includes charges such as the fund's annual management charge, registration fee, custody fees and distribution cost but ordinarily excludes the costs of buying or selling assets for the fund (unless these assets are shares of another fund). Where published, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) contains the current OCF. For a more detailed breakdown please visit columbiathreadneedle.com/fees.

Highest and Lowest share prices are based on official published daily NAVs priced at 12 noon on the last business day of the period on a mid basis. The closing net asset value per share is at close of business on a bid basis.

^{***}Transaction costs have not been reduced by any amounts collected from dilution levies/adjustments.

¹Commenced 4 May 2022

¹The Ongoing Charges Figure is annualised based on the fees incurred during the accounting period or since commencement date.

Notes to the financial statements

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of investments, in compliance with FRS 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (SORP) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2024 and are described in those financial statements.

(b) Notes

In accordance with the guidelines of the SORP the fund has taken advantage of the facility not to provide further notes to the financial statements.

2 RECONCILIATION OF SHARES

HEGGINGIEIATION OF GHARLEG	
	2024
Class 1 – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	714,523
Shares issued	6,117
Shares redeemed	(36,398)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	684,242
Class 2 – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	153,465
Shares issued	_
Shares redeemed	(10,941)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	142,524
Class L – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	1,001
Shares issued	-
Shares redeemed	-
Net conversions	
Closing shares	1,001
Class X – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	3,000
Shares issued	-
Shares redeemed	-
Net conversions	
Closing shares	3,000
Class Z – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	27,565,105
Shares issued	454,143
Shares redeemed	(3,419,351)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	24,599,897

Investment Report

Investment Objective and Policy
The Fund aims to achieve a return over the long term (5 years or more) consisting of capital
growth and some income, achieved through investment in companies that are positively
exposed to sustainable themes through their products and services, as well as those with
strong or improving environmental, social and governance (ESG) characteristics.

strong or improving environmental, social and governance (ESG) characteristics. The Fund is actively managed, and invests at least 75% of its assets in shares of companies domiciled in the UK, or which have significant UK business operations. The Fund focusses on selecting companies delivering sustainable outcomes or progressing towards the delivery of sustainable outcomes, as outlined in the Fund's Sustainable Investment Guidelines. Those companies will offer products and services aligned to the Fund's sustainable themes, or demonstrate leadership on sustainability issues through strong ESG practices.

On occasion, the Fund may invest in other securities (including fixed interest securities), and collective investment schemes (including funds managed by Columbia Threadneedle companies), when deemed appropriate.

The Fund may also hold money market instruments, deposits, cash and near cash.

The Fund may also hold money market instruments, deposits, cash and near cash. The Fund is not permitted to invest in derivatives for investment purposes, but derivatives The Fund is not permitted to invest in derivatives for investment purposes, but derivatives may be used with the aim of reducing risk or managing the Fund more efficiently. Columbia Threadneedle Investments is a signatory to the Net Zero Asset Managers Initiative (NZAMI) and has committed to an ambition to reach net zero emissions by 250s or sooner for a range of assets, including the Fund. Accordingly, the Investment Manager will proactively engage with companies to assist with progressing this ambition. If a high emitting company in the portfolio does not show progress in meeting the minimum standards considered necessary for continued investment after an appropriate period of engagement, then the Fund will disinvest from the company. The Fund does not invest in companies whose normany business is the exploration. The Fund does not invest in companies whose primary business is the exploration, production and commercialisation of fossil fuels, that derive over 5% revenue from thermal coal mining, or that are involved in the new development of thermal coal extraction or power generation facilities. However, the Investment Manager may invest in companies that do not satisfy this exclusion criteria if it can evidence that these companies are, forexample, phasing out their fossil fuel exposure and have strong climate transition plans underpinned by robust emissions reduction targets.

Performance of Net Accumulation Class Z Shares*

retrormance of Net Accumulation Class Z Shares*

Over the six months to 31 October 2024, the published share price of Class 2 - Accumulation shares in the CT UK Sustainable Equity Fund has risen from 147.14p to 151.14p.

For comparison, using noon prices, the performance of the Class T share class was 2.72% and 4.72% for the Class Z share class compared to a return of +1.69% for the Morningstar UK Unit Trusts/0EICS - IA UK All Companies Peer Group (on a bid to bid basis, with income reinvested for a UK basic rate taxpayer).

For information purposes, using global close prices, the total return of the FTSE All Share Index was +1.81%.

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity
The FTSE All-Share index posted a positive return over the review period. Investors were encouraged by better-then-expected corporate earnings, the improving economic backdrop, declining inflation and the resulting expectations that key central banks would start to reduce interest rates, which indeed transpired.

UK equities were also boosted by a surge in mergers and acquisitions from overseas companies and the prospect, and then reality, of Labour winning a substantial majority in July's general election. The resulting hopes of an era of political stability and growth-friendly policies from the new government proved particularly beneficial for stocks perceived to be sensitive to the domestic economy.

Meanwhile, annual consumer price inflation in the UK fell to 2% in May, hitting the Bank of Ingland's (BoE) target and bouying hopes of an interest-rate are ut by the autumn. The Bod duly cut rates by 0.25% in August, but sticky services inflation and elevated wage growth stoked uncertainty about the trajectory of rate cuts. UK equities succumbed to a global sell-off in arry August and early September amid fears of a US recession. The sell-off in August was exacerbated by the unwinding of the "yen carry trade" (where investors borrowed yen at low interest rates to invest in assets in other currencies offering higher potential returns) following a surge in the assets in other currencies offering higher potential returns following a surge in the year after the Bank of Japan's interest-rate hike at the end of July. However, these sell-offs were short-lived and markets rebounded quickly both times, aided by hopes that the Federal Reserve would cut rates in September, which duly materialised. Towards the end of September and in early October, sentiment was also boosted by a slew cetabolish conservations. TOWARDS the BITO IT September and in early occords, sentiment was also occurred by a sill of stimulus measures from China. However, as October progressed, the mood darkened again as the Chinese government failed to provide clarity on its stimulus policies and expectations for monetary easing in the US were scaled back amid speculation about again as the Chinese government tailed to provide clarify on its stimulus policies and expectations for monetary easing in the US were scaled back amid speculation about reflationary policies being pursued should Donald Trump be re-elected president. UK equities were also pressured by concerns that the new government's first Budget might include higher taxes and government borrowing. While many of the policies announced were trailed in the prior weeks, the scale of the changes caused some surprise, notably the extent of extra borrowing. This led to a decline in the pound and reduced expectations for the pace of UK interest-rate cuts next year. More positively, some tax increases were less steep than had been feared; notably, businesses were cheered by a freeze on corporation tax. The chancellor also announced an increase in public investment to encourage a move towards a more productive economy. On the sustainability front, climate change remained much in focus ahead of a biodiversity summit in Colombia in October and the COP2e climate talks in Azerbaijan in November. The conference in Columbia was the first such summit since December 2022. Highlights included a plan to create a global fund for using genetic data sequenced from rature and sharing the information equally. The proceeds from the fund will be used to foster the conservation activities of indigenous people and local communities. We initiated positions in foresight Group and Strumfett Nestrock. Foresight Group comprises three divisions: infrastructure investment, private equity and capital markets. In infrastructure, foresight makes sustainability-led investments for financial institutions and government organisations; the private-equity arm targets.

for financial institutions and government organisations; the private-equity arm targets long-term growth by investing in smaller companies; and the capital markets segment

applies the firm's private market expertise to opportunities in listed securities Foresight's markets have the potential to grow significantly over the next few years, driven by increasing institutional appetite for infrastructure investments and rising demand for sustainability-focused investment products.

The holding in Smurfit Westrock aligns with UN sustainable development goal (SDG) To — to ensure sustainable consumption and production patterns. The firm is one of the largest manufacturers of paper-based packaging products and a high-quality sustainability leader that is well positioned for the growing demand for environmentally of the largest manufacturers of paper-based packaging products and a high-quality sustainability leader that is well positioned for the growing demand for environmentally sustainable packaging. Smurfit Westrock is now enjoying the synergies of the merger of Smurfit Kappa and Westrock earlier this year. The combined business has a strong focus on plant-level protriability and improving the quality of products. We do not anticipate significant increases in capital expenditure following a period of investment. Following three months of uncertainty, the new governments first Budget has generally proved better than feared, notably in terms of tax increases. While the extent of spending and borrowing has led investors to dial down expectations for the pace of interest-rate cuts next year, as long-term active managers, we view the measures unveiled as ultimately positive for growth. The increases in the minimum wage and employers National Insurance contributions might cost businesses more in the short term, but they could also lead to a more productive and higher wage economy over time. This should prove supportive for UK domestic companies and small- and mid-cap equities, in which the fund is overweight. Meanwhile, household savings remain high, with Covid-era "nigoty pathss" still intact. This bodes well for credit growth, which, in turn, should support a sustained economic recovery. For now, consumers are wary of big-ticket purchases, but the prospect of lower interest rates should help overcome this.

Additionally, with a stable government, the UK appears to be a relative safe haven given the political uncertainty in Europe and the US, where the impact of Trump's immigration, trade and foreign policies remains to be seen.

We expect UK companies to remain attractive targets for over-seas takeover and private-equity bids as the intrinsic value of these businesses is much higher than implied by current beaten-down share prices. Indeed, the UK market is deeply discounted relative to its own historical averages and th

towards renewable energy over the medium-to-long term. This should be further supported by global net-zero goals and associated regulation.

We believe future winners will be businesses that are inherently sustainable and generate

sustainable solutions for some of the biggest problems the world faces, while also managing internal non-financial (i.e. environmental, social and governance) risks well. Our engagement activities cover strategy, corporate governance and the management of material environmental and social risks. For portfolio companies and firms we are or material environmental and social risks. For portion companies and minis we are considering for investment, our engagement focuses on quantifying the impact of business operations in terms of revenue alignment to the UN SDGs, along with each company's sustainable outcomes.

Overall, we will continue to focus on company fundamentals and use volatile markets to top up and buy favoured stocks to deliver solid risk-adjusted returns.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024 £000	2023 £000
Income		
Net capital gains/(losses)	6,142	(20,922)
Revenue	553	1,728
Expenses	(124)	(157)
Net revenue before taxation	429	1,571
Taxation	_	
Net revenue after taxation	429	1,571
Total return before distributions	6,571	(19,351)
Distributions	(429)	(1,571)
Change in net assets attributable to		
shareholders from investment activities	6,142	(20,922)

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2024

		April
	2024	2024
	£000	£000
Assets:		
Fixed assets:		
Investments	26,234	128,860
Current assets:		
Debtors	226	1,141
Cash and bank balances	491	771
Total assets	26,951	130,772
Liabilities:		
Creditors:		
Distribution payable	(191)	(214)
Other creditors	(777)	(81)
Total liabilities	(968)	(295)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	25,983	130,477

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE **TO SHAREHOLDERS**

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024	2023
	£000	£000
Opening net assets attributable to shareholders	130,477	138,010
Amounts receivable on the issue of shares	1,487	9,566
Amounts payable on the cancellation of shares	(112,327)	(5,163)
	(110,840)	4,403
Dilution adjustment	132	-
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from		
investment activities (see statement of total return above)	6,142	(20,922)
Retained distribution on accumulation shares	72	1,412
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders	25,983	122,903

The comparatives used within the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders are for the corresponding period of the previous year. Therefore the opening net assets attributable to shareholders for the current year are at 30 April 2024 whilst the figure disclosed in the comparatives' closing net assets attributable to shareholders is at 31 October 2023.

*In pound Sterling and against UK peer group (See Performance summary on page 114).

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

Dividend distribution in pence per share

Class 2 - Gross accumulation shares

Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1				
01/05/24 to 31/10/24	1.3441	-	1.3441	1.1115
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	0.6376	0.7065	1.3441	1.1115
Total distributions in the period			1.3441	1.1115
Class T – Income shares				
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1				
01/05/24 to 31/10/24	1.2707	-	1.2707	1.0735
Group 2				
01/05/24 to 31/10/24	0.1364	1.1343	1.2707	1.0735
Total distributions in the period			1.2707	1.0735

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

(continued)

Class	X -	Gross	accumu	lation	shares

Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	0.3880	-	0.3880	1.2660
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.3880	=	0.3880 0.3880	1.2660 1.2660
Class Z – Accumulation shares				
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Revenue Accumulated 2024	Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	1.4896	-	1.4896	1.2174
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.9203	0.5693	1.4896 1.4896	1.2174 1.2174
Class Z – Gross income shares				
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	0.9755	-	0.9755	0.8133
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	0.5231	0.4524	0.9755	0.8133
Total distributions in the period Group 2: shares purchased during a distribu	ıtion period.		0.9755	0.8133

Comparative Table Disclosure

	Class 2 – Gross accumulation shares		Cla	Class T – Income shares		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	118.31	122.48	118.86	126.58	134.01	133.01
Return before operating charges (p)	4.13	(3.41)	4.37	4.38	(3.87)	4.71
Operating charges (p)	(0.43)	(0.76)	(0.75)	(0.62)	(1.10)	(1.13
Return after operating charges (p)*	3.70	(4.17)	3.62	3.76	(4.97)	3.58
Distributions (p)	(1.34)	(2.52)	(2.57)	(1.27)	(2.46)	(2.58
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	1.34	2.52	2.57		_	
Closing net asset value per share (p)	122.01	118.31	122.48	129.07	126.58	134.01
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.09	0.08	0.11	0.10	0.09	0.12
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	3.13	(3.40)	3.05	2.97	(3.71)	2.69
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	3,287	3,505	6,011	278	226	270
Closing number of shares	2,694,236	2,962,846	4,907,423	215,382	178,142	201,061
Operating charges (%)**	0.69 [†]	0.67	0.67	0.94 [†]	0.89	0.89
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.15	0.07	0.09	0.15	0.07	0.09
Prices						
Highest share price (p)	126.96	122.64	122.54	135.72	134.19	135.44
Lowest share price (p)	118.55	104.71	102.64	126.84	113.75	114.74
	Class X –	Gross accumulati	on shares	Class 2	Z – Accumulation	shares
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/20231	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)						
opening her asser value her share (h)	103.27	106.28	100.00	146.41	151.92	147.74
Return before operating charges (p)	3.58	(2.94)	6.35	5.06	(4.25)	5.44
						5.44
Return before operating charges (p)	3.58	(2.94)	6.35	5.06	(4.25)	5.44 (1.26
Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p)	3.58 (0.04)	(2.94) (0.07)	6.35 (0.07)	5.06 (0.70)	(4.25) (1.26)	5.44 (1.26 4.18
Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)*	3.58 (0.04) 3.54	(2.94) (0.07) (3.01)	6.35 (0.07) 6.28	5.06 (0.70) 4.36	(4.25) (1.26) (5.51)	5.44 (1.26 4.18 (2.88
Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p)	3.58 (0.04) 3.54 (0.39)	(2.94) (0.07) (3.01) (2.79)	6.35 (0.07) 6.28 (2.69)	5.06 (0.70) 4.36 (1.49)	(4.25) (1.26) (5.51) (2.80)	5.44 (1.26 4.18 (2.88 2.88
Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	3.58 (0.04) 3.54 (0.39) 0.39	(2.94) (0.07) (3.01) (2.79) 2.79	6.35 (0.07) 6.28 (2.69) 2.69	5.06 (0.70) 4.36 (1.49) 1.49	(4.25) (1.26) (5.51) (2.80) 2.80	5.44 (1.26 4.18 (2.88 2.88
Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p)	3.58 (0.04) 3.54 (0.39) 0.39 106.81	(2.94) (0.07) (3.01) (2.79) 2.79 103.27	6.35 (0.07) 6.28 (2.69) 2.69 106.28	5.06 (0.70) 4.36 (1.49) 1.49	(4.25) (1.26) (5.51) (2.80) 2.80 146.41	5.44 (1.26 4.18 (2.88 2.88 151.92
Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p)	3.58 (0.04) 3.54 (0.39) 0.39 106.81	(2.94) (0.07) (3.01) (2.79) 2.79 103.27	6.35 (0.07) 6.28 (2.69) 2.69 106.28	5.06 (0.70) 4.36 (1.49) 1.49	(4.25) (1.26) (5.51) (2.80) 2.80 146.41	5.44 (1.26 4.18 (2.88 2.88 151.92
Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance	3.58 (0.04) 3.54 (0.39) 0.39 106.81 0.08	(2.94) (0.07) (3.01) (2.79) 2.79 103.27 0.07	6.35 (0.07) 6.28 (2.69) 2.69 106.28 0.10	5.06 (0.70) 4.36 (1.49) 1.49 150.77 0.12	(4.25) (1.26) (5.51) (2.80) 2.80 146.41 0.10	5.44 (1.26 4.18 (2.88 2.88 151.92
Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information	3.58 (0.04) 3.54 (0.39) 0.39 106.81 0.08	(2.94) (0.07) (3.01) (2.79) 2.79 103.27 0.07	6.35 (0.07) 6.28 (2.69) 2.69 106.28 0.10	5.06 (0.70) 4.36 (1.49) 1.49 150.77 0.12	(4.25) (1.26) (5.51) (2.80) 2.80 146.41 0.10	5.44 (1.26 4.18 (2.88 2.88 151.92 0.14
Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000)	3.58 (0.04) 3.54 (0.39) 0.39 106.81 0.08	(2.94) (0.07) (3.01) (2.79) 2.79 103.27 0.07	6.35 (0.07) 6.28 (2.69) 2.69 106.28 0.10	5.06 (0.70) 4.36 (1.49) 1.49 150.77 0.12 2.98	(4.25) (1.26) (5.51) (2.80) 2.80 146.41 0.10 (3.63)	5.44 (1.26 4.18 (2.88 2.88 151.92 0.14 2.83
Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares	3.58 (0.04) 3.54 (0.39) 0.39 106.81 0.08	(2.94) (0.07) (3.01) (2.79) 2.79 103.27 0.07 (2.83)	6.35 (0.07) 6.28 (2.69) 2.69 106.28 0.10 6.28	5.06 (0.70) 4.36 (1.49) 1.49 150.77 0.12 2.98	(4.25) (1.26) (5.51) (2.80) 2.80 146.41 0.10 (3.63)	5.44 (1.26 4.18 (2.88 2.88 151.92 0.14 2.83 3,556 2,340,801
Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)**	3.58 (0.04) 3.54 (0.39) 0.39 106.81 0.08 3.43	(2.94) (0.07) (3.01) (2.79) 2.79 103.27 0.07 (2.83) 104,112 100,813,999	6.35 (0.07) 6.28 (2.69) 2.69 106.28 0.10 6.28	5.06 (0.70) 4.36 (1.49) 1.49 150.77 0.12 2.98 3,590 2,380,998	(4.25) (1.26) (5.51) (2.80) 2.80 146.41 0.10 (3.63) 3,271 2,234,494	5.44 (1.26 4.18 (2.88 2.88 151.92 0.14 2.83 3,556 2,340,80' 0.88
Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)*** Direct transaction costs (%)***	3.58 (0.04) 3.54 (0.39) 0.39 106.81 0.08 3.43	(2.94) (0.07) (3.01) (2.79) 2.79 103.27 0.07 (2.83) 104,112 100,813,999 0.07	6.35 (0.07) 6.28 (2.69) 2.69 106.28 0.10 6.28 106,765 100,459,199 0.07 [†]	5.06 (0.70) 4.36 (1.49) 1.49 150.77 0.12 2.98 3,590 2,380,998 0.91	(4.25) (1.26) (5.51) (2.80) 2.80 146.41 0.10 (3.63) 3,271 2,234,494 0.89	5.44 (1.26 4.16 (2.88 2.88 151.92 0.14 2.83 3,556 2,340,801 0.88
Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%)	3.58 (0.04) 3.54 (0.39) 0.39 106.81 0.08 3.43	(2.94) (0.07) (3.01) (2.79) 2.79 103.27 0.07 (2.83) 104,112 100,813,999 0.07	6.35 (0.07) 6.28 (2.69) 2.69 106.28 0.10 6.28 106,765 100,459,199 0.07 [†]	5.06 (0.70) 4.36 (1.49) 1.49 150.77 0.12 2.98 3,590 2,380,998 0.91	(4.25) (1.26) (5.51) (2.80) 2.80 146.41 0.10 (3.63) 3,271 2,234,494 0.89	147.74 5.44 (1.26 4.18 (2.88 2.88 151.92 0.14 2.83 3,556 2,340,801 0.89 0.09

Comparative Table Disclosure

(continued)

Class Z – Gross income shares

	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share			
Opening net asset value per share (p)	95.88	101.51	100.75
Return before operating charges (p)	3.33	(2.93)	3.58
Operating charges (p)	(0.46)	(0.84)	(0.86)
Return after operating charges (p)*	2.87	(3.77)	2.72
Distributions (p)	(0.98)	(1.86)	(1.96)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		_	
Closing net asset value per share (p)	97.77	95.88	101.51
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.08	0.07	0.09
Performance			
Return after charges (%)	2.99	(3.71)	2.70
Other information			
Closing net asset value (£000)	18,827	19,363	21,408
Closing number of shares	19,256,950	20,194,538	21,090,099
Operating charges (%)**	0.91 [†]	0.89	0.89
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.15	0.07	0.09
Prices			
Highest share price (p)	102.82	101.64	102.59
Lowest share price (p)	96.08	86.16	86.92

^{**}The Operating charges are represented by the Ongoing Charges Figure (OCF) which is the European standard method of disclosing the charges of a share class of a fund based on the financial year's expenses and may vary from year to year. It includes charges such as the fund's annual management charge, registration fee, custody fees and distribution cost but ordinarily excludes the costs of buying or selling assets for the fund (unless these assets are shares of another fund). Where published, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) contains the current OCF. For a more detailed breakdown please visit columbiathreadneedle.com/fees.

Highest and Lowest share prices are based on official published daily NAVs priced at 12 noon on the last business day of the period on a mid basis. The closing net asset value per share is at close of business on a bid basis.

^{***}Transaction costs have not been reduced by any amounts collected from dilution levies/adjustments.

¹Commenced 25 May 2022.

¹The Ongoing Charges Figure is annualised based on the fees incurred during the accounting period or since commencement date.

Notes to the financial statements

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of investments, in compliance with FRS 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (SORP) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2024 and are described in those financial statements.

(b) Notes

In accordance with the guidelines of the SORP the fund has taken advantage of the facility not to provide further notes to the financial statements.

2 RECONCILIATION OF SHARES

HEGGINGIEM TOTAL OF GUMILEO	
	2024
Class 2 – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	2,962,846
Shares issued	511,258
Shares redeemed	(779,868)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	2,694,236
Class T – Income shares	
Opening shares	178,142
Shares issued	2,021
Shares redeemed	(2,565)
Net conversions	37,784
Closing shares	215,382
Class X – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	100,813,999
Shares issued	-
Shares redeemed	(100,812,999)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	1,000
Class Z – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	2,234,494
Shares issued	412,024
Shares redeemed	(265,520)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	2,380,998
Class Z – Gross income shares	
Opening shares	20,194,538
Shares issued	239,460
Shares redeemed	(1,127,173)
Net conversions	(49,875)
Closing shares	19,256,950

3 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

The table below shows net redemptions between the period-ended 31 October 2024 and 4 December 2024 as a percentage of the closing NAV for share classes with significant movements. The net redemptions of shares were reviewed again on 10 December with no material movements noted since 04 December. This change is reflective of conditions that arose after the period-end and hence is considered a non-adjusting event.

Class Name	% Movement
Class 2 – Gross accumulation shares	(26.70)

Investment Report

Investment Objective and Policy

The Fund aims to provide income combined with prospects for capital growth over the long term. It looks to provide an income yield higher than the FTSE All-Share Index over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of charges. The Fund is actively managed, and invests at least 90% of its assets in shares of companies listed on the London Stock Exchange; predominantly companies domiciled in the UK, or which have significant UK business operations.

The Fund selects companies that exhibit above average income generation potential, as well as those considered to offer opportunities more by way of share price or dividend growth. The Alpha Income investment approach is a highly focused management style, allowing the flexibility for significant share and sector positions to be taken. As a result, investment is usually concentrated in fewer than 35 companies. These companies may be of any size, but investment

tends to focus on larger companies included in the FTSE All-Share Index.

The FTSE All-Share Index is regarded as an appropriate performance measure of the UK stock market, with over 600 companies currently included. The income yield of this index provides a suitable target benchmark against which the level of income generated by the Fund will be measured and evaluated over time.

The Fund may invest in other securities (including fixed interest securities) and collective investment schemes (including funds managed by Columbia Threadneedle companies), when deemed appropriate. The Fund may also hold money market instruments, deposits, cash and near cash.

The Fund is not permitted to invest in derivatives for investment purposes but derivatives may be used with the aim of reducing risk or managing the Fund more efficiently.

Performance of Net Income Class 1 Shares*

Over the six months to 31 October 2024, the published share price of Class 1- Income shares in the CT UK Equity Alpha Income Fund has risen from 63.21p to 64.36p.

to 2-10 to 4-30); for comparison, using noon prices, the performance of the Class 1 share class was +3.68% and +3.98% for the Class 2 share class compared to a return of +2.20% for the Morningstar UK Unit Trusts/OEICS — IA UK Equity Income Peer Group (on a bid to bid basis, with income reinvested for a UK basic rate taxpayer).

For information purposes, using global close prices, the total return of the FTSE All-Share Index was +1.819

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

The FTSE All-Share index posted a positive return over the review period. Investors were encouraged by better-than-expected corporate earnings,

the improving economic backdrop, declining inflation and the resulting expectations that key central banks would start to reduce interest rates which indeed transpired.

UK equities were also boosted by a surge in mergers and acquisitions from overseas companies and the prospect, and then reality, of Labour winning a substantial majority in July's general election. The resulting hopes of an era of political stability and growth-friendly policies from the new government proved particularly beneficial for stocks perceived to be sensitive to the

Meanwhile, annual consumer price inflation in the UK fell to 2% in May, hitting the Bank of England's (BoE) target and buoying hopes of an interest-rate cut by the autumn. The BoE duly cut rates by 0.25% in August, but sticky services inflation and elevated wage growth stoded uncertainty about the trajectory of rate cuts. UK equities succumbed to global sell-offs in early August and early

September amid fears of a US recession. The sell-off in August was exacerbated by the unwinding of the "yen carry trade" (where investors borrowed yen at low interest rates to invest in assets in other currencies offering higher potential returns) following a surge in the yen after the Bank of Japan's interest-rate hike at the end of July. However, these sell-offs were short-lived and markets rebounded quickly both

times, aided by hopes that the Federal Reserve would cut rates in September, which duly materialised. Towards the end of September and in early October, sentiment was also boosted by a slew of stimulus measures from China. However, as October progressed, the mood darkened again as the Chinese government failed to provide clarity on its stimulus policies and expectations for monetary easing in the US were scaled back amid speculation about reflationary policies being pursued should Donald Trump be re-elected president.

UK equities were also pressured by concerns that the new government's first Budget might include higher taxes and government borrowing. While many of the policies announced were trailed in the prior weeks, the scale of the changes caused some surprise, notably the extent of extra borrowing. This led to a decline in the pound and reduced expectations for the pace of UK interest-rate cuts next year. More positively, some tax increases were less steep than had been feared; notably, businesses were cheered by a freeze on corporation tax. The chancellor also announced an increase in public investment to encourage a move towards a more productive economy. We topped up our positions in Burberry and Rentokil.

There is significant uncertainty over Burberry's near-term earnings trajectory owing to the tough backdrop for luxury goods companies. However, brand resonance remains strong. The firm's new CEO is reviewing the strategy he inherited, which was elevating the brand to higher price levels but leaving

core Burberry customers behind. We feel that the current share price is highly attractive, having only been lower during the global financial crisis in 2008. In our view, concerns about Rentokil's slowing sales in North America are

overblown. The acquisition of Terminix will necessitate some organisational changes as the company integrates branches and removes duplicated coverage, such as locations with both a Terminix and a Rentokil branch. This is likely to cause a degree of disruption on an employee and customer level over the next year or two. Despite some operational issues linked to the acquisition. Rentokil has a high-quality underlying business, and once the integration process is complete, the company should be in a strong position with greater scale, enabling the firm to increase its market share in the US and globally. In addition, Rentokil has made significant investments in customer retention and marketing. The firm is also making progress in reducing debt.

We trimmed positions in Pearson, Unilever, Smiths Group and Imperial

Brands, among others.

Following three months of uncertainty, the new government's first Budget has generally proved better than feared, notably in terms of tax increases While the extent of spending and borrowing has led investors to dial down expectations for the pace of interest-rate cuts next year, as long-term active managers, we view the measures unveiled as ultimately positive for growth. The increases in the minimum wage and employers' National Insurance contributions might cost businesses more in the short term, but they could also lead to a more productive and higher-wage economy over time. This should prove supportive for UK domestic companies and mid-cap equites,

should puse support of the fund is overweight.

Meanwhile, household savings remain high, with Covid-era "piggy banks" still intact. This bodes well for credit growth, which, in turn, should support a sustained economic recovery. For now, consumers are wary of big-ticket purchases, but the prospect of lower interest rates should help overcome this. Additionally, with a stable government, the UK appears to be a relative safe haven given the political uncertainty in Europe and the US, where the impact of Trump's immigration, trade and foreign policies remains to be seen.

We expect UK companies to remain attractive targets for overseas takeover and private-equity bids as the intrinsic value of these businesses is much higher than implied by current beaten-down share prices. Indeed, the UK market is deeply discounted relative to its own historical averages and the rest of the world.

Our focus remains on long-term ownership and quality stewardship. As patient conviction investors, we will continue to avoid whipsaw momentum trades and concentrate on company fundamentals to target strong riskadjusted returns.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024 £000	£000
Income		
Net capital gains/(losses)	4,248	(14,633)
Revenue	2,640	3,275
Expenses	(483)	(594)
Interest payable and similar charges	(1)	(1)
Net revenue before taxation	2,156	2,680
Taxation		_
Net revenue after taxation	2,156	2,680
Total return before distributions	6,404	(11,953)
Distributions	(2,559)	(3,184)
Change in net assets attributable to		
shareholders from investment activities	3,845	(15,137)

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2024

	2024	April 2024
Assets:	£000	£000
Assets: Fixed assets:		
Investments	120,880	124,766
Current assets:	,,,,,,	,
Debtors	608	1,164
Cash and bank balances	233	934
Cash equivalents**	6	1,501
Total assets	121,727	128,365
Liabilities:		
Creditors:		
Distribution payable	(2,072)	(1,942)
Other creditors	(439)	(991)
Total liabilities	(2,511)	(2,933)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	119,216	125,432

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024	2023
	£000	£000
Opening net assets attributable to shareholders	125,432	169,586
Amounts receivable on the issue of shares	602	788
Amounts payable on the cancellation of shares	(11,053)	(26,041)
	(10,451)	(25,253)
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from		
investment activities (see statement of total return above)	3,845	(15,137)
Retained distribution on accumulation shares	390	386
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders	119,216	129,582

The comparatives used within the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders are for the corresponding period of the previous year. Therefore the opening net assets attributable to shareholders for the current year are at 30 April 2024 whilst the figure disclosed in the comparatives' closing net assets attributable to shareholders is at 31 October 2023.

*In pound Sterling and against UK peer group (See Performance summary on page 114).

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

Dividend distribution in pence per share

Class 1 - Income shares

Oldoo i illoolilo ollaroo				
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	1.3038	_	1.3038	1.2671
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.7573	0.5465	1.3038 1.3038	1.2671 1.2671
Class 2 – Income shares				
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	1.4617	-	1.4617	1.4398
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.4395	1.0222	1.4617	1.4398

^{**}The total value of investments in the portfolio statement includes the Cash Equivalents amount shown under current assets.

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

(continued)

Close V I	Income shares
CIBSS A - I	iliculle shares

Group 2: shares purchased during a distribution period.

Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	2.3772	-	2.3772	2.2837
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	2.3772	-	2.3772 2.3772	2.2837 2.2837
Class X – Gross accumulation sh	ares			
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	2.8095	-	2.8095	2.6082
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	2.8095	-	2.8095 2.8095	2.6082 2.6082
Class Z – Income shares				
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	2.8932	=	2.8932	2.8230
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	1.3984	1.4948	2.8932 2.8932	2.8230 2.8230

Comparative Table Disclosure

	Cla	Class 1 – Income shares			Class 2 – Income shares		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	
Change in net assets per share							
Opening net asset value per share (p)	61.59	63.29	64.15	67.47	68.99	69.57	
Return before operating charges (p)	3.29	1.70	2.49	3.62	1.90	2.75	
Operating charges (p)	(0.54)	(1.01)	(1.01)	(0.39)	(0.71)	(0.72	
Return after operating charges (p)*	2.75	0.69	1.48	3.23	1.19	2.03	
Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	(1.30)	(2.39) —	(2.34)	(1.46)	(2.71) –	(2.61	
Closing net asset value per share (p)	63.04	61.59	63.29	69.24	67.47	68.99	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.01	0.06	0.04	0.02	0.07	0.05	
Performance							
Return after charges (%)	4.47	1.09	2.31	4.79	1.72	2.92	
Other information							
Closing net asset value (£000)	441	502	28,414	4,800	4,785	5,988	
Closing number of shares	699,876	815,237	44,899,219	6,933,149	7,092,048	8,679,464	
Operating charges (%)**	1.65 [†]	1.65	1.64	1.07 [†]	1.07	1.07	
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.04	0.10	0.07	0.04	0.10	0.07	
Prices							
Highest share price (p)	67.96	63.55	65.43	74.61	69.29	71.08	
Lowest share price (p)	61.76	56.98	56.20	67.66	62.27	61.10	
	Clas	ss X – Income sha	res	Class X –	Gross accumulati	on shares	
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	
Change in net assets per share							
Opening net asset value per share (p)	110.51	111.85	111.68	129.78	126.12	121.13	
Return before operating charges (p)	5.89	3.05	4.38	6.94	3.75	5.06	
Operating charges (p)	(0.04)	(80.0)	(0.07)	(0.05)	(0.09)	(0.07	
Return after operating charges (p)*	5.85	2.97	4.31	6.89	3.66	4.99	
Distributions (p)	(2.38)	(4.31)	(4.14)	(2.81)	(4.98)	(4.58	
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)							
	-	_	_	2.81	4.98		
Closing net asset value per share (p)		110.51				4.58	
				2.81	4.98	4.58 126.12	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)		110.51	111.85	2.81 136.67	4.98 129.78	4.58 126.12	
		110.51	111.85	2.81 136.67	4.98 129.78	4.58 126.12 0.08	
*after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%)	0.03	110.51 0.11	111.85 0.07	2.81 136.67 0.03	4.98 129.78 0.12	4.58 126.12 0.08	
*after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information	0.03 5.29	110.51 0.11 2.66	111.85 0.07 3.86	2.81 136.67 0.03 5.31	4.98 129.78 0.12 2.90	4.58 126.12 0.08 4.12	
*after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000)	0.03	110.51 0.11 2.66 4,678	111.85 0.07 3.86 11,389	2.81 136.67 0.03 5.31	4.98 129.78 0.12	4.58 126.12 0.08 4.12 27,947	
*after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%)	0.03 5.29 3,838	110.51 0.11 2.66	111.85 0.07 3.86	2.81 136.67 0.03 5.31	4.98 129.78 0.12 2.90	4.58 126.12 0.08 4.12 27,947 22,159,388	
*after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)**	0.03 5.29 3,838 3,367,275	110.51 0.11 2.66 4,678 4,233,000	111.85 0.07 3.86 11,389 10,182,548	2.81 136.67 0.03 5.31 18,950 13,865,580	4.98 129.78 0.12 2.90 19,144 14,751,779	4.58 126.12 0.08 4.12 27,947 22,159,385 0.06	
*after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)**	0.03 5.29 3,838 3,367,275 0.07'	110.51 0.11 2.66 4,678 4,233,000 0.07	111.85 0.07 3.86 11,389 10,182,548 0.06	2.81 136.67 0.03 5.31 18,950 13,865,580 0.07	4.98 129.78 0.12 2.90 19,144 14,751,779 0.07	4.58 126.12 0.08 4.12 27,947 22,159,385 0.06	
*after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)*** Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.03 5.29 3,838 3,367,275 0.07'	110.51 0.11 2.66 4,678 4,233,000 0.07	111.85 0.07 3.86 11,389 10,182,548 0.06	2.81 136.67 0.03 5.31 18,950 13,865,580 0.07	4.98 129.78 0.12 2.90 19,144 14,751,779 0.07	4.58 126.12 0.08 4.12 27,947 22,159,385 0.06 0.07	

Comparative Table Disclosure

(continued)

Class Z – Income shares

	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share			
Opening net asset value per share (p)	136.47	139.18	140.02
Return before operating charges (p)	7.30	3.79	5.47
Operating charges (p)	(0.65)	(1.19)	(1.19)
Return after operating charges (p)*	6.65	2.60	4.28
Distributions (p)	(2.89)	(5.31)	(5.12)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		_	
Closing net asset value per share (p)	140.23	136.47	139.18
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.03	0.13	0.09
Performance			
Return after charges (%)	4.87	1.87	3.06
Other information			
Closing net asset value (£000)	91,187	96,323	95,848
Closing number of shares	65,028,920	70,581,752	68,866,127
Operating charges (%)**	0.89 [†]	0.89	0.88
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.04	0.10	0.07
Prices			
Highest share price (p)	150.98	140.06	143.13
Lowest share price (p)	136.85	125.80	123.07

^{**}The Operating charges are represented by the Ongoing Charges Figure (OCF) which is the European standard method of disclosing the charges of a share class of a fund based on the financial year's expenses and may vary from year to year. It includes charges such as the fund's annual management charge, registration fee, custody fees and distribution cost but ordinarily excludes the costs of buying or selling assets for the fund (unless these assets are shares of another fund). Where published, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) contains the current OCF. For a more detailed breakdown please visit columbiathreadneedle.com/fees.

Highest and Lowest share prices are based on official published daily NAVs priced at 12 noon on the last business day of the period on a mid basis. The closing net asset value per share is at close of business on a bid basis.

^{***}Transaction costs have not been reduced by any amounts collected from dilution levies/adjustments.

¹The Ongoing Charges Figure is annualised based on the fees incurred during the accounting period or since commencement date.

Notes to the financial statements

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of investments, in compliance with FRS 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (SORP) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2024 and are described in those financial statements.

(b) Notes

In accordance with the guidelines of the SORP the fund has taken advantage of the facility not to provide further notes to the financial statements.

2 RECONCILIATION OF SHARES

	2024
Class 1 – Income shares	
Opening shares	815,237
Shares issued	1,869
Shares redeemed	(114,414)
Net conversions	(2,816)
Closing shares	699,876
Class 2 – Income shares	
Opening shares	7,092,048
Shares issued	362,561
Shares redeemed	(521,460)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	6,933,149
Class X – Income shares	
Opening shares	4,233,000
Shares issued	-
Shares redeemed	(865,725)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	3,367,275
Class X – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	14,751,779
Shares issued	-
Shares redeemed	(886,199)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	13,865,580
Class Z – Income shares	
Opening shares	70,581,752
Shares issued	240,688
Shares redeemed	(5,794,786)
Net conversions	1,266
Closing shares	65,028,920

CT Sterling Medium and Long-Dated Corporate Bond Fund*

Investment Report

Investment Objective and Policy

Investment Objective and Policy
The Fund aims to provide income with the prospect of some capital growth over the long term
(5 years, or more). It also looks to outperform the iBoox GBP Non-Gilts 5+ Index (the "Index")
over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of charges.
The Fund is actively managed, and invests at least two-thrists of its assets in investment grade
corporate bonds with a remaining maturity of 5 years or more. The Fund may also invest in
other bonds (including below investment grade corporate bonds, and government bonds) when
considered appropriate to achieve its investment objective.
The bonds selected are denominated in sterling (or hedged back to sterling if a different
currency) and issued by companies anywhere in the world.
The Index is regarded as an appropriate performance measure of sterling denominated
investment grade bonds with a remaining maturity of 5 years or longer (excluding UR government
bonds). It is broadly representative of the bonds in which the Fund invests and provides a suitable
target benchmark against which Fund performance will be measured and evaluated over time.
The Investment Manager also seeks to create a portfolio that compares favourably against
the Index over rolling 12-month periods, when assessed using the Columbia Threadneedle
ESG Materiality Rating model.

This model (developed and owned by Columbia Threadneedle Investments) analyses company

ESG Materiality Rating model.

This model (developed and owned by Columbia Threadneedle Investments) analyses company data to assess how effectively material environmental, social and governance [ESG] risks and opportunities are being managed. Provided sufficient data is available, the results reach combined and expressed as a numerical ESG Materiality rating to indicate how much exposure a company has to material ESG risks and opportunities in a particular individual to the company and the particular individual provided in the company and the particular individual provided in the company and the countries in branches in bords issued by companies that have poor ESG Materiality ratings are considered in the contrient in branches in bords is such the companies with the constraints when the constraints when

Whilst the Fund may still insert in bonds issued by companies that have poor ESO Materiality ratings, at least SIPs, of the portfolio is inserted in bonds issued by companies with strong ratings, which is also expected to lead to a better weighted average ESO Materiality rating for the Fund than the Index. In line with its engagement policy, the Investment Manager engages with companies with a view to infilterioring management teams to address material ESO risks and improve their ESO practices ranging from climate change to board independence and diversity. The Fund only investes in bonds issued by companies that follow good governance practices. The Fund does not invest in bonds issued by companies which derive revenue from industries or activities above the thresholds shown: trabeaco production (SF), trader vergoons – indicties involvement (SF), conventional weapons – military, or civilian firearms (10%), and thermal coal – extraction or power generation (30%). These exclusion criteria may be extended or revised from time to time. The Fund also excludes companies that have a direct involvement in nuclear weapons, controversial weapons, and companies that the Investment Manager determines to have breached international standards and principles such as the:

United National Standards and principles such as the:

treached international standards and principles such as the:

United Nations Global Compact.

International Labour Organisation Labour Standards, and

United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights.

The Fund may also invest in other securities, as well as collective investment schemes (including funds managed by Columbia Threadneedle companies), and hold money market instruments, deposits, cash and near cash.

The Fund is not permitted to invest in derivatives for investment purposes, but derivatives may be used with the aim of reducing risk or managing the Fund more efficiently. The Fund may commence using eierivatives with the aim of achieving an investment gain, providing at least 60 days' noting the shareholders.

Performance of Gross Income Class 2 Shares**

re-usual matter or utross income class Z Shares**
Tom 30 April to 8 October 2024, the published share price of Class 2 - Income shares in the
CT Sterling Medium and Long-Dated Corporate Bond Fund has risen from 107.37 p to 108.18 p.
For comparison, using noon prices, the performance of the Class 2 share class was +3.09% (on
a bid to bid basis, with income reinvested for a UK basis criet taxpeyer).
For information purposes, using global close prices, the total return of the iBoxx GBP Non-Gilt
5* Years Index was 4.3.99%.

5+ Years Index was +3.29%

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

Although it was interspersed with some bouts of volatility, the period under review proved be a mildly positive one for sterling investment-grade [I/G] credit. The iBoxx Sterling Mon-Gi 5+ Varsar index, for example, made a total return of 2.2% over the six months to 31 Cotto 2024. This was driven by a combination of coupon income and modestly tightening cre

5+ Years index, for example, made a total return of 2.2% over the six months to 31 October 2024. This was driven by a combination of coupon income and modestly tightening credit spreads (the yield premiums offered by corporate bonds over 'risk-free' government bonds of the same maturity. Underlying UKg ity rields rose overall.

In the first half of the period, yields continued to see-saw but ultimately trended lower, with glist continuing to take their cue saliegly from the US Tesseury market. Risk assets and safe havers alike were supported by better news on US consumer prices, as successive headline inflation prints undershot forecasts. There was also some other evidence of cooling in the US economy, such as May's non-farm payroll report and June's flash composite purchasing managers' index (PMI). While these helped quali Interest-rate connects, they were not enough to derail anticipation that the Federal Reserve (Fed) could deliver a 'soft landing' (i.e. control inflation without triggering a recession). Hoppes for such an outcome were buyed by solid and forecast-bearing) second-upserier (IQLVIS GDP growth. In the UK, the Office for National Statistics reported in June that headline inflation had at last fallen back to the Bank of England (1965): 2% target unduring the previous month. Nevertheless, with services inflation still at nearly three times that level, few were surprised when the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) kept rates on hold at their policy meeting the next day, July saw the Labour Party's landslide election victory and 14 years of Conservative rule, but as this was widely expected, it had the cut in the support of the first time since 2020, but the MPC's narrow vote to do so, combined with still-sticky UK services inflation, led some to anticipate a slower pace of essing in the UK than in the US. Gitts would go on to underpreform Treasuries over the remainder of the period.

over the remainder of the period.

Soon after the BOS trate cut, a confluence of events diverted investor attention away from the UK. In the US, some surprisingly weak manufacturing and jobs data stoked fears of a recession, prompting traders to once again price in a faster pace of monetary easing by the Ped. At the same time, a surpein the year - following a surprise rate hike by the Bank of Japan - triggered a rapid unwinding of the year Carry trade (in which traders borrowed yen at low interest rates to invest in assets in other currencies offering higher potential returns).

The result of this combination was a powerful rally in core government bonds, a sharp sell-off

in equities and a widening in credit spreads. Though severe, the market moves were short-lived, equities rebounded and credit spreads tightened after 5 August as stronger US data and reassuring commentary from Fed policymakers stoked renewed hopes of a soft landing. Gilt yields 12g-32ged modestly higher over the remainder of the month. Yields and spreads were basically flat in September. Gilts lagged a rally in Treasuries amid ongoing expectations of slower rate cuts. While the Fed delivered an outsized cut of 50 basis points flops; the Bot keep policy on hold and issued a caurious statement citing concerns about sticky services inflation and wage growth that was still too high.

The last month of the period was a poor one across most fixed income markets. Bumper US nonfarm payroll data all but extinguished hopes for another 50-bp rate out at the Fed's next meeting in November. US i Treasuries were also pressured by anticipation that Donald Tump would regain the White House – widely seen as an inflationary outcome. Politics in the UK and Imma would regain the Minte House – widely seen as an inflationary outcome. Politics in the UK as both an impact

the White House – widely seen as an inflationary outcome Politics in the UK also had an impact on the market right at the end of the period, gits sold off as markets dispessed the extent of the planned increases in borrowing and public spending unveiled in Labour's first Budget. While the period under review as owne significant swinging in git yields; it was notable for a relative lack of volatility in credit spreads. That said, there were some exceptions to this trend. Spreads widnered for a yell in June and woveries about the political outlook in France, and again during the afforementioned turmoil in early August In both instances, spreads quickly resumed the trend of gradual tightening that has been in place since late 2023. As with equities, sentiment towards credit was supported by optimism about the global economy, thanks in part to falling inflation in most regions, anticipation of lower interest rates and surprisingly robust CDP growth in the US. Further fuelling appetite for risk, corporate earnings also continued to beat estimates the agreepate, while stellar results from a number of large technology companies stoked general excitement around the Al boom.

technology companies stoked general excitement around the Al boom. During the period, following a number of significant redeemptions and notice of another from a single large client, we decided that it would be in the best interests of shareholders to close the fund. The planned redemption would have reduced the assests to a size that would no longer be viable to manage. Trading activity therefore focused on selling down the holdings before the fund's closure on 8 October 2024. Looking ahead, we see the current prospects for sterling investment grade (IG) spreads as fairly neutral Headline initiation in the UK has returned to larget, though services inflation – a key focus for the BoE – remains especially sticky. Furthermore, even if the central banks ease policy more sensors/sinks than general carties will likely stern centering for some conscriptions.

more aggressively than expected, rates will likely stay restrictive for some time

more aggressively than expected, rates will likely stay restrictive for some time. In terms of economic growth, meanwhile, the gentle expansion we expect across developed markets should prove a reasonable environment for IG issuers, particularly those at the less leveraged and less cyclical end of the spectrum. As regards corporate health, our team of analysts anticipates that corporate credit quality will remain strong in the year ahead. High levels of interest cover and relatively low met debt-to-earnings ratios look likely to be maintained, though default rates among high-yield issuers are expected to rise in the wake of some aggressive liability management exercises. One slight concern is stering IG credit spreads finished the period well inside (i.e. more expensive than) their five- and 2D-year averages. That said, outright yields in the market — another way of looking at valuations — were further above the long-run mean. We think this provides an interesting entry point for those seeking income without too much risk.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

f 4h	1 1 1 -	. 2024	- 01	0-4-6	2024
for the accounting period	I IVIA	/ 2024 l	031	uctoner	<i>2024</i>

	2024	2023
	£000	£000
Income		
Net capital gains/(losses)	3,912	(15,050)
Revenue	950	5,562
Expenses	(15)	(86)
Net revenue before taxation	935	5,476
Taxation		
Net revenue after taxation	935	5,476
Total return before distributions	4,847	(9,574)
Distributions	(912)	(5,476)
Change in net assets attributable to		
shareholders from investment activities	3,935	(15,050)

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2024

		April
	2024	2024
	£000	£000
Assets:		
Current assets:		
Investments***	_	180,829
Debtors	2	4,269
Cash and bank balances	17	10,678
Cash equivalents****		2,947
Total assets	19	198,723
Liabilities:		
Investment liabilities	-	(254)
Creditors:		
Bank overdrafts	-	(3,343)
Distribution payable	-	(3)
Other creditors	(2)	(3,202)
Total liabilities	(2)	(6,802)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	17	191,921

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE **TO SHAREHOLDERS**

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024	2023
	£000	£000
Opening net assets attributable to shareholders	191,921	265,822
Amounts receivable on the issue of shares	77	3,249
Amounts payable on the cancellation of shares	(229)	(23,403)
Amounts payable on in-specie transfers	(196,237)	-
	(196,389)	(20,154)
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from		
investment activities (see statement of total return above)	3,935	(15,050)
Retained distribution on accumulation shares	550	5,334
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders	17	235,952

The comparatives used within the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders are for the corresponding period of the previous year. Therefore the opening net assets attributable to shareholders for the current year are at 30 April 2024 whilst the figure disclosed in the comparatives' closing net assets attributable to shareholders is at 31 October 2023.

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

Interest distribution in pence per share

Class 2 - Gross income shares*

Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1				
01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.4014	-	0.4014	0.3274
01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.4190	_	0.4190	0.3286
01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.4502	_	0.4502	0.3448
01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.4012	_	0.4012	0.3339
01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.4055	-	0.4055	0.3313
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	-	-	-	0.3650
Group 2				
01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.2231	0.1783	0.4014	0.3274
01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.0422	0.3768	0.4190	0.3286
01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.3180	0.1322	0.4502	0.3448
01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.2112	0.1900	0.4012	0.3339
01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.3549	0.0506	0.4055	0.3313
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	_	-	-	0.3650
Total distributions in the period			2.0773	2.0310

^{***}Investments are classified as current assets as the Fund has been prepared on a basis other than going concern.

^{*}On 8 October 2024 the Fund closed.

^{**}In pound Sterling and against UK peer group (See Performance summary on page 114).

 $^{^{****}}$ The total value of investments in the portfolio statement includes the Cash Equivalents amount shown under current assets.

CT Sterling Medium and Long-Dated Corporate Bond Fund

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

(continued)

Class X – Gross accumulation shares*

Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1				
01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.3947	-	0.3947	0.3128
01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.4086	-	0.4086	0.3131
01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.4440	-	0.4440	0.3292
01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.3990	_	0.3990	0.3209
01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.4053	_	0.4053	0.3179
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	-	-	-	0.3510
Group 2				
01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.3947	-	0.3947	0.3128
01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.4086	-	0.4086	0.3131
01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.4440	-	0.4440	0.3292
01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.3990	-	0.3990	0.3209
01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.4053	-	0.4053	0.3179
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	_	_	-	0.3510
Total distributions in the period			2.0516	1.9449

Group 2: shares purchased during a distribution period.

^{*}For closure dates, refer to the footnotes after the comparative tables.

CT Sterling Medium and Long-Dated Corporate Bond Fund

Comparative Table Disclosure

	Class 2 – Gross income shares			Class X –	Gross accumulat	ion shares
	31/10/2024 ¹	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024 ¹	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	106.43	106.66	125.30	95.77	91.87	104.10
Return before operating charges (p)	4.12	4.45	(14.59)	3.65	3.96	(12.16)
Operating charges (p)	(0.29)	(0.49)	(0.53)	(0.06)	(0.06)	(0.07)
Return after operating charges (p)*	3.83	3.96	(15.12)	3.59	3.90	(12.23)
Distributions (p)	(2.08)	(4.19)	(3.52)	(2.05)	(4.06)	(3.35)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		_		2.05	4.06	3.35
Closing net asset value per share (p)	108.18	106.43	106.66	99.36	95.77	91.87
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	_	_	_	_	_	_
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	3.60	3.71	(12.07)	3.75	4.25	(11.75)
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	_	670	4,672	-	191,251	261,150
Closing number of shares	_	630,076	4,380,042	_	199,702,171	284,262,905
Operating charges (%)**	-	0.47	0.48	-	0.07	0.07 [†]
Direct transaction costs (%)***	-	-	_	-	-	-
Prices						
Highest share price (p)	111.51	113.19	126.14	102.01	100.04	104.82
Lowest share price (p)	106.38	99.11	92.75	95.72	86.39	78.04

^{**}The Operating charges are represented by the Ongoing Charges Figure (OCF) which is the European standard method of disclosing the charges of a share class of a fund based on the financial year's expenses and may vary from year to year. It includes charges such as the fund's annual management charge, registration fee, custody fees and distribution cost but ordinarily excludes the costs of buying or selling assets for the fund (unless these assets are shares of another fund). Where published, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) contains the current OCF. For a more detailed breakdown please visit columbiathreadneedle.com/fees.

Highest and Lowest share prices are based on official published daily NAVs priced at 12 noon on the last business day of the period on a mid basis. The closing net asset value per share is at close of business on a bid basis.

^{***}Transaction costs have not been reduced by any amounts collected from dilution levies/adjustments.

¹Closed 8 October 2024

CT Sterling Medium and Long-Dated Corporate Bond Fund

Notes to the financial statements

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on a basis other than the going concern assumption, as the fund was closed on 8 October 2024. They are in compliance with FRS 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (SORP) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2024 and are described in those financial statements.

(b) Notes

In accordance with the guidelines of the SORP the fund has taken advantage of the facility not to provide further notes to the financial statements.

2 RECONCILIATION OF SHARES

	2024
Class 2 – Gross income shares*	
Opening shares	630,076
Shares issued	70,788
Shares redeemed	(700,864)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	_
Class X – Gross accumulation shares*	
Opening shares	199,702,171
Shares issued	_
Shares redeemed	(199,702,171)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	

^{*}For closure dates, refer to the footnotes after the comparative tables.

Investment Report

Investment Objective and Policy

Investment Unjective and Policy
The Fund mins to proide income with the prospect of some capital growth over the long term [5 years, or more]. It also looks to outperform the Boxx GBP Corporates 1-5 Index (the "Index") over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of charges.

The Fund is actively managed, and invests at least two-thirds of its assets in investment grade corporate bonds with an effective maturity of 5 years or less. The Fund may also invest in other bonds (including below investment agade corporate bonds, and government bonds) when considered appropriate to achieve its investment objective.

The bonds calected and compositation is returned bond bork to returned in different proposal and

appropriate to achieve its investment objective.

The bonds selected are denominated in sterling (or hedged back to sterling if a different currency) and issued by companies anywhere in the world.

The locks is regarded as an appropriate performance measure of sterling denominated investment grade copporate bonds with a maturity of between 1-5 years. It is broadly representative of the bonds in which the Fund invests and provides a suitable target benchmark against which Fund performance will be measured and evaluated over time.

will be measured and evaluated over time. The Investment Manager also seeds to create a portfolic that compares favourably against the Index over rolling 12 morth periods, when assessed using the Columbia Threadneadle ESG Materiality Rating model. This model (developed and owned by Columbia Threadneadle Investments) analyses company data to assess how effectively material environmental, social and provenance (ESG) risks and poportunities are being managed. Provided sufficient data is available, the results are combined and expressed as a numerical ESG Materiality rating to indicate how much exposure a company has to material ESG risks and opportunities in a particular industry.

risks and opportunities in a particular industry. Whilst the fund may still invest in both sissued by companies that have poor ESG Materiality ratings, which is also expected to lead to a better weighted average ESG Materiality rating or the fund than the lodex in line with its engagement policy, the Investment Manager engages with companies with a view to influencing management teams to address material ESG risks and improve their ESG practices ranging from climate change to board independence and diversity.

The Fund only invests in bonds issued by companies which deliversity controlled to the fund only invests in bonds issued by companies which delivers were inclined involvement (FSG) conventional vesers in londs issued by companies which deliver evenue from industries or activities above the thresholds shown to obscribe a conventional vesepons — influency or villain finaring (10%), and thermal coal — extraction or power generation (30%). These exclusion criteria may be extended or revised from time to time. The fund deso not investible stomaches that have a direct involvement in FSG. In Fund advanced the state of the provided revised from time to time. The fund deso not investible stomaches that the ordinaries of the village of the provided revenue of th

standards and principles such as the:

United Nations Global Compact;

International Labour Organisation Labour Standards; and

United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Riights.

The Fund may also inwest in other securities, as well as collective investment schemes (including funds managed by Columbia Threadneedle companies), and hold money market instruments,

The Fund is not permitted to invest in derivatives for investment purposes, but derivatives may be used with

Performance of Gross Accumulation Class 1 Shares

restributed of stross Accumulation Class 1 Shares*
Over the six months to 31 October 2024, the published share price of Class 1 - Gross Accumulation shares in CT Sterling Short-Dated Corporate Bond Fund has risen from 112 Sp to 118.36p.
For comparison, using noon prices, the performance of the Class 1 share class was +3.37% (on a bid to bid basis, with income reinvested for a UK basic rate taxpayer).
For information purposes, using global close prices, the total return of the iBoxx Sterling Corporate 1-5 findex was +3.40%.

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

Although it was interspensed with some bouts of volatility, the period under review proved to be a positive one for stefring investment; grade still cured, particularly short-dated credit. The Bloox Surling (opportune) 1–5 (veri rindes, for example, made total returned of 34% over the six consists to 13 Cuctober 2024. This vas driven by a combination of coupon income and tightening credit spreads (the yield premiums offered by coprorate bonds over this-free operment broads of the same maturity, Houdrying UK gill by leids rose overall.

hear intex, to lockaping, male a boar return of spreads (the yield premium of the oby corporate bonds over risk-free' government bonds of the same maturity. Undarlying UK gilt yields one overall. In the first half of the period, yields continued to see-sex but ultimately the trended lower, with gilts continuing to take their cues largely from the US Treasury market. Risk assets and safe havens alike were supported by better news on US consumer prices, as successive headline inflation prints undershot forecasts. There was also some other evidence of cooling in the US consonny, such as alike were supported by better news on US consumer prices, as successive headline inflation prints undershot forecasts. There was also some other evidence of cooling in the US conomy, such as May's non-farm governed to the prices of the prices, as a successive headline inflation prints undershot forecasts. There was also some other evidence of cooling in the US conomy, such as Reserve could deliver a "soft landing" (is control inflation without triggering a recession). Hopes for such an outcome were buryed by solid (and forecast-beating) second-quarter (I/2) US GDP growth. In the UK, the Office for National Statistics reported in June that headline inflation had at last fallen back to the Bank of England (BoET)s 2% target during the previous month. Nevertheless, with a full thick impact on markets as the month progressed, however, market odds on an August interest rate ut increased, perhaps influenced by slower UK earnings growth (in the three months to end of May). On 1 August, the BoE duly reduced borrowing costs for the first time since 2000, but the MPCs amounts of the period of so, contributed with still-stickly (Es services inflation, it do sone to anticipate months to end of May). On 1 August, the BoE duly reduced borrowing costs for the first time since 2000, but the MPCs amounts of the period on so, contributed with still-stickly (Es services inflation, it do sone to anticipate months to end of May). On 1 August, the BoE d

and wage growth that was still too high. The last month of the period was a poor one across most fixed-income markets. Bumper US nonfarm payroll data all but extinguished hopes for another 50-bp rate cut at the Fed's next meeting in November US Treasuries were also pressured by anticipation that Donald Truny would regain the White House – widely seen as an inflationary outcome. Politics in the UK also had an impact on the market: right at the end of the period, gilts sold off as markets digested the extent of the planned increases in borrowing and polic spending unveiled in Labour's first Budget.

Yields and spreads were basically flat in September, Gilts lagged a rally in Treasuries amid ongoing expectations of slower rate cuts. While the Fed delivered an outsized cut of 50 basis points (tips), the Boble lept policy on hold and issued a cautious statement citing concerns about sticky services inflation and wage growth that was still too high.

increases in borrowing and public spending unveiled in Labour's first budget.

While the period under review saw some significant swings in gilt yields, it was notable for a relative lack of volatility in credit spreads. That said, there were some exceptions to this trend. Spreads widened for a spell in June amid worries about the political outlook in France; and again during he aforementioned turnoil in early Jugust. In both instances, spreads upday, resumed the trend of gradual tightening that has been in place since late 2023. As with equilities, sentiment towards credit was supported by optimism about the global economy, thanks in part to falling inflation in most regions, anticipation of lower interest rates and surprisingly robust GDP growth in the U.S. Further fuelling appetite for risk, corporate earnings also continued to beat estimates in aggregate, while stellar results from a number of large technology companies stoked general excitement around the Al boom. Within the portfolic, the majority of pachases during the period came from the primary market. We took part in new issues from a range of sectors. The largest concentrations of these were in utilities (such as EDF. Southern Gas Newtonsk, Nazoura and instringer, Transmission), baries (Morgan Stanley, Mic and Nouldes) and real estate (Grand City Properties, Albert Schell) and real estate (Grand City Properties, Albert Schell) reals and Revision in the result of the sections of these were in utilities (such as EDF. Southern Gas Newtonsk, Nazoura and instringer, Transmission), baries and insurance (Morgan Stanley, Mic and Nouldes) and real estate (Grand City Properties, Alberts included telecoms (Blied and NNI), energy (Ciccidental Petroleum), media (Wamer Bros Discover) and insurance (Morthwestern Mutual.). In the secondary works, we have the property of the science, Liberty Uning and In the secondary market, we started new positions in Berkshire Hathaway, Centene, Liberty Living and Galaxy Pipeline Assets. On the sales side, we exited Wells Fargo, ABN Armo, DS Smith, Bank of Nova Scotia, Sagax and Linde, while reducing exposure to issuers including National Grid, BNP Paribas, New York Life, La Barque Postale, Roche, Thamas Water and Southern Water.

Looking ahead, we see the current prospects for sterling IG (Investment grade) spreads as fairly neutral. Headline inflation in the UK has returned to target, though services inflation – a key focus

resource, redurine resource in set up. no as returned to target, though services inflation – a key focus for the Bot – mentils especially sticky. Furthermore, even if the central banks case policy more aggressively than expected, rates will likely stay restrictive for some time. In terms of excoming prowth, meanwhile, the gentile expansion we expect across developed markets should grove a reasonable environment for IG issuers, particularly those at the less leveraged and less optical and of the spectrum.

ate health, our team of analysts anticipates that corporate credit o As regards corporate health, our team of analysts anticipates that corporate credit quality will remain strong in the year aband. High levels of interest cover and relatively low net debt-be-aming ratios look likely to be maintained, though default rates among high-yield issuers are expected to rise in the wake of some aggressive liability management exercises.

One slight concern is sterling short-clated GI credit spreads finished the period well inside (i.e. more expensive than) their five- and 2D-year averages. That said, outright yields in the market – another way of looking at valuations – were further above the long-run mean. We think this provides an interesting entry point for those seeking income without too much risk.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

600	+4-	accounting	nariad !	1 1 1	2024	to 21	Ostobor	2024
TOL	me	accountina	perioa i	ıvıav	/11/4	10.31	UCTODEL	/11/4

,	2024 £000	2023 £000
Income		
Net capital gains	2,275	576
Revenue	2,368	9,954
Expenses	(178)	(385)
Interest payable and similar charges	(47)	(16)
Net revenue before taxation	2,143	9,553
Taxation	_	_
Net revenue after taxation	2,143	9,553
Total return before distributions	4,418	10,129
Distributions	(2,143)	(9,553)
Change in net assets attributable to		
shareholders from investment activities	2,275	576

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2024

as at 51 Utiluber 2024		
	2024 £000	April 2024 £000
Assets:		
Fixed assets:		
Investments	81,808	218,334
Current assets:		
Debtors	2,578	3,268
Cash and bank balances	520	2,263
Cash equivalents**	18	612
Total assets	84,924	224,477
Liabilities:		
Investment liabilities	(742)	(126)
Creditors:		
Bank overdrafts	(110)	-
Distribution payable	(264)	(303)
Other creditors	(1,679)	(629)
Total liabilities	(2,795)	(1,058)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	82,129	223,419

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE **TO SHAREHOLDERS**

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024	2023
	£000	£000
Opening net assets attributable to shareholders	223,419	522,095
Amounts receivable on the issue of shares	2,318	14,253
Amounts payable on the cancellation of shares	(60,706)	(85,152)
Amounts payable on in-specie transfers	(85,506)	-
	(143,894)	(70,899)
Dilution adjustment	54	_
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from		
investment activities (see statement of total return above)	2,275	576
Retained distribution on accumulation shares	275	6,738
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders	82,129	458,510

The comparatives used within the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders are for the corresponding period of the previous year. Therefore the opening net assets attributable to shareholders for the current year are at 30 April 2024 whilst the figure disclosed in the comparatives' closing net assets attributable to shareholders is at 31 October 2023.

*In pound Sterling and against UK peer group (See Performance summary on page 114).

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

Interest distribution in pence per share

Class 1 - Accumulation shares

Distribution	Gross		Revenue	Revenue
Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Accumulated 2024	Accumulated 2023
Group 1				
01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.4242	-	0.4242	0.2547
01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.3363	-	0.3363	0.2660
01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.4021	-	0.4021	0.2903
01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.3600	-	0.3600	0.3000
01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.3838	-	0.3838	0.3097
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	0.4160	-	0.4160	0.3528
Group 2				
01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.0761	0.3481	0.4242	0.2547
01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.2381	0.0982	0.3363	0.2660
01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.2564	0.1457	0.4021	0.2903
01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.1715	0.1885	0.3600	0.3000
01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.1175	0.2663	0.3838	0.3097
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	0.2485	0.1675	0.4160	0.3528
Total distributions in the period			2.3224	1.7735

^{**}The total value of investments in the portfolio statement includes the Cash Equivalents amount shown under current assets.

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

Class 1 – Gross accumulation shares

(continued)

			2024	2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.4335	_	0.4335	0.2604
01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.3434	-	0.3434	0.2717
01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.4107	-	0.4107	0.2968
01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.3679 0.3922	_	0.3679 0.3922	0.3070 0.3166
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	0.4249	=	0.4249	0.3606
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.4335	_	0.4335	0.2604
01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.3434	-	0.3434	0.2717
01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.4107 0.3679	-	0.4107 0.3679	0.2968 0.3070
01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.3922	_	0.3922	0.3166
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	0.4249	-	0.4249	0.3606
Total distributions in the period			2.3726	1.8131
Class 2 – Income shares Distribution	Gross		Distribution	Distribution
Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Paid/Payable 2024	Paid 2023
Group 1			2021	2020
01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.3898 0.3080	-	0.3898 0.3080	0.2518 0.2612
01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.3672	_	0.3672	0.2840
01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.3277	-	0.3277	0.2926
01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.3481	-	0.3481	0.2923
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	0.3758	-	0.3758	0.3319
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.2420	0.1478	0.3898	0.2518
01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.2271	0.0809	0.3080	0.2612
01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.2427	0.1245	0.3672	0.2840
01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.2300 0.2510	0.0977 0.0971	0.3277 0.3481	0.2926 0.2923
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	0.3085	0.0673	0.3758	0.3319
Total distributions in the period			2.1166	1.7138
Class 2 – Gross income shares				
Distribution	Gross		Distribution	Distribution
Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Paid/Payable 2024	Paid 2023
Group 1				
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.3912 0.3091	-	0.3912 0.3091	0.2526 0.2622
01/07/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.3684	_	0.3684	0.2849
01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.3288	-	0.3288	0.2936
01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.3493	-	0.3493	0.2934
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	0.3771	-	0.3771	0.3331
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.0808	0.3104	0.3912	0.2526
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.0808 0.1106	0.3104 0.1985	0.3912 0.3091	0.2526 0.2622
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.1106 0.1538	0.1985 0.2146	0.3091 0.3684	0.2622 0.2849
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2934
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936
0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/06/24 to 30/06/24 0.1/07/24 to 31/07/24 0.1/08/24 to 31/08/24 0.1/09/24 to 30/08/24 0.1/10/24 to 3.1/10/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331
0/105/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/09/24 to 31/08/24 01/10/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation sha	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue
0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/06/24 to 30/06/24 0.1/06/24 to 30/06/24 0.1/08/24 to 31/08/24 0.1/08/24 to 31/08/24 0.1/10/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation shall	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331 1.7198
0/105/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/09/24 to 30/08/24 01/10/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation shi Distribution Period Group 1	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/09/24 to 30/09/24 01/10/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation shi Distribution Period	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated
0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 30/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 30/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation shi	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326 0.3377	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960
0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/06/24 to 30/06/24 0.1/06/24 to 30/06/24 0.1/07/24 to 31/07/24 0.1/08/24 to 31/08/24 0.1/10/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation shallow Distribution Group 1 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/06/24 to 30/06/24 0.1/07/24 to 31/08/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 AFES Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326 0.3377	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2936 0.3331 1.77198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056
0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 30/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 30/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation shi	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326 0.3377	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960
0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/07/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/07/24 to 31/07/24 0.1/08/24 to 31/08/24 0.1/07/24 to 31/08/24 0.1/07/24 to 31/08/24 0.1/07/24 to 31/10/24 0.1/07/24 to 31/10/24 Class 2 — Gross accumulation shabition Period Group 1 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/06/24 to 30/06/24 0.1/07/24 to 31/07/24 0.1/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3473 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2936 0.3931 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056
0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 30/06/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/10/24 Class 2 — Gross accumulation shabistribution Period Group 1 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 Ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112	0.1985 0.2146 0.2177 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3884 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3262 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112	0.2622 0.2843 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3055 0.3063
0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/06/24 to 30/06/24 0.1/06/24 to 30/06/24 0.1/06/24 to 31/07/24 0.1/08/24 to 31/08/24 0.1/09/24 to 31/08/24 0.1/01/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation sha	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112	0.1985 0.2146 0.2177 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.41193 0.4193	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2937 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023 0.2608 0.2714 0.2969 0.3056 0.3056 0.3489 0.2718
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/10/24 to 31/10/24 01/10/24 to 31/10/24 Class 2 — Gross accumulation shabition beriod Class 2 — Gross accumulation shabition beriod Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 31/05/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/09/24 to 31/08/24 01/09/24 to 31/08/24 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ATES Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.4193 0.3326 0.3973	0.2622 0.2843 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3055 0.3063
0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/06/24 to 30/06/24 0.1/06/24 to 30/06/24 0.1/06/24 to 31/07/24 0.1/08/24 to 31/08/24 0.1/09/24 to 31/08/24 0.1/01/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation sha	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 BTES Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0587 0.2658 0.1492 0.0225 0.02554	0.1985 0.2146 0.2177 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.4193 0.4326 0.4193 0.4316 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2936 0.2931 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.2489
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 Class 2 — Gross accumulation shabitatibution Period Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/05/24 to 30/05/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326 0.3976 0.4112 0.4193 0.3266 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.3796 0.3561 0.3796	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2931 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3053 0.3489 0.2714 0.2608 0.2714 0.2608 0.2714 0.2608
0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 30/06/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation shabitatibution Period Group 1 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/06/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/06/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0587 0.2658 0.1492 0.0225 0.0225 0.2554	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.4193 0.4326 0.4193 0.4316 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2936 0.2937 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3055 0.3063 0.2489 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056
0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 30/06/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation shi Distribution Period Group 1 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/25 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/25 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/25 to 31/05/25 0.1/05/25 to 3	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0587 0.2658 0.1492 0.0225 0.0225 0.2554 0.3312	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 2.2965	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2936 0.2937 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.2608 0.2714 0.2966 0.3056 0.3065 0.4889 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.4889 1.7890
0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 30/06/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation shabitatibution Period Group 1 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/06/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/06/24 to 31/05/24 0.1/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0587 0.2658 0.1492 0.0225 0.0225 0.2554	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3266 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.4193 0.3266 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 2.2965	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3053 0.3489 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3053 0.3489 1.7890
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/06/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation sharpstribution Period Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/09/24 to 31/08/24 01/10/24 to 31/08/24 01/10/24 to 31/08/24 01/10/24 to 31/08/24 01/06/24 to 31/08/24 01/06/25 to 31/05/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0587 0.2588 0.1492 0.0225 0.0225 0.0225 0.03312	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.4193 0.3266 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 2.2965	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2936 0.2937 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3055 0.3063 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 1.3055 0.3063 1.7890
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation sha Distribution Period Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/09/24 to 31/08/24 01/10/24 to 31/10/24 Class 2 EUR Hedged — Gross acci	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0587 0.2588 0.1492 0.0225 0.0225 0.0225 0.03312	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3266 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.4193 0.3266 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 2.2965	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.4489 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.4489 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.4489
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation sha Distribution Period Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3226 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0587 0.2658 0.1492 0.0225 0.2554 0.3312 umulation sh Gross Revenue	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.4193 0.3226 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 2.2965 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2936 0.2937 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.2489 1.7890 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/10/24 to 31/10/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation sha Distribution Period Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/06/24 to 31/08/24 01/06/24 to 30/08/24 01/10/24 to 31/08/24 01/06/24 to 31/08/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0567 0.2658 0.1492 0.0225 0.2554 0.3232 0.3312 umulation sh Gross Revenue 0.3867 0.3032 0.3865	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.4193 0.3266 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 2.2965 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.3867 0.3867 0.3867	0.2622 0.2843 0.2936 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3056 0.3058 0.2714 0.2960 1.3058 0.2714 0.2960 0.3058 0.2714 0.2960 0.3058 0.2714 0.2960 0.3058 0.2714 0.2960 0.3058 0.2714 0.2960 0.3058 0.2714 0.2960 0.3058 0.2714 0.2960 0.3058 0.2714 0.2960 0.3058 0.2714 0.2960 0.2052 0.2484 0.2544 0.2758
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation sha Distribution Period Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3226 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0587 0.2658 0.1492 0.0225 0.2554 0.3312 umulation sh Gross Revenue	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.4193 0.3226 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 2.2965 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2936 0.2937 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.2489 1.7890 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3226 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0587 0.2658 0.1492 0.0225 0.2554 0.3312 umulation sh Gross Revenue 0.3867 0.3932 0.3005 0.3005 0.3005 0.3005 0.3258	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.4193 0.3226 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 2.2965 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	0.2622 0.2843 0.2936 0.2936 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3056 0.3056 0.3056 0.3056 0.4489 1.7890 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation sha Distribution Period Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3266 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0587 0.2658 0.1492 0.0225 0.2554 0.3312 umulation sh Gross Revenue 0.3867 0.3902 0.3005 0.3258 0.3423 0.3676	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.4193 0.3226 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 2.2965 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2936 0.2938 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.4899 1.7890 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/10/24 to 31/10/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation shabistribution Period Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/06/24 to 31/08/24 01/09/24 to 31/08/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0587 0.2658 0.1492 0.0225 0.2554 0.3312 umulation sh Gross Revenue 0.3867 0.3032 0.3065 0.3258 0.3423 0.3676	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3266 0.4112 0.4193 0.3266 0.4112 2.2965 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.3867 0.3967 0.3661 0.3796 0.4112 0.3296 0.3917 0.3561 0.3796 0.4102 0.3967 0.3605 0.3605 0.3258 0.3423 0.36076	0.2622 0.2843 0.2936 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3056 0.3056 0.3056 0.3058 0.27148 0.2960 0.3056 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.30
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation sha Distribution Period Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3266 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0587 0.2658 0.1492 0.0225 0.2554 0.3312 umulation sh Gross Revenue 0.3867 0.3902 0.3005 0.3258 0.3423 0.3676	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.4193 0.3226 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 2.2965 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2936 0.2938 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.4899 1.7890 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation shabistribution Period Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/05/24 to 31/08/24 01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0587 0.2658 0.1492 0.0225 0.2554 0.3312 umulation sh Gross Revenue 0.3867 0.3032 0.3605 0.3258 0.3423 0.3676 0.2567 0.3032 0.3605 0.3258 0.3423 0.3676 0.2567 0.3032 0.3605 0.3258	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 2.4965 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.3807 0.3917 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 2.2965	0.2622 0.2843 0.2936 0.2936 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.4489 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.4489 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.4489 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.4489 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.3489 0.2714 0.2969 0.2688 0.2870 0.2858 0.2870 0.2584 0.2544 0.2769 0.2588 0.2870 0.2588
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/10/24 to 31/10/24 01/10/24 to 31/10/24 01/10/24 to 31/10/24 01/10/24 to 31/07/24 01/10/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/06/24 to 31/07/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3226 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0587 0.2658 0.1492 0.0225 0.2554 0.3312 armulation sh Gross Revenue 0.3867 0.3032 0.3605 0.3258 0.3423 0.3676 0.2567 0.3032 0.3605 0.3258 0.3423 0.3605 0.3258 0.3423	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.3196 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.4133 0.3226 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 2.2965 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.3867 0.3032 0.3605 0.3258 0.3423 0.3665 0.3655 0.3258	0.2622 0.2849 0.2936 0.2936 0.2938 0.2938 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3056 0.3058 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3058 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3053 0.3489 1.7890 Caross Revenue Accumulated 2023 0.2484 0.2769 0.2858 0.2870 0.3288
01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/05/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/07/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period Class 2 — Gross accumulation shabistribution Period Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/05/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/07/24 to 31/08/24 01/05/24 to 31/08/24 01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.1106 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1538 0.1011 0.1316 0.1077 ares Gross Revenue 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 0.0587 0.2658 0.1492 0.0225 0.2554 0.3312 umulation sh Gross Revenue 0.3867 0.3032 0.3605 0.3258 0.3423 0.3676 0.2567 0.3032 0.3605 0.3258 0.3423 0.3676 0.2567 0.3032 0.3605 0.3258	0.1985 0.2146 0.2277 0.2177 0.2694 Equalisation	0.3091 0.3684 0.3288 0.3493 0.3771 2.1239 Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024 0.4193 0.3326 0.3977 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 2.4965 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.3807 0.3917 0.3561 0.3796 0.4112 2.2965	0.2622 0.2843 0.2936 0.2936 0.2936 0.2934 0.3331 1.7198 Gross Revenue Accumulated 0.2608 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.4489 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.4489 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.4489 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.4489 0.2714 0.2960 0.3056 0.3063 0.3489 0.2714 0.2969 0.2688 0.2870 0.2858 0.2870 0.2584 0.2544 0.2769 0.2588 0.2870 0.2588

Class X – Gross income sh				
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1				
01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.4035	_	0.4035	0.2706
01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.3228	_	0.3228	0.2784
01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.3842	_	0.3842	0.3010
01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.3437	-	0.3437	0.3093
01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.3641	-	0.3641	0.3073
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	0.3903	-	0.3903	0.3479
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.4035	_	0.4035	0.2706
01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.4033	_	0.3228	0.2784
01/07/24 to 30/00/24 01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.3220	_	0.3226	0.2764
01/07/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.3842	-	0.3842	0.3010
	0.3437	_	0.3437	0.3093
01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.3903	-	0.3903	0.3073
01/10/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.3003	=	2.2086	1.8145
Class X – Gross accumula	tion shares		2.2000	
Distribution	Gross		Gross Revenue	Gross Revenue
Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Accumulated	Accumulated
			2024	2023
Group 1				
01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.4935	-	0.4935	0.3191
01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.3978	-	0.3978	0.3291
01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.4756	-	0.4756	0.3569
01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.4269	-	0.4269	0.3679
01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.4543	-	0.4543	0.3668
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	0.4888	-	0.4888	0.4170
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.4935		0.4935	0.3191
01/06/24 to 31/03/24 01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.3978	_	0.3978	0.3291
01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.4756	_	0.4756	0.3569
01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.4269	_	0.4269	0.3679
01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.4543	_	0.4543	0.3668
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	0.4888	_	0.4888	0.4170
Total distributions in the period	0.1000		2.7369	2.1568
Class Y – Gross income sh	iares			
Distribution	Gross		Distribution	Distribution
Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Paid/Payable	Paid
			2024	2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.3764	_	0.3764	0.2469
01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.2989	_	0.2989	0.2553
01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.3561	_	0.3561	0.2768
01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.3181	_	0.3181	0.2850
01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.3376	_	0.3376	0.2840
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	0.3635	-	0.3635	0.3222
Group 2				
01/05/24 to 31/05/24	0.2359	0.1405	0.3764	0.2469
01/06/24 to 30/06/24	0.2497	0.0492	0.2989	0.2553
01/07/24 to 31/07/24	0.2450	0.1111	0.3561	0.2768
01/08/24 to 31/08/24	0.2742	0.0439	0.3181	0.2850
01/09/24 to 30/09/24	0.2877	0.0499	0.3376	0.2840
01/10/24 to 31/10/24	0.2468	0.1167	0.3635	0.3222
Total distributions in the period			2.0506	1.6702
Group 2: shares purchased during	a distribution period.			

Comparative Table Disclosure

	Class 1 – Accumulation shares			Class 1 – Gross accumulation shares		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	109.90	102.65	105.22	112.29	104.86	107.48
Return before operating charges (p)	3.89	7.80	(1.98)	3.96	7.98	(2.01)
Operating charges (p)	(0.29)	(0.55)	(0.59)	(0.29)	(0.55)	(0.61)
Return after operating charges (p)*	3.60	7.25	(2.57)	3.67	7.43	(2.62)
Distributions (p)	(2.32)	(3.92)	(2.04)	(2.37)	(4.00)	(2.09)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	2.32	3.92	2.04	2.37	4.00	2.09
Closing net asset value per share (p)	113.50	109.90	102.65	115.96	112.29	104.86
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	_	_	_	_	_	_
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	3.28	7.06	(2.44)	3.27	7.09	(2.44)
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	518	577	3,391	82	79	74
Closing number of shares	456,762	525,058	3,303,416	70,360	70,360	70,360
Operating charges (%)**	0.51 [†]	0.53	0.58	0.51 [†]	0.51	0.58
Direct transaction costs (%)***	-	-	_	_	_	_
Prices						
Highest share price (p)	114.71	110.95	105.83	117.20	113.37	108.11
Lowest share price (p)	109.98	100.79	95.92	112.37	102.96	97.99
	Class 1 EU	R Hedged – Gross a	ccumulation			
		shares		Cla	ss 2 – Income sha	ires
		30/04/20241	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	_	94.08	93.53	100.41	97.29	101.75
Return before operating charges (p)		(0.09)	1.09	3.54	7.28	(1.93)
Operating charges (p)	_	_	(0.54)	(0.25)	(0.45)	(0.45)
Return after operating charges (p)*	_	(0.09)	0.55	3.29	6.83	(2.38)
Distributions (p)		-	(1.86)	(2.12)	(3.71)	(2.08)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	_		1.86			
Closing net asset value per share (p)		93.99	94.08	101.58	100.41	97.29
*after direct transaction costs of (p)		_	_	_	_	_
Performance						
Return after charges (%)		(0.10)	0.59	3.28	7.02	(2.34)
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)		_	9	33,007	34,645	44,826
Closing number of shares		-	10,001	32,492,208	34,502,258	46,073,860
Operating charges (%)**		-	0.58	0.49 [†]	0.46	0.46
Direct transaction costs (%)***		-	-	-	-	-
Prices						
Highest share price (p)		93.99	97.89	103.23	102.07	102.35
Lowest share price (p)		93.99	87.95	100.49	95.04	92.11

Comparative Table Disclosure *(continued)*

	Class	Class 2 – Gross income shares			Class 2 – Gross accumulation shares		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	
Change in net assets per share							
Opening net asset value per share (p)	100.76	97.63	102.09	108.00	100.80	103.19	
Return before operating charges (p)	3.54	7.30	(1.92)	3.82	7.68	(1.93	
Operating charges (p)	(0.25)	(0.45)	(0.45)	(0.27)	(0.48)	(0.46	
Return after operating charges (p)*	3.29	6.85	(2.37)	3.55	7.20	(2.39	
Distributions (p)	(2.12)	(3.72)	(2.09)	(2.30)	(3.91)	(2.13	
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)				2.30	3.91	2.13	
Closing net asset value per share (p)	101.93	100.76	97.63	111.55	108.00	100.80	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Performance							
Return after charges (%)	3.27	7.02	(2.32)	3.29	7.14	(2.32	
Other information							
Closing net asset value (£000)	5,356	6,814	10,325	3,447	3,495	4,719	
Closing number of shares	5,253,940	6,762,960	10,576,008	3,090,357	3,235,517	4,681,493	
Operating charges (%)**	0.49 [†]	0.46	0.46	0.49 [†]	0.46	0.46	
Direct transaction costs (%)***	_	_	_	_	_	_	
Prices							
Highest share price (p)	103.58	102.43	102.69	112.74	109.03	103.80	
Lowest share price (p)	100.83	95.37	92.43	108.08	99.00	94.13	
	Class 2 EUR	Hedged – Gross a	ccumulation				
		shares		Class 2	K – Gross income	shares	
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	
Change in net assets per share							
Opening net asset value per share (p)	99.61	97.19	96.50	95.44	92.47	96.71	
Return before operating charges (p)	0.60	2.87	1.13	3.36	6.93	(1.83	
Operating charges (p)	(0.25)	(0.45)	(0.44)	(0.04)	(0.06)	(0.06	
Return after operating charges (p)*	0.35	2.42	0.69	3.32	6.87	(1.89	
Distributions (p)	(2.09)	(3.65)	(2.04)	(2.21)	(3.90)	(2.35	
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	2.09	3.65	2.04				
Closing net asset value per share (p)	99.96	99.61	97.19	96.55	95.44	92.47	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	_	_	_	_	_	-	
Performance							
Return after charges (%)	0.35	2.49	0.72	3.48	7.43	(1.95	
Other information							
Closing net asset value (£000)	181	123	90	41	41	1,619	
Closing number of shares	181,580	123,060	92,941	42,792	42,792	1,750,882	
Operating charges (%)**	0.49 [†]	0.46	0.46	0.09^{\dagger}	0.06	0.06	
Direct transaction costs (%)***	-	_	-	_	_	-	
Prices							
Highest share price (p)	102.78	101.43	101.09	98.13	97.04	97.29	
Lowest share price (p)	99.05	92.19	90.79	95.51	90.34	87.56	

Comparative Table Disclosure

(continued)

	Class X –	Class X – Gross accumulation shares			Class Y – Gross income shares		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	
Change in net assets per share							
Opening net asset value per share (p)	117.28	109.01	111.15	93.86	90.94	95.10	
Return before operating charges (p)	4.15	8.34	(2.07)	3.30	6.80	(1.80)	
Operating charges (p)	(0.05)	(0.07)	(0.07)	(0.16)	(0.28)	(0.28)	
Return after operating charges (p)*	4.10	8.27	(2.14)	3.14	6.52	(2.08)	
Distributions (p)	(2.74)	(4.69)	(2.73)	(2.05)	(3.60)	(2.08)	
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	2.74	4.69	2.73		_	_	
Closing net asset value per share (p)	121.38	117.28	109.01	94.95	93.86	90.94	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	_	_	_	_	_	_	
Performance							
Return after charges (%)	3.50	7.59	(1.93)	3.35	7.17	(2.19)	
Other information							
Closing net asset value (£000)	7,773	134,858	354,546	31,724	42,787	102,496	
Closing number of shares	6,403,725	114,988,787	325,228,448	33,411,680	45,587,468	112,709,226	
Operating charges (%)**	0.09 [†]	0.06	0.06	0.34 [†]	0.31	0.31	
Direct transaction costs (%)***	-	_	-	-	_	-	
Prices							
Highest share price (p)	122.66	118.37	111.82	96.49	95.42	95.67	
Lowest share price (p)	117.37	107.15	101.58	93.93	88.84	86.11	

^{**}The Operating charges are represented by the Ongoing Charges Figure (OCF) which is the European standard method of disclosing the charges of a share class of a fund based on the financial year's expenses and may vary from year to year. It includes charges such as the fund's annual management charge, registration fee, custody fees and distribution cost but ordinarily excludes the costs of buying or selling assets for the fund (unless these assets are shares of another fund). Where published, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) contains the current OCF. For a more detailed breakdown please visit columbiathreadneedle.com/fees.

Highest and Lowest share prices are based on official published daily NAVs priced at 12 noon on the last business day of the period on a mid basis. The closing net asset value per share is at close of business on a bid basis.

^{***}Transaction costs have not been reduced by any amounts collected from dilution levies/adjustments.

¹Closed May 2023

¹The Ongoing Charges Figure is annualised based on the fees incurred during the accounting period or since commencement date.

Notes to the financial statements

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of investments, in compliance with FRS 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (SORP) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2024 and are described in those financial statements.

(b) Notes

In accordance with the guidelines of the SORP the fund has taken advantage of the facility not to provide further notes to the financial statements.

2 RECONCILIATION OF SHARES

	2024
Class 1 – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	525,058
Shares issued	31,069
Shares redeemed	(99,365)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	456,762
Class 1 – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	70,360
Shares issued	_
Shares redeemed	_
Net conversions	-
Closing shares	70,360
Class 2 – Income shares	
Opening shares	34,502,258
Shares issued	1,978,394
Shares redeemed	(4,017,565)
Net conversions	29,121
Closing shares	32,492,208
Class 2 – Gross income shares	
Opening shares	6,762,960
Shares issued	156,753
Shares redeemed	(1,665,773)
Net conversions	-
Closing shares	5,253,940
Class 2 – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	3,235,517
Shares issued	17,069
Shares redeemed	(162,229)
Net conversions	_
Closing shares	3,090,357
Class 2 EUR Hedged – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	123,060
Shares issued	89,511
Shares redeemed	(30,991)
Net conversions	-
Closing shares	181,580
Class X – Gross income shares	,
Opening shares	42,792
Shares issued	42,132
Shares redeemed	_
Net conversions	
Closing shares	42,792
•	42,132
Class X – Gross accumulation shares	114 000 707
Opening shares Shares issued	114,988,787
Shares redeemed	/100 E0E 063/
Net conversions	(108,585,062)
Closing shares	6 402 725
Ciosing sugges	6,403,725

	2024
Class Y – Gross income shares	
Opening shares	45,587,468
Shares issued	_
Shares redeemed	(12,144,634)
Net conversions	(31,154)
Closing shares	33.411.680

Investment Report

Investment Objective and Policy

The Fund aims to provide income with the prospect of some capital growth over the long term. It looks to outperform the FTSE Actuaries UK Conventional Gilts All Stocks Index over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of charges. The Fund is actively managed, and will invest at least 80% of its assets in UK government bonds (gilts).

The Fund may also invest in other bonds, including index linked UK government bonds (index-linked gilts), as well as bonds issued by governments or government agencies) of other developed countries, international organisations, or companies. The bonds selected are usually investment grade and denominated in sterling (or hedged back to sterling, if a different currency). The Fund may also invest in other securities, as well as collective investment schemes (including funds managed by Columbia Threadneedle companies), and hold money market instruments, deposits, cash and near cash. The Fund is not permitted to invest in derivatives for investment purposes,

but derivatives may be used with the aim of reducing risk or managing the Fund more efficiently. However, the Fund may commence using derivatives with the aim of achieving an investment gain, providing at least 60 days' notice is given to shareholders.

The FTSE Actuaries UK Conventional Gilts All Stocks Index is regarded as an appropriate performance measure of sterling-denominated government bonds, issued by the UK government. It provides a suitable target benchmark against which Fund performance will be measured and evaluated over time

Performance of Net Income Class 1 Shares*

Over the six months to 31 October 2024, the published share price of Class 1 Income shares in the CT UK Fixed Interest Fund has fallen from 102.49p to 102.34p. Income snares in the U to K ixed interest Fund has failent from IUZ-49p to IUZ-49p. For comparison, using noon prices, the performance of the Class 1 share class was +1.75% compared to a return of +1.74% for the Morningstar UK Unit Trusts/OEICS — IA UK Gilts Peer Group (on a bid to bid basis, with income reinvested for a UK basic rate taxpayer). For information purposes, using global close prices, the total return of the FTSE Actuaries UK Conventional Gilts All Stocks Index was +1.85%.

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

Gilts delivered positive returns over the six-month period ending 31 October 2024, supported by falling inflation and interest-rate cuts by the Bank of England (BoE) and other major central banks. However, coupon income helped keep gilt returns in positive territory for the period, as a late sell-off resulted in yields ending the six months higher than where they started. The 10-year gilt yield finished at 4.45%, 10 basis points (bps) above where it began the period. Gilt performance early in the period was mixed. The BoE kept rates on hold in May, but investors welcomed news that two members of its Monetary Policy Committee had called for an immediate cut, versus only one at the previous meeting. However, the rally was halted by the mid-May announcement that a UK general election would be held in early July. This dampened hopes of a June rate cut, as the BoE was seen as more likely to leave rates on hold a still but as the but was seen as miner likely to leave takes on mountain after the election. Gilt yields soon resumed their downward trajectory amid progress on the inflation front. Annual consumer price inflation eased to 2% in May, according to the Office for National Statistics, meeting the BoE's target for the first time since July 2021. However, some concerns about still-elevated services inflation provided a moderating influence.

US Treasuries were the primary driver of a rally in core government bonds over the summer. Weakening economic and labour market data in the world's largest economy saw traders price in faster monetary easing by the Federal Reserve (Fed). The BoE began its easing cycle with a 25-bp rate cut on the first day of August, bringing its key rate to 5.0%. However, the rally in gilts lagged that of Treasuries as the view that the BoE may ease more gradually than its US counterpart took hold. UK annual inflation ticked higher in July and the unemployment rate unexpectedly declined. Other economic data remained largely upbeat relative to signs of softening in the US and Europe. Although annual inflation fell to its lowest level in three years in September, gitts sold off over the final six weeks of the review period. After hitting a period-low in mid-September, the 10-year yield climbed over 70 bps by the end of October. Again, Treasuries were the primary driver of market direction. The Fed met investors' hopes with a 50-bp cut at its September meeting, but policymakers cautioned that this should not be seen as the new norm, especially after some strong US jobs data. Uncertainty leading into the November US election added upward pressure on yields globally. Gilts faced additional uncertainty ahead of the new Labour government's autumn

Budget. The Labour Party's landslide victory earlier on 4 July had little immediate impact on fixed-income markets as the result was widely expected. However, concerns about the UK's public debt levels weighed on markets leading into the Budget announcement on 30 October. A short-lived rally in gilts in the wake of the announcement was later erased by a sell-off, as markets focused on the greater-than-expected fiscal spending, which will be partly funded by increased government borrowing. Concerns arose that the BoE could slow its easing cycle due to the potential inflationary impact of the fiscal expansion.

We started the period overweight in duration (which measures sensitivity to changes in interest rates) by 0.3 years relative to the benchmark

Yelds rose again in April, and our overweight in duration once again detracted, though this positioning proved beneficial over May and June as yields fell back. Over this period, we increased our overweight in bonds with maturities between 25 and 35 years, on the basis that longer-dated bonds are more likely to benefit from a potential BoE rate cut.

We increased duration further in July, primarily in the 7-15-year segment. This proved beneficial for performance as yields fell amid growing expectations that the BoE could start to reduce interest rates.

Although August featured the usual quieter summer trading period, we did add duration at the 7-15-year segment at the beginning of the month ahead of some closely watched US employment data releases. We then reduced exposure again following the report as yields threatened to rise.

We reduced duration in the second half of September amid expectations that the BoE would ease monetary policy more slowly than its US and eurozone counterparts due to elevated wage growth and sticky services inflation in the UK. We looked to take advantage of gilts' underperformance by increasing duration in early October, again focusing on the 7-15-year segment. We made some duration-neutral trades later in the month, continuing to increase our exposure to this maturity bracket by shifting out of the 3-7-year bracket. We ended the period with our overall duration 0.23 years long relative to the benchmark.

Headline inflation peaked some time ago, and core inflation is heading down towards target levels, although the path may be bumpy as service inflation remains stickly in parts. Prices are likely to remain a concern for a while longer, but the lagged effects of aggressive tightening will keep policymakers alert to any material weakening of labour markets, which have experienced a prolonged loosening – albeit from exceptionally tight levels. Central banks are now moving to normalise rates, and the debate shifts to how quick the adjustment will be, and whether rates will return to levels previously seen – or, indeed, the extent to which

assumed 'neutral' rates have been reset higher in the post-Covid environment. The BoE has started its easing cycle, supported by recent declines in inflation and benign projections for inflation over the long term. However, economic growth remains robust and wage pressures are still elevated, which could cause inflation to pick up into year end. Therefore, we expect a quarterly pace of rate cuts rather than a move at every meeting.

We maintain our view that the long-term, structural drivers of low inflation and low bond yields remain intact and that neutral interest rates will not prove to be much higher in this cycle than in previous ones.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

,	2024 £000	2023 £000
Income		
Net capital gains/(losses)	2,591	(23,761)
Revenue	2,433	6,381
Expenses	(44)	(94)
Net revenue before taxation	2,389	6,287
Taxation	_	
Net revenue after taxation	2,389	6,287
Total return before distributions	4,980	(17,474)
Distributions	(2,389)	(6,287)
Change in net assets attributable to		
shareholders from investment activities	2,591	(23,761)

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2024

		April
	2024	2024
	£000	£000
Assets:		
Fixed assets:		
Investments	99,455	257,193
Current assets:		
Debtors	1,641	1,703
Cash and bank balances	71	679
Cash equivalents**	602	13
Total assets	101,769	259,588
Liabilities:		
Creditors:		
Distribution payable	(5)	(4)
Other creditors	(778)	(16)
Total liabilities	(783)	(20)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	100,986	259,568

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE **TO SHAREHOLDERS**

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024	2023
	£000	£000
Opening net assets attributable to shareholders	259,568	321,495
Amounts receivable on the issue of shares	1,009	13,910
Amounts payable on the cancellation of shares	(164,461)	(25,545)
	(163,452)	(11,635)
Dilution adjustment	88	-
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from		
investment activities (see statement of total return above)	2,591	(23,761)
Retained distribution on accumulation shares	2,191	5,988
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders	100,986	292,087

The comparatives used within the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders are for the corresponding period of the previous year. Therefore the opening net assets attributable to shareholders for the current year are at 30 April 2024 whilst the figure disclosed in the comparatives' closing net assets attributable to shareholders is at 31 October 2023.

*In pound Sterling and against UK peer group (See Performance summary on page 114).

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

Interest distribution in pence per share

Class 1	– Income	shares
---------	----------	--------

Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	1.9798	-	1.9798	1.8186
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	1.2307	0.7491	1.9798 1.9798	1.8186 1.8186
Class 1 – Accumulation shares				
Class I - Accullulation shares				
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Revenue Accumulated 2024	Revenue Accumulated 2023
Distribution		Equalisation _	Accumulated	Accumulated

^{**}The total value of investments in the portfolio statement includes the Cash Equivalents amount shown under current assets.

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

(continued)

Class 2 – Income shares				
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	1.6037	-	1.6037	1.4782
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.8910	0.7127	1.6037 1.6037	1.4782 1.4782
Class 2 – Gross income shares				
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	2.0366	-	2.0366	1.8708
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	1.3066	0.7300	2.0366 2.0366	1.8708 1.8708
Class X – Gross accumulation	shares			
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	1.7765	_	1.7765	1.5764
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.2689	1.5076	1.7765 1.7765	1.5764 1.5764
Class Z – Accumulation shares	}			
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Revenue Accumulated 2024	Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	2.8516	_	2.8516	2.5278
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	1.1752	1.6764	2.8516	2.5278
Total distributions in the period Group 2: shares purchased during a distr	ribution period.		2.8516	2.5278

Comparative Table Disclosure

	Class 1 – Income shares		Class 1 – Accumulation shares			
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	100.25	106.24	130.90	132.91	135.74	163.50
Return before operating charges (p)	2.15	(1.73)	(21.62)	2.84	(2.13)	(27.01
Operating charges (p)	(0.29)	(0.54)	(0.61)	(0.37)	(0.70)	(0.75
Return after operating charges (p)*	1.86	(2.27)	(22.23)	2.47	(2.83)	(27.76
Distributions (p)	(1.98)	(3.72)	(2.43)	(2.63)	(4.80)	(3.06
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		_		2.63	4.80	3.06
Closing net asset value per share (p)	100.13	100.25	106.24	135.38	132.91	135.74
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	-	-	-	-	-	-
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	1.86	(2.14)	(16.98)	1.86	(2.08)	(16.98
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	128	129	82	9	9	9
Closing number of shares	128,035	128,475	77,569	6,662	6,662	6,662
Operating charges (%)**	0.55 [†]	0.53	0.53	0.54 [†]	0.53	0.52
Direct transaction costs (%)***	-	_	_	_	-	_
Prices	107.20	108.34	132.29	142.12	140.97	165.24
Highest share price (p) Lowest share price (p)	107.20	98.30	98.80	132.62	140.97	123.42
Lowest share price (p)	100.04	30.30	30.00	132.02	123.07	120.42
	Cla	ss 2 – Income sha	res	Class	2 – Gross income	shares
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	77.63	82.27	101.38	98.09	103.95	128.08
Return before operating charges (p)	1.66	(1.33)	(16.74)	2.10	(1.68)	(21.11
Operating charges (p)	(0.15)	(0.29)	(0.33)	(0.18)	(0.36)	(0.45
Return after operating charges (p)*	1.51	(1.62)	(17.07)	1.92	(2.04)	(21.56
Distributions (p)	(1.60)	(3.02)	(2.04)	(2.04)	(3.82)	(2.57
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)						
Closing net asset value per share (p)	77.54	77.63	82.27	97.97	98.09	103.95
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	_	-	_	_	_	-
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	1.95	(1.97)	(16.84)	1.96	(1.96)	(16.83
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	87	88	96	10	9	40
Closing number of shares	112,219	113,105	116,297	9,964	9,843	38,657
•						
Operating charges (%)**	0.38 [†]	0.36	0.37	0.36 [†]	0.36	0.37
Operating charges (%)*** Direct transaction costs (%)***				0.36 [†] -	0.36 —	0.37 -
Operating charges (%)*** Direct transaction costs (%)*** Prices	0.38 [†] -	0.36	0.37	_	-	-
Operating charges {%}** Direct transaction costs {%}***	0.38 [†]					0.37 - 129.45 96.75

Comparative Table Disclosure

(continued)

	Class X – Gross accumulation shares		Class Z – Accumula		lation shares	
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	79.83	81.15	97.30	137.09	139.73	167.99
Return before operating charges (p)	1.72	(1.27)	(16.10)	2.93	(2.19)	(27.76)
Operating charges (p)	(0.03)	(0.05)	(0.05)	(0.25)	(0.45)	(0.50)
Return after operating charges (p)*	1.69	(1.32)	(16.15)	2.68	(2.64)	(28.26)
Distributions (p)	(1.78)	(3.25)	(2.23)	(2.85)	(5.21)	(3.43)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	1.78	3.25	2.23	2.85	5.21	3.43
Closing net asset value per share (p)	81.52	79.83	81.15	139.77	137.09	139.73
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	-	-	-	_	_	-
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	2.12	(1.63)	(16.60)	1.95	(1.89)	(16.82)
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	97,286	255,802	316,306	3,466	3,531	4,962
Closing number of shares	119,346,338	320,432,711	389,781,938	2,479,821	2,575,562	3,551,423
Operating charges (%)**	0.07 [†]	0.06	0.06	0.35 [†]	0.33	0.33
Direct transaction costs (%)***	-	-	_	_	_	-
Prices						
Highest share price (p)	85.52	84.53	98.35	146.69	145.30	169.79
Lowest share price (p)	79.66	75.42	73.60	136.79	129.69	126.92

^{**}The Operating charges are represented by the Ongoing Charges Figure (OCF) which is the European standard method of disclosing the charges of a share class of a fund based on the financial year's expenses and may vary from year to year. It includes charges such as the fund's annual management charge, registration fee, custody fees and distribution cost but ordinarily excludes the costs of buying or selling assets for the fund (unless these assets are shares of another fund). Where published, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) contains the current OCF. For a more detailed breakdown please visit columbiathreadneedle.com/fees.

Highest and Lowest share prices are based on official published daily NAVs priced at 12 noon on the last business day of the period on a mid basis. The closing net asset value per share is at close of business on a bid basis.

^{***}Transaction costs have not been reduced by any amounts collected from dilution levies/adjustments.

¹The Ongoing Charges Figure is annualised based on the fees incurred during the accounting period or since commencement date.

Notes to the financial statements

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of investments, in compliance with FRS 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (SORP) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2024 and are described in those financial statements.

(b) Notes

In accordance with the guidelines of the SORP the fund has taken advantage of the facility not to provide further notes to the financial statements.

2 RECONCILIATION OF SHARES

	2024
Class 1 – Income shares	
Opening shares	128,475
Shares issued	3,558
Shares redeemed	(3,998)
Net conversions	400.005
Closing shares	128,035
Class 1 – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	6,662
Shares issued	-
Shares redeemed	-
Net conversions	
Closing shares	6,662
Class 2 – Income shares	
Opening shares	113,105
Shares issued Shares redeemed	634
Net conversions	(1,520)
Closing shares	112,219
•	112,213
Class 2 – Gross income shares	0.042
Opening shares Shares issued	9,843 121
Shares redeemed	121
Net conversions	_
Closing shares	9,964
Class X – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	320,432,711
Shares issued	899,808
Shares redeemed	(201,986,181)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	119,346,338
Class Z – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	2,575,562
Shares issued	194,519
Shares redeemed	(290,260)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	2,479,821

CT UK Index Linked Fund*

Investment Report

Investment Objective and Policy

The Fund aims to provide income with the prospect of some capital growth over the long term. It looks to outperform the FTSE Actuaries UK Index- Linked Gilts All Stocks Index over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of charges.

The Fund is actively managed, and invests at least 80% of its assets in indexlinked bonds issued by the UK government (index-linked gilts). The Fund may also invest in conventional UK government bonds (gilts), as well as other sterling denominated index linked bonds. In addition, the Fund may invest in bonds issued by governments (or government agencies) of other developed countries, international organisations, or companies. The bonds selected are usually investment grade and denominated in sterling (or hedged back to sterling, if a different currency). The Fund may also invest in other securities, as well as collective investment

schemes (including funds managed by Columbia Threadneedle companies), and hold money market instruments, deposits, cash and near cash.

The Fund is not permitted to invest in derivatives for investment purposes, but derivatives may be used with the aim of managing the Fund more efficiently. The Fund may commence using derivatives with the aim of achieving an investment gain, providing at least 60 days' notice is given to shareholders. The FTSE Actuaries UK Index-Linked Gilts All Stocks Index is regarded as an appropriate performance measure of sterling-denominated index linked bonds, issued by the UK government. It provides a suitable target benchmark against which Fund performance will be measured and evaluated over time

Performance of Net Income Class 1 Shares**

From 30 April to 8 October 2024, the published share price of Class 1 Income shares in the CT UK Index Linked Fund fallen from 120.52p to 118.94p. For comparison, using noon prices, the performance of the Class 1 share class was +1.76% compared to a return of +2.07% for the Morningstar UK Unit Trusts/OEICS — IA UK Index Linked Gilts Peer Group (on a bid to bid basis, with income reinvested for a UK basic rate taxpayer). For information purposes, using global close prices, the total return of the FTSE Actuaries UK Index-Linked Gilts All Stocks Index was +2.23%.

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

Gilts delivered positive returns over the six-month period ending 31 October 2024, supported by falling inflation and interest-rate cuts by the Bank of England (BoE) and other major central banks. However, coupon

income helped keep gilt returns in positive territory for the period, as a income neipeo keep gir returns in positive territory for the period, as a late sell-off resulted in yields ending the six months higher than where they started. The 10-year gilt yield finished at 4.45%, 10 basis points (lps) above where it began the period. Although index-linked gilts outperformed during the summer rally, they lagged in September and underperformed their conventional counterparts over the six-month period.

Gilt performance early in the period was mixed. The BoF kept rates on hold in May, but investors welcomed news that two members of its Monetary Policy Committee had called for an immediate cut, versus only one at the previous meeting. However, the rally was halted by the mid-May announcement that a UK general election would be held in early July. This dampened hopes of a June rate cut, as the BoE was seen as more likely to leave rates on hold until after the election. Gilt yields soon resumed their downward trajectory amid progress on the inflation front. Annual consumer price inflation eased to 2% in May, according to the Office for National Statistics, meeting the BoE's target for the first time since July 2021. However, some concerns about stillelevated services inflation provided a moderating influence.
US Treasuries were the primary driver of a rally in core government bonds

over the summer. Weakening economic and labour market data in the world's largest economy saw traders price in faster monetary easing by the Federal Reserve. The BoE began its easing cycle with a 25-bp rate cut on the first day of August, bringing its key rate to 5.0%. However, the rally in gilts lagged that of Treasuries as the view that the BoE may ease more gradually than its US counterpart took hold. UK annual inflation ticked higher in July and the unemployment rate unexpectedly declined. Other economic data remained largely upbeat relative to signs of softening in the US and Europe. Although annual inflation fell to its lowest level in three years in September, gilts sold off over the final six weeks of the review period. After hitting a period-low in mid-September, the 10-year yield climbed over 70 bps by the end of October. Again, Treasuries were the primary driver of market direction. The Fed met investors' hopes with a 50-bp cut at its September meeting, but policymakers cautioned that this should not be seen as the new norm, especially after some strong US jobs data. Uncertainty leading into the November US election added upward pressure on yields globally Gilts faced additional uncertainty ahead of the new Labour government's autumn Budget. The Labour Party's landslide victory earlier on 4 July had little immediate impact on fixed-income markets as the result was widely expected. However, concerns about the UK's public debt levels weighed on markets leading into the Budget announcement on 30 October. A

short-lived rally in gilts in the wake of the announcement was later erased by a sell-off, as markets focused on the greater-than-expected fiscal spending, which will be partly funded by increased government borrowing. Concerns arose that the BoE could slow its easing cycle due to the potential inflationary impact of the fiscal expansion.

We began the period with overall around 0.31 years long relative to the

We maintained the overweight exposure in May, while rebalancing the maturity profile by buying gilts with 2036, 2046 and 2051 maturities and selling 2026s and 2062s. In late June, we bought a 2026 maturity with the proceeds of a maturing 2024.

We added to duration slightly in mid-August as expectations for lower

interest rates grew. However, we reduced duration in late September as the view that the BoE will ease monetary policy more slowly than developed-market counterparts strengthened.

Headline inflation peaked some time ago, and core inflation is heading down towards target levels, although the path may be bumpy as service inflation remains sticky in parts. Prices are likely to remain a concern for a while longer, but the lagged effects of aggressive tightening will keep policymakers alert to any material weakening of labour markets, which have experienced a prolonged loosening – albeit from exceptionally tight levels. Central banks are now moving to normalise rates, and the debate shifts to how quick the adjustment will be, and whether rates will return to levels previously seen — or, indeed, the extent to which assumed

'neutral' rates have been reset higher in the post-Covid environment.

The BoE has started its easing cycle, supported by recent declines in inflation and benign projections for inflation over the long term. However, economic growth remains robust and wage pressures are still elevated, which could cause inflation to pick up into year end. Therefore, we expect a quarterly pace of rate cuts rather than a move at every meeting.

We maintain our view that the long-term, structural drivers of low inflation and low bond yields remain intact and that neutral interest rates will not prove to be much higher in this cycle than in previous ones. The fund was closed on 8 October 2024. Following notice of a significant redemption by a single client, the fund will fall in assets, to a size which will no longer be viable to manage. Furthermore, the fund has failed to attract significant new investment during the last five years and is unlikely to raise new assets in the future. On this basis, we believed the closure of the Fund is in the best interests of Shareholders

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

for the	accounting	nerind 1	May 2024	to 31	October 2024

	2024 £000	2023 £000
Income		
Net capital gains/(losses)	92	(5,435)
Revenue	1,286	1,585
Expenses	(21)	(33)
Net revenue before taxation	1,265	1,552
Taxation	_	_
Net revenue after taxation	1,265	1,552
Total return before distributions	1,357	(3,883)
Distributions	(1,235)	(1,552)
Change in net assets attributable to		
shareholders from investment activities	122	(5,435)

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2024

Assets:	2024 £000	April 2024 £000
Current assets:		40.000
Investments***	_	42,000
Debtors	18	55
Cash and bank balances	13	149
Total assets	31	42,204
Liabilities:		
Creditors:		
Distribution payable	-	(13)
Other creditors	(1)	(34)
Total liabilities	(1)	(47)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	30	42,157

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024	2023
	£000	£000
Opening net assets attributable to shareholders	42,157	45,285
Amounts receivable on the issue of shares	141	642
Amounts payable on the cancellation of shares	(42,406)	(1,059)
	(42,265)	(417)
Dilution adjustment	16	-
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from		
investment activities (see statement of total return above)	122	(5,435)
Retained distribution on accumulation shares		1,530
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders	30	40,963

The comparatives used within the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders are for the corresponding period of the previous year. Therefore the opening net assets attributable to shareholders for the current year are at 30 April 2024 whilst the figure disclosed in the comparatives' closing net assets attributable to shareholders is at 31 October 2023.

*On 8 October 2024 the Fund closed.

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

Interest distribution in pence per share

Class 1 - Income shares*

Total distributions in the period

Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Paid/Payable 2024	Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	_	-	-	4.2383
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	-	-	-	4.2383 4.2383
Class 1 – Gross accumulation sh	ares*			
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	=	=	=	3.0974

3.0974

3.0974

^{**}In pound Sterling and against UK peer group (See Performance summary on page 114).

^{***}Investments are classified as current assets as the Fund has been prepared on a basis other than going concern.

CT UK Index Linked Fund

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

(continued)

Class 2 – Income shares*				
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	-	-	-	2.9471
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	_	-	-	2.9471
Total distributions in the period			-	2.9471
Class 2 – Accumulation shares	s*			
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Revenue Accumulated 2024	Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	_	-	_	5.4659
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	=	-	-	5.4659
Total distributions in the period	_		-	5.4659
Class 2 – Gross income shares	*			
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	=	=	=	3.9194
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	-	-	-	3.9194
Total distributions in the period			-	3.9194
Class X – Gross accumulation	shares*			
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	=	_	=	2.9417
Group 2				

Group 2
01/05/24 to 31/10/24
Total distributions in the period
Group 2 : shares purchased during a distribution period.

2.9417 **2.9417**

^{*}For closure dates, refer to the footnotes after the comparative tables.

CT UK Index Linked Fund

Comparative Table Disclosure

	Class 1 – Income shares		Class 1 -	– Gross accumulation shares			
	31/10/20241	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024 ¹	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	
Change in net assets per share							
Opening net asset value per share (p)	116.02	130.76	183.72	90.71	95.55	128.83	
Return before operating charges (p)	3.27	(6.02)	(46.52)	2.57	(4.30)	(32.65)	
Operating charges (p)	(0.35)	(0.72)	(0.89)	(0.28)	(0.54)	(0.63)	
Return after operating charges (p)*	2.92	(6.74)	(47.41)	2.29	(4.84)	(33.28)	
Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		(8.00)	(5.55)		(5.95) 5.95	(3.93) 3.93	
Closing net asset value per share (p)	118.94	116.02	130.76	93.00	90.71	95.55	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)		_	_	_	_	_	
Performance							
Return after charges (%)	2.52	(5.15)	(25.81)	2.52	(5.07)	(25.83)	
Other information							
Closing net asset value (£000)	_	33	138	-	47	46	
Closing number of shares	_	28,200	105,262	_	51,401	48,433	
Operating charges (%)**	-	0.58	0.60	_	0.59	0.60	
Direct transaction costs (%)***	_	_	_	_	-	-	
Prices	100.05	101.10	407.05	05.00	07.05	404.47	
Highest share price (p)	122.65	131.48	187.05	95.90	97.65 84.82	131.17 78.07	
Lowest share price (p)	115.50	115.01	111.33	90.30	04.02	70.07	
	Cla	Class 2 – Income shares			Class 2 – Accumulation shares		
	31/10/20241	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/20241	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	
Change in net assets per share							
Opening net asset value per share (p)	78.05	87.98	123.69	155.25	163.17	219.49	
Return before operating charges (p)	2.20	(4.06)	(31.37)	4.38	(7.34)	(55.68)	
Operating charges (p)	(0.14)	(0.30)	(0.36)	(0.29)	(0.58)	(0.64)	
Return after operating charges (p)*	2.06	(4.36)	(31.73)	4.09	(7.92)	(56.32)	
Distributions (p)	_	(5.57)	(3.98)	_	(10.52)	(7.14)	
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)					10.52	7.14	
Closing net asset value per share (p)	80.11	78.05	87.98	159.34	155.25	163.17	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	_	_	_	_	_	-	
Performance							
Return after charges (%)	2.64	(4.96)	(25.65)	2.63	(4.85)	(25.66	
Other information							
Closing net asset value (£000)	_	236	65	-	5,506	7,370	
01 : 1 ()		000 010	74 104	_	3,546,376	4,516,523	
Closing number of shares	_	302,642	74,184		0,010,070	1,010,020	
Operating charges (%)**	_ _	0.37	0.36	-	0.37		
Operating charges (%)** Direct transaction costs (%)***							
Operating charges (%)*** Direct transaction costs (%)*** Prices	-	0.37	0.36	-	0.37	0.36	
Operating charges (%)** Direct transaction costs (%)***		0.37		-			

CT UK Index Linked Fund

Comparative Table Disclosure

(continued)

	Class 2 – Gross income shares		shares	Class D – Accumulation shares	
	31/10/20241	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	30/04/2023	
Change in net assets per share					
Opening net asset value per share (p)	103.81	117.00	164.42	212.14	
Return before operating charges (p)	2.93	(5.38)	(41.66)	(39.60	
Operating charges (p)	(0.19)	(0.40)	(0.46)	(0.53	
Return after operating charges (p)*	2.74	(5.78)	(42.12)	(40.13	
Distributions (p)	_	(7.41)	(5.30)	-	
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		_			
Closing net asset value per share (p)	106.55	103.81	117.00	172.01	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	_	_	_		
Performance					
Return after charges (%)	2.64	(4.94)	(25.62)	(18.92	
Other information					
Closing net asset value (£000)	_	124	55	-	
Closing number of shares	-	120,052	47,127	-	
Operating charges (%)**	-	0.37	0.36	-	
Direct transaction costs (%)***	-	-	-	-	
Prices					
Highest share price (p)	109.85	117.65	167.42	215.99	
Lowest share price (p)	103.36	102.91	99.75	172.01	
	Class V	Gross accumulati	on charge		
	31/10/2024 ¹	30/04/2024	30/04/2023		
Change in net assets per share			33,13,2323		
Opening net asset value per share (p)	80.84	84.75	113.71		
Return before operating charges (p)	2.26	(3.81)	(28.86)		
Operating charges (p)	(0.05)	(0.10)	(0.10)		
Return after operating charges (p)*	2.21	(3.91)	(28.96)		
Distributions (p)		(5.67)	(3.94)		
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		5.67	3.94		
Closing net asset value per share (p)	_	0.07			
	83.05	80.84	84.75		
*after direct transaction costs of (p)					
Performance	83.05	80.84 —	84.75 –		
Performance Return after charges (%)					
Performance Return after charges (%) Other information	83.05 - 2.73	80.84 - (4.61)	84.75 - (25.47)		
Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000)	83.05 - 2.73	80.84 - (4.61) 36,211	84.75 - (25.47) 37,611		
Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares	83.05 - 2.73	80.84 - (4.61) 36,211 44,793,449	84.75 - (25.47) 37,611 44,379,368		
Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)**	83.05 - 2.73 -	80.84 - (4.61) 36,211	84.75 - (25.47) 37,611		
Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)** Direct transaction costs (%)***	83.05 - 2.73 - -	80.84 - (4.61) 36,211 44,793,449 0.12	84.75 - (25.47) 37,611 44,379,368 0.11		
Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000)	83.05 - 2.73 - -	80.84 - (4.61) 36,211 44,793,449 0.12	84.75 - (25.47) 37,611 44,379,368 0.11		

^{**}The Operating charges are represented by the Ongoing Charges Figure (OCF) which is the European standard method of disclosing the charges of a share class of a fund based on the financial year's expenses and may vary from year to year. It includes charges such as the fund's annual management charge, registration fee, custody fees and distribution cost but ordinarily excludes the costs of buying or selling assets for the fund (unless these assets are shares of another fund). Where published, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) contains the current OCF. For a more detailed breakdown please visit columbiathreadneedle.com/fees.

Highest and Lowest share prices are based on official published daily NAVs priced at 12 noon on the last business day of the period on a mid basis. The closing net asset value per share is at close of business on a bid basis.

^{***}Transaction costs have not been reduced by any amounts collected from dilution levies/adjustments

¹Closed 8 October 2024.

²Closed 2 September 2022.

CT UK Index Linked Fund

Notes to the financial statements

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on a basis other than the going concern assumption, as the fund was closed on 8 October 2024. They are in compliance with FRS 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (SORP) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2024 and are described in those financial statements.

(b) Notes

In accordance with the guidelines of the SORP the fund has taken advantage of the facility not to provide further notes to the financial statements.

2 RECONCILIATION OF SHARES

	2024
Class 1 – Income shares*	
Opening shares	28,200
Shares issued	306
Shares redeemed	(28,506)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	-
Class 1 – Gross accumulation shares*	
Opening shares	51,401
Shares issued	_
Shares redeemed	(51,401)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	-
Class 2 – Income shares*	
Opening shares	302,642
Shares issued	8,796
Shares redeemed	(311,438)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	
Class 2 – Accumulation shares*	
Opening shares	3,546,376
Shares issued	21,967
Shares redeemed	(3,568,343)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	
Class 2 – Gross income shares*	
Opening shares	120,052
Shares issued	405
Shares redeemed	(120,457)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	
Class X – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares*	44,793,449
Shares issued	119,460
Shares redeemed	(44,912,909)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	

 $[\]hbox{\it *For closure dates, refer to the footnotes after the comparative tables}.$

Investment Report

Investment Objective and Policy

The Fund aims to achieve above average capital growth over the long term. It looks to outperform the MSCI Europe Index over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of charges

The Fund is actively managed, and invests at least 75% of its assets in a concentrated portfolio of shares of companies domiciled in Europe (including the UK), or which have significant business operations there.

The Fund selects companies in which the fund manager has a high conviction that the current share price does not reflect the prospects for that business. These companies may be chosen from any industry or economic sector, with significant sector and share weightings taken at the fund manager's discretion. There is no restriction on company size, however, investment tends to focus on larger companies, such as those included in the MSCI Europe Index.

The MSCI Europe Index is regarded as providing an appropriate representation of the share performance of large and medium-sized companies within developed market countries across Europe (including the UK), currently with over 400 companies included. It provides a suitable target benchmark against which Fund performance will be measured and evaluated over time.

The Fund typically invests in fewer than 50 companies, which may include shares of some companies not within the Index. The Fund may invest in other securities (including fixed interest securities) and collective investment schemes (including funds managed by Columbia Threadneedle companies), when deemed appropriate. The Fund may also hold money market instruments, deposits, cash and near cash. The Fund is not permitted to invest in derivatives for investment purposes, but derivatives may be used with the aim of reducing risk or managing the Fund more efficiently.

Performance of Net Accumulation Class 1 Shares*

Over the six months to 31 October 2024, the published share price of Class 1-Accumulation shares in the CT Pan European Focus Fund has fallen from 489.91p to 483.23p in sterling terms and from 5.7268 to 5.7705 Euros.

For comparison, using noon prices, the sterling performance of the Class 1 share class was -1.36% and -1.06% for the Class 2 share class compared to a return of +0.33% for the Morningstar UK Unit Trusts/OEICS - IA Europe Including UK Peer Group (on a bid to bid basis, with income reinvested for a UK basic rate taxpayer). For information purposes, using global close prices, the total return of the MSCI Europe Index was +0.39%.

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

European equity markets delivered modestly positive returns over the review period. Investors were encouraged by declining inflation and resulting expectations that key central banks would start to reduce interest rates, which indeed transpired. Generally encouraging corporate earnings and fresh Chinese stimulus measures further bolstered appetite for risk. However, stocks were pressured by the weakening economic backdrop in the eurozone, together with rising political uncertainty in the bloc. The ongoing conflict in the Middle East also weighed on sentiment.

Expectations that the European Central Bank (ECB) would start easing policy earlier than the Fed (Federal Reserve) boosted European equities early in the period. The ECB duly followed through by cutting interest rates by 25 basis points (psp) in June. The resulting optimism was soon overshadowed by political concerns following the European parliamentary elections in June, which saw populist far-right parties make strong gains across the region. This led President Macron to call a snap general election in France, stoking fears of the prospect of fiscal expansion under a new populist and Eurosceptic government. Some stability returned in July after the far-right National Rally failed to secure a majority in the French election.

Meanwhile, in the UK, the Labour Party's landslide victory in July's election raised the prospect of an era of political stability and hopes of growth-friendly policies. Later, investors grew concerned ahead of the new government's first budget at the end of October amid feras of tax increases and extra borrowing lotted thut materialised.

As the period progressed, the eurozone economy looked increasingly fragile, with the manufacturing sector particularly weak. Fears of a US recession also triggered sharp global self-offs in early August and early September. The self-off in August was exacerbated by the unwinding of the "yen carry trade" (where investors borrowed yen at low interest rates to invest in assets in other currencies offering higher potential returns) following a surge in the yen after the Bank of Japan unexpectedly raised interest rates at the end of July.

Thess sell-offs were short-lived and markets rebounded quickly on both ocasions, aided by reassuring data on the US economy and anticipation that the Federal Reserve would cut rates in September, in the event, the Fed reduced borrowing costs by 50 bps. During the same month, the EOB also cut rates again, by another 25 bps, after eurozone inflation fell to a three-year low. In late September and early October, sentiment was further bosted by a slew of stimulus measures from China — a key market for European exports. Eurozone headline inflation finally fell below 2%, in September, for the first time in three years and the EOB went on to make a third interest-rate cut at its October policy meeting. Some of the central bank's accompanying commentary was dowish. In the final weeks of the period, volatility increased as the US presidential election approached. Expectations for monetary easing in the US were scaled back due to growing anticipation that Donald Trump might be re-elected. This is seen as an inflationary outcome, given his campaign pledges to implement tariffs and tax cuts. New holdings over the period included ASMI, Novo Nordisk, Experian and VAI Group. ASMI, produces semiconductor manufacturing equipment it has a large market share and superior technology, and is a leader in extreme ultraviolet (EUV) lithography technology. The company predicts that artificial intelligence (Al) will be a significant growth driver. Novo Nordisk, a dominant provider of diabetes and beasity treatment, with superior technology and scale advantages in insulin production. The firm is seeing increased price competition as rivals, especially Eli Lilly, seek to take a larger share of the lucrative markets for weight loss drugs. Additionally, Novo Nordisk's pricing strategy

is facing scrutiny in the US Senate. Nevertheless, the market for diabetes and obesity treatments remains strong, and is increasing owing to poor diets and lifestyles. We had sold out of consumer credit reporting company Experian in 01 2024 on valuation grounds but later repurchased the stock. Experian stands to benefit from lower interest rates and the resulting tailwinds for consumer borrowing. The firm boasts a robust competitive position; its direct-to-consumer channel is a major advantage in developing markets, helping potential customers who may never have had a credit card or bank account to participate in the formal financial system for the first time. Furthermore, after a period of consistent investment in technology and new products, Experian has enhanced its product offering and stands to benefit from the shift to cloud computing. VAI Group is a manufacturer of valves and vacuums within the semiconductor supply chain. The company stands to benefit from growing demand for AI, and recently reported encouraging interim results, highlighting strong demand from the semiconductor supply chain. The company stands to benefit from growing demand for AI, and recently reported encouraging interim results, highlighting strong demand from the semiconductor industry. We sold out of Airbus, after the company issued a profit warning, citing a shortage of parts and labour, which is slowing deliveries. We prefer other companies in the aerospace sector. Another sale was testing and inspection firm Bureau Vertlas following a period of good returns. We also sold Mercedes-Bera given the risk that Trump might be reelected president, which would mean a tough environment for Curopean autos, as well as headwinds from a weak Chinese economy and slower demand for electric vehicles. Markets have been dominated by inflation and interest rates after the long period of low financian intensified, supply chains came under pressure, and inflation rose sharply. Central banks underestimated the inflation problem and had to raise interes

energy prices, potential trade tariffs and global conflict. All of these are somewhat unpredictable as we expect Trump to deal-make to cement his legacy. In European equities, there are reasons to remain optimistic. Earnings have been resilient despite higher interest rates and, over the longer term, share prices tend to follow earnings. Good companies continue to grow, and we see opportunities in the current market. In managing this fund, our focus is on stock selection, informed by macro-economic and thematic views. We favour high-quality companies with the pricing power to sustain strong returns, and we also target re-rating opportunities.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

· ,	2024 £000	2023 £000
Income		
Net capital losses	(1,266)	(6,615)
Revenue	783	801
Expenses	(230)	(219)
Net revenue before taxation	553	582
Taxation	(30)	(94)
Net revenue after taxation	523	488
Total return before equalisation	(743)	(6,127)
Equalisation	(89)	(109)
Change in net assets attributable to		
shareholders from investment activities	(832)	(6,236)

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2024

30 310 7 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50	2024 £000	April 2024 £000
Assets:		
Fixed assets:		
Investments	54,740	69,518
Current assets:		
Debtors	185	299
Cash and bank balances	493	1
Total assets	55,418	69,818
Liabilities:		
Creditors:		
Bank overdrafts	_	(953)
Other creditors	(78)	(1,227)
Total liabilities	(78)	(2,180)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	55,340	67,638

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

Opening net assets attributable to shareholders	£000 67,638	£000 79,369
Amounts receivable on the issue of shares Amounts payable on the cancellation of shares	2,296 (13,770)	12,493 (31,807)
Dilution adjustment	(11,474) 8	(19,314) 45
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from investment activities (see statement of total return above)	(832)	(6,236)
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders	55,340	53,864

The comparatives used within the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders are for the corresponding period of the previous year. Therefore the opening net assets attributable to shareholders for the current year are at 30 April 2024 whilst the figure disclosed in the comparatives' closing net assets attributable to shareholders is at 31 October 2023.

*In pound Sterling and against UK peer group (See Performance summary on page 114).

2023

Comparative Table Disclosure

Change in net assets per share 222.20 196.90 176.53 486.04 430.38 Opening net asset value per share (p) 0.40 28.77 23.82 0.86 62.85 Operating charges (p) (1.88) (3.31) (2.94) (4.11) (7.19) Return after operating charges (p)* (1.48) 25.46 20.88 (3.25) 55.66 Distributions (p) - (0.16) (0.51) - (0.34)	384.83 51.92 (6.37)		
Opening net asset value per share (p) 222.20 196.90 176.53 486.04 430.38 Return before operating charges (p) 0.40 28.77 23.82 0.86 62.85 Operating charges (p) (1.88) (3.31) (2.94) (4.11) (7.19) Return after operating charges (p)* (1.48) 25.46 20.88 (3.25) 55.66 Distributions (p) - (0.16) (0.51) - (0.34)	51.92 (6.37)		
Return before operating charges (p) 0.40 28.77 23.82 0.86 62.85 Operating charges (p) (1.88) (3.31) (2.94) (4.11) (7.19) Return after operating charges (p)* (1.48) 25.46 20.88 (3.25) 55.66 Distributions (p) - (0.16) (0.51) - (0.34)	51.92 (6.37)		
Operating charges (p) (1.88) (3.31) (2.94) (4.11) (7.19) Return after operating charges (p)* (1.48) 25.46 20.88 (3.25) 55.66 Distributions (p) - (0.16) (0.51) - (0.34)	(6.37)		
Return after operating charges (p)* (1.48) 25.46 20.88 (3.25) 55.66 Distributions (p) - (0.16) (0.51) - (0.34)			
Distributions (p) – (0.16) (0.51) – (0.34)			
	45.55		
	(1.14)		
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	1.14		
Closing net asset value per share (p) 220.72 222.20 196.90 482.79 486.04	430.38		
*after direct transaction costs of (p) 0.34 1.01 0.69 0.74 2.21	1.50		
Performance			
Return after charges (%) (0.67) 12.93 11.83 (0.67) 12.93	11.84		
Other information			
Closing net asset value (£000) 24 24 21 9,760 10,123	9,930		
Closing number of shares 10,795 10,795 10,795 2,021,615 2,082,835	2,307,122		
Operating charges (%)*** 1.66 [†] 1.67 1.68 1.66 [†] 1.66	1.67		
Direct transaction costs (%)*** 0.30 0.51 0.40 0.30 0.51	0.40		
Prices			
Highest share price (p) 234.63 228.55 200.54 513.24 499.58	437.20		
Lowest share price (p) 207.51 175.95 154.04 453.92 384.61	335.82		
Class 2 – Accumulation shares Class X – Accumulation shar	Class X – Accumulation shares		
	30/04/2023		
Change in net assets per share			
Opening net asset value per share (p) 539.77 475.22 422.49 251.40 219.13	192.88		
Return before operating charges (p) 1.00 69.86 57.36 0.43 32.47	26.42		
Operating charges (p) (3.04) (5.31) (4.63) (0.12) (0.20)	(0.17)		
Return after operating charges (p)* (2.04) 64.55 52.73 0.31 32.27	26.25		
Distributions (p) – (3.16) (3.67) – (3.69)	(3.61)		
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) - 3.16 3.67 - 3.69	3.61		
Closing net asset value per share (p) 537.73 539.77 475.22 251.71 251.40	219.13		
*after direct transaction costs of (p) 0.82 2.46 1.66 0.38 1.13	0.76		
Performance			
Return after charges (%) (0.38) 13.58 12.48 0.12 14.73	13.61		
Other information			
Closing net asset value (£000) 9,339 21,338 28,990 26,455 26,974	33,049		
	15,081,696		
Closing number of shares 1,736,785 3,953,107 6,100,305 10,510,204 10,729,499			
Closing number of shares 1,736,785 3,953,107 6,100,305 10,510,204 10,729,499 Operating charges (%)** 1.10¹ 1.10 1.10 0.09¹ 0.09	0.09		
	0.09 0.40		
Operating charges (%)** 1.10† 1.10 1.10 0.09† 0.09			
Operating charges (%)** 1.10* 1.10 1.10 0.09* 0.09 Direct transaction costs (%)*** 0.30 0.51 0.40 0.30 0.51			

Comparative Table Disclosure

(continued)

Class Z – Accumulation shares 2024 30/04/2024 30/04/202

	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share			
Opening net asset value per share (p)	369.71	324.94	288.38
Return before operating charges (p)	0.65	47.77	39.18
Operating charges (p)	(1.72)	(3.00)	(2.62)
Return after operating charges (p)*	(1.07)	44.77	36.56
Distributions (p)	_	(2.74)	(3.01)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		2.74	3.01
Closing net asset value per share (p)	368.64	369.71	324.94
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.56	1.68	1.14
Performance			
Return after charges (%)	(0.29)	13.78	12.68
Other information			
Closing net asset value (£000)	9,762	9,179	7,379
Closing number of shares	2,648,097	2,482,788	2,270,922
Operating charges (%)**	0.91 [†]	0.91	0.91
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.30	0.51	0.40
Prices			
Highest share price (p)	390.70	379.75	330.04
Lowest share price (p)	345.97	291.42	252.46

^{**}The Operating charges are represented by the Ongoing Charges Figure (OCF) which is the European standard method of disclosing the charges of a share class of a fund based on the financial year's expenses and may vary from year to year. It includes charges such as the fund's annual management charge, registration fee, custody fees and distribution cost but ordinarily excludes the costs of buying or selling assets for the fund (unless these assets are shares of another fund). Where published, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) contains the current OCF. For a more detailed breakdown please visit columbiathreadneedle.com/fees.

Highest and Lowest share prices are based on official published daily NAVs priced at 12 noon on the last business day of the period on a mid basis. The closing net asset value per share is at close of business on a bid basis.

^{***}Transaction costs have not been reduced by any amounts collected from dilution levies/adjustments.

¹The Ongoing Charges Figure is annualised based on the fees incurred during the accounting period or since commencement date.

Notes to the financial statements

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of investments, in compliance with FRS 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (SORP) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2024 and are described in those financial statements.

(b) Notes

In accordance with the guidelines of the SORP the fund has taken advantage of the facility not to provide further notes to the financial statements.

2 RECONCILIATION OF SHARES

HEGONOLIATION OF SHARES	
	2024
Class 1 – Income shares	
Opening shares	10,795
Shares issued	_
Shares redeemed	-
Net conversions	
Closing shares	10,795
Class 1 – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	2,082,835
Shares issued	1,830
Shares redeemed	(63,050)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	2,021,615
Class 2 – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	3,953,107
Shares issued	42,049
Shares redeemed	(2,258,287)
Net conversions	(84)
Closing shares	1,736,785
Class X – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	10,729,499
Shares issued	33,859
Shares redeemed	(253,154)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	10,510,204
Class Z – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	2,482,788
Shares issued	524,233
Shares redeemed	(359,047)
Net conversions	123
Closing shares	2,648,097

Investment Report

Investment Objective and Policy

Investment Objective and Policy

The Fund aims to provide income combined with prospects for capital growth over the long term. It looks to provide an income yield higher than the S&P 500 Index over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of charges.

The Fund is actively managed, and invests at least 75% of its assets in the shares of companies domicided in the United States of America (US), or which have significant US business operations. The Fund selects companies that exhibit above average income generation potential, as well as those considered to offer opportunities more by way of share price or dividend growth. These companies may be chosen from any industry or economic sector, and whilst there is no restriction on size, investment tends to focus on larger companies, such as those included in the S&P 500 Index.

The S&P 500 Index is a US stock market index, the constituents of which represent around 500 of the largest companies listed on the New York Stock Exchange or NASDAO. The income yield of this index provides a suitable target benchmark against which the level of income generated by the Fund viril be measured and evaluated over time.

The Fund typically invests in fewer than 70 companies, which may include shares of some companies not within the Index. The Fund may invest in other securities (including fixed interest securities) and collective investment schemes (including funds managed by Columbia Threadneedle companies), when deemed appropriate.

The Fund may also hold money market instruments, deposits, cash and near cash.

The Fund may use derivatives with the aim of reducing risk or managing the Fund more efficiently. In addition, the Fund may commence using derivatives with the aim of achieving an investments.

Performance of Net Income Class 1 Shares*

Over the six months to 31 October 2024 the published share price of Class 1- Income shares in the CT US Equity Income Fund has risen from 223.84p to 23.40g. or 10.40g. or 10.40g

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity
US equities registered robust gains over the six-month review period as easing inflation and intermittent signs of weakening in the labour market reinforced anticipation of monetary-policy easing before year-end, even as expectations about the depth and pace of the Federal Reserve's (Fed.) stract-utting this year were tempered. Investors were further encouraged by hopes of a "soft landing" for the US economy and generally resilient corporate earnings.
US stocks strengthened in May, helped by a return to moderating inflation following some previous hotter-than-expected data. The upward trend continued in June and July amid optimism about Ad-thiven growth proportunities, underlined by strong quantierly results from lange-cap technology stocks such as Nikida and Apple. Sentiment was further boosted when the European Contrat Bank became the first key developed-market central bank to lover interest rates in June, with later dovich commentary from US policymakers fuelling hopes the Fed could out rates as soon as September (which subsequently occurred). In July, ongoing resilience in economic data prompted a significant market tration reage, ps. high-growth stocks fell out of favour, and investors orticated into small-leap and cyclical stocks deemed likely to benefit most from an economic soft landing. The technology

sector was additionally pressured by a severe IT outage caused by an error in a software update by CrowdStrike, as well as tepid quarterly updates from Tesla and Alphabet. Meanwhile, semiconductor stocks were hurt by reports that the government was considering imposing tighter restrictions on US companies suppling pricined injunising equipment to Drina. However, better-than-expected results from Meta helped sentiment towards technology names recover at the end of. July. Labour-market data was in the spotlight in August and September as some weaker payroll figures ignited recession concerns and tragered self-offs early in both months. Nevertheless, the downturns were more than offset by notable upswirgs as falling consumer price inflation and increasingly dowsh signals from Fed policymekers caused Treasury yields to fall and restored nick appetrix. Fed as subsequently satisfied investors hopes of a larger 50-basis point (bpl out – as opposed to a 52-bp move as had been expected at one point – at 158 September meeting. US equites broke their winning steak in October, although major indexes continued to hover around all-time highs. The change in mood came and elevated uncertainty, fiven by the imperding US election, a further recalibration of US rate-out expectations due to upbeat economic data and concerns about a potential escalation of the conflict in the Middle East. This lack of clarify also pushed up Treasury yields sharply, weighing not stocks. Resilient third quarter (03) earnings failed to meaningfully boots the torod mraker, but onegoin ploses for an economic soft landing helped to support US stocks. Following the Fed's jumbor rate cut in September, policymakers cautioned that 50-bp cuts were the torod mraker, but onegoin ploses for an economic commic data releases in October, as well as Fed Chair, Jerome Powell commenting that the central bank is not "in a hurry to cut rates quickly", further dampened hopes of another 50-bp out in November, and market participants began to price in a shallower and slowe

quickly", further dampened hopes of another 50-bp cut in November, and market participants began to price in a shallower and slower rate-cutting cycle than previously expected. We opened new positions in Parker Hannlifn, Uaulcomm, Bank of America and Mondelez. Parker Hannlifn is an industrial supplier of motion and fluid control systems for a variety of end markets. In recent years, the company has materially improved the quality and consistency of its returns through operational excellence and strategic acquisitions. As a result Parker is now achieving growth and returns similar to its best-in-class peers, while the shares are trading at a material discount. Given the positive outlook for aerospace and defence, Parker's aerospace exposure offers a margin of safety for the company in an uncertain macro environment, and its acquisition of UK-based engineering company Meggitt should prove beneficial. Now that Parker has paid down its debts, it has the opportunity to make more acquisitions that could further boost its growth.

inas net opportunity or inner intere adjustions that could rulner dusts its givens. Qualcomm develops semiconductors and collects royclities on wireless handheld devices and infrastructure based on its dominant position in code-division multiple access (CDMA) and other related technology patents. In addition, Qualcomm provides systems software and components to wireless handset vendors and promotes applications and services that run on high-speed wireless networks. We believe that Qualcomm is well positioned to be a long-term beneficiary of the ramp-up in Al spending and growing use of wireless mobile telecommunications devices worldwide. Qualcomm CDMA Technologies' shipments should benefit from smartphone upgrades and internet-of-things devices coming online, while average selling prices are expected to increase due to 56 moderns costing more, as well as growing add-on sales of radio-frequeny from

ususcomm technology Licensing – its dispute with Apple – has been removed. Bank of America (BAL) is one of the volid stagest financial institutions, severing individual consumers, small and middle-market businesses, large corporations and governments with a full range of banking, investing, asset management and other financial and risk management products and services. The firm has tightened risk controls in its markets business and made significant improvements to its retail business in recent years, closing around 1,000 branches and radically reducing its expenses. It

has also simplified its product line and eliminated unpopular pricing techniques. While these efforts have caused short-term revenue pressure, they have also improved the company's customer approval ratings, allowing it to grow underlying customer accounts, deposits and loans; this is beginning to be reflected in revenue generation. Books high-quality opposit franchies is supportive of net-interest income, while its strong capital position provides protection from rising solvency requirements. The position in 80A also enables us to diversify the active risk of the fund. Mondelez is one of the world's largest food companies and sells snacks including cookies, crackers, salted snacks, chocolate, gum and other confectionery products. Its portfolio of iconic brands includes Orce, Cadbury, Milia, Toblerone and Belvita. New company leadership since 2018 has invested in brands and reshaped the portfolio to better align with the long-term growth opportunity in snacking. The business model is now at an inflection point where scale should lead to accelerating operating leverage, category by category and market by market. Despite current cost headwinds. Mondelez's category and geographic mix should enable the company to post attractive earnings growth and shareholder returns in the coming years. Additionally, the shares currently trade at a reasonable valuation relative to those of its peers. We exited Texas Instruments and Goldman Sachs and closed our small position in Virtu Financial.

The solution to the state of th the economy, Financial conditions have tightened considerably due to the FedS aggressive two-progred monetary regime, characterised by increasing interest rates and unwinding its vast accumulated balance sheet. Although the Fed has not declared victory over inflation, the fall in headline consumer prices and recent signs of a loosening in the labour market have provided some reassurance that monetary tightening is having an effect. This has allowed the Fed to start easing monetary policy, with further interest rate cuts expected in 2024 and 2025. However, persistent, entrenched inflation still poses a risk, and there could be further downside should the economy weaken

2023 was a strong year for financial markets, with inflation more than halving and growth remaining resilient, all while avoiding a much-feared economic recession. While there is still risk of a recession in 2024, concerns of a severe downturn have tempered. Inflation in 2024 is risk of a recession in 2024, concerns of a severe downturn have tempered. Inflation in 2024 is expected to continue its downtrend no flading energy reseasure and softening labour markets as monetarly tightening 924 starts weighing on the growth outlook. Earnings results have shown resiliences of a rin24, with both toroprate net profit margins and the aggregate earnings growth rate exceeding long-term averages. Furthermore, earnings results for 03 2024 have been strong, Reported earnings have so far exceeded consensus expectations and are on track to deliver the fifth straight quarter of year-over-year growth.

to deliver the fifth straight quarter of year-over-year growth. Looking hated to earnings over the rest of the year, the picture is still positive. Communication services, technology and financial companies are expected to deliver the strongest year-over-year earnings growth. Energy, materials and industrials are the only sectors forecast to see earnings growth decline in 2024 as they continue to be pressured by lower energy prices and weakness in the metals and mining, chemicals, and containers and packaging subsectors. Margins have started to recover as companies are seeing labour pressures and material inflation ease. On a year-over-year basis, the market is looking for a strong increase in earnings growth for 2024 as stocks face easier comparisons with 2023 and as the softening inflation picture is supported by a robust labour market and consumer spending.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024 £000	2023 £000
Income		
Net capital gains/(losses)	16,231	(570)
Revenue	2,735	2,794
Expenses	(1,089)	(670)
Net revenue before taxation	1,646	2,124
Taxation	(363)	(352)
Net revenue after taxation	1,283	1,772
Total return before distributions	17,514	1,202
Distributions	(2,369)	(2,436)
Change in net assets attributable to		
shareholders from investment activities	15,145	(1,234)

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2024

	2024	April 2024
	£000	£000
Assets:		
Fixed assets:		
Investments	214,918	243,316
Current assets:		
Debtors	905	168
Cash and bank balances	727	880
Total assets	216,550	244,364
Liabilities:		
Creditors:		
Distribution payable	(280)	(341)
Other creditors	(602)	(989)
Total liabilities	(882)	(1,330)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	215,668	243,034

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024	2023
	£000	£000
Opening net assets attributable to shareholders	243,034	166,605
Amounts receivable on the issue of shares	4,380	116,492
Amounts payable on the cancellation of shares	(48,543)	(18,687)
	(44,163)	97,805
Dilution adjustment	1	26
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from		
investment activities (see statement of total return above)	15,145	(1,234)
Retained distribution on accumulation shares	1,651	1,974
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders	215,668	265,176

The comparatives used within the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders are for the corresponding period of the previous year. Therefore the opening net assets attributable to shareholders for the current year are at 30 April 2024 whilst the figure disclosed in the comparatives' closing net assets attributable to shareholders is at 31 October 2023.

*In pound Sterling and against UK peer group (See Performance summary on page 114).

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

Dividend distribution in pence per share

Class 1 - Income shares

Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1				
01/05/24 to 31/07/24	1.1435	-	1.1435	1.2034
01/08/24 to 31/10/24	1.1752	_	1.1752	1.1897
Group 2				
01/05/24 to 31/07/24	1.1435	-	1.1435	1.2034
01/08/24 to 31/10/24	1.1752	-	1.1752	1.1897
Total distributions in the period			2.3187	2.3931
Class 1 – Accumulation shares				
Distribution			Revenue	Revenue
Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Accumulated 2024	Accumulated 2023
Group 1				
01/05/24 to 31/07/24	1.1701	-	1.1701	1.2006
01/08/24 to 31/10/24	1.2079	-	1.2079	1.1875

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

(continued)

Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Revenue Accumulated 2024	Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.4534 0.8528	0.7167 0.3551	1.1701 1.2079 2.3780	1.2006 1.1875 2.3881
Class 2 – Income shares				
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24	1.1941 1.2265	= -	1.1941 1.2265	1.2474 1.2379
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.0149 1.2265	1.1792 -	1.1941 1.2265 2.4206	1.2474 1.2379 2.4853
Class 2 EUR Hedged – Income s	hares			
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24	0.9618 1.0079	- -	0.9618 1.0079	1.0356 1.0072
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.9618 1.0079	- -	0.9618 1.0079 1.9697	1.0356 1.0072 2.0428
Class L – Income shares			1.3037	2.0420
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24	2.0062 2.0666	- -	2.0062 2.0666	2.0928 2.0777
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.8294 0.4254	1.1768 1.6412	2.0062 2.0666 4.0728	2.0928 2.0777 4.1705
Class X – Income shares				
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24	2.1350 2.2046	- -	2.1350 2.2046	2.2022 2.1588
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	1.0250 1.6340	1.1100 0.5706	2.1350 2.2046 4.3396	2.2022 2.1588 4.3610
Class X – Gross accumulation s	hares			
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24	0.6186 0.6417	- -	0.6186 0.6417	0.6260 0.6258
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.3786 0.6417	0.2400	0.6186 0.6417 1.2603	0.6260 0.6258 1.2518
Class Z – Income shares				
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24	1.2078 1.2436	- -	1.2078 1.2436	1.2610 1.2519
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.5556 0.4972	0.6522 0.7464	1.2078 1.2436 2.4514	1.2610 1.2519 2.5129
Class Z – Accumulation shares				
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Revenue Accumulated 2024	Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24	1.2337 1.2776	- -	1.2337 1.2776	1.2599 1.2572
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.2651 0.9339	0.9686 0.3437	1.2337 1.2776 2.5113	1.2599 1.2572 2.5171
Group 2: shares purchased during a distri	ibution period.			

Comparative Table Disclosure

	Class 1 – Income shares			Class 1 – Accumulation shares		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	219.57	198.87	195.79	224.59	198.83	191.20
Return before operating charges (p)	18.12	28.79	11.03	18.52	29.00	10.80
Operating charges (p)	(1.76)	(3.19)	(3.14)	(1.80)	(3.24)	(3.17
Return after operating charges (p)*	16.36	25.60	7.89	16.72	25.76	7.63
Distributions (p)	(2.32)	(4.90)	(4.81)	(2.38)	(4.93)	(4.75
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)				2.38	4.93	4.75
Closing net asset value per share (p)	233.61	219.57	198.87	241.31	224.59	198.83
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.01	0.02	0.04	0.01	0.02	0.04
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	7.45	12.87	4.03	7.44	12.96	3.99
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	87	82	91	114,483	130,346	31,703
Closing number of shares	37,165	37,615	45,785	47,441,613	58,036,701	15,944,472
Operating charges (%)**	1.54 [†]	1.54	1.56	1.54 [†]	1.53	1.61
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.01	0.01	0.02	0.01	0.01	0.02
Prices						
Highest share price (p)	238.79	227.81	211.67	245.43	231.71	209.33
Lowest share price (p)	218.47	193.91	183.69	223.46	193.87	179.38
	Class 1 EUR Hedged – Accumulation shares			Class 2 – Income shares		
		30/04/20241	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)		168.36	161.09	229.06	206.55	202.43
Return before operating charges (p)		0.82	9.83	18.90	29.91	11.41
Operating charges (p)		_	(2.56)	(1.25)	(2.31)	(2.29
Return after operating charges (p)*		0.82	7.27	17.65	27.60	9.12
Distributions (p)		-	(3.87)	(2.42)	(5.09)	(5.00
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)			3.87			
Closing net asset value per share (p)		169.18	168.36	244.29	229.06	206.55
*after direct transaction costs of (p)		0.02	0.03	0.01	0.02	0.04
*after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance		0.02	0.03	0.01	0.02	0.04
.,,		0.02 0.49	0.03 4.51	0.01 7.71	0.02 13.36	
Performance						
Performance Return after charges (%)						4.51
Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares			4.51 17 10,000	7.71 14 5,532	13.36 17 7,467	4.51 20 9,552
Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)***		0.49	4.51 17 10,000 1.58	7.71 14 5,532 1.05†	13.36 17 7,467 1.07	4.51 20 9,552 1.08
Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)*** Direct transaction costs (%)***		0.49	4.51 17 10,000	7.71 14 5,532	13.36 17 7,467	4.51 20 9,552 1.08
Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)*** Direct transaction costs (%)*** Prices		0.49	4.51 17 10,000 1.58 0.02	7.71 14 5,532 1.05† 0.01	13.36 17 7,467 1.07 0.01	4.51 20 9,552 1.08 0.02
Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)*** Direct transaction costs (%)***		0.49	4.51 17 10,000 1.58	7.71 14 5,532 1.05†	13.36 17 7,467 1.07	0.04 4.51 20 9,552 1.08 0.02 219.17 190.05

Comparative Table Disclosure *(continued)*

	Class 2 El	Class 2 EUR Hedged – Income shares		Class 2 EUR Hedged – Accumulation shares		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023		30/04/20241	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	184.05	173.12	168.69		174.17	165.86
Return before operating charges (p)	17.53	16.99	10.28		0.86	10.13
Operating charges (p)	(1.04)	(1.89)	(1.82)		_	(1.82)
Return after operating charges (p)*	16.49	15.10	8.46		0.86	8.31
Distributions (p)	(1.97)	(4.17)	(4.03)		_	(3.99)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		_	_		_	3.99
Closing net asset value per share (p)	198.57	184.05	173.12		175.03	174.17
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.01	0.02	0.03		0.02	0.03
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	8.96	8.72	5.02		0.49	5.01
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	87	143	135		_	17
Closing number of shares	43,886	77,786	77,786		_	10,000
Operating charges (%)**	1.07 [†]	1.07	1.09		-	1.09
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.01	0.01	0.02		_	0.02
Prices						
Highest share price (p)	201.72	192.41	179.65		175.03	179.64
Lowest share price (p)	183.37	163.94	153.42		175.03	151.62
	Cla	ss L – Income sha	roe	Cla	ss X – Income sha	rec
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	384.78	345.64	337.33	414.56	370.20	359.17
Return before operating charges (p)	31.72	50.10	19.01	34.23	53.59	20.15
Operating charges (p)	(1.34)	(2.41)	(2.38)	(0.15)	(0.27)	(0.30
Return after operating charges (p)*	30.38	47.69	16.63	34.08	53.32	19.85
Distributions (p)	(4.07)	(8.55)	(8.32)	(4.34)	(8.96)	(8.82
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	-	_	_	-	-	-
Closing net asset value per share (p)	411.09	384.78	345.64	444.30	414.56	370.20
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.02	0.03	0.07	0.02	0.04	0.07
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	7.90	13.80	4.93	8.22	14.40	5.53
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	24,388	27,719	39,801	24,945	24,834	19,437
Closing number of shares	5,932,462	7,203,819	11,515,058	5,614,474	5,990,311	5,250,561
Operating charges (%)**	0.67 [†]	0.67	0.68	0.07 [†]	0.07	0.08
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.01	0.01	0.02	0.01	0.01	0.02
Prices						
Highest share price (p)	420.15	398.95	365.66	453.95	429.58	390.92
Lowest share price (p)	382.88	337.05	316.87	412.53	361.03	337.65

Comparative Table Disclosure

(continued)

	Class X — Gross accumulation shares			Class Z – Income shares			
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/20232	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	
Change in net assets per share			'				
Opening net asset value per share (p)	118.55	103.42	100.00	231.57	208.50	203.95	
Return before operating charges (p)	9.83	15.21	3.49	19.12	30.15	11.49	
Operating charges (p)	(0.04)	(0.08)	(0.07)	(1.06)	(1.93)	(1.91	
Return after operating charges (p)*	9.79	15.13	3.42	18.06	28.22	9.58	
Distributions (p)	(1.26)	(2.59)	(2.13)	(2.45)	(5.15)	(5.03	
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	1.26	2.59	2.13				
Closing net asset value per share (p)	128.34	118.55	103.42	247.18	231.57	208.50	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.01	0.01	0.02	0.01	0.02	0.04	
Performance							
Return after charges (%)	8.26	14.63	3.42	7.80	13.53	4.70	
Other information							
Closing net asset value (£000)	43,280	50,079	61,673	6,440	7,842	9,370	
Closing number of shares	33,723,828	42,241,257	59,632,283	2,605,574	3,386,718	4,493,804	
Operating charges (%)**	0.07 [†]	0.07	0.08†	0.88 [†]	0.89	0.90	
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.01	0.01	0.02	0.01	0.01	0.02	
Prices	400.47	400.40	400 50	050.04			
Highest share price (p)	130.47	122.18	108.56	252.61	240.14	220.92	
Lowest share price (p)	117.97	100.86	92.14	230.42	203.31	191.51	
	Class Z C	Class Z CHF Hedged – Income shares		Class Z – Accumulation shares		shares	
		30/04/20241	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	
Change in net assets per share							
Opening net asset value per share (p)		163.14	153.54	236.91	208.18	198.80	
Return before operating charges (p)		0.59	14.83	19.67	30.67	11.21	
Operating charges (p)			(1.44)	(1.08)	(1.94)	(1.83	
Return after operating charges (p)*		0.59	13.39	18.59	28.73	9.38	
Distributions (p)		-	(3.79)	(2.51)	(5.19)	(4.94	
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)				2.51	5.19	4.94	
Closing net asset value per share (p)		163.73	163.14	255.50	236.91	208.18	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)		0.01	0.03	0.01	0.02	0.04	
Performance							
Return after charges (%)		0.36	8.72	7.85	13.80	4.72	
Other information							
Closing net asset value (£000)		_	16	1,944	1,972	4,290	
Closing number of shares		_	10,000	761,014	832,248	2,060,920	
Operating charges (%)**		_	0.91	0.87 [†]	0.89	0.90	
Direct transaction costs (%)***		-	0.02	0.01	0.01	0.02	
Prices		160.70	100.00	250.01	244.20	210.00	
Highest share price (p) Lowest share price (p)		163.73 163.73	168.90 143.67	259.81 235.73	244.28 203.00	218.82 186.68	
Lowest stiate hitce (h)		103.73	143.07	233.73	203.00	100.00	

Comparative Table Disclosure

(continued)

	Class Z CHF Hedged – Accumu	Class Z CHF Hedged – Accumulation shares		cumulation shares	
	30/04/20241	30/04/2023	30/04/20241	30/04/2023	
Change in net assets per share					
Opening net asset value per share (p)	169.01	155.37	176.14	167.44	
Return before operating charges (p)	0.61	15.11	0.87	10.24	
Operating charges (p)		(1.47)		(1.54)	
Return after operating charges (p)*	0.61	13.64	0.87	8.70	
Distributions (p)	_	(3.87)	_	(4.03)	
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		3.87		4.03	
Closing net asset value per share (p)	169.62	169.01	177.01	176.14	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.02	0.03	0.02	0.03	
Performance					
Return after charges (%)	0.36	8.78	0.49	5.20	
Other information					
Closing net asset value (£000)	-	17	_	18	
Closing number of shares	_	10,001	_	10,000	
Operating charges (%)**	_	0.91	-	0.91	
Direct transaction costs (%)***	_	0.02	_	0.02	
Prices					
Highest share price (p)	169.62	174.01	177.01	181.59	
Lowest share price (p)	169.62	145.40	177.01	153.18	

^{**}The Operating charges are represented by the Ongoing Charges Figure (OCF) which is the European standard method of disclosing the charges of a share class of a fund based on the financial year's expenses and may vary from year to year. It includes charges such as the fund's annual management charge, registration fee, custody fees and distribution cost but ordinarily excludes the costs of buying or selling assets for the fund (unless these assets are shares of another fund). Where published, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) contains the current OCF. For a more detailed breakdown please visit columbiathreadneedle.com/fees.

Highest and Lowest share prices are based on official published daily NAVs priced at 12 noon on the last business day of the period on a mid basis. The closing net asset value per share is at close of business on a bid basis.

^{***}Transaction costs have not been reduced by any amounts collected from dilution levies/adjustments.

¹Closed 2 May 2023.

²Commenced 9 June 2022.

¹The Ongoing Charges Figure is annualised based on the fees incurred during the accounting period or since commencement date.

Notes to the financial statements

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of investments, in compliance with FRS 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (SORP) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2024 and are described in those financial statements.

(b) Notes

In accordance with the guidelines of the SORP the fund has taken advantage of the facility not to provide further notes to the financial statements.

2 RECONCILIATION OF SHARES

	2024
Class 1 – Income shares	
Opening shares	37,615
Shares issued	1,750
Shares redeemed Net conversions	(2,200)
Closing shares	37,165
Class 1 – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	58,036,701
Shares issued	130,781
Shares redeemed	(10,725,869)
Net conversions	(10), 20)000)
Closing shares	47,441,613
Class 2 – Income shares	
Opening shares	7,467
Shares issued	_
Shares redeemed	(1,935)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	5,532
Class 2 EUR Hedged – Income shares	
Opening shares	77,786
Shares issued	
Shares redeemed	(33,900)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	43,886
Class L – Income shares	
Opening shares	7,203,819
Shares issued	500,855
Shares redeemed	(1,771,568)
Net conversions	(644)
Closing shares	5,932,462
Class X – Income shares	F 000 044
Opening shares	5,990,311
Shares issued Shares redeemed	295,377 (671,214)
Net conversions	(0/1,214)
Closing shares	5,614,474
· ·	0,011,171
Class X – Gross accumulation shares Opening shares	42,241,257
Shares issued	36,334
Shares redeemed	(8,553,763)
Net conversions	(0,000,100)
Closing shares	33,723,828
Class Z – Income shares	
Opening shares	3,386,718
Shares issued	219,996
Shares redeemed	(1,002,211)
Net conversions	1,071
Closing shares	2,605,574

	2024
Class Z – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	832,248
Shares issued	86,485
Shares redeemed	(157,719)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	761,014

Investment Report

INVESTMENT REPORT

Investment Objective and Policy

The fund aims to achieve capital growth over the long term (5 years, or more). It also looks to the MSCI Emerging Markets Index (the "Index") over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of control of the MSCI Emerging Markets Index (the "Index") over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of control of the MSCI Emerging Markets Index (the "Index") over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of control of the MSCI Emerging Markets Index (the Index

the MSD Emerging Meritest Index (the "Index") over origing 3-year periods, after the deduction of charges. The first all scribery managed, and invests at least 12% of its assist in equities and equity-related securities of emerging market companies. There is no restriction on size, but investment tends to focus on larger companies, such as those included in the Index. The Fund considers emerging market companies to be hose domiciled in emerging market countries, or which have significant business operations in such contrines. Emerging market countries are those observable as developing or emerging by the World Bank, the United Nations, or the Index in the Index in designate ocuprative is an event of the Index in designation of capture the share performance of large and medium-sized companies across emerging markets worldwide. It is broadly representative of the companies in which the fund invests and provides a suitable larget benchmark against which Find performance will be measured and evaluated over time. The Investment Manager selects companies considered to have good prospects for share price growth, from accoss different index paid according to the second of the second of the Investment Manager also secks to create a portfolio beta companies flower than 100 companies, which may include shares of some companies not within the Index.

The Investment Manager also secks to create a portfolio beta compares favourably against the Index over rolling 12 month periods, when assessed using the Columbia Threadneedle ESS Materiality Rating model.

rolling 12 month periods, when assessed using the Columbia Threadheedle ESi Materiality Rating molths model (developed and owned by Columbia Threadheedle ISS). Materiality Rating mountains threadheedle ISS in the Issue of Issue

climate change to board independence and oversity of the Fund only invest of incompanies to the Fund only invest of incompanies that follow good governance practices. The Fund does not invest in companies which derive revenue from industries or activities above the thresholds shown to bacco production (FSA; ruck weapons – indirect involvement (FSA; contentional vecapons – military, or civilian finearms (10%), and themal or – extraction or power generation (30%). These exclusion criteria may be extended or revised from time to time The Fund also excludes companies that have any direct involvement in nuclear weapons, controversial weapons and companies that the linvestment Manager determines to have breached international standards and principles such as the:

principles such as the:
United Nations Global Compact;
United Nations Global Compact;
International Labour Organisation Labour Standards; and
International Labour Organisation Labour Standards; and
United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights.
Fund may invest up to 30% of its value in Orina A-Shares through the China-Hong Kong Stock Connect
parame. The Fund may invest in other securities (including fixed interest securities) and collective investment
mass (including fixed managad by Columbia Threadheadic companies, When decembal appropriate.
Fixed may also hold money market instruments, deposits, cash and near cash.
Fixed may also hold money market instruments, deposits, cash and near cash.

he Fund is not permitted to invest in derivatives for investment purposes, but derivatives may be used with he aim of reducing risk or managing the Fund more efficiently.

Performance of Net Accumulation Class 1 Shares*

Performance of Net Accumulation Class 1 Shares*
Our the six month s of 12 Global Flame published share price of Class 1 - Accumulation shares in the CT
Global Emerging Markets Equity Fund has risen from 117.77p to 122.15p.
For comparison, using room prices, the performance of the Class 1 share class was +3.72% and +4.02% for
the Class 2 share class companed to a return of +3.81% for the Moningster IX Unit Trusty,DIGCS - 1-A Global
Emerging Market Ser Group on a bid to the basis, with income reinvested for a Use Loss craft tapsayer,
For information purposes, using global close prices, the total return of the MSO Emerging Markets India vas +6.15%.

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

tors were encouraged by stimulus measures from China, declining inflation readings in many countries, and, later,

the start of interest rate cuts by the Federal Reserve (field. However, evaniment varie impacted by unoquested absorbancement in Manke one 25 cm. Min End epities were and invested by the sell of in early Appetral controllers in Manke and 25 cm. Sell reserves and a sell of in August were acceptanted by the unweighted of the August were acceptanted on the University of the August were acceptanted on the University of the August were acceptanted on the University of the August were acceptanted on the August accept

posulism. Later however, Indian equilise experienced outflows from foreign investors amid concerns about high valuations and disappointing corporate energine. The Reserve Beart of India kept it six plommtar strat as £5% throughout the period but indicated it could be open to future cuts amid signs of dowing economic growth. In Italian America, Fazzilian equities declared and significantly lagged the indoor, the negative return vas compounded by weathers in the real. As core inflation remained above the central bank's target, policymakers elected to passe interest-rate cuts in June and then hisked rates in September on the back of overheating domestic demand and tight labour markets. Moscian equities faired worse, posting the biggest decline in the indicx. The governing Moreas party condition Equitable September and settled vectors in the indicx. The governing Moreas party condition Equitable settlems assecured a statistic victory in the indicx. The governing Moreas party condition Equitable September and settlems assecured a statistic victory in the

All server market, in our view. Additionally, the firm is expanding its electric-vehicle [EV] business — an area where demand is expected to be strong given the move towards decarbonisation. We have a strong earnings custods for Chinese smartphone maker Xiaomi, which we expect to be driven by a solid execution in EVs and a high growth traplectory in of littlement of things) technology. Taiwanese company Asia Wall Components makes cooling devices for laptops and computers, and also supplies themsall products. We like the company for its earnings promote potential and single market share, which we believe its supported by spell content for clean in all nevers and also south potential and rainy in parameter share, which we believe its supported by spell content for clean in all nevers and also south parameters and also supplies to support to the spell of the strong spell of the s

are operiencing lower inflationary pressure, which, given relatively high policy rates, provides these central banks with the capacity to cart tast faster providing inflation means on its downward trajector, it is with noting that some EM economies have already begun their easing cycles, which should give a significant boost to consumption, earnings and growth.

In China, many of the challenges facing the economy are well known, particularly deficiatory concerns and the troubled properly sector. The images of the latest has been compounded by weak consumption, with consumers cutting down spending, while geopolical tensions have also previously weighted on the market Netwover, recent amouncements of fical support just days after the central bank amounced the biggest monetary stimulus since the pandemic have disastically improved sentiment. The devil will be in the detail if we are to whiteses a boost to activity and the creation of demand. It is clear that a focus on dislevent groups properly and credit risk in the economy would be positive steps. We will be monitoring the size of fiscal stimulus and its impact on consumption, savings rates and house prices, among other variables.

North Asian economies such as Talwara and Kord save better better of the size of fiscal stimulus and its impact on consumption, savings rates and house prices, among other variables.

North Asian economies such as Talwara and Kord sector better of the size of fiscal stimulus and its impact on consumption, savings rates and house prices, among when remarked to consume the consumers of the size of fiscal stimulus and its impact on consumption, savings rates and house prices, and a potentive fiscal or increasing demand from All smartphones and automotive betterology, as well as governments flows on strengthening supply chains. In addition, Korea's Value of programment, the administration is foresard on infrastructure interestment and separating the coverty's manufacturing sector, which is excouraging private or consumers of the size of t

geopolitical stability. This will create both risks and opportunities for us to navigaru.

EM stocks are undervalued, trading significantly below long-term averages and cheap relative to global equities
With a recovery in earnings and improving GDP growth estimates, we believe EMs are now looking attractive
More importantly, this means we are finding high-quality, value-creating companies which are mispriced.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

for the accounting.	period 1 May	2024 to 31	October 2024

	2024	2023
	£000	£000
Income		
Net capital gains/(losses)	2,870	(2,667)
Revenue	764	5,378
Expenses	(170)	(283)
Interest payable and similar charges	(4)	(9)
Net revenue before taxation	590	5,086
Taxation	(127)	(1,551)
Net revenue after taxation	463	3,535
Total return before equalisation	3,333	868
Equalisation	(43)	(362)
Change in net assets attributable to		
shareholders from investment activities	3,290	506

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2024

		April
	2024	2024
	£000	£000
Assets:		
Fixed assets:		
Investments	58,119	65,512
Current assets:		
Debtors	62	600
Cash and bank balances	463	822
Cash equivalents**	1,096	
Total assets	59,740	66,934
Liabilities:		
Creditors:		
Bank overdrafts	-	(209)
Other creditors	(240)	(836)
Total liabilities	(240)	(1,045)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	59,500	65,889

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE **TO SHAREHOLDERS**

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	£000	£000
Opening net assets attributable to shareholders	65,889	403,901
Amounts receivable on the issue of shares	951	28,542
Amounts payable on the cancellation of shares	(10,630)	(79,996)
	(9,679)	(51,454)
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from		
investment activities (see statement of total return above)	3,290	506
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders	59,500	352,953

2024

2023

The comparatives used within the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders are for the corresponding period of the previous year. Therefore the opening net assets attributable to shareholders for the current year are at 30 April 2024 whilst the figure disclosed in the comparatives' closing net assets attributable to shareholders is at 31 October 2023.

*In pound Sterling and against UK peer group (See Performance summary on page 114).

^{**}The total value of investments in the portfolio statement includes the Cash Equivalents amount shown under current assets.

Comparative Table Disclosure

	Class 1	Class 1 – Accumulation shares			Class 2 – Accumulation shares		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	
Change in net assets per share							
Opening net asset value per share (p)	117.52	106.50	120.84	130.52	117.61	132.65	
Return before operating charges (p)	6.41	12.88	(12.44)	7.13	14.27	(13.70	
Operating charges (p)	(1.04)	(1.86)	(1.90)	(0.77)	(1.36)	(1.34	
Return after operating charges (p)*	5.37	11.02	(14.34)	6.36	12.91	(15.04	
Distributions (p)	_	(0.44)	_	_	(1.19)	(0.69	
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		0.44			1.19	0.69	
Closing net asset value per share (p)	122.89	117.52	106.50	136.88	130.52	117.61	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.13	0.34	0.22	0.15	0.37	0.25	
Performance							
Return after charges (%)	4.57	10.35	(11.87)	4.87	10.98	(11.34	
Other information							
Closing net asset value (£000)	225	227	322	9,570	12,041	13,482	
Closing number of shares	183,231	193,397	302,424	6,991,715	9,225,208	11,462,961	
Operating charges (%)**	1.72 [†]	1.68	1.66	1.15 [†]	1.11	1.07	
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.22	0.30	0.19	0.22	0.30	0.19	
Prices							
Highest share price (p)	125.71	118.87	120.83	139.97	131.98	132.74	
Lowest share price (p)	110.47	105.04	102.90	122.88	116.01	113.30	
	Class X – Income shares			Class X – Accumulation shares			
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	
Change in net assets per share							
Opening net asset value per share (p)	130.33	118.44	134.45	123.08	109.80	122.62	
Return before operating charges (p)	7.13	14.42	(13.96)	6.74	13.38	(12.73	
Operating charges (p)	(0.07)	(0.09)	(0.05)	(0.09)	(0.10)	(0.09	
Return after operating charges (p)*	7.06	14.33	(14.01)	6.65	13.28	(12.82	
Distributions (p)		(2.44)	(2.00)	_	(2.27)	(1.80	
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		_	_		2.27	1.80	
Closing net asset value per share (p)	137.39	130.33	118.44	129.73	123.08	109.80	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.15	0.38	0.25	0.14	0.35	0.23	
Performance							
Return after charges (%)	5.42	12.10	(10.42)	5.40	12.09	(10.46	
Other information							
Closing net asset value (£000)	4	4	3	36,688	39,453	369,756	
Closing number of shares	3,000	3,000	3,000	28,279,574	32,053,652	336,740,536	
Operating charges (%)**	0.11 [†]	0.07	0.04	0.15 [†]	0.09	0.08	
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.22	0.30	0.19	0.22	0.30	0.19	
Prices							
Highest share price (p)	140.40	134.17	134.85	132.58	124.40	122.97	
Lowest share price (p)	123.03	116.86	115.42	116.19	108.34	105.25	

Comparative Table Disclosure

(continued)

Operating charges (%)**
Direct transaction costs (%)***

Highest share price (p) Lowest share price (p)

Prices

31/10/2024 30/04/2024 30/04/2023 Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share (p) 156.46 140.73 158.46 Return before operating charges (p) 17.10 (16.39) 8.54 (0.78)(1.37)(1.34)Operating charges (p) (17.73)Return after operating charges (p)* 7.76 15.73 Distributions (p) (1.08)(1.68)Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) 1.68 1.08 Closing net asset value per share (p) 164.22 156.46 140.73 *after direct transaction costs of (p) 0.18 0.45 0.29 Performance 4 96 11 18 (1119)Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) 13,013 20.338 14,164 Closing number of shares 7,924,061 9,053,200 14,451,257

Class Z - Accumulation shares

0.93

0.30

158 20

138.83

0.90

0.19

158 60

135.45

0.97[†]

0.22

167 92

147.36

Highest and Lowest share prices are based on official published daily NAVs priced at 12 noon on the last business day of the period on a mid basis. The closing net asset value per share is at close of business on a bid basis.

^{**}The Operating charges are represented by the Ongoing Charges Figure (OCF) which is the European standard method of disclosing the charges of a share class of a fund based on the financial year's expenses and may vary from year to year. It includes charges such as the fund's annual management charge, registration fee, custody fees and distribution cost but ordinarily excludes the costs of buying or selling assets for the fund (unless these assets are shares of another fund). Where published, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) contains the current OCF. For a more detailed breakdown please visit columbiathreadneedle.com/fees.

^{***}Transaction costs have not been reduced by any amounts collected from dilution levies/adjustments.

¹The Ongoing Charges Figure is annualised based on the fees incurred during the accounting period or since commencement date.

Notes to the financial statements

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of investments, in compliance with FRS 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (SORP) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2024 and are described in those financial statements.

(b) Notes

In accordance with the guidelines of the SORP the fund has taken advantage of the facility not to provide further notes to the financial statements.

2 RECONCILIATION OF SHARES

	2024
Class 1 – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	193,397
Shares issued	399
Shares redeemed	(10,565)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	183,231
Class 2 – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	9,225,208
Shares issued	205,976
Shares redeemed	(2,439,469)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	6,991,715
Class X – Income shares	
Opening shares	3,000
Shares issued	-
Shares redeemed	-
Net conversions	
Closing shares	3,000
Class X – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	32,053,652
Shares issued	482,410
Shares redeemed	(4,256,488)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	28,279,574
Class Z – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	9,053,200
Shares issued	70,312
Shares redeemed	(1,199,451)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	7,924,061

3 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

The table below shows net redemptions between the period-ended 31 October 2024 and 4 December 2024 as a percentage of the closing NAV for share classes with significant movements. The net redemptions of shares were reviewed again on 10 December with no material movements noted since 04 December. This change is reflective of conditions that arose after the period-end and hence is considered a non-adjusting event.

Class Name	% Movement
Class 1 – Accumulation shares	(22.08)

Investment Report

Investment Objective and Policy
The Fund aims to provide income with the prospect of some capital growth over the long term. It looks to outperform the J.P. Morgan Government Bond Index – Emerging Markets (GBI-EM) Global Diversified over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of charges. The Fund is actively managed, and seeks to gain at least two-thirds of its investment

Ine runo is actively managed, and seeks to gain at least two-thirds of its investment exposure to emerging market local currencies and local currency denominated debt securities issued either by governments of Emerging Market countries, or companies which are domicidated or have significant business operations in such countries. The Fund considers Emerging Markets countries to mean those characterised as developing or emerging by the MSC Innegring Markets hade or those not listed in the OECD country list. The Fund may also gain exposure to non-emerging market currencies and debt securities, as well as emerging market debt denominated in non-local currencies, if considered amongraits to achieve its investment of hierarchy. appropriate to achieve its investment objectives.

appropriate to achieve its investment objectives.

The Fund may invest in government and corporate bonds of any credit quality (including those rated below investment grade, or unrated), as well as treasury bills, and securitised notes. The Fund may also obtain investment exposure indirectly using derivatives, including foreign exchange forward transactions and swaps (such as cross currency interest rate and credit default swaps). Derivatives may be used to allow the Fund to profit from the fall in the price of an asset (shorting), as well as extending market exposure beyond the value of its assets (leverage). In addition, derivatives may be used with the aim of reducing risk, or managing the Fund more efficiently.

The Fund may also invest in other securities, as well as collective investment schemes (including funds managed by Columbia Threadneedle companies), and hold money market instruments, deposits, cash and near cash.

The GBI-EM Global Diversified Index is regarded as an appropriate performance measure of local currency bonds issued by emerging market governments. It provides a suitable target benchmark against which Fund performance will be measured and evaluated over time.

Performance of Gross Accumulation Class 1 Shares*

Over the six months to 31 October 2024, the published share price of Class 1 - Accumulation shares in the CT Emerging Market Local Fund has risen from 148.91p to 148.98p. shares in the CT Emerging Market Local Fund has risen from 148,91p to 148,99p, for comparison, using noon prices, the performance of the Class 1 share class was +0.05% and 40.33% for the Class 2 share class compared to a return of +0.98% for the Momingstar Category Global Emerging Markets Bond – Local Currency Peer Group (on a bid to bid basis, with income reinvested for a UK basic rate taxpayer). For information purposes, using global close prices, the total return of the J.P. Morgan Government Bond Index-Emerging Markets (GBI-EM) Global Diversified Index was +1.78%.

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

Emerging-market (EM) local bonds delivered solid gains over the six-month review period,

thanks to the declines in global and EM yields. While changing expectations about the timing and magnitude of US interest-rate cuts this year caused sentiment towards local-currency EM bonds to vacillate, market-friendly election outcomes in India and South Africa were a tailwind. Investors were also encouraged by declining inflation readings, ongoing monetary easing in many emerging markets, and hopes of a 'soft landing' for the global economy. New economic stimulus packages in China provided additional support, as did the start of the monetary easing cycle in the US towards the end of the review period.

the start of the monetary easing cycle in the US towards the end of the review period. EM local-currency bonds weakened over the first two months of the review cycle, even as risk sentiment was supported by an announcement of new stimulus measures in China (in May), and the start of the much-anticipated monetary easing cycle in developed markets, with the European Cherntal Bank and the Bank of Canada both cutting interest rates in June. The asset class recovered in July as annual consumer price inflation in the US continued to degle lower, rising expectations for an imminent rate cut by the US Federal Reserve [Fed], which would allow EM central banks more room to either start or continue their easing cycles. This helped investors look past political turnoil in the US, escalating geophical tensions in the Middle East and the marked softening of developed-market economic data. The asset class posted further gains in August and September, overcoming global market volatility and a further deterioration in China's real estate sector. In early August, some surprisingly weak US manufacturing and jok data stoked fears of a recession in the world's largest economy. At the same time, a surge in the year – following a surprise suprisingly weak out initiational grain just use as state, leads of a releast of a releast of an initiation of the world's largest economy. At the same time, a surge in the yen - following a supprise rate hiske by the Bank of Japan – triggered a rapid unwinding of the yen 'carry trade' (borrowing yen at low interest rates to invest in assets in other currencies offering higher potential returns). However, risk appetite recovered quickly, as stronger US data and reassuring commentary from Fed policymakers led to renewed hopes of a soft landing. reassuring commentary from Hed policymakers led to renewed hopes of a soft landing. September brought the start of the Fels long-awaited first rate out of its earing cycle and a major stimulus package from Chinese authorities late in the month. The Fed reduced interest rates by a larger-than-anticipated 50 basis points (bps) in the first out of the easing cycle, and modestly lowered its inflation expectations for 2025, increasing market optimism for an additional 30 bps of cuts before the end of the year. Meanwhile, amid signs of ongoing weakness in both domestic and external demand, Chinese authorities and involving a stimulus package including monotary easiering reports unspront childrige and involving monitoring for the package including monotary easiering reports unspront childrige and limitative monitoring for the package including monotary easiering reports unspront childrige and limitative monitoring for the package including monotary easiering monotary easiering the second seco package including monetary easing, property support policies and liquidity provision for the stock market. This action was complemented in October by the People's Bank of China cutting key lending rates to new lows together with the announcement of further measures to aid the property sector, including a new programme to drive the urban village renovation. Nevertheless, the asset class retreated in October, as risk appetite faltered and the dollar rallied amid escalating geopolitical tensions and cautiousness ahead of the US presidential election.

In political news, South Africa's ruling African National Congress party lost its majority for the first time in the post-Apartheid era, as widely expected. In June, sentiment was supported by the confirmation of a new centrist coalition government, amid hopes that the country's reform agenda is set to continue under the leadership of re-elected President Cyril Ramaphosa. Meanwhile, in India, Prime Minister Narendra Modi's Bharatiya Janata

Party (BJP) unexpectedly failed to secure an outright majority. However, with the support of its partners, the BJP formed a coalition government under the National Democratic Alliance, which is expected to implement changes to the domestic political programme. Broadly speaking, most EM central banks continued to ease or hold monetary policy, with Brazil being the only notable exception as the central bank hiked interest rates by 25 bps to 10.75% at its September meeting. Mexico's policymakers defied market expectations, to 10.75% at its September meeting, Mexico's policymakers defled market expectations, cutting interest rates by 50 bps to 10.50% over the period under review, causing concerns about further currency depreciation and potentially rising inflation. In September, the South African Reserve Bank initiated an easing cycle, reducing its key interest rate by 25 bps to 8% as price pressurse cooled and inflation projections were lowered accordingly. The central bank of Turkey left its key interest rate unchanged at 50% for the seventh consecutive time in October, noting that rising underlying inflation could delay planned rate cut with a consecutive time in October, noting that rising underlying inflation could delay planned rate cut and 11 the activity during the period took place in the secondary market. We initiated an exposure to local-currency bonds of the Dominican Republic, purchasing notes maturing in 2033. We scaled up our exposure to sovereign bonds from Brazil, purchasing notes due in 2029. We also expanded our position in Turkey, adding shorter-dated notes to our existing holdings, and in Colombia.

On the sales side, we reduced duration in South African bonds prior to that country's

On the sales side, we reduced duration in South African bonds prior to that country's general election

general election.

The fortunes of EM local currency debt remain tied closely to the direction of US rates, the aggressiveness (or otherwise) of the Fed's easing cycle and the fate of the US dollar. Fundamentally, the outlook seems reasonably stable: growth forecasts, while generally lower than pre-Owid trends, are in line with rates observed in the past year or two, and inflation is in most economies back into 'normal ranges' thanks to timely monetary policy responses and helpful base effects. Credit quality is on an improving trend, as evidenced by the firmly positive ratio of upgrades to downgrades. And fiscal consolidation is underway in most places, albeit often at a moderate pace.

Reasonable performance may have proincified with an unturn in allocation flows into

Reasonable performance may have coincided with an upturn in allocation flows into the asset class around the start of the Fed's cutting cycle and renewed focus on still-attractive absolute yield levels. Early indications from flow data seem to support that view, and would be a welcome relief after two years of consistent outflows.

view, and would be a welcome relief after two years of consistent outflows. With most EM electoral events now behind us, markets will increasingly seek direction from the likely impact of the Chinese authorities' recent stimulus efforts and the potential for faster growth there to spill over to the rest of EMs. But perhaps more important will be the outcome of the US presidential election and its potential to influence the environment for the US dollar US Treasuries and global trade. Any further slowing in the pace of globalisation will likely present a challenge for longer-term EM growth rates and excess returns. While overall market direction remains difficult to call with confidence, we look for periods of volatility to bring relative valuation opportunities to the surface.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

To the decounting period 1 May 2021 to 01 october 2021		
	2024 £000	2023 £000
Income		
Net capital losses	(448)	(930)
Revenue	701	926
Expenses	(20)	(24)
Interest payable and similar charges	(21)	(21)
Net revenue before taxation	660	881
Taxation	(37)	(26)
Net revenue after taxation	623	855
Total return before distributions	175	(75)
Distributions	(634)	(868)
Change in net assets attributable to		
shareholders from investment activities	(459)	(943)

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2024

	2024 £000	April 2024 £000
Assets:		
Fixed assets:		
Investments	22,799	15,633
Current assets:		
Debtors	419	465
Cash and bank balances	592	685
Cash equivalents**	2,102	415
Total assets	25,912	17,198
Liabilities:		
Investment liabilities	(118)	(159)
Creditors:		
Bank overdrafts	(247)	(270)
Distribution payable	(53)	(67)
Other creditors	(12)	2
Total liabilities	(430)	(494)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	25,482	16,704

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024	2023
	£000	£000
Opening net assets attributable to shareholders	16,704	27,718
Amounts receivable on the issue of shares	9,242	703
Amounts payable on the cancellation of shares	(837)	(10,171)
	8,405	(9,468)
Dilution adjustment	16	22
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from		
investment activities (see statement of total return above)	(459)	(943)
Retained distribution on accumulation shares	816	567
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders	25,482	17,896

The comparatives used within the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders are for the corresponding period of the previous year. Therefore the opening net assets attributable to shareholders for the current year are at 30 April 2024 whilst the figure disclosed in the comparatives' closing net assets attributable to shareholders is at 31 October 2023.

*In pound Sterling and against UK peer group (See Performance summary on page 114).

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

Interest distribution in pence per share

Class 1 - Income shares

Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	1.9660	-	1.9660	2.1722
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	1.4860	0.4800	1.9660 1.9660	2.1722 2.1722
Class 1 – Gross accumulation s	hares			
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
		Equalisation _	Accumulated	Accumulated

^{**}The total value of investments in the portfolio statement includes the Cash Equivalents amount shown under current assets.

4.0179 **4.0179**

CT Emerging Market Local Fund

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

(continued)

Class 2 – Gross accumulation				
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	6.2732	-	6.2732	6.4301
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	1.3732	4.9000	6.2732 6.2732	6.4301 6.430 1
Class X – Gross income share	s		0.2702	0.100
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	2.3506	-	2.3506	2.5573
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	2.3506	=	2.3506 2.3506	2.5573 2.557 3
Class X – Gross accumulation	shares			
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	8.0996	=	8.0996	8.2518
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	1.8511	6.2485	8.0996 8.0996	8.2518 8.251 8
Class Z – Income shares				
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	1.8648	_	1.8648	2.0435
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.7266	1.1382	1.8648 1.8648	2.0435 2.043 5
Class Z – Gross accumulation	shares			
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/10/24	3.9241	_	3.9241	4.0179
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	3.3943	0.5298	3.9241 3.9241	4.0179 4.017 9
Group 2: charge purchased during a dis	tribution period		3.3241	4.017

Group 2: shares purchased during a distribution period.

Comparative Table Disclosure

	Class 1 – Income shares		Class 1 – Gross accumi		ulation shares	
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	57.30	61.33	59.35	148.09	148.05	135.40
Return before operating charges (p)	1.26	0.99	6.44	3.28	2.45	14.97
Operating charges (p)	(0.44)	(0.99)	(1.00)	(1.13)	(2.41)	(2.32)
Return after operating charges (p)*	0.82		5.44	2.15	0.04	12.65
Distributions (p)	(1.97)	(4.03)	(3.46)	(5.08)	(9.90)	(8.02)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)				5.08	9.90	8.02
Closing net asset value per share (p)	56.15	57.30	61.33	150.24	148.09	148.05
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	-	-	-	_	_	-
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	1.43	-	9.17	1.45	0.03	9.34
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	245	261	377	31	31	193
Closing number of shares	435,623	454,586	614,646	20,986	20,986	130,520
Operating charges (%)**	1.51 [†]	1.62	1.62	1.50 [†]	1.61	1.62
Direct transaction costs (%)***	-	_	_	_	_	_
Prices			20.40	454.00		450.05
Highest share price (p)	59.60	62.81	66.10	154.03	154.41	152.25
Lowest share price (p)	56.18	58.70	58.57	145.19	143.91	133.60
	Class 2 –	Gross accumulation	on shares	Class	X - Gross income	shares
	Class 2 — 31/10/2024	Gross accumulation 30/04/2024	on shares 30/04/2023	Class 31/10/2024	X – Gross income 30/04/2024	shares 30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share (p)						
•	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Opening net asset value per share (p)	31/10/2024 180.78	30/04/2024 179.35	30/04/2023 162.72	31/10/2024 67.42	30/04/2024 71.11	30/04/2023 67.83 7.39
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p)	31/10/2024 180.78 4.02	30/04/2024 179.35 2.98	30/04/2023 162.72 18.07	31/10/2024 67.42 1.48	30/04/2024 71.11 1.15	30/04/2023 67.83 7.39
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p)	31/10/2024 180.78 4.02 (0.77)	30/04/2024 179.35 2.98 (1.55)	30/04/2023 162.72 18.07 (1.44)	31/10/2024 67.42 1.48 (0.02)	71.11 1.15 (0.07)	30/04/2023 67.83 7.39 (0.06) 7.33
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)*	180.78 4.02 (0.77) 3.25	30/04/2024 179.35 2.98 (1.55) 1.43	162.72 18.07 (1.44) 16.63	31/10/2024 67.42 1.48 (0.02) 1.46	71.11 1.15 (0.07) 1.08	30/04/2023 67.83 7.39 (0.06) 7.33
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p)	180.78 4.02 (0.77) 3.25 (6.27)	30/04/2024 179.35 2.98 (1.55) 1.43 (12.17)	162.72 18.07 (1.44) 16.63 (9.80)	67.42 1.48 (0.02) 1.46 (2.35)	71.11 1.15 (0.07) 1.08 (4.77)	30/04/2023 67.83 7.39 (0.06) 7.33
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	180.78 4.02 (0.77) 3.25 (6.27) 6.27	179.35 2.98 (1.55) 1.43 (12.17) 12.17	162.72 18.07 (1.44) 16.63 (9.80) 9.80	67.42 1.48 (0.02) 1.46 (2.35)	71.11 1.15 (0.07) 1.08 (4.77)	67.83 7.39 (0.06) 7.33 (4.05)
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p)	31/10/2024 180.78 4.02 (0.77) 3.25 (6.27) 6.27 184.03	179.35 2.98 (1.55) 1.43 (12.17) 12.17	162.72 18.07 (1.44) 16.63 (9.80) 9.80	31/10/2024 67.42 1.48 (0.02) 1.46 (2.35) - 66.53	71.11 1.15 (0.07) 1.08 (4.77) - 67.42	67.83 7.39 (0.06) 7.33 (4.05)
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p)	31/10/2024 180.78 4.02 (0.77) 3.25 (6.27) 6.27 184.03	179.35 2.98 (1.55) 1.43 (12.17) 12.17	162.72 18.07 (1.44) 16.63 (9.80) 9.80	31/10/2024 67.42 1.48 (0.02) 1.46 (2.35) - 66.53	71.11 1.15 (0.07) 1.08 (4.77) - 67.42	67.83 7.39 (0.06) 7.33 (4.05)
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%)	31/10/2024 180.78 4.02 (0.77) 3.25 (6.27) 6.27 184.03	30/04/2024 179.35 2.98 (1.55) 1.43 (12.17) 12.17 180.78	162.72 18.07 (1.44) 16.63 (9.80) 9.80 179.35	31/10/2024 67.42 1.48 (0.02) 1.46 (2.35) - 66.53	71.11 1.15 (0.07) 1.08 (4.77) - 67.42	30/04/2023 67.83 7.39 (0.06) 7.33 (4.05) — 71.11
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information	31/10/2024 180.78 4.02 (0.77) 3.25 (6.27) 6.27 184.03	30/04/2024 179.35 2.98 (1.55) 1.43 (12.17) 12.17 180.78	162.72 18.07 (1.44) 16.63 (9.80) 9.80 179.35	31/10/2024 67.42 1.48 (0.02) 1.46 (2.35) - 66.53	71.11 1.15 (0.07) 1.08 (4.77) - 67.42	30/04/2023 67.83 7.39 (0.06) 7.33 (4.05) — 71.11
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000)	31/10/2024 180.78 4.02 (0.77) 3.25 (6.27) 6.27 184.03 - 1.80	30/04/2024 179.35 2.98 (1.55) 1.43 (12.17) 12.17 180.78	162.72 18.07 (1.44) 16.63 (9.80) 9.80 179.35	31/10/2024 67.42 1.48 (0.02) 1.46 (2.35) - 66.53 - 2.17	71.11 1.15 (0.07) 1.08 (4.77) - 67.42 - 1.52	30/04/2023 67.83 7.39 (0.06) 7.33 (4.05) — 71.11 —
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)**	31/10/2024 180.78 4.02 (0.77) 3.25 (6.27) 6.27 184.03 - 1.80 2,182	30/04/2024 179.35 2.98 (1.55) 1.43 (12.17) 12.17 180.78 - 0.80 1,191	30/04/2023 162.72 18.07 (1.44) 16.63 (9.80) 9.80 179.35 - 10.22	31/10/2024 67.42 1.48 (0.02) 1.46 (2.35) - 66.53 - 2.17	30/04/2024 71.11 1.15 (0.07) 1.08 (4.77) - 67.42 - 1.52	30/04/2023 67.83 7.39 (0.06) 7.33 (4.05) — 71.11 — 10.81
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)***	31/10/2024 180.78 4.02 (0.77) 3.25 (6.27) 6.27 184.03 - 1.80 2,182 1,185,495	30/04/2024 179.35 2.98 (1.55) 1.43 (12.17) 12.17 180.78 - 0.80 1,191 658,626	30/04/2023 162.72 18.07 (1.44) 16.63 (9.80) 9.80 179.35 - 10.22 1,195 666,017	31/10/2024 67.42 1.48 (0.02) 1.46 (2.35) - 66.53 - 2.17 28 42,604	30/04/2024 71.11 1.15 (0.07) 1.08 (4.77) - 67.42 - 1.52 514 762,562	30/04/2023 67.83 7.39 (0.06) 7.33 (4.05) — 71.11 — 10.81 1,384 1,946,525
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)*** Direct transaction costs (%)***	31/10/2024 180.78 4.02 (0.77) 3.25 (6.27) 6.27 184.03 - 1.80 2,182 1,185,495 0.84 [†]	30/04/2024 179.35 2.98 (1.55) 1.43 (12.17) 12.17 180.78 - 0.80 1,191 658,626	30/04/2023 162.72 18.07 (1.44) 16.63 (9.80) 9.80 179.35 - 10.22 1,195 666,017	31/10/2024 67.42 1.48 (0.02) 1.46 (2.35) - 66.53 - 2.17 28 42,604 0.05†	30/04/2024 71.11 1.15 (0.07) 1.08 (4.77) - 67.42 - 1.52 514 762,562	30/04/2023 67.83 7.39 (0.06) 7.33 (4.05) — 71.11 — 10.81 1,384 1,946,525
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance	31/10/2024 180.78 4.02 (0.77) 3.25 (6.27) 6.27 184.03 - 1.80 2,182 1,185,495 0.84 [†]	30/04/2024 179.35 2.98 (1.55) 1.43 (12.17) 12.17 180.78 - 0.80 1,191 658,626	30/04/2023 162.72 18.07 (1.44) 16.63 (9.80) 9.80 179.35 - 10.22 1,195 666,017	31/10/2024 67.42 1.48 (0.02) 1.46 (2.35) - 66.53 - 2.17 28 42,604 0.05†	30/04/2024 71.11 1.15 (0.07) 1.08 (4.77) - 67.42 - 1.52 514 762,562	30/04/2023 67.83 7.39 (0.06) 7.33 (4.05) — 71.11 — 10.81 1,384 1,946,525
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)** Direct transaction costs (%)*** Prices	180.78 4.02 (0.77) 3.25 (6.27) 6.27 184.03 - 1.80 2,182 1,185,495 0.84† -	30/04/2024 179.35 2.98 (1.55) 1.43 (12.17) 12.17 180.78 - 0.80 1,191 658,626 0.85 -	30/04/2023 162.72 18.07 (1.44) 16.63 (9.80) 9.80 179.35 - 10.22 1,195 666,017 0.84 -	31/10/2024 67.42 1.48 (0.02) 1.46 (2.35) - 66.53 - 2.17 28 42,604 0.05†	30/04/2024 71.11 1.15 (0.07) 1.08 (4.77) - 67.42 - 1.52 514 762,562 0.10 -	30/04/2023 67.83 7.39 (0.06) 7.33 (4.05) — 71.11 — 10.81 1,384 1,946,525 0.09

Comparative Table Disclosure

(continued)

	Class X – Gross accumulation shares		Class Z — Income shares		res	
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	232.78	229.21	206.48	54.24	57.55	55.23
Return before operating charges (p)	5.20	3.78	22.95	1.18	0.94	6.01
Operating charges (p)	(0.12)	(0.21)	(0.22)	(0.20)	(0.45)	(0.45)
Return after operating charges (p)*	5.08	3.57	22.73	0.98	0.49	5.56
Distributions (p)	(8.10)	(15.64)	(12.52)	(1.86)	(3.80)	(3.24)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	8.10	15.64	12.52			
Closing net asset value per share (p)	237.86	232.78	229.21	53.36	54.24	57.55
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	-	-	-	-	-	_
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	2.18	1.56	11.01	1.81	0.85	10.07
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	21,506	13,170	22,896	1,240	1,280	1,368
Closing number of shares	9,041,643	5,657,824	9,989,431	2,323,067	2,360,447	2,376,303
Operating charges (%)** Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.10 [†]	0.09	0.10	0.74 [†]	0.78	0.77
	_	_	_	_	_	_
Prices Highest share price (p)	243.67	241.52	234.86	56.62	59.06	61.72
Lowest share price (p)	228.64	224.27	204.39	53.24	55.33	54.60
, ,,,						
		Gross accumulati	on shares			
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023			
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	114.15	113.16	102.62			
Return before operating charges (p)	2.54	1.89	11.38			
Operating charges (p)	(0.43)	(0.90)	(0.84)			
Return after operating charges (p)*	2.11	0.99	10.54			
Distributions (p)	(3.92)	(7.60)	(6.11)			
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	3.92	7.60	6.11			
Closing net asset value per share (p)	116.26	114.15	113.16			
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	-	-	-			
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	1.85	0.87	10.27			
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	250	257	305			
Closing number of shares	214,782	224,918	269,334			
Operating charges (%)**	0.74 [†]	0.78	0.77			
Direct transaction costs (%)***	-	-	-			
Prices	440.40	110.70	440.44			
Highest share price (p)	119.16	118.70	116.14			
Lowest share price (p)	112.04	110.40	101.45			

^{**}The Operating charges are represented by the Ongoing Charges Figure (OCF) which is the European standard method of disclosing the charges of a share class of a fund based on the financial year's expenses and may vary from year to year. It includes charges such as the fund's annual management charge, registration fee, custody fees and distribution cost but ordinarily excludes the costs of buying or selling assets for the fund (unless these assets are shares of another fund). Where published, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) contains the current OCF. For a more detailed breakdown please visit columbiathreadneedle.com/fees.

^{***}Transaction costs have not been reduced by any amounts collected from dilution levies/adjustments.

¹The Ongoing Charges Figure is annualised based on the fees incurred during the accounting period or since commencement date.

Highest and Lowest share prices are based on official published daily NAVs priced at 12 noon on the last business day of the period on a mid basis. The closing net asset value per share is at close of business on a bid basis.

Notes to the financial statements

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of investments, in compliance with FRS 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (SORP) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2024 and are described in those financial statements.

(b) Notes

In accordance with the guidelines of the SORP the fund has taken advantage of the facility not to provide further notes to the financial statements.

2 RECONCILIATION OF SHARES

	2024
Class 1 – Income shares	
Opening shares	454,586
Shares issued	819
Shares redeemed	(19,782)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	435,623
Class 1 – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	20,986
Shares issued	-
Shares redeemed Net conversions	-
Closing shares	20,986
Class 2 – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	658,626
Shares issued	529,238
Shares redeemed Net conversions	(2.200)
	(2,369)
Closing shares	1,185,495
Class X – Gross income shares	700 700
Opening shares	762,562
Shares issued Shares redeemed	(719,958)
Net conversions	(713,330)
Closing shares	42,604
•	
Class X – Gross accumulation shares Opening shares	5,657,824
Shares issued	3,451,027
Shares redeemed	(67,208)
Net conversions	(0.7200)
Closing shares	9,041,643
Class Z – Income shares	
Opening shares	2,360,447
Shares issued	265,229
Shares redeemed	(302,609)
Net conversions	(00=/000/
Closing shares	2,323,067
Class Z – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	224,918
Shares issued	9,979
Shares redeemed	(23,866)
Net conversions	3,751
Closing shares	214,782

3 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

During the period from the balance sheet date to 4 December 2024, the net asset value of the Fund decreased by 36.81%. This decrease is primarily driven by overall levels of net redemptions within the Fund. This decrease is primarily driven by market movements. The net asset value was reviewed again on 10 December with no material movements noted since 04 December.

The table below shows net redemptions between the period-ended 31 October 2024 and 4 December 2024 as a percentage of the closing NAV for share classes with significant movements. The net redemptions of shares were reviewed again on 10 December with no material movements noted since 04 December. This change is reflective of conditions that arose after the period-end and hence is considered a non-adjusting event.

Class Name	% Movement
Class 2 – Gross accumulation shares	(28.53)
Class X – Gross accumulation shares	(41.87)

Investment Report

Investment Objective and Policy

The Fund aims to achieve above average capital growth over the long term. It looks to outperform the MSCI ACWI Index over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of charges

The Fund is actively managed, and seeks to gain at least 75% of its investment exposure to shares of companies worldwide.

This exposure to company shares is achieved by taking both long and short equity.

positions. Long positions are taken by investing in company shares directly, as wel as indirectly using derivatives, and collective investment schemes (including funds

as indirectly using derivatives, and collective investment screening including runds managed by Columbia Threadneedle companies) when considered appropriate. Short positions are taken using derivatives only. Typically, the combination of these positions provides exposure to fewer than 140 companies. The Fund follows an "equity extension strategy", which allows proceeds from short positions to be used to extend long positions within the portfolio, to include more of the fund manager's strongest investment ideas. However, the Fund does not usually short more than 30% of its value, and long positions don't normally exceed 130% of the value of the Fund. 130% of the value of the Fund.

13U% of the value of the rund.

The Fund's extended long and short positions are usually, at least in part, obtained by investing in a single total return swap, with a counterparty. This swap, which is a type of derivative instrument, provides a return linked to the performance of a basket of mainly equity-related securities, exchange traded funds and equity index positions, selected by the fund manager.

The Fund may also hold other securities (including fixed interest securities), money modes instrument, denotice selected.

ine rund may also not o omer securities, lincluding time the market instruments, deposits, cashs and near cash.

These holdings may be substantial where necessary to provide cover for the exposure created using derivatives, or when considered appropriate towards achieving the fund's investment objective. In addition to using derivatives for investment purposes, derivatives may be used with the aim of reducing risk or managing the Fund more efficiently.

The MSCI ACWI Index is regarded as providing an appropriate representation of the share performance of large and medium-sized companies worldwide, currently with more than 2,700 companies included. It is representative of the type of company in which the Fund invests and provides a suitable target benchmark against which Fund performance will be measured and evaluated over time.

Performance of Net Accumulation Class 1 Shares*

Over the six months to 31 October 2024, the published share price of Class 1 -Accumulation shares in the CT Global Extended Alpha Fund has risen from 515.12p to 558.65p.

For comparison, using noon prices, the performance of the Class 1 share class was +8.45% and +8.90% for the Class 2 share class compared to a return of +5.05% for the Morningstar UK Unit Trusts/OEICS — IA Global Peer Group (on a bid to bid basis, with income reinvested for a UK basic rate taxpayer). For information purposes, using global close prices, the total return of the MSCI AC World Index was +8.23%.

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

The MSCI AII-Country World index rose by 10.5% in local currencies in the sixmonth period ending 31 October. Positive drivers included generally encouraging
corporate earnings, declining inflation and the resulting expectations that key
central banks would start to reduce interest rates, which indeed transpired.
This helped risk assets overcome periods of volatility stemming from economic
concerns and political uncertainty in some regions.

In the US, stocks performed well for much of the period, as markets remained confident In the US, stocks performed well for much of the period, as markets remained confident the Federal Reserve (FedI was on Track to cut rates following encouraging declines in inflation. Volatility increased in July following lacklustre second-quarter (Q2) earnings reports from some of the "Magnificent?" companies, prompting investors to focus on segments of the market that had previously underperformed. Weaker-than-expected labour-market data then triggered self-offs in early August and September. However, increasingly dowlsh signals from Fed policymakers caused Treasury yields to fall and restored risk appetite. The Fed subsequently satisfied investors' hopes of a larger 50-basis-point (bp) cut — as opposed to a 25-by move — at its September meeting. However, equities ended the period on the backfoot after more positive jobs data dashed hopes of another 50-br rate cut expraisin Greautry electric products. dashed hopes of another 50-bp rate cut, causing Treasury yields to rise.

ussieu nopes or alonium o-up rate out, causing ineasury yellects or itse. Expectations that the European Central Bank (ECB) would start easing policy earlier than the Fed boosted European equities early in the period. The ECB followed through with a 25-bp rate cut in June, but risk appetite soon sourced due to political uncertainty following the EU election results, which saw populist far-right parties make strong gains. Some stability returned in July after a far-right victory was avoided in France's snap parliamentary elections. However, the eurozone economy looked increasingly fragle, adding a headwind for regional equities despite the FCB slashino rates again in Sentember and Octobar. ECB slashing rates again in September and October.

ECB slashing rates again in September and October. In the UK, equites were supported by easing inflation. The headline figure reached the Bank of England's 2% target in May, according to the Office for National Statistics, before falling to its lowest level in three years by the end of the period. Expectations of rate cuts and the resulting weaker pound boosted the many overseas earners in the UK equity market. The prospect of an era of political stability following the Labour Party's victory at the general election also lifted sentiment. The Bank of England (BoE) cut interest rates by Z5 bps on the first day of August, as expected. However, markets increasingly took the view that the BoE may ease policy more slowly than the Fed due to relative unpheat exponency data and uncertainty surrounding the new Jahour. due to relatively upbeat economic data and uncertainty surrounding the new Labour government's autumn Budget, which was announced at the end of the period

governments autumn buoget, winch was announced at the end of the period. Tuming to Japan, after raising rates for the first time in 17 years in March, the Bank of Japan (BoJ) continued to unwind its ultra-loose monetary policy during the period. The BoJ's unexpected rate hike in late July triggered the sudden unwinding of carry-trade positions (where investors had borrowed yen at low interest rates to invest in assets in other currencies offering higher potential returns). This contributed to a bout following the properties of the propertie of global volatility, but Japanese stocks rebounded quickly. Dovish signals from new

Prime Minister Shigeru Ishiba raised hopes that the BoJ may proceed more slowly rrime vinitiset onligie us sinual raised in pieze triat ure dout may proceed more slowly with interest-rate hikes going forward. Emerging-market (EM) stocks beneftled from a weaker US dollar and falling Treasury yields over the summer months. However, sentiment was impacted by ongoing concerns about China's economic growth. A raft of measures from Chinese authorities in September provided a temporary boost as they signalled that Beijing was committed to achieving China's annual growth target. In the long book, new positions included ET, Broadcom and Mitsubishi UFJ.

Till the largest provider of Kinaduled BT, Broadcom and Mitsubishi UFJ.

BT is the largest provider of fixed-line, broadband and mobile services in the UK. BT is the largest provider of fixed-line, broadband and mobile services in the UK. We are encouraged by the company's plans to combine its Global and Enterprise segments, which should simplify BTs corporate structure and lead to cost savings. The company has a high-quality business that benefits from a powerful network effect. The firm also boasts a dominant market position in an industry with high barriers to entry, there is no industry peer that can compete with the scale of BTs infrastructure. In addition, the company has the best mobile network in the UK. Broadcom is a leading semiconductor manufacturer that helps to design custom Al chips for large companies such as Alphabet. The firm boasts a strong market mostling natiquality in data centres networking and recurring software. We see

position, particularly in data centres, networking and recurring software. We see it as a highly profitable company, operating in sectors that benefit from powerful long-term secular tailwinds. Therefore, we believe that Broadcom is well placed long-term secular tailwinds. Iherefore, we believe that Broadcom is well placed to benefit from growing demand related to generative AI, and its chip business is increasingly driven by investments in accelerators and network connectivity for AI. Mitsubishi UFJ is the largest bank in Japan. The company provides a diverse range of financial services to consumers and should be a beneficiary of the Bank of Japan unwinding its ultra-loose policy. In addition, Mitsubishi has a robust capital position and a track record of allocating capital in the best interests of shareholders.

Exited positions included Qualcomm, Adidas and Nestlé.

In the short book, we opened positions in an athletic clothing company and a dental equipment manufacturer. We closed positions in a global investment firm, a homebuilder and a power management company.

Markets have been narrowly led over the last 18 months as investor sentiment has been dominated by optimism around Al and, especially, the so-called Magnificent 7. Looking ahead, we believe the market rally will broaden, as evidence of inflation coming under control and falling interest rates should see investors refocus on fundamentals

toward and raining interest rates showed so invested returns on the interest from the state of the full state of the outcome of the US elections and the resulting implications for policy. This has the potential to unsettle markets, with each outcome percived to have its own respective winners and losers. We anticipate this to be relatively short-lived, while any volatility may also create opportunities. In this environment, we believe that diversification will remain important, particularly as investment to tackle issues such as decarbonisation, deglobalisation particularly as investment to tackle issues such as decarbonisation, deglobalisation and energy efficiency creates a broader opportunity for earnings growth. Our focus continues to be on building a diversified portfolio of quality businesses that are multi-year compounders, with pricing power and less gearing to the broader economy. We believe that our bottom-up approach will allow us to find such quality growth companies across a range of sectors and geographies.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

£000	£000
11,059	7,170
1,236	1,407
(337)	(486)
(750)	(688)
149	233
(104)	(31)
45	202
11,104	7,372
(9)	(11)
11,095	7,361
	1,236 (337) (750) 149 (104) 45 11,104 (9)

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2024

	2024	Aprii 2024
	£000	£000
Assets:		
Fixed assets:		
Investments	107,455	115,396
Current assets:		
Debtors	107	455
Cash and bank balances	6,414	13,536
Cash equivalents**	4,784	5,156
Total assets	118,760	134,543
Liabilities:		
Investment liabilities	(3)	(31)
Creditors:		
Other creditors	(833)	(1,535)
Total liabilities	(836)	(1,566)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	117,924	132,977

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

		LULU
	£000	£000
Opening net assets attributable to shareholders	132,977	149,029
Amounts receivable on the issue of shares	1,562	19,155
Amounts payable on the cancellation of shares	(27,710)	(39,073)
	(26,148)	(19,918)
Dilution adjustment	_	13
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from		
investment activities (see statement of total return above)	11,095	7,361
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders	117,924	136,485

The comparatives used within the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders are for the corresponding period of the previous year. Therefore the opening net assets attributable to shareholders for the current year are at 30 April 2024 whilst the figure disclosed in the comparatives' closing net assets attributable to shareholders is at 31 October 2023.

*In pound Sterling and against UK peer group (See Performance summary on page 114).

^{**}The total value of investments in the portfolio statement includes the Cash Equivalents amount shown under current assets.

Comparative Table Disclosure

	Cla	ss 1 – Income sha	res	Class 1	– Accumulation	shares
			30/04/2023 ¹	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)			194.69	510.61	417.30	415.66
Return before operating charges (p)			22.59	46.41	100.60	8.39
Operating charges (p)			(3.45)	(4.49)	(7.29)	(6.75)
Return after operating charges (p)*			19.14	41.92	93.31	1.64
Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)			- -		- -	_
Closing net asset value per share (p)			213.83	552.53	510.61	417.30
*after direct transaction costs of (p)			0.21	0.28	0.43	0.41
Performance						
Return after charges (%)			9.83	8.21	22.36	0.39
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)			_	292	267	6,120
Closing number of shares			-	52,895	52,372	1,466,615
Operating charges (%)**			_	1.65 [†]	1.67	1.64
Direct transaction costs (%)***			_	0.10	0.10	0.10
Prices			202 52			
Highest share price (p)			230.50	568.04	524.84	450.53
Lowest share price (p)			193.47	504.71	414.25	378.11
	Class /	A – Accumulation	shares	Class A SGD I	Hedged – Accumi	ılation shares
	Class / 31/10/2024	A – Accumulation 30/04/2024	shares 30/04/2023	Class A SGD I 31/10/2024	Hedged – Accumi 30/04/2024	
Change in net assets per share					-	
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share (p)					-	30/04/2023
•	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023 130.08
Opening net asset value per share (p)	31/10/2024 171.04	30/04/2024 139.80	30/04/2023 139.37	31/10/2024 156.81	30/04/2024 132.69	30/04/2023 130.08 4.74
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p)	31/10/2024 171.04 15.54	30/04/2024 139.80 33.76	30/04/2023 139.37 2.72	31/10/2024 156.81 17.45	30/04/2024 132.69 26.47	30/04/2023 130.08 4.74 (2.13
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p)	31/10/2024 171.04 15.54 (1.50)	30/04/2024 139.80 33.76 (2.52)	30/04/2023 139.37 2.72 (2.29)	156.81 17.45 (1.40)	30/04/2024 132.69 26.47 (2.35)	30/04/2023 130.08 4.74 (2.13
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)*	171.04 15.54 (1.50) 14.04	30/04/2024 139.80 33.76 (2.52) 31.24	139.37 2.72 (2.29) 0.43	156.81 17.45 (1.40) 16.05	132.69 26.47 (2.35) 24.12	30/04/2023 130.08 4.74 (2.13
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p)	171.04 15.54 (1.50) 14.04	30/04/2024 139.80 33.76 (2.52) 31.24	139.37 2.72 (2.29) 0.43	156.81 17.45 (1.40) 16.05	132.69 26.47 (2.35) 24.12	130.08 4.74 (2.13 2.61
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	171.04 15.54 (1.50) 14.04	33/04/2024 139.80 33.76 (2.52) 31.24	30/04/2023 139.37 2.72 (2.29) 0.43	156.81 17.45 (1.40) 16.05	132.69 26.47 (2.35) 24.12	30/04/2023 130.08 4.74 (2.13 2.61 ————————————————————————————————————
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p)	171.04 15.54 (1.50) 14.04 — — 185.08	33.76 (2.52) 31.24 — — — — —	30/04/2023 139.37 2.72 (2.29) 0.43 - 139.80	156.81 17.45 (1.40) 16.05 — — 172.86	132.69 26.47 (2.35) 24.12 — — — —	30/04/2023 130.08 4.74 (2.13 2.61 ————————————————————————————————————
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p)	171.04 15.54 (1.50) 14.04 — — 185.08	33.76 (2.52) 31.24 — — — — —	30/04/2023 139.37 2.72 (2.29) 0.43 - 139.80	156.81 17.45 (1.40) 16.05 — — 172.86	132.69 26.47 (2.35) 24.12 — — — —	30/04/2023 130.08 4.74 (2.13 2.61 ————————————————————————————————————
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance	171.04 15.54 (1.50) 14.04 — — 185.08 0.09	30/04/2024 139.80 33.76 (2.52) 31.24 - - 171.04 0.15	30/04/2023 139.37 2.72 (2.29) 0.43 - 139.80 0.14	156.81 17.45 (1.40) 16.05 — — 172.86 0.09	132.69 26.47 (2.35) 24.12 - - 156.81 0.14	30/04/2023 130.08 4.74 (2.13 2.61 ————————————————————————————————————
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%)	171.04 15.54 (1.50) 14.04 — — 185.08 0.09	30/04/2024 139.80 33.76 (2.52) 31.24 - - 171.04 0.15	30/04/2023 139.37 2.72 (2.29) 0.43 - 139.80 0.14	156.81 17.45 (1.40) 16.05 — — 172.86 0.09	132.69 26.47 (2.35) 24.12 - - 156.81 0.14	30/04/2023 130.08 4.74 (2.13 2.61 - - 132.69 0.13
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares	31/10/2024 171.04 15.54 (1.50) 14.04 185.08 0.09	30/04/2024 139.80 33.76 (2.52) 31.24 - 171.04 0.15 22.35	30/04/2023 139.37 2.72 (2.29) 0.43 - 139.80 0.14	31/10/2024 156.81 17.45 (1.40) 16.05 172.86 0.09 10.24 1,257 727,361	132.69 26.47 (2.35) 24.12 - 156.81 0.14 18.18 1,297 827,381	30/04/2023 130.08 4.74 (2.13 2.61 - - 132.69 0.13 2.01
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)***	31/10/2024 171.04 15.54 (1.50) 14.04 185.08 0.09 8.21 2,466 1,332,427 1.65 [†]	30/04/2024 139.80 33.76 (2.52) 31.24 171.04 0.15 22.35 2,614 1,528,351 1.65	30/04/2023 139.37 2.72 (2.29) 0.43 - 139.80 0.14 0.31 3,696 2,644,026 1.66	31/10/2024 156.81 17.45 (1.40) 16.05 172.86 0.09 10.24 1,257 727,361 1.65	132.69 26.47 (2.35) 24.12 - 156.81 0.14 18.18 1,297 827,381 1.65	30/04/2023 130.08 4.74 (2.13 2.61
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)*** Direct transaction costs (%)***	31/10/2024 171.04 15.54 (1.50) 14.04 185.08 0.09 8.21 2,466 1,332,427	30/04/2024 139.80 33.76 (2.52) 31.24 171.04 0.15 22.35 2,614 1,528,351	30/04/2023 139.37 2.72 (2.29) 0.43 - 139.80 0.14 0.31 3,696 2,644,026	31/10/2024 156.81 17.45 (1.40) 16.05 172.86 0.09 10.24 1,257 727,361	132.69 26.47 (2.35) 24.12 - 156.81 0.14 18.18 1,297 827,381	30/04/2023 130.08 4.74 (2.13 2.61 ————————————————————————————————————
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)*** Direct transaction costs (%)*** Prices	31/10/2024 171.04 15.54 (1.50) 14.04 185.08 0.09 8.21 2,466 1,332,427 1.65 [†] 0.10	30/04/2024 139.80 33.76 (2.52) 31.24 171.04 0.15 22.35 2,614 1,528,351 1.65 0.10	30/04/2023 139.37 2.72 (2.29) 0.43 - 139.80 0.14 0.31 3,696 2,644,026 1.66 0.10	156.81 17.45 (1.40) 16.05 - 172.86 0.09 10.24 1,257 727,361 1.65† 0.10	132.69 26.47 (2.35) 24.12 - 156.81 0.14 18.18 1,297 827,381 1.65 0.10	130.08 4.74 (2.13 2.61 132.69 0.13 2.01 2,223 1,675,584 1.66 0.10
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)*** Direct transaction costs (%)***	31/10/2024 171.04 15.54 (1.50) 14.04 185.08 0.09 8.21 2,466 1,332,427 1.65 [†]	30/04/2024 139.80 33.76 (2.52) 31.24 171.04 0.15 22.35 2,614 1,528,351 1.65	30/04/2023 139.37 2.72 (2.29) 0.43 - 139.80 0.14 0.31 3,696 2,644,026 1.66	31/10/2024 156.81 17.45 (1.40) 16.05 172.86 0.09 10.24 1,257 727,361 1.65	132.69 26.47 (2.35) 24.12 - 156.81 0.14 18.18 1,297 827,381 1.65	130.08 4.74 (2.13) 2.61 ————————————————————————————————————

Comparative Table Disclosure *(continued)*

	Class 2 – Accumulation shares			Class P – Accumulation shares		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share			<u> </u>			
Opening net asset value per share (p)	575.10	466.20	460.99	202.75	164.36	162.52
Return before operating charges (p)	52.34	113.15	9.01	18.46	39.89	3.18
Operating charges (p)	(2.55)	(4.25)	(3.80)	(0.90)	(1.50)	(1.34)
Return after operating charges (p)*	49.79	108.90	5.21	17.56	38.39	1.84
Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	-	-	(0.81) 0.81	-	-	(0.24) 0.24
**						
Closing net asset value per share (p)	624.89	575.10	466.20	220.31	202.75	164.36
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.31	0.51	0.46	0.11	0.18	0.16
Performance	8.66	23.36	1.13	8.66	23.36	1.13
Return after charges (%)	0.00	23.30	1.13	0.00	23.30	1.13
Other information Closing net asset value (£000)	33,942	48,129	64,023	10,909	10,743	12,578
Closing number of shares	5,431,636	8,368,781	13,732,822	4,951,814	5,298,650	7,652,559
Operating charges (%)**	0.83 [†]	0.83	0.83	0.83 [†]	0.83	0.83
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.10	0.10	0.10	0.10	0.10	0.10
Prices						
Highest share price (p)	642.22	590.89	500.44	226.41	208.32	176.43
Lowest share price (p)	569.70	462.85	419.48	200.85	163.18	147.89
	Class	X – Accumulation	shares	Class	Z – Accumulation	shares
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	286.31	230.36	226.09	264.17	214.31	212.08
Return before operating charges (p)	26.09	56.15	4.45	24.03	51.99	4.13
Operating charges (p)	(0.12)	(0.20)	(0.18)	(1.27)	(2.13)	(1.90)
Return after operating charges (p)*	25.97	55.95	4.27	22.76	49.86	2.23
Distributions (p)	_	(1.87)	(2.10)	_	_	(0.19)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		1.87	2.10			0.19
Closing net asset value per share (p)	312.28	286.31	230.36	286.93	264.17	214.31
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.16	0.25	0.23	0.14	0.24	0.21
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	9.07	24.29	1.89	8.62	23.27	1.05
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	56,909	52,342	42,342	12,047	17,491	17,954
Closing number of shares	18,223,703	18,281,856	18,380,402	4,198,624	6,621,103	8,377,513
Operating charges (%)**	0.08 [†]	0.08	0.08	0.90 [†]	0.90	0.90
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.10	0.10	0.10	0.10	0.10	0.10
Prices						
Highest share price (p)	320.83	294.06	245.98	294.90	271.43	230.17
Lowest share price (p)	284.19	228.73	205.93	261.64	212.76	192.96

Comparative Table Disclosure

(continued)

Class Z – Gross income shares

	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share			
Opening net asset value per share (p)	139.65	113.29	112.26
Return before operating charges (p)	12.71	27.49	2.18
Operating charges (p)	(0.67)	(1.13)	(1.00)
Return after operating charges (p)*	12.04	26.36	1.18
Distributions (p)	_	_	(0.15)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)			
Closing net asset value per share (p)	151.69	139.65	113.29
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.08	0.12	0.11
Performance			
Return after charges (%)	8.62	23.27	1.05
Other information			
Closing net asset value (£000)	102	94	93
Closing number of shares	66,804	67,345	82,533
Operating charges (%)**	0.90^{\dagger}	0.90	0.90
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.10	0.10	0.10
Prices			
Highest share price (p)	155.90	143.49	121.84
Lowest share price (p)	138.32	112.48	102.14

^{**}The Operating charges are represented by the Ongoing Charges Figure (OCF) which is the European standard method of disclosing the charges of a share class of a fund based on the financial year's expenses and may vary from year to year. It includes charges such as the fund's annual management charge, registration fee, custody fees and distribution cost but ordinarily excludes the costs of buying or selling assets for the fund (unless these assets are shares of another fund). Where published, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) contains the current OCF. For a more detailed breakdown please visit columbiathreadneedle.com/fees.

Highest and Lowest share prices are based on official published daily NAVs priced at 12 noon on the last business day of the period on a mid basis. The closing net asset value per share is at close of business on a bid basis.

^{***}Transaction costs have not been reduced by any amounts collected from dilution levies/adjustments.

¹Closed 19 April 2023

¹The Ongoing Charges Figure is annualised based on the fees incurred during the accounting period or since commencement date.

Notes to the financial statements

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of investments, in compliance with FRS 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (SORP) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2024 and are described in those financial statements.

(b) Notes

In accordance with the guidelines of the SORP the fund has taken advantage of the facility not to provide further notes to the financial statements.

2 RECONCILIATION OF SHARES

NECONCILIATION OF STIANES	
	2024
Class 1 – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	52,372
Shares issued	3,014
Shares redeemed	(2,491)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	52,895
Class A – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	1,528,351
Shares issued	554
Shares redeemed	(196,478)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	1,332,427
Class A SGD Hedged – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	827,381
Shares issued	28,003
Shares redeemed	(128,023)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	727,361
Class 2 – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	8,368,781
Shares issued	15,805
Shares redeemed	(2,958,362)
Net conversions	5,412
Closing shares	5,431,636
Class P – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	5,298,650
Shares issued	435,164
Shares redeemed Net conversions	(782,000)
Closing shares	4,951,814
Class X – Accumulation shares	40.004.050
Opening shares	18,281,856
Shares issued Shares redeemed	/E0 1E2\
Net conversions	(58,153)
Closing shares	18,223,703
-	10,223,703
Class Z – Accumulation shares	C CO1 100
Opening shares Shares issued	6,621,103 154,381
Shares redeemed	(2,565,075)
Net conversions	(11,785)
Closing shares	4,198,624
•	1,100,021
Class Z – Gross income shares	67 245
Opening shares Shares issued	67,345 680
Shares redeemed	(1,221)
Net conversions	- (.,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
Closing shares	66,804
•	

Investment Report

Investment Objective and Policy

The Fund aims to provide income combined with prospects for capital growth over the long term (5 years, or more). It looks to provide an income yield higher than the MSCI ACWI Index ("the Index") over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of charges.

The Fund is actively managed, and invests at least 75% of its assets in shares of companies worldwide. There is no restriction on size, but investment tends to focus on larger companies, such as those included in the Index

such as mose included in the index.

The Index is regarded as an appropriate representation of the share performance of large and medium-sized companies worldwide. It is broadly representative of the companies in which the Fund invests, and the income yield of the Index provides a suitable target benchmark against which the level of income generated by the Fund will be measured and evaluated over time.

which the level of income generated by the Fund will be measured and evaluated over time. The Investment Manager selects companies that exhibit above average income generation potential, as well as those considered to offer opportunities more by way of share price or dividend growth. The Investment Manager hyically invests in fewer than 90 companies, chosen from across different industry and economic sectors, which may include shares of some companies not within the lender. The Investment Manager also seeks to create a portfolio that compares favourably against the Index over rolling 12-month periods, when assessed using the Columbia Threadneedle ESG Materiality Rating model.

This model (developed and owned by Columbia Threadneedle Investments) analyses company data to assess how effectively material environmental, social and governance (ESG) risks and opportunities are being managed. Provided sufficient data is available, the results are combined and expressed as numerical ESG Materiality rating to indicate how much exposure a company has to material ESG risks and opportunities in a particular industry.

Whilst the Fund may still invest in companies with strong ratings, which is also expected to lead to a better weighted average ESG Materiality rating for the Fund than the Index.

In line with its engagement policy, the Investment Manager engages with companies with a

To a better verigited average ESO Materiality rating for the Fund than the Index.

In line with its engagement policy, the Investment Manager engages with companies with a very to influencing management teams to address material ESO risks and improve their ESO practices ranging from climate change to board independence and diversity.

Columbia Threadenced Investments is a signatory to the Net Zero Asset Managers Initiative (NZAMI) and has committed to an ambition to reach net zero emissions by 2050 or sooner for a range of assets, including the Fund Accordingly, the threatsment Manager will engage on a proactive basis with companies a sassist with progressing this ambition. If, after an appropriate period of engagement, a high entiting company does not show progress in meeting the minimum standards considered necessary for continued investment then the Fund will disinvest from the company. The Fund only invests in companies that follow good governance practices. The Fund does not invest in companies which derive revenue from industries or activities above the thresholds shown trobacco production (5%), nuclear weapons – indirect involvement (5%), conventional weapons — military, or volvalin friesams (10%), and thermal coal—evataction or power generation (30%), providing a company is not engaged in new coal projects. These exclusion riteria may be extended or revised from time to time. Fund also excludes companies that have any direct involvement in nuclear weapons. The Fund also excludes companies that have any direct involvement in nuclear weapons, controversial weapons, and companies that the Investment Manager determines to have treached international standards and principles such as the standard standard and principles when the standard international tandards and principles when the standards and International Labour Organisation Labour Standards; and Indied Nations Guidning Principles on Business and Human Rights.

The Fund may invest in other securities (including fixed income securities) and collective investment schemes (including funds managed by Columbia Threadneedle companies), when deemed appropriate. The Fund may also hold money market instruments, deposits, cash and near cash. The Fund may use derivatives with the aim of reducing risk or managing the Fund more efficiently. In addition, the Fund may commence using derivatives with the aim of achieving an investment gain, providing 80 days notice is given to shareholders.

Performance of Net Income Class 1 Shares*

returnmente on Net Income Class 1 Shares*

Over the six months to 31 October 2024, the published share price of Class 1 - Income shares in the CT Global Equity Income Fund has risen from 188.32p to 170.78p.

For comparison, using noon prices, the performance of the Class 1 share class was +3.06% and +3.95% for the Class 2 share class compared to a return of +5.45% for the Montingstar UK Ukil Trusts/DCISC – IA Global Equity Income Peer Group (on a bid to bid basis, with income reinvested for a UK basis; rate taxonwr)

For information purposes, using global close prices, the total return of the MSCI AC World Index

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

The MSCI All-Country World index rose by 10.5% in local currencies in the six-month period ending 31 October. Positive drivers included generally encouraging corporate earnings, declining inflation and the resulting expectations that key central banks would start to reduce interest rates, which indeed transpired. This helped risk assets overcome periods of volatility stemming from economic concerns and political uncertainty in some regions.

from economic concerns and political uncertainty in some regions.

In the U.S, stocks performed well for much of the period, as markets remained confident the Federal Reserve (Fed) was on track to cut rates following encouraging declines in inflation. Volatility increased in July following placulature second-quarter (I/2) engine profession some of the "Magnificent 7" companies, prompting investors to focus on segments of the market that had previously underperformed. Welser-bran-expected labour-market data then triggered sell-offs in early August and September. However, increasingly dovish signals from Fed poliprivaders caused Treasury yields to fall and restored risk appetite. The Fed subsequently satisfied investors' hopes of a larger 50-basis-joint (Rp) cut – as opposed to a 25-bp move – at its September meeting. However, equities ended the period on the backford rafer more positive jobs data dashed hopes of another 50-bp rate out, causing Treasury yields to rise.

Expectations that the European Central Bank (ECB) would start easing policy earlier than the Fed Expectations that the trulpear lectinal anisk (Lot) would said reasing jointy earlier laint into boosted European equities early in the period. The ECB followed through with a 25-bp rate cut in June, but risk appetite soon soured due to political uncertainty following the EU election results, which saw populist far-right parties make strong gains. Some stability returned in July after a

which saw populist far-right parties make strong gains. Some stability returned in July after a far-right victory was avoided in France's snap parliementary elections. However, the eurozone economy looked increasingly fragile, adding a headwind for regional equities despite the ECB stashing rates again in September and October. In the UK, equites were supported by easing inflation. The headline figure reached the Bank of England's 2% target in May, according to the Office for National Statistics, before falling to its lowest level in three years by the end of the period. Expectations of rate outs and the resulting weaker pound boosted the many overseas earners in the UK equity market. The prospect of an ear of political stability following the Labour Party's victory at the general election also lifted sentiment. The Bank of England (BoE) cut interest rates by 25 bps on the first day of August, as expected. However, markets increasingly took the view that the BoE may ease policy more slowly than the Fed due to relatively upbeat economic data and uncertainty surrounding the new Labour governments auturns Buddect, which was announced at the end of the period. Labour government's autumn Budget, which was announced at the end of the period.

Turning to Japan, after raising rates for the first time in 17 years in March, the Bank of Japan (BoJ) continued to unwind its ultra-loose monetary policy during the period. The BoJ's unexpected rate hike in late July triggered the sudden unwinding of carry-trade positions (where investors had borrowed year all tow interest rates to invest in assets in other currencies offering higher potential returns). This contributed to a bout of global volatility, but Japanese stocks rebounded quickly. Dovish signals for mere Primer Minister Shigner Isbiha raised hopes that the BoJ may proceed more slowly with interest-rate hikes going forward. Emerging-market (EM) stocks benefited from a weaker US dollar and falling Treasury yields over the summer months. However, sentiment was impacted by ongoing concerns about China's economic growth. A raft of measures from Chinese authorities in September provided a temporary boost as they signalled that Belging was committed to achieving Dhina's annual growth target. New positions included Tokyo Electron, Hubbell and SGS.

New positions included Tokyo Electron, Hubbell and SGS.

Tokyo Electron develops, manufactures and sells semiconductor production equipment and industrial electronic products for leta-penel display manufacturing equipment. We fearour the company for its robust market position as one of the world's largest manufacturers in its sector. In addition to being well placed to capitalise on the structural growth of semiconductor demand, we believe Tokyo Electron should benefit from trends within semiconductor production, including the increased investment in cutting-edge chipmaking processes and the miniaturisation of equipment used by chipmakers. The firm already boasts a strong market share in semiconductor manufacturing process. Hubbell provides critical products for electrical distribution and transmission, which are key in delivering a greater, more efficient transfer of electricity to meet growing demands, including from data centres. Hubbells's solutions play an essential role in gird modernisation and electrification, leaving the firm well positioned to benefit from the energy transition. The company also boasts a robust capital allocation policy and a strong competitive advantage, underprined by its switching costs. inderpinned by its switching costs.

since junited by its switching costs.

SGS is a global leader in the large lab testing, inspection and certification market. Its services and solutions help its clients reduce risk, improve performance and meet quality, health and safety, environmental protection and social responsibility requirements. SGS offers exposures to safety, introduced in protection and social responsibility equirelients, social ories exposures at a diverse range of end markets — including in Europe, the Asia Pacific region and the Americas— and operates five different service lines. The company should also benefit from structural growth in the industry given its strong competitive advantages.

We rebalanced our industrials exposure to have a more defensive tilt and therefore exited Saint-Gobain and SMC Corporation. We also exited Qualcomm and MediaTek to reduce our weighting in the technology sector and consolidate our exposure to semiconductors.

Looking ahead, inflation appears to be coming under control, and interest rates are now on a downward trajectory, although the pace and magnitude of cuts will likely vary across economies. downward trajectory, although the pace and magnitude of cuts will likely vary across economies, investor focus has now shifted to the outcome of the US electrions and the resultant implications for policy. This has the potential to unsettle markets, with each outcome perceived to have its own respective winners and loses. We anticipate this to be relatively short-lived, while any volatility may also create opportunities.

We believe resilient free cashflow margins will be vital in identifying sustainable dividend growers. Consequently, we will focus on ensuring our portfolic companies have pricing power and an ability to manage cost structures and capital investments while operating power and an ability to manage cost structures and capital investments while operating with reasonable debt loads. This discipline remains of the utmost importance, with dividend sustainability more greatly prized with orgoing inflation in the system.

We continue to priorities companies that can offer a blend of sustainable income and growth; we believe this is the best approach for total returns over the long term.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024 £000	2023 £000
Income		
Net capital gains/(losses)	5,586	(9,055)
Revenue	2,665	3,036
Expenses	(706)	(757)
Interest payable and similar charges	(2)	
Net revenue before taxation	1,957	2,279
Taxation	(136)	(271)
Net revenue after taxation	1,821	2,008
Total return before distributions	7,407	(7,047)
Distributions	(2,422)	(2,658)
Change in net assets attributable to		
shareholders from investment activities	4,985	(9,705)

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2024

	2024 £000	April 2024 £000
Assets:		
Fixed assets:		
Investments	163,700	167,081
Current assets:		
Debtors	830	944
Cash and bank balances	945	732
Cash equivalents**	2,858	2,730
Total assets	168,333	171,487
Liabilities:		
Creditors:		
Distribution payable	(686)	(903)
Other creditors	(1,116)	(539)
Total liabilities	(1,802)	(1,442)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	166,531	170,045

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

		2024	2023
		£000	£000
Opening net assets attributable to share	nolders17	0,045	187,388
Amounts receivable on the issue of share	es	2,550	1,022
Amounts payable on the cancellation of s	hares (1	1,789)	(8,767)
	(9,239)	(7,745)
Change in net assets attributable to share	eholders from		
investment activities (see statement of to	tal return above)	4,985	(9,705)
Retained distribution on accumulation sh	ares	740	932
Closing net assets attributable to shareh	olders 16	6,531	170,870

The comparatives used within the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders are for the corresponding period of the previous year. Therefore the opening net assets attributable to shareholders for the current year are at 30 April 2024 whilst the figure disclosed in the comparatives' closing net assets attributable to shareholders is at 30 October 2023.

*In pound Sterling and against UK peer group (See Performance summary on page 114).

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

Dividend distribution in pence per share

Class 1 - Income shares

Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1				
01/05/24 to 31/07/24	1.3629	_	1.3629	1.2835
01/08/24 to 31/10/24	1.0056	-	1.0056	0.9353
Group 2				
01/05/24 to 31/07/24	0.4597	0.9032	1.3629	1.2835
01/08/24 to 31/10/24	0.4625	0.5431	1.0056	0.9353
Total distributions in the period			2.3685	2.2188

^{**}The total value of investments in the portfolio statement includes the Cash Equivalents amount shown under current assets.

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

Class 1 – Monthly Income shares

(continued)

Period	Class I – Wichinity Income shares				
		Revenue	Equalisation	Paid/Payable	Distribution Paid 2023
	Group 1			2024	2023
		0.5880	-	0.5880	0.4806
			-		0.5180
			_		0.1063 0.3530
	01/09/24 to 30/09/24		-	0.2897	0.2910
		0.2252	-	0.2252	0.1615
010012/14 to 310012/34	01/05/24 to 31/05/24	-	0.5880	0.5880	0.4806
		-			0.5180
		0.0019			0.1063 0.3530
Class — Accumulation shares					0.2910
Class 1 - Accumulation shares Class 2 - Accumulation shares Class 3 - Accumulation shares Class 4 - Accumulation shares Class 5 - Accumulation shares Class 5 - Accumulation shares Class 6 - Accumulation shares Class 7 - Accumulation shares Class 7 - Accumulation shares Class 7 - Accumulation shares Class 8 - Accumulation share		-	0.2252		0.1615
Distribution	· ·			2.0391	1.9104
Period Revenue Equalisation Accumulated Accumula				_	
		Revenue	Equalisation	Accumulated	Revenue Accumulated 2023
Comp 2			-		2.3823 1.7501
101/05/24 to 31/07/24 1.7713		1.5510	=	1.5510	1.7501
10/08/24 to 3/10/24 1.0889 0.8627 1.9316	01/05/24 to 31/07/24	1.7713	0.8253	2.5966	2.3823
Distribution	01/08/24 to 31/10/24				1.7501
Distribution	Total distributions in the period			4.5282	4.1324
Period Revenue Equalisation Paid/Payable 2024 Paid/Payable 2024 Paid/Payable 2024 Paid/Payable 2024 Paid Paid/Payable 2024 Paid Paid/Payable 2024 Paid Paid/Payable Paid/Payable	Class 2 – Income shares				
Croup 1					Distribution
1.5104 1.5104 1.5104 1.5104 1.5104 1.5104 1.5104 1.1252 1.5104 1.1252 1.5104 1.1252 1.5104 1.1252 1.5104 1.1252 1.5104 1.1252 1.5104 1.1252 1.5104 1.1252 1.5104 1.5205 1.5105 1	Period	Revenue	Equalisation		Paid 2023
1.1252		1 5104		1 5104	1.4145
101/05/24 to 31/07/24 0.1604 1.3500 1.5104 1.000 1.5104 1.000 1.5104 1.000 1.5104 1.000			=		1.0398
Class 2 - Accumulation shares Distribution Period Revenue Equalisation Revenue Class 3 - Accumulated Accumulation Accumulatio					1.4145 1.0398
Distribution Period Revenue Equalisation Revenue Accumulated Accumulated		0.3741	0.3311		2.4543
Distribution Period Revenue Equalisation Revenue Accumulated Accumulated	Class 2 – Accumulation shares				
Croup 1				Revenue	Revenue
Group 1	Period	Revenue	Equalisation		Accumulated 2023
Olyacolar on 31/10/24 Olyacolar on 2 Olyacolar on 31/10/24 Olyacolar o	Group 1				
Croup 2			-		2.6576
10/10/24 to 31/07/24		2.1900	_	2.1900	1.9701
Distribution Period Peri		0.4026	2 4220	2.0156	2.6576
Class L - Gross income shares Distribution Period Revenue Equalisation Paid/Payable 2024 Payable P			2.4020		1.9701
Distribution Period Revenue Equalisation Paid/Payable Paid				5.1056	4.6277
Period Revenue Equalisation Paid/Payable 2024	Class L – Gross income shares				
Croup 1					Distribution
01/05/24 to 31/07/24 0.7158 0	Period	Revenue	Equalisation		Paid 2023
O/108/24 to 31/10/24					
Group 2			_		0.8951 0.6587
0.105/24 to 31/07/24 0.9597 0.9597 0.9597 0.9597 0.9597 0.9597 0.08/24 to 31/02/24 0.7.158 0.7.1		0.7130	_	0.7136	0.0307
Total distributions in the period Class X - Income shares Distribution Period Revenue Equalisation Distribution Paid/Payable Period Paid/Payable Paid		0.9597	_	0.9597	0.8951
Class X - Income shares Distribution Period Revenue Equalisation Paid/Payable 2024		0.7158	-		0.6587
Distribution	· ·			1.6755	1.5538
Period Revenue Equalisation Paid/Payable					
Croup 1		Povenue	Equalication		Distribution Paid
1,4575 1,4575 1,4575 1,4575 1,4575 1,0888 2	renou	nevenue	Lquansation		2023
0.108/24 to 31/10/24 1.0888 - 1.0888 Croup 2 1.4575 - 1.4575 1.0888 Croup 2 1.0888 - 1.0888 - 1.0888 - 1.0888 - 1.0888 Croup 2 1.0888 - 1.0888 - 1.0888 - 1.0888 Croup 2 Croup 3 Croup 4 Croup 5 Croup 6 Croup 7 Croup 7					
Group 2			-		1.3512 0.9958
1,4575 1,4575 1,4575 1,4575 1,0884 1,4575 1,0884 1,0888 1		1.0000	_	1.0000	0.3330
Total distributions in the period 2.5463		1.4575	-	1.4575	1.3512
Class X - Accumulation shares Revenue Revenue Equalisation Accumulated Acc		1.0888	-		0.9958
Revenue Revenue Equalisation Revenue Accumulated Accumulated	•			2.5463	2.3470
Period Revenue Equalisation Accumulated 2024 Accumulated 2024 Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 2.0423 — 2.0423 — 01/08/24 to 31/07/24 1.5421 — 1.5421 — Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 2.0423 — 2.0423 01/08/24 to 31/07/24 1.5421 — 1.5421				Powenu-	Pauar
Group 1 2.0423 - 2.0423 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 1.5421 - 1.5421 Group 2 01/08/24 to 31/07/24 2.0423 - 2.0423 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 1.5421 - 1.5421		Revenue	Equalisation	Accumulated	Revenue Accumulated
01/05/24 to 31/07/24 2.0423 - 2.0423 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 1.5421 - 1.5421 Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 2.0423 - 2.0423 01/08/24 to 31/07/24 1.5421 - 1.5421					2023
01/08/24 to 31/10/24 1.5421 - 1.5421 Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 2.0423 - 2.0423 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 1.5421 - 1.5421		2 0423		3 U433	1.8426
01/05/24 to 31/07/24 2.0423 - 2.0423 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 1.5421 - 1.5421			=		1.3696
01/08/24 to 31/10/24 1.5421 – 1.5421		0.0400		2.0422	1.0400
			-		1.8426 1.3696
Total distributions in the period 5.0644	Total distributions in the period	1.0721		3.5844	3.2122
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					

Class 7 – Income shares				
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24	1.5449 1.1423	- -	1.5449 1.1423	1.4441 1.0541
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.3307 0.3890	1.2142 0.7533	1.5449 1.1423 2.6872	1.4441 1.0541 2.4982
Class Z – Accumulation shares				
Distribution Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Revenue Accumulated 2024	Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24	1.8861 1.4055	- -	1.8861 1.4055	1.7172 1.2640
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.5875 0.5434	1.2986 0.8621	1.8861 1.4055 3.2916	1.7172 1.2640 2.9812
Group 2: shares purchased during a distribu	ıtion period.			

Comparative Table Disclosure

	Class 1 – Income shares			Class 1 — Monthly Income shares		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	165.40	155.78	154.99	142.70	134.41	133.74
Return before operating charges (p)	7.97	16.32	7.28	6.84	14.07	6.26
Operating charges (p)	(1.41)	(2.57)	(2.55)	(1.20)	(2.22)	(2.20
Return after operating charges (p)*	6.56	13.75	4.73	5.64	11.85	4.06
Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	(2.37)	(4.13) —	(3.94)	(2.04)	(3.56)	(3.39
Closing net asset value per share (p)	169.59	165.40	155.78	146.30	142.70	134.41
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.05	0.14	0.08	0.04	0.12	0.07
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	3.97	8.83	3.05	3.95	8.82	3.04
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	953	1,128	3,626	101	99	97
Closing number of shares	562,236	682,022	2,327,862	69,057	69,006	72,159
Operating charges (%)**	1.66 [†]	1.65	1.65	1.65 [†]	1.65	1.65
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.06	0.09	0.06	0.06	0.09	0.06
Prices						
Highest share price (p)	173.93	171.62	163.11	149.39	147.47	140.73
Lowest share price (p)	161.06	146.83	144.78	138.95	126.05	124.25
	Class 1	— Accumulation :	hares	Class 1 CHF I	ledged – Accumu	lation shares
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023		30/04/20241	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	315.13	289.13	280.44		146.00	136.40
Return before operating charges (p)	15.20	30.83	13.31		0.07	11.86
Operating charges (p)	(2.68)	(4.83)	(4.62)		_	(2.26
Return after operating charges (p)*	12.52	26.00	8.69		0.07	
Distributions (p)					0.07	9.60
	(4.53)				0.07	
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	(4.53) 4.53	(7.75) 7.75	(7.19) 7.19			(3.53
4.7		(7.75)	(7.19)		-	(3.53 3.53
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	4.53	(7.75) 7.75	(7.19) 7.19	_	- -	(3.53 3.53 146.00
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p)	4.53 327.65	(7.75) 7.75 315.13	(7.19) 7.19 289.13	_	- - 146.07	(3.53 3.53 146.00
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p)	4.53 327.65	(7.75) 7.75 315.13	(7.19) 7.19 289.13	_	- - 146.07	(3.53 3.53 146.00 0.07
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%)	4.53 327.65 0.09	(7.75) 7.75 315.13 0.27	(7.19) 7.19 289.13 0.15	_	- 146.07 0.14	(3.53 3.53 146.00 0.07
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information	4.53 327.65 0.09 3.97	(7.75) 7.75 315.13 0.27 8.99	(7.19) 7.19 289.13 0.15	_	- 146.07 0.14	(3.55 3.55 146.00 0.07
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000)	4.53 327.65 0.09	(7.75) 7.75 315.13 0.27	(7.19) 7.19 289.13 0.15		- 146.07 0.14	(3.53 3.53 146.00 0.07 7.04
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares	4.53 327.65 0.09 3.97 2,295	(7.75) 7.75 315.13 0.27 8.99	(7.19) 7.19 289.13 0.15 3.10		146.07 0.14 0.05	(3.5% 3.5% 146.00 0.07 7.04
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)**	4.53 327.65 0.09 3.97 2,295 700,376	(7.75) 7.75 315.13 0.27 8.99 2,426 769,889	(7.19) 7.19 289.13 0.15 3.10 3,068 1,060,985		146.07 0.14 0.05	(3.53 3.53 146.00 0.07 7.04 15 10,000 1.64
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)***	4.53 327.65 0.09 3.97 2,295 700,376 1.65	(7.75) 7.75 315.13 0.27 8.99 2,426 769,889 1.65	(7.19) 7.19 289.13 0.15 3.10 3,068 1,060,985 1.64		146.07 0.14 0.05	(3.53 3.53 146.00 0.07 7.04 15 10,000 1.64
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)*** Direct transaction costs (%)***	4.53 327.65 0.09 3.97 2,295 700,376 1.65	(7.75) 7.75 315.13 0.27 8.99 2,426 769,889 1.65	(7.19) 7.19 289.13 0.15 3.10 3,068 1,060,985 1.64		146.07 0.14 0.05	9.60 (3.53 3.53 146.00 0.07 7.04 15 10,000 1.64 0.06

Comparative Table Disclosure *(continued)*

	Class 2 — Income shares			Class 2 EUR Hedged – Income shares			
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023		30/04/20241	30/04/2023	
Change in net assets per share							
Opening net asset value per share (p)	179.02	167.78	166.10		98.38	97.14	
Return before operating charges (p)	8.63	17.65	7.81		0.18	4.72	
Operating charges (p)	(0.99)	(1.82)	(1.78)			(0.97)	
Return after operating charges (p)*	7.64	15.83	6.03		0.18	3.75	
Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	(2.64)	(4.59) —	(4.35) —		<u>-</u>	(2.51)	
Closing net asset value per share (p)	184.02	179.02	167.78		98.56	98.38	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.05	0.16	0.09		0.09	0.05	
Performance							
Return after charges (%)	4.27	9.43	3.63		0.18	3.86	
Other information							
Closing net asset value (£000)	2,295	2,415	2,544		_	3	
Closing number of shares	1,246,997	1,348,864	1,515,989		_	3,000	
Operating charges (%)**	1.08 [†]	1.08	1.07		-	1.03	
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.06	0.09	0.06		-	0.06	
Prices							
Highest share price (p)	188.72	185.70	175.51		98.56	102.03	
Lowest share price (p)	174.56	158.57	155.54		98.56	82.39	
	Class	2 – Accumulation	shares	Class	L – Gross income	shares	
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	
Change in net assets per share							
Opening net asset value per share (p)	345.56	315.23	304.00	113.71	106.14	104.65	
Return before operating charges (p)	16.68	33.74	14.51	5.50	11.21	4.94	
Operating charges (p)	(1.92)	(3.41)	(3.28)	(0.40)	(0.73)	(0.70)	
Return after operating charges (p)*	14.76	30.33	11.23	5.10	10.48	4.24	
Distributions (p)	(5.11)	(8.71)	(8.04)	(1.68)	(2.91)	(2.75)	
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	5.11	8.71	8.04	_	_	_	
Closing net asset value per share (p)	360.32	345.56	315.23	117.13	113.71	106.14	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.10	0.29	0.16	0.03	0.10	0.06	
Performance							
Return after charges (%)	4.27	9.62	3.69	4.49	9.87	4.05	
Other information							
Closing net asset value (£000)	1,642	2,023	11,321	42,002	40,777	38,062	
Closing number of shares	455,687	585,466	3,591,268	35,860,168	35,860,168	35,860,168	
Operating charges (%)**	1.08 [†]	1.08	1.07	0.68 [†]	0.68	0.67	
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.06	0.09	0.06	0.06	0.09	0.06	
Prices							
Highest share price (p)	367.28	355.70	327.26	120.10	117.92	110.94	
Lowest share price (p)	339.72	300.45	286.73	111.00	100.51	98.18	

Comparative Table Disclosure

(continued)

	Class X – Income shares			Class X – Accumulation shares		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share			'			
Opening net asset value per share (p)	172.59	160.13	156.94	241.76	218.37	208.50
Return before operating charges (p)	8.34	16.99	7.43	11.70	23.56	10.02
Operating charges (p)	(0.07)	(0.13)	(0.11)	(80.0)	(0.17)	(0.15)
Return after operating charges (p)*	8.27	16.86	7.32	11.62	23.39	9.87
Distributions (p)	(2.55)	(4.40)	(4.13)	(3.58)	(6.05)	(5.54)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)				3.58	6.05	5.54
Closing net asset value per share (p)	178.31	172.59	160.13	253.38	241.76	218.37
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.05	0.15	0.08	0.07	0.20	0.11
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	4.79	10.53	4.66	4.81	10.71	4.73
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	7,854	8,460	7,849	7	7	2,943
Closing number of shares	4,404,511	4,901,965	4,901,965	3,000	3,000	1,347,717
Operating charges (%)**	0.08 [†]	0.08	0.07	0.06 [†]	0.08	0.07
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.06	0.09	0.06	0.06	0.09	0.06
Prices						
Highest share price (p)	182.79	178.89	167.17	258.17	248.66	226.25
Lowest share price (p)	168.74	152.10	147.63	238.32	209.17	196.97
	Class Z – Income shares			Class Z – Accumulation shares		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	187.35	175.14	172.95	228.70	208.27	200.50
Return before operating charges (p)	9.04	18.46	8.14	11.05	22.34	9.57
Operating charges (p)	(0.87)	(1.59)	(1.54)	(1.06)	(1.91)	(1.80)
Return after operating charges (p)*	8.17	16.87	6.60	9.99	20.43	7.77
Distributions (p)	(2.69)	(4.66)	(4.41)	(3.29)	(5.60)	(5.16)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)						
notaniou distributions on descandation shares (p)	-	_	-	3.29	5.60	5.16
Closing net asset value per share (p)	192.83	187.35			5.60 228.70	5.16 208.27
•	192.83 0.05	187.35 0.16		3.29		
Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p)			175.14	3.29 238.69	228.70	208.27
Closing net asset value per share (p)			175.14	3.29 238.69	228.70	208.27
Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%)	0.05	0.16	175.14 0.09	3.29 238.69 0.07	228.70 0.20	208.27 0.11
Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information	0.05 4.36	0.16 9.63	175.14 0.09 3.82	3.29 238.69 0.07 4.37	228.70 0.20 9.81	208.27 0.11 3.88
Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000)	0.05 4.36 61,073	0.16 9.63 63,863	175.14 0.09 3.82 69,003	3.29 238.69 0.07 4.37 48,309	228.70 0.20 9.81 48,847	208.27 0.11 3.88 48,842
Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares	0.05 4.36	0.16 9.63	175.14 0.09 3.82	3.29 238.69 0.07 4.37	228.70 0.20 9.81	208.27 0.11 3.88 48,842 23,451,724
Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000)	0.05 4.36 61,073 31,671,530	0.16 9.63 63,863 34,087,021	175.14 0.09 3.82 69,003 39,398,489	3.29 238.69 0.07 4.37 48,309 20,239,506	228.70 0.20 9.81 48,847 21,357,791	208.27 0.11 3.88 48,842 23,451,724
Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)**	0.05 4.36 61,073 31,671,530 0.90°	0.16 9.63 63,863 34,087,021 0.90	175.14 0.09 3.82 69,003 39,398,489 0.89	3.29 238.69 0.07 4.37 48,309 20,239,506 0.90 [†]	228.70 0.20 9.81 48,847 21,357,791 0.90	208.27 0.11 3.88 48,842 23,451,724 0.89
Closing net asset value per share (p) *after direct transaction costs of (p) Performance Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)** Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.05 4.36 61,073 31,671,530 0.90°	0.16 9.63 63,863 34,087,021 0.90	175.14 0.09 3.82 69,003 39,398,489 0.89	3.29 238.69 0.07 4.37 48,309 20,239,506 0.90 [†]	228.70 0.20 9.81 48,847 21,357,791 0.90	208.27 0.11 3.88 48,842 23,451,724 0.89

Comparative Table Disclosure

(continued)

Class Z CHF Hedged – Accumulation shares

	30/04/20241	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share		
Opening net asset value per share (p)	154.86	143.59
Return before operating charges (p)	0.08	12.55
Operating charges (p)		(1.28)
Return after operating charges (p)*	0.08	11.27
Distributions (p)	_	(3.73)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		3.73
Closing net asset value per share (p)	154.94	154.86
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.14	0.08
Performance		
Return after charges (%)	0.05	7.85
Other information		
Closing net asset value (£000)	-	15
Closing number of shares	-	10,000
Operating charges (%)**	-	0.88 [†]
Direct transaction costs (%)***	-	0.06
Prices		
Highest share price (p)	154.94	157.68
Lowest share price (p)	154.94	129.77

^{**}The Operating charges are represented by the Ongoing Charges Figure (OCF) which is the European standard method of disclosing the charges of a share class of a fund based on the financial year's expenses and may vary from year to year. It includes charges such as the fund's annual management charge, registration fee, custody fees and distribution cost but ordinarily excludes the costs of buying or selling assets for the fund (unless these assets are shares of another fund). Where published, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) contains the current OCF. For a more detailed breakdown please visit columbiathreadneedle.com/fees.

Highest and Lowest share prices are based on official published daily NAVs priced at 12 noon on the last business day of the period on a mid basis. The closing net asset value per share is at close of business on a bid basis.

^{***}Transaction costs have not been reduced by any amounts collected from dilution levies/adjustments.

¹Closed 2 May 2023

¹The Ongoing Charges Figure is annualised based on the fees incurred during the accounting period or since commencement date.

Notes to the financial statements

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of investments, in compliance with FRS 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (SORP) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2024 and are described in those financial statements.

(b) Notes

In accordance with the guidelines of the SORP the fund has taken advantage of the facility not to provide further notes to the financial statements.

2 RECONCILIATION OF SHARES

	2024
Class 1 – Income shares	
Opening shares	682,022
Shares issued Shares redeemed	1,089
Net conversions	(120,875)
Closing shares	562,236
·	302,230
Class 1 – Monthly Income shares Opening shares	69,006
Shares issued	51
Shares redeemed	JI _
Net conversions	_
Closing shares	69,057
Class 1 – Accumulation shares	30,007
Opening shares	769,889
Shares issued	19,157
Shares redeemed	(88,670)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	700,376
Class 2 – Income shares	
Opening shares	1,348,864
Shares issued	58,527
Shares redeemed	(160,394)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	1,246,997
Class 2 – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	585,466
Shares issued	5,511
Shares redeemed Net conversions	(7,176) (128,114)
Closing shares	455,687
•	433,007
Class L – Gross income shares Opening shares	35,860,168
Shares issued	33,000,100
Shares redeemed	_
Net conversions	_
Closing shares	35,860,168
Class X – Income shares	
Opening shares	4,901,965
Shares issued	_
Shares redeemed	(497,454)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	4,404,511
Class X – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	3,000
Shares issued	-
Shares redeemed	-
Net conversions	
Closing shares	3,000

	2024
Class Z – Income shares	
Opening shares	34,087,021
Shares issued	616,205
Shares redeemed	(3,018,721)
Net conversions	(12,975)
Closing shares	31,671,530
Class Z – Accumulation shares	
Opening shares	21,357,791
Shares issued	508,560
Shares redeemed	(1,831,055)
Net conversions	204,210
Closing shares	20,239,506

CT Global Focus Fund

Investment Report

Investment Objective and Policy
The Fund aims to achieve capital growth over the long term (5 years, or more). It also looks to outperform the MSCI ACWI Index ("the Index") over rolling 3-year periods, after the deduction of charges.

The Fund is actively managed, and invests at least 75% of its assets in a concentrated portfolio of shares of companies worldwide. There is no restriction on size, but investment tends to focus on larger companies, such as those included in the Index.

The Index is regarded as an appropriate representation of the share performance of large and medium-sized companies worldwide. It is broadly representative of the companies in which the Fund invests and provides a suitable target benchmark against which Fund performance will be measured and evaluated over time

performance will be measured and evaluated over time. The Investment Manager selects companies in which it has a high conviction that the current share price does not reflect the prospects for that business, and typically invests in fewer than 90 companies, which may include shares of some companies not within the Index. These companies are chosen from across different economic sectors and egographic regions, with significant sector and share weightings taken at the discretion of the Investment Manager.

significant sector and share weightings taken at the discretion of the Investment Manager. The Investment Manager also seeks to create a portfolio that compares favourably against the index over rolling 12 month periods, when assessed using the Columbia Threadneedle ESG Materiality Rating model.

This model (developed and owned by Columbia Threadneedle Investments) analyses company data to assess how effectively material environmental, social and governance (ESG) risks and opportunities are being managed. Provided sufficient data is available, the results are combined and expressed as a numerical ESG Materiality rating to indicate how much exposure a company has to material ESG instant of opportunities in a particular industry. Whilst the Fund may still invest in companies that have poor ESG Materiality ratings, at least 50% of the portfolio is invested in companies with strong ratings, which is also expected to lead to a better weighted average ESG Materiality rating for the Fund than the Index. In line with its engagement policy, the Investment Manager engages with companies with a view to influencing management teams to address material ESG instant and improve their ESG practices ranging from climate change to board independence and diversity.

practices ranging from climate change to board independence and diversity. Columbia Threadneedle Investments is a signatory to the Net Zero Asset Managers Initiative (INZAMI) and has committed to an ambition to reach net zero emissions by 2050 or sooner for a range of assets, including the Fund. Accordingly, the Investment Manager will engage on a proactive basis with companies to assist with progressing this ambition. If, after an appropriate period of engagement, a high emitting company does not show progress in meeting the minimum standards considered necessary for continued investment then the Fund will disinvest from the company. then the Fund will disinvest from the company

then the Fund will distinvest from the company.

The Fund only invests in companies that follow good governance practices. The Fund does not invest in companies which derive revenue from industries or activities above the thresholds shown: tobacco production (5%), nuclear weapons — indirect involvement (5%), conventional weapons — military or orivilian firearms (10%), and thermal coal – extraction or power generation (30%), providing a company is not engaged in new coal projects. These exclusion criteria may be extended or revised from time to time.

The Fund also excludes companies that have any direct involvement in nuclear weapons, controversial weapons, and companies that the InvestmentManager determines to have breached international standards and principles such as the:

United Nations Global Compact;

- International Labour Organisation Labour Standards; and United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights.

The Fund may invest in other securities (including fixed interest securities, convertible securities, and warrants) and collective investment schemes (including funds managed by Columbia Threadneedle companies), when deemed appropriate

The Fund may also hold money market instruments, deposits, cash and near cash

The Fund is not permitted to invest in derivatives for investment purposes, by may be used with the aim of reducing risk or managing the Fund more efficien

Performance of Gross Accumulation Class Z Shares*

rerrormance of tiross Accumulation Class Z Shares*
Over the six months to 31 Octobe 2024, the published athere price of Class Z - Accumulation
shares in the CT Global Focus Fund has risen from 225.82p to 239.60p.
For comparison, using noon prices, the performance of the Class Z share class was +6.10%
compared to a return of +5.05% for the Momingstart UN tuil TrustsyOctCS – IA Global Peer
Group (on a bid to bid basis, with income reinvested for a UK basic rate taxpayer).
For information purposes, using global close prices, the total return of the MSCI AC World
Index was +8.23%.

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

The MSCI All-Country World index rose by 10.5% in local currencies in the six-month period ending 31 October. Positive drivers included generally encouraging corporate earnings, declining inflation and the resulting expectations that key central banks would start to reduce interest rates, which indeed transpired. This helped risk assets overcome periods of volatility stemming from economic concerns and political uncertainty in some regions. In the US, stocks performed well for much of the period, as markets remained confident the Federal Reserve (Fed) was on track to cut rates following encouraging declines in inflation. Federal reserve (red) was on track to cut rates trolowing encouraging occlines in limitation. Volatility increased in July following lacklustre second-quarter (IQ2) earnings reports from some of the "Magnificent 7" companies, prompting investors to focus on segments of the market that had previously underperformed. Weeker-than-expected labour-market data then triggered sell-offs in early August and September. However, increasingly dovish signals from fet policymakers caused Teasury vields to fall and restored risk appetite. The fed subsequently satisfied investors' hopes of a larger 50-basis-point (bp) cut — as opposed to a 25bp move — at its September meeting. However, equities ended the period on the backfoot after more positive jobs data dashed hopes of another 50-bp rate cut, causing Treasury yields to rise.

nore positive jobs data dashed hopes of another 50-bp rate cut, causing Treasury yields to rise. Expectations that the European Central Bank (ECB) would start easing policy earlier that 62-bp rate cut, causing Treasury yields to rise. Expectations that the European Central Bank (ECB) would start easing policy earlier that 52-bp rate cut in June, but risk appetite soon soured due to political uncertainty following the EU election results, which saw populist far-infight partiers make strong gains. Some stability returned in July after a far-right victory was avoided in France's snap parliamentary elections. However, the eurozone economy looked increasingly fragile, adding a headwind ror regional equities despets the ECB slashing rates again in September and October. In the UK, equites were supported by easing inflation. The headline figure reached the Bank of regional equities despets the ECB slashing rates again in September and October. In the UK, equites were supported by easing inflation. The headline figure reached the Bank of regionals of the properties of the propert

Turning to Japan, after raising rates for the first time in 17 years in March, the Bank of Turning to Japan, after raising rates for the first time in 17 years in March, the Bank of Japan (BAJ) continued to unwind its ultra-lose monetary policy during the peind. The BoJ's unexpected rate hike in late July triggered the sudden unwinding of carry-trade positions (where investors had borrowed yen at low interest rates to invest in assist in other currencies offering higher potential returns). This contributed to a bout of global volatility, but Japanese stocks rebounded quickly, Dovish signals from new Prime Minister Shigerul shibe raised hopes that the BoJ may proceed more slowly with interest-rate hikes going forward. Emerging-market (EM) stocks benefited from a weaker US dollar and falling concerns about China's economic growth. A raft of measures from Chinese authorities in September provided a temporary boost as they signalled that Bejing was committed to achieving China's annual growth target.

In terms of activity, new purchases included Broadcom, Munich Re and 3i Group

In terms or activity, new purchases included tireaction, Munich ne and si Group. Floradcom is a leading semiconductor manufacturer that helps design custom Al chips for large companies such as Alphabet. The firm boasts a strong market position, particularly in data centres, networking and recurring software. We see it as a highly profitable company, operating in sectors that benefit from powerful long-tern secular tailwinds. Therefore, we believe that Foradcom should benefit from growing demand related to generative Al, and its chip business is increasingly driven by investments in accelerators and network connectivity for A.

connectivity for AI.

Munich Re is a leading player in the reinsurance industry, which should benefit from the lower inflation backdrop. The company reported strong results in August and holds attractive ongoing potential, in our view, in the concentrated reinsurance market.

3i is a leading international investment company. The private-equity group holds attractive growth potential due to its strong investment track record, healthy balance sheet and diversified investment portfolio. We hold conviction in 3is largest investment in Action, a non-food discount retailer, which we see as a best-in-class retailer that delivers strong cashflow generation. Even after 3is gains over the past 18 months, we view the company a stable compounder. In this time of macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty, we believe that the firm's resilient portfolio, combined with its rigorous and disciplined approach to capital allocation, positions it well to navigate the challenging confloritions.

To help fund these purchases, we exited Ametek and Coca-Cola. We also profitably sold Applied Materials and Becton Dickinson after strong performance.

Markets have been narrowly led over the last 18 months as investor sentiment has been

repineur winemas and occurrin uncustor area soung periorimanze. Markets have been narrowly led over the last 18 months as investor sentiment has been dominated by optimism around AI and, especially, the so-called Magnificent 7. Looking ahead, we believe the market rally will broaden, as evidence of inflation coming under control and falling interest rates should see investors refocus on fundamentals.

control and falling interest rates should see investors refocus on fundamentals. Investor focus has now shifted to the outcome of the US elections and the resulting implications for policy. This has the potential to unsettle markets, with each outcome perceived to have its own respective winners and losers. We anticipate this to be relatively short-lived, while any lotality may also create opportunities. In this environment, we believe that diversification will remain important, particularly as investment to tackle issues such as decerbinosization, deploablisation and energy efficiency creates a broader opportunity for earnings growth. Our focus continues to be on building a diversified portfolio of quality businesses that are multi-year compounders, with pricing power and less gearing to the broader economy. We believe that our bottom-up approach will allow us to find such quality growth companies across a range of sectors and geographics.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

,	2024 £000	2023 £000
Income		
Net capital gains	13,728	987_
Revenue	934	1,003
Expenses	(614)	(411)
Interest payable and similar charges	(16)	(1)
Net revenue before taxation	304	591
Taxation	(89)	(103)
Net revenue after taxation	215	488
Total return before equalisation	13,943	1,475
Equalisation	11	(1)
Change in net assets attributable to		
shareholders from investment activities	13,954	1,474

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2024

	2024	April 2024
	£000	£000
Assets:		
Fixed assets:		
Investments	241,707	176,400
Current assets:		
Debtors	1,528	1,165
Cash and bank balances	2,804	3,473
Total assets	246,039	181,038
Liabilities:		
Creditors:		
Other creditors	(1,220)	(1,604)
Total liabilities	(1,220)	(1,604)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	244,819	179,434

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	000£	£000
Opening net assets attributable to shareholders	179,434	161,970
Amounts receivable on the issue of shares	64,967	8,251
Amounts payable on the cancellation of shares	(13,579)	(12,993)
	51,388	(4,742)
Dilution adjustment	43	-
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from		
investment activities (see statement of total return above)	13,954	1,474
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders	244,819	158,702

The comparatives used within the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders are for the corresponding period of the previous year. Therefore the opening net assets attributable to shareholders for the current year are at 30 April 2024 whilst the figure disclosed in the comparatives' closing net assets attributable to shareholders is at 31 October 2023.

*In pound Sterling and against UK peer group (See Performance summary on page 114).

2023

CT Global Focus Fund

Comparative Table Disclosure

	Class 2 — Gross accumulation shares			Class L – Gross accumulation shares		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	224.84	184.63	177.32	127.67	104.69	100.00
Return before operating charges (p)	15.89	41.91	8.73	8.95	23.70	5.27
Operating charges (p)	(0.97)	(1.70)	(1.42)	(0.31)	(0.72)	(0.58
Return after operating charges (p)*	14.92	40.21	7.31	8.64	22.98	4.69
Distributions (p)	_	(0.50)	(0.58)	_	(0.47)	(0.42
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		0.50	0.58		0.47	0.42
Closing net asset value per share (p)	239.76	224.84	184.63	136.31	127.67	104.69
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.14	0.25	0.24	0.08	0.13	0.14
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	6.64	21.78	4.12	6.77	21.95	4.69
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	53,434	7	2	975	1	1
Closing number of shares	22,286,832	3,028	1,000	714,915	1,001	1,001
Operating charges (%)**	0.82 [†]	0.82	0.80	0.46 [†]	0.63	0.65
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.12	0.12	0.13	0.12	0.12	0.13
Prices						
Highest share price (p)	244.35	234.01	192.47	138.90	132.84	109.04
Lowest share price (p)	221.87	183.12	160.80	126.04	103.84	91.05
	Class Q – Gross accumulation shares			Class X – Gross accumulation shares		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share			'			
Opening net asset value per share (p)	227.82	186.69	178.87	192.03	156.57	149.26
Return before operating charges (p)	16.10	42.29	8.84	13.58	35.58	7.42
Operating charges (p)	(0.68)	(1.16)	(1.02)	(0.07)	(0.12)	(0.11
Return after operating charges (p)*	15.42	41.13	7.82	13.51	35.46	7.31
Distributions (p)	_	(0.99)	(1.04)	_	(1.69)	(1.62
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	_	0.99	1.04	_	1.69	1.62
Closing net asset value per share (p)	243.24	227.82	186.69	205.54	192.03	156.57
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.14	0.24	0.25	0.12	0.20	0.21
Df						
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	6.77	22.03	4.37	7.04	22.65	4.90
Return after charges (%)	6.77	22.03	4.37	7.04	22.65	4.90
Return after charges (%) Other information						
Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000)	73,369	71,829	60,159	72,400	62,354	52,769
Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares		71,829 31,528,831	60,159 32,224,568			52,769 33,703,258
Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)**	73,369 30,163,139	71,829	60,159	72,400 35,223,430	62,354 32,471,251	52,769 33,703,258 0.07
Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares Operating charges (%)** Direct transaction costs (%)***	73,369 30,163,139 0.57'	71,829 31,528,831 0.57	60,159 32,224,568 0.57	72,400 35,223,430 0.07†	62,354 32,471,251 0.07	52,769 33,703,258 0.07
Return after charges (%) Other information Closing net asset value (£000) Closing number of shares	73,369 30,163,139 0.57'	71,829 31,528,831 0.57	60,159 32,224,568 0.57	72,400 35,223,430 0.07†	62,354 32,471,251 0.07	4.90 52,769 33,703,258 0.07 0.13

CT Global Focus Fund

Comparative Table Disclosure

(continued)

Class Z – Gross accumulation shares

	31/10/2024	30/04/2024	30/04/2023
Change in net assets per share			
Opening net asset value per share (p)	223.41	183.67	176.55
Return before operating charges (p)	15.78	41.51	8.69
Operating charges (p)	(1.04)	(1.77)	(1.57)
Return after operating charges (p)*	14.74	39.74	7.12
Distributions (p)	_	(0.33)	(0.45)
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		0.33	0.45
Closing net asset value per share (p)	238.15	223.41	183.67
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	0.14	0.23	0.24
Performance			
Return after charges (%)	6.60	21.64	4.03
Other information			
Closing net asset value (£000)	44,641	45,243	49,039
Closing number of shares	18,744,955	20,250,847	26,699,536
Operating charges (%)**	0.89^{\dagger}	0.89	0.89
Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.12	0.12	0.13
Prices			
Highest share price (p)	242.72	232.54	191.57
Lowest share price (p)	220.42	182.17	160.07

^{**}The Operating charges are represented by the Ongoing Charges Figure (OCF) which is the European standard method of disclosing the charges of a share class of a fund based on the financial year's expenses and may vary from year to year. It includes charges such as the fund's annual management charge, registration fee, custody fees and distribution cost but ordinarily excludes the costs of buying or selling assets for the fund (unless these assets are shares of another fund). Where published, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) contains the current OCF. For a more detailed breakdown please visit columbiathreadneedle.com/fees.

Highest and Lowest share prices are based on official published daily NAVs priced at 12 noon on the last business day of the period on a mid basis. The closing net asset value per share is at close of business on a bid basis.

^{***}Transaction costs have not been reduced by any amounts collected from dilution levies/adjustments.

¹Commenced 9 June 2022

¹The Ongoing Charges Figure is annualised based on the fees incurred during the accounting period or since commencement date.

CT Global Focus Fund

Notes to the financial statements

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of investments, in compliance with FRS 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (SORP) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2024 and are described in those financial statements.

(b) Notes

In accordance with the guidelines of the SORP the fund has taken advantage of the facility not to provide further notes to the financial statements.

2 RECONCILIATION OF SHARES

	2024
Class 2 – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	3,028
Shares issued	22,549,200
Shares redeemed	(265,396)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	22,286,832
Class L – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	1,001
Shares issued	720,175
Shares redeemed	(6,261)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	714,915
Class Q – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	31,528,831
Shares issued	1,037,957
Shares redeemed	(2,396,536)
Net conversions	(7,113)
Closing shares	30,163,139
Class X – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	32,471,251
Shares issued	2,752,179
Shares redeemed	-
Net conversions	
Closing shares	35,223,430
Class Z – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	20,250,847
Shares issued	1,542,129
Shares redeemed	(3,055,286)
Net conversions	7,265
Closing shares	18,744,955

Investment Report

Investment Report
Investment Objective and Policy
The Fund aims to provide income with the prospect of some capital growth over the long term (5 years or more)
by investing in brooks that provide positive social outcomes by supporting or funding socially beneficial activities
and development, as assessed by the Couldmit Primadevedee Social feating Methodolicy
The Fund is actively managed. Soliget to the social investment criteria below, the Investment Amanger mosts
and contaminate social registrations from anywhere in the world, including up to 35% of the Fund's assets in
bonds from issuers in emerging market countries.

This includes corporation bonds, soverein bonds, query bonds, mortgage and asset-backed socialities
and contingent convertible bonds, whether interest is paid at a food, floring, varietible or inde-investment grade, provided
that such ascurities are not state blade 8- or equivalent by any recognised rating agency at the time of purchase.

Social Investment Citizria

at all. The 'und will not meet more than turk of its assets in boacts that are least below netering drade, provided that and succeived and on a not read below he event of pack-provided that and succeived and the succeived that and the sound that the social alternative not read to the social alternative throughout the social continued above, for example by funding the development of social busings or care howers to residue and social outcome above, for example by funding the development of social busings or care howers to residue alternative throughout the social alternative throughout the social characteristics of each investment are analysed and each bond is categorised and given a rating under the following process:

(i) The Investment Manager identifies the social intentionality and purpose of the use of a bond's proceeds and the bond is categoried according to its level of impact as:

an impact investment where a bond's use of proceeds does not have a clear social objective, but where positive social benefits in nonetheless identificable

development for social benefit is nonetheless identificable

development from a finance where a bond's use of proceeds supports investments in infrastructure and economic development for positive social contribution

and the social contribution of the social relationship and in infrastructure and economic development for positive social contribution.

avelopment for positive social contribution otherwise the investment is considered general financing and is not eligible for investment by the Fund, and just herwisemth eliminager assesses the intensity of a bond's social focus by scoring each bond against 9 indicators (such as the bond's ability to tackle deprivation by assessing the target population and region) to rotuce an overall rating of minor, moderate, good or storms, Arby Mond rated, or whose rating falls, below minor is subject to review and may be re-categorised as general financing and therefore no longer eligible to be held by the fund.

he categorisation and ratings are then used by the Investment Manager in constructing the portfolio of the

to any investment, the Investment Manager also ensures that bonds are excluded from the portfolio

- re the issues:

 derive revenue from industries or activities above certain thresholds where the Investment Manager
 iders that those industries, activities or issuers ofter minimal social benefits or have a high risk of negative
 more on society and roft the environment, for example the sale of botacco, alcoho, abdit entertainment and
 bling or themal coal generation and extraction. The Investment Manager will not invest in bonds of issuers
 well incontroversial evapons or which are funding new themal coal mining or power generation projects. in consoversion weapons or winch are triuding new mermal coal mining or power generation projects, an investment may be made in bonds that have ring fenced or specific use of proceeds (such as ocial or Sustainability bonds) from an issuer that would otherwise be excluded under the revenue
- unestious declarission advice.

 fail to follow good governance practices (for non-sovereign issuers). Investment in bonds issued by governments is only permitted via Green, Social or Sustainability Bonds.

 breach international standards and principles as determined by the Investment Manager, such as:

 the United Nations Global Compact;

■ the International Labour Organisation Labour Standards and
■ the United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights.
The Fund may also hold deposits, money market instruments, cash and near cash.
The Fund may also hold deposits, an experiment in derivatives for investment purposes, but derivatives may be used with the aim of restuding risk or meaning the Fund more efficiently.
Further details on the current minimum standards and revenue thresholds applied by the Investment Manager, and further information on the Fund's investment guidelines, are set out in the Social Investment Guidelines are better the properties waitable at columbiativeacheede com. These may be updated from time to time in order to maintain the high social standards of the fund.
Please also refer to the General Sustainability Disclosures Appendix in this Prospectus for further information, including on how good governance practices are defined.

Performance of Gross Accumulation Class Z Shares*
Over the six months to 31 October 2024, the published share price of Class Z – Accum
Global Social Bond Fund has risen from 103.33p to 108.19p.

k basic rate taxpayer). g global close prices, the total return of the Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

2024

2024

2023

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

Market Overview and Portfolio Activity

Global investment-grade (IG) credit delivered positive returns over the six-month period ending 31 October 2024, despite some bosts of volatility, Gaines were driven by coupon income, a fall in riseasury and Bund yields 2024, and modest tightening in credit spreads (the pain yield between corporate bonds and risk-free government debt.)

From 10 the start of the period, Treasuries and other core government bonds had odd off in April a hother-despected US jobs and inflation data saw traders price in fewer interest-rate cuts by the Federal Reserve (Federal Sevens Common and Co

The European Central Bank (ECB) was the first major central bank to cut interest rates this year with a 25-

วกวว

by cut in June. However, the more was widely expected, and German Bunds underparformed as improving economic data and some mixed progress on inflation created uncertainty as to when the ECB would next lower rates. German Bunds joined the rally in other core government markets later in the period when the exception of the control of the period which the desire that the control is second 2-5 prate cut of the year. Like Treasuries and gilts, Bunds also had a poor Cetober the left of the term than the US and UK counteparts. The ECB cut its key deposit rate by a facther 25 bps, as expected, though ECB Prasident Lapards also warned that euronone inflation could rain the bart term as active decirated that the energy prices do poor of the annual relations. Political uncertaint was a lay theme in the ELI decirate, though ECB Prasident Lapards also warned that euronone inflation requires the soft term as a called declines in energy prices do poor of the annual relations. Political uncertaint was a lay theme in the ELI declines, triggering houts of volatility.

ELI declines, triggering houts of volatility.

Materials: Cardinal triangular and Band yields also proved supportive. Spreads videned for a spell in June, and workers about the political unclose in France, and again during the turnoll in early August. In both instances, spreads quickly resumed the term of gradual tightening that has been in place since late 2023. On top of the high ouright yields on offer a sentiment towards cradit was supported by a combination of falling interest rates, a stable economic backdop and robust credit quality. The third-quarter US corporate earings season, which has so fall been above the long-part an average in terms of the number and extent of earnings season, which has so fall been above the long-part an average in terms of the number and extent of earnings season which has so fall been above the long-part and extent of earnings season and the world to improve their climate strategies.

In sustainability rever, Goldman Schri, Asser

ongoing projects require further funding.

Within the portfolio, we were active in the primary market, investing in a range of new issues. These included green bonds from Dutch development bank FMO and the Australian government; usstainability bonds from Jayan International Cooperation Aproxy (FMCA) a social borff on Casizaben, and general corporate purposes issues from health technology company GE Healthcan, hospital operator HCA and falco Vodafone. Purchases in the secondary market included social bonds from Deutsterbe Bank, property firm Vonovia and the government of Othic green bonds from Dept Development Casinda and healthcan erred estate investment trust.

Purchases in the secondary market included social bonds from Deutsche Bank, property film Vinorova and the operament of Chile gere bonds from Export Development Canada and healthrace real estate investment trust (REI) Wellbower; sustainability bonds from New South Wales and the Belgian region of Walloins, and general opporate-purposes bonds from Nationode Building, Socialy and Unladelshalf Droot, On the sales side, we exited a number of issuers including United Utilities Water, Italian insurer General, recycling group Savar and French hanks Cleid Apricole and REVOM. Esswhere, we ended out briodings in Bupa. Agence Fanquise de Dévelopement and UK government bonds, among others. The outlock for composate bonds continues to appear more flowaruballe in terms of outright yields rather than spreads. At the end of October, ICE BofAML's global main Investment grade (IG) corporate bond index offered a yell of a around 456, countfortally above the average seen in the last 20 years. Spreads, however, finished the month crither inside (i.e. more expensive than) the average for composate bonds continued in the contribution over the last five years. In a similar than the realculor in index duration over the last five years. Here is capation to the share-both of which we expect to continue. The decline in interest rates in most dieveloped markets is welcome, though present assumed terminal rates (the lowest interest rates expected in the cutting profel appear to be above the so-called neutral rate in to that US and Europe. Common projections point to low but positive rate of expensions, which is a reasonable backdrop for (I.).

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024	2023
	£000	£000
Income		
Net capital gains/(losses)	1,826	(269)
Revenue	1,405	80
Expenses	(64)	(4)
Net revenue before taxation	1,341	76
Taxation		
Net revenue after taxation	1,341	76
Total return before distributions	3,167	(193)
Distributions	(1,405)	(80)
Change in net assets attributable to		
shareholders from investment activities	1,762	(273)

RAI ANCE SHEET

as at 31 October 2024

		April
	2024	2024
	£000	£000
Assets:		
Fixed assets:		
Investments	62,226	57,959
Current assets:		
Debtors	843	2,103
Cash and bank balances	1,165	2,717
Cash equivalents**	11	624
Total assets	64,245	63,403
Liabilities:		
Investment liabilities	(1,688)	(564)
Creditors:		
Bank overdrafts	(34)	(126)
Other creditors	(690)	(913)
Total liabilities	(2,412)	(1,603)
Net assets attributable to shareholders	61,833	61,800

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	£000	£000
Opening net assets attributable to shareholders	61,800	_
Amounts receivable on the issue of shares	14,210	7,936
Amounts payable on the cancellation of shares	(17,293)	(1,480)
	(3,083)	6,456
Dilution adjustment	_	12
Change in net assets attributable to shareholders from		
investment activities (see statement of total return above)	1,762	(273)
Retained distribution on accumulation shares	1,354	93
Closing net assets attributable to shareholders	61,833	6,288

The comparatives used within the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders are for the corresponding period of the previous year. Therefore the opening net assets attributable to shareholders for the current year are at 30 April 2024 whilst the figure disclosed in the comparatives' closing net assets attributable to shareholders is at 31 October 2023.

*In pound Sterling and against UK peer group (See Performance summary on page 114).

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

Interest distribution in pence per share

Glass Z – Ilicollie Silares				
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1				
01/05/24 to 31/07/24	1.1150	_	1.1150	0.3600
01/08/24 to 31/10/24	1.1160	-	1.1160	1.1890
Group 2				
01/05/24 to 31/07/24	1.1150	_	1.1150	0.3600
01/08/24 to 31/10/24	1.1160	-	1.1160	1.1890
Total distributions in the period			2.2310	1.5490
Class 2 – Accumluation shares				
Distribution	Gross		Gross Revenue	Gross Revenue
Period	Revenue	Equalisation	Accumulated 2024	Accumulated 2023
Group 1				
01/05/24 to 31/07/24	1.1625	_	1.1625	0.3600
01/08/24 to 31/10/24	1.1820	-	1.1820	1.2026

^{**}The total value of investments in the portfolio statement includes the Cash Equivalents amount shown under current assets.

DISTRIBUTION TABLE

Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.5889 1.0360	0.5736 0.1460	1.1625 1.1820 2.3445	0.3600 1.2026 1.5626
Class Q – Income shares			2.5110	1.0020
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24	1.1150 1.1160	= =	1.1150 1.1160	0.3600 1.1990
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	1.1150 1.1160	- -	1.1150 1.1160 2.2310	0.3600 1.1990 1.5590
Class Q – Accumulation shares				
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24	1.1651 1.1833	- -	1.1651 1.1833	0.3661 1.2087
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.2563 0.7885	0.9088 0.3948	1.1651 1.1833 2.3484	0.3661 1.2087 1.5748
Class X – Income shares			2.3404	1.3740
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Group 2	1.1160 1.1190	- -	1.1160 1.1190	0.3600 1.1990
01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	1.1160 1.1190	- -	1.1160 1.1190 2.2350	0.3600 1.1990 1.5590
Class X – Accumulation shares				
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Group 2	1.1649 1.1851	- -	1.1649 1.1851	0.3600 1.2090
01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.7365 0.6709	0.4284 0.5142	1.1649 1.1851 2.3500	0.3600 1.2090 1.5690
Class Z – Income shares				
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Distribution Paid/Payable 2024	Distribution Paid 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Group 2	1.1150 1.1160	- -	1.1150 1.1160	0.3600 1.1990
01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	1.1150 1.1160	- -	1.1150 1.1160 2.2310	0.3600 1.1990 1.5590
Class Z – Accumulation shares				
Distribution Period	Gross Revenue	Equalisation	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2024	Gross Revenue Accumulated 2023
Group 1 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24	1.1620 1.1813	- -	1.1620 1.1813	0.3600 1.2220
Group 2 01/05/24 to 31/07/24 01/08/24 to 31/10/24 Total distributions in the period	0.1936 0.4925	0.9684 0.6888	1.1620 1.1813 2.3433	0.3600 1.2220 1.5820
Group 2: shares purchased during a distrib	ution period.			

Comparative Table Disclosure

	Class 2	Class 2 – Gross income shares		Class 2 – Gross accumulation shares		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024 ¹	31/10/2024	30/04/20241		
Change in net assets per share						
Opening net asset value per share (p)	99.23	100.00	102.94	100.00		
Return before operating charges (p)	5.10	3.17	5.35	3.25		
Operating charges (p)	(0.16)	(0.27)	(0.19)	(0.31)		
Return after operating charges (p)*	4.94	2.90	5.16	2.94		
Distributions (p)	(2.23)	(3.67)	(2.34)	(3.74)		
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		<u>_</u>	2.34	3.74		
Closing net asset value per share (p)	101.94	99.23	108.10	102.94		
after direct transaction costs of (p)	-	_	-	-		
Performance						
Return after charges (%)	4.98	2.90	5.01	2.94		
Other information						
Closing net asset value (£000)	1	1	1,242	64		
Closing number of shares	1,000	1,000	1,148,795	61,728		
Operating charges (%)** Direct transaction costs (%)***	0.31 [†]	0.32 [†]	0.34†	0.35 [†]		
	_	_	_	_		
Prices	105.45	102 CE	110.00	105 50		
lighest share price (p) .owest share price (p)	105.45 99.37	103.65 95.67	110.60 103.09	105.50 96.30		
owest share price (p)	33.37	55.07	103.03	30.30		
	Class (1 – Gross income shares	Class Q –	Gross accumulation share		
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024 ¹	31/10/2024	30/04/20241		
Change in net assets per share						
mange in het accete per chare						
•	99.27	100.00	103.02	100.00		
)pening net asset value per share (p)	99.27 5.11	100.00 3.14	103.02 5.35	100.00 3.24		
)pening net asset value per share (p) leturn before operating charges (p)						
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p)	5.11	3.14	5.35	3.24		
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)*	5.11 (0.13)	3.14 (0.19)	5.35 (0.15)	3.24 (0.22)		
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p)	5.11 (0.13) 4.98	3.14 (0.19) 2.95	5.35 (0.15) 5.20	3.24 (0.22) 3.02		
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	5.11 (0.13) 4.98 (2.23)	3.14 (0.19) 2.95 (3.68)	5.35 (0.15) 5.20 (2.35)	3.24 (0.22) 3.02 (3.77)		
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p)	5.11 (0.13) 4.98 (2.23)	3.14 (0.19) 2.95 (3.68)	5.35 (0.15) 5.20 (2.35) 2.35	3.24 (0.22) 3.02 (3.77) 3.77		
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Closing net asset value per share (p) Refer direct transaction costs of (p)	5.11 (0.13) 4.98 (2.23)	3.14 (0.19) 2.95 (3.68)	5.35 (0.15) 5.20 (2.35) 2.35	3.24 (0.22) 3.02 (3.77) 3.77		
Opening net asset value per share (p) Seturn before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Seturn after operating charges (p)* Seturn after operating charges (p)* Seturn after operating charges (p)* Setained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Setosing net asset value per share (p) Setormance	5.11 (0.13) 4.98 (2.23)	3.14 (0.19) 2.95 (3.68)	5.35 (0.15) 5.20 (2.35) 2.35	3.24 (0.22) 3.02 (3.77) 3.77		
Opening net asset value per share (p) Deturn before operating charges (p) Deturn after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Detained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Detained distribut	5.11 (0.13) 4.98 (2.23) — 102.02	3.14 (0.19) 2.95 (3.68) ————————————————————————————————————	5.35 (0.15) 5.20 (2.35) 2.35 108.22	3.24 (0.22) 3.02 (3.77) 3.77 103.02		
Opening net asset value per share (p) Deturn before operating charges (p) Deturn after operating charges (p)* Deturn after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Detained distributions on accumulation shares (p) Detained distribution shares (p) Detained distribution shares (p) Detained distrib	5.11 (0.13) 4.98 (2.23) — 102.02	3.14 (0.19) 2.95 (3.68) ————————————————————————————————————	5.35 (0.15) 5.20 (2.35) 2.35 108.22	3.24 (0.22) 3.02 (3.77) 3.77 103.02		
pening net asset value per share (p) deturn before operating charges (p) deturn after operating charges (p)* deturn after operating charges (p)* deturn after operating charges (p)* detained distributions on accumulation shares (p) deter direct transaction costs of (p) deterformance deturn after charges (%) dether information dissing net asset value (£000)	5.11 (0.13) 4.98 (2.23) - 102.02 - 5.02	3.14 (0.19) 2.95 (3.68) ————————————————————————————————————	5.35 (0.15) 5.20 (2.35) 2.35 108.22	3.24 (0.22) 3.02 (3.77) 3.77 103.02		
pening net asset value per share (p) eturn before operating charges (p) perating charges (p) eturn after operating charges (p)* istributions (p) etained distributions on accumulation shares (p) losing net asset value per share (p) after direct transaction costs of (p) erformance eturn after charges (%) ther information losing net asset value (£000) losing number of shares perating charges (%)**	5.11 (0.13) 4.98 (2.23) - 102.02 - 5.02	3.14 (0.19) 2.95 (3.68) — 99.27 — 2.95	5.35 (0.15) 5.20 (2.35) 2.35 108.22 - 5.05	3.24 (0.22) 3.02 (3.77) 3.77 103.02 - 3.02		
pening net asset value per share (p) leturn before operating charges (p) leturn after operating charges (p)* leturn after operating charges (p)* leturn after operating charges (p)* letained distributions on accumulation shares (p) leter infermation losing net asset value (£000) letaing number of shares letained charges (%)**	5.11 (0.13) 4.98 (2.23) — 102.02 — 5.02	3.14 (0.19) 2.95 (3.68) — 99.27 — 2.95	5.35 (0.15) 5.20 (2.35) 2.35 108.22 - 5.05 28,975 26,775,083	3.24 (0.22) 3.02 (3.77) 3.77 103.02 - 3.02 28,324 27,495,064		
pening net asset value per share (p) leturn before operating charges (p) leturn after operating charges (p)* leturn after operating charges (p)* leturn after operating charges (p)* letained distributions on accumulation shares (p) leter direct transaction costs of (p) leter formance leturn after charges (%) lether information losing net asset value (£000) losing number of shares letained charges (%)*** lirect transaction costs (%)***	5.11 (0.13) 4.98 (2.23) — 102.02 — 5.02 1 1,000 0.25	3.14 (0.19) 2.95 (3.68) — 99.27 — 2.95	5.35 (0.15) 5.20 (2.35) 2.35 108.22 - 5.05 28,975 26,775,083 0.27	3.24 (0.22) 3.02 (3.77) 3.77 103.02 - 3.02 28,324 27,495,064 0.26 ¹		
Opening net asset value per share (p) Return before operating charges (p) Operating charges (p) Return after operating charges (p)* Distributions (p) Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	5.11 (0.13) 4.98 (2.23) — 102.02 — 5.02 1 1,000 0.25	3.14 (0.19) 2.95 (3.68) — 99.27 — 2.95	5.35 (0.15) 5.20 (2.35) 2.35 108.22 - 5.05 28,975 26,775,083 0.27	3.24 (0.22) 3.02 (3.77) 3.77 103.02 - 3.02 28,324 27,495,064 0.26 ¹		

Comparative Table Disclosure

		Class X – Gross income shares		Class X – Gross accumulation shares	
	31/10/2024	30/04/20241	31/10/2024	30/04/20241	
Change in net assets per share Opening net asset value per share (p)	99.40	100.00	103.12	100.00	
Return before operating charges (p)	5.13	3.12	5.34	3.21	
Operating charges (p)	(0.01)	(0.04)	(0.05)	(0.09)	
Return after operating charges (p)*	5.12	3.08	5.29	3.12	
Distributions (p)	(2.24)	(3.68)	(2.35)	(3.76)	
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)	(2.24)	(3.00)	2.35	3.76	
Closing net asset value per share (p)	102.28	99.40	108.41	103.12	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)			_	_	
Performance					
Return after charges (%)	5.15	3.08	5.13	3.12	
Other information					
Closing net asset value (£000)	1	1	27,563	26,159	
Closing number of shares	1,000	1,000	25,424,706	25,367,594	
Operating charges (%)**	0.01 [†]	0.05 [†]	0.09 [†]	0.10 [†]	
Direct transaction costs (%)***	_	-	_	_	
Prices	105.70	100.74	110.00	105.00	
Highest share price (p) Lowest share price (p)	105.76 99.55	103.74 95.70	110.89 103.27	105.62 96.36	
Lowest share price (p)	99.00	55.70	103.27	30.30	
	Class Z	– Gross income shares	Class Z –	Gross accumulation shares	
	31/10/2024	30/04/2024 ¹	31/10/2024	30/04/20241	
Change in net assets per share					
Opening net asset value per share (p)	99.18	100.00	102.90	100.00	
Return before operating charges (p)	5.12	3.14	5.33	3.25	
Operating charges (p)	(0.19)	(0.28)	(0.20)	(0.35)	
Return after operating charges (p)*	4.93	2.86	5.13	2.90	
Distributions (p)	(2.23)	(3.68)	(2.34)	(3.77)	
Retained distributions on accumulation shares (p)		<u> </u>	2.34	3.77	
Closing net asset value per share (p)	101.88	99.18	108.03	102.90	
*after direct transaction costs of (p)	-	-	_	-	
Performance					
Return after charges (%)	4.97	2.86	4.99	2.90	
Other information					
Closing net asset value (£000)	1	1	4,049	7,249	
Closing number of shares	1,000	1,000	3,748,212	7,044,465	
Operating charges (%)**	0.36 [†]	0.33 [†]	0.37 [†]	0.40 [†]	
Direct transaction costs (%)***					
	-	-	_	_	
Prices	-		-	_	
Prices Highest share price (p) Lowest share price (p)	- 105.39 99.33	- 103.63 95.64	- 110.54 103.05	- 105.47 96.30	

^{**}The Operating charges are represented by the Ongoing Charges Figure (OCF) which is the European standard method of disclosing the charges of a share class of a fund based on the financial year's expenses and may vary from year to year. It includes charges such as the fund's annual management charge, registration fee, custody fees and distribution cost but ordinarily excludes the costs of buying or selling assets for the fund (unless these assets are shares of another fund). Where published, the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) contains the current OCF. For a more detailed breakdown please visit columbiathreadneedle.com/fees.

^{***}Transaction costs have not been reduced by any amounts collected from dilution levies/adjustments.

¹Commenced 28 June 2023.

¹The Ongoing Charges Figure is annualised based on the fees incurred during the accounting period or since commencement date.

Highest and Lowest share prices are based on official published daily NAVs priced at 12 noon on the last business day of the period on a mid basis. The closing net asset value per share is at close of business on a bid basis.

Notes to the financial statements

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of investments, in compliance with FRS 102 and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (SORP) issued by the Investment Management Association in May 2014. The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2024 and are described in those financial statements.

(b) Notes

In accordance with the guidelines of the SORP the fund has taken advantage of the facility not to provide further notes to the financial statements.

2 RECONCILIATION OF SHARES

	2024
Class 2 – Gross income shares	
Opening shares	1,000
Shares issued	-
Shares redeemed	-
Net conversions	
Closing shares	1,000
Class 2 – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	61,728
Shares issued	1,413,952
Shares redeemed	(326,885)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	1,148,795
Class Q – Gross income shares	
Opening shares	1,000
Shares issued	-
Shares redeemed	-
Net conversions	
Closing shares	1,000
Class Q – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	27,495,064
Shares issued	8,097,201
Shares redeemed	(8,821,809)
Net conversions	4,627
Closing shares	26,775,083
Class X – Gross income shares	
Opening shares	1,000
Shares issued	1,000
Shares redeemed	
Net conversions	_
Closing shares	1,000
•	1,000
Class X – Gross accumulation shares	05 067 504
Opening shares	25,367,594
Shares issued Shares redeemed	2,334,152
Net conversions	(2,272,421)
	(4,619)
Closing shares	25,424,706
Class Z – Gross income shares	
Opening shares	1,000
Shares issued	-
Shares redeemed	-
Net conversions	
Closing shares	1,000
Class Z – Gross accumulation shares	
Opening shares	7,044,465
Shares issued	1,543,051
Shares redeemed	(4,839,304)
Net conversions	
Closing shares	3,748,212

3 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

The table below shows net redemptions between the period-ended 31 October 2024 and 10 December 2024 as a percentage of the closing NAV for share classes with significant movements. This change is reflective of conditions that arose after the period-end and hence is considered a non-adjusting event.

CT UK Mid 250 Fund

Portfolio Statement

as at 31 October 2024

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value	Ualdina	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
nolulily	nivesunent	1000	Value	Holding	Investment	1000	Value
BASIC MATERIAL				INDUSTRIALS 35.			
COO E77	Chemicals 1.82% (1.91%)	020	1.00	040.000	Aerospace and Defence 3.25% (4.00		4.40
689,577	Elementis	920	1.82	210,890	Chemring Group	748	1.48
	Industrial Metals and Mining 2.05% (2	2.14%)		677,052	Senior	896	1.77
51,178	Hill & Smith Holdings	1,039	2.05		Construction and Materials 6.61% (4.18%)	
	Total Basic Materials	1,959	3.87	141,685	Breedon Aggregates	623	1.23
		.,		301,492	Genuit Group	1,413	2.79
CONSUMER DISC	RETIONARY 23.68% (23.08%)*			385,936	Marshalls	1,312	2.59
OONSONIEN DISC	Household Goods and Home Construc	etion 1 50% (5 5	(4%)				
359,026	Crest Nicholson Holdings	608	1.20		Electronic and Electrical Equipmen	nt 6.92% (7.88%)*	
152,599	†Victoria	152	0.30	101,350	discoverIE Group	673	1.33
102,000	Victoria	132	0.50	41,237	Oxford Instruments	887	1.75
	Leisure Goods 4.48% (3.72%)			46,894	Spectris	1,179	2.33
13,461	Games Workshop Group	1,610	3.18	62,459	XP Power	763	1.51
280,754	†Team17 Group	660	1.30			, <u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	
				107.100	Industrial Engineering 2.01% (2.67%		1.00
	Media 5.63% (3.87%)*			127,409	Bodycote	706	1.39
140,997	Future	1,237	2.44	371,640	Xaar	312	0.62
702,624	Reach	648	1.28		Industrial Support Services 15.08%	(15 16%)*	
209,150	†YouGov	970	1.91	1,415,573	†Equals Group	1,727	3.41
	D . II			424,638	Essentra	630	1.24
	Retailers 8.09% (3.32%)		4 = 0	492,153	†Globaldata	984	1.94
72,376	Dunelm Group	804	1.59	104,250	Grafton Group	1,044	2.06
472,402	Moonpig Group	1,179	2.33	676,367	†Knights Group Holdings	842	1.66
333,984	Pets at Home Group	989	1.95	155,918	†Marlowe	522	1.03
85,197	WH Smith	1,124	2.22	151,944	PayPoint	1,170	2.31
	Travel and Leisure 3.98% (6.63%)				WAG Payment Solutions	725	1.43
65,548	†Jet2	942	1.86	901,242	WAG Fayinent Solutions	720	1.43
664,627	SSP Group	1,072	2.12		Industrial Transportation 1.56% (1.8	1%)	
004,027	•			22,553	Clarkson	793	1.56
	Total Consumer Discretionary	11,995	23.68	,	Total Industrials	17,949	35.43
CONCURATE CTAE	N FC 2 0C0/ /2 4C0/ \						
CONSUMER STAP	PLES 3.96% (3.46%)			REAL ESTATE 6.10	1% (5 94 %)		
04.004	Food Producers 1.49% (1.80%)	757	1.10	ILAL LOTATE 0.10	Real Estate Investment Trusts 6.10%	((5 94%)	
84,224	Hilton Food Group	757	1.49	1,147,150	Shaftesbury Capital	1,557	3.07
	Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stor	res 2 47% (1 66	96)	277,067	Workspace Group	1,532	3.03
394,229	†Kitwave Group	1,252	2.47	211,001	Total Real Estate	3.089	6.10
001,220	Total Consumer Staples	2.009	3.96		Iulai neai Estate	3,003	0.10
	iotai consumer stapies	2,003	3.30	TEQUE 00 00 00 00	50/ /44 540/*		
FINANCIALO 4 4 4	20/ (40 040/)			TECHNOLOGY 9.0	, ,		
FINANCIALS 14.46	• •				Software and Computer Services 8.		
	Finance and Credit Services 0.00% (2.	.01%)		935,947	†1Spatial	636	1.26
	Investment Banking and Brokerage S	ervices 1/1 //6%	(10 83%)	192,646	Auction Technology Group	868	1.71
538,104	Bridgepoint Group	1,677	3.31	102,230	†FD Technology	1,783	3.52
316,856	• .	1,473	2.91	113,519	Kainos Group	848	1.67
88,215	Foresight Group Holdings JTC	907	1.79		Technology Hardware and Equipme	ant N 880/- /N NNo/ \	*
207,475	†Manolete Partners	224		401 201	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		
			0.44	401,301	Alphawave IP Group	447	0.88
203,991	Molten Ventures	694	1.37		Total Technology	4,582	9.04
1,025,324	Quilter	1,470	2.90				
	Rathbone Brothers	882	1.74				
53,019	Total Financials	7,327	14.46				

2.45

2.45

1,240

1,240

Pharmaceuticals and Biotechnology 2.45% (0.70%)

311,620

Oxford Biomedica

Total Health Care

CT UK Mid 250 Fund

Portfolio Statement

(continued)

			% of
		Value	Net Asset
Holding	Investment	£000	Value

TELECOMMUNICATIONS 0.00% (2.24%)

Telecommunications Equipment 0.00% (2.24%)

total felecommunications		
Total value of investments	50,150	98.99
Net other assets (0.58%)	511	1.01
Net assets	50,661	100.00

April 2024 comparatives in brackets.

Total Purchases and Sales

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024	2023
	£000	£000
Total purchases for the period	10,244	5,184
Total sales for the period	16.143	5.840

[†]Alternative Investment Market.

^{*}During the period there has been a change in sector names and as a consequence of this the comparative percentage figures at 30 April 2024 may have been amended.

CT UK Sustainable Equity Fund

Portfolio Statement

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
BASIC MATERIAL	S 4.76% (5.82%)				Life Insurance 4.13% (4.75%)		
	Chemicals 3.49% (4.35%)			283,080	Just Group	379	1.46
11,094	Croda International	411	1.58	231,800	Legal & General Group	503	1.94
23,334	Johnson Matthey	347	1.34	29,678	Prudential	191	0.73
17,528	Victrex	149	0.57		Total Financials	5,085	19.57
	Industrial Metals and Mining 1.27% (1	.47%)		HEALTH CARE 15.	49% (18 82%)		
19,090	Antofagasta	331	1.27	HEAETH OAHE 15.	Medical Equipment and Services 1.64	% (1 65%)	
	Total Basic Materials	1,238	4.76	44,294	Smith & Nephew	425	1.64
CONSUMER DISC	RETIONARY 19.86% (18.67%)				Pharmaceuticals and Biotechnology 1	3.85% (17.17%	6)
	Consumer Services 4.14% (3.77%)			19,769	AstraZeneca	2,183	8.40
42,764	Compass Group	1,075	4.14	15,291	Genus	319	1.23
,		,		78,859	GSK	1,098	4.22
	Household Goods and Home Construc	tion 3.16% (3.02	!%)		Total Health Care	4,025	15.49
9,990	Bellway	283	1.09				
8,286	Berkeley Group Holdings (London			INDUSTRIALS 21.	64% (20.96%)		
	Exchange)	367	1.41		Construction and Materials 1.34% (2.20	1%)	
101,785	Crest Nicholson Holdings	172	0.66	102,418	Marshalls	348	1.34
	Media 10.31% (9.17%)				Electronic and Electrical Equipment ()	000/ /1 120/ \	
38,148	Future	335	1.29	8,878	Electronic and Electrical Equipment 0.	223	0.86
62,215	Informa	503	1.93	0,070	Spectris	223	0.00
45,538	Pearson	519	2.00		General Industrials 2.75% (1.67%)		
37,136	RELX (London listing)	1,322	5.09	527,629	Coats Group	500	1.93
	Personal Goods 0.95% (1.12%)			5,295	Smurfit Westrock	212	0.82
31,579	Burberry Group	247	0.95		Industrial Engineering 2.70% (3.25%)		
				44,806	Bodycote	248	0.95
	Travel and Leisure 1.30% (1.59%)			21,818	Weir Group	456	1.75
209,454	SSP Group	338	1.30	21,010	vvcii dioap	430	1.75
	Total Consumer Discretionary	5,161	19.86	000.005	Industrial Support Services 11.76% (11		
CONCUMED STAD	JEC 11 069/ /10 139/ \			306,005	†Equals Group	373	1.44
CUIVOUIVIER STAF	PLES 11.06% (10.13%)			23,328	Experian	881	3.39
60.074	Food Producers 1.74% (1.51%)	453	1.74	3,184	Ferguson Enterprises	488	1.88
60,374	Tate & Lyle	403	1.74	123,225	†Johnson Service Group	184	0.71
	Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Store	es 9.32% (8.62%	a)	171,555	[†] Knights Group Holdings [†] Marlowe	214 124	0.82
13,724	Reckitt Benckiser Group	643	2.48	36,943 143,231	Rentokil Initial	555	0.48 2.13
37,572	Unilever	1,777	6.84	33,950	RS Group	236	0.91
,	Total Consumer Staples	2,873	11.06	33,330	no droup	230	0.51
	ional concumor compress			40.007	Industrial Transportation 2.23% (1.07%		0.00
ENERGY 0.64% (0.	56%)			10,027	Ashtead Group	580	2.23
	Alternative Energy 0.64% (0.56%)				Total Industrials	5,622	21.64
82,362	Ceres Power Holdings	165	0.64				
	Total Energy	165	0.64	REAL ESTATE 3.29	9% (3.13%) Real Estate Investment Trusts 3.29% (3	13%)	
FINANCIAL C 40 FT	10/ (47 220/)			19,330	Derwent London	423	1.63
FINANCIALS 19.57				318,355	Shaftesbury Capital	432	1.66
242.072	Banks 6.30% (5.20%)	002	2.44	210,000	Total Real Estate	855	3.29
243,073	NatWest Group	893	3.44		Total ficul Estate	000	0.23
82,490	Standard Chartered	743	2.86	TECHNOLOGY 2.4	1% (1.81%)		
	Finance and Credit Services 4.43% (3.6				Software and Computer Services 2.419	% (1. 81 %)	
10,942	London Stock Exchange Group	1,150	4.43	431,865	†1Spatial	294	1.13
	Investment Penking and Probagging	muio o o 4 740/ /	C00/\	19,072	†FD Technology	332	1.28
64,889	Investment Banking and Brokerage Se Foresight Group Holdings	302 ervices 4.71%	3. 60%) 1.16		Total Technology	626	2.41
25,770	Intermediate Capital Group	531	2.04				
25,770 202,771	M&G	393	2.04 1.51				
202,771	mao	333	1.31				

CT UK Sustainable Equity Fund

Portfolio Statement

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
TELECOMMUNICA	ATIONS 2.25% (1.64%)		
	Telecommunications Service Providers	s 2.25% (1.64%	6)
422,375	British Telecommunications Group	584	2.25
	Total Telecommunications	584	2.25
Total value of invest	ments	26,234	100.97
Net other (liabilities)/assets (1.24%)	(251)	(0.97)
Net assets		25,983	100.00
April 2024 comparat	ives in brackets.		
[†] Alternative Investme			
Total Purchases a	and Sales		
for the accounting per	iod 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024		
,	•	2024	2023
		£000	£000
Total purchases for t	the period	1,283	12,303
Total sales for the pe	eriod	110,134	7,825

CT UK Equity Alpha Income Fund

Portfolio Statement

			% of				% of
		Value	Net Asset			Value	Net Asset
Holding	Investment	£000	Value	Holding	Investment	£000	Value
BASIC MATERIAL	S 3.56% (4.39%)*				Industrial Support Services 12.43% (12	2.33%)	
27.010 1 1 1	Chemicals 2.00% (2.39%)			2,907,400	Hays	2,250	1.89
160,307	Johnson Matthey	2,385	2.00	1,071,380	Rentokil Initial	4,148	3.48
,	,	•		720,019	RS Group	5,001	4.19
	Industrial Metals and Mining 1.56% (2	2.00%)		424,279	Travis Perkins	3,426	2.87
691,864	Castings	1,854	1.56				
	Total Basic Materials	4,239	3.56	1 000 010	Industrial Transportation 3.63% (3.04%		0.00
				1,282,618	International Distribution Services	4,322	3.63
CONSUMER DISC	RETIONARY 11.46% (10.19%) Media 9.05% (8.66%)				Total Industrials	24,604	20.64
6,180,670	ITV	4,567	3.83	REAL ESTATE 3.85	i% (4.18%)		
546,262	Pearson	6,225	5.22		Real Estate Investment Trusts 3.85% (4	.18%)	
				2,365,968	Londonmetric Property REIT	4,588	3.85
202.422	Personal Goods 2.41% (1.53%)				Total Real Estate	4,588	3.85
366,103	Burberry Group	2,866	2.41				
	Total Consumer Discretionary	13,658	11.46	TELECOMMUNICA	ATIONS 2.94% (2.28%)	0.000/ /0.000	
CONCLIMED STAD	LES 26.00% (21.95%)			0.500.700	Telecommunications Service Provider		•
CONSOIVIER STAF	Food Producers 3.60% (2.76%)			2,536,763	British Telecommunications Group	3,507	2.94
571,644	Tate & Lyle	4,287	3.60		Total Telecommunications	3,507	2.94
	Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stor	oc 15 /15% /12	E00/- \	UTILITIES 2.76% (3.11%)		
1,637,099	Marks & Spencer	6,144	5.15		Gas, Water and Multi-utilities 2.76% (3	3.11%)	
1,110,785	Tesco	3,801	3.19	2,806,783	Centrica	3,292	2.76
179,125	Unilever	8,473	7.11		Total Utilities	3,292	2.76
.,,,,,	S	0,0	****				
	Tobacco 6.95% (5.69%)			COLLECTIVE INVE	STMENT SCHEMES 0.00% (1.20%)		
354,624	Imperial Brands	8,288	6.95		Liquidity Funds 0.00% (1.20%) ¹		
	Total Consumer Staples	30,993	26.00	5,916	BlackRock Institutional Cash Series		
					Sterling Liquidity Platinum	6	_
FINANCIALS 16.43					Total Collective Investment Schemes	6	
	Investment Banking and Brokerage So			Total value of invest	-manta?	120,886	101.40
346,268	Hargreaves Lansdown	3,766	3.16	Net other liabilities		(1,670)	(1.40)
4,413,788	Sherborne Investors Guernsey	2,180	1.83	Net assets	(-0.07 /0)	119,216	100.00
	Life Insurance 6.10% (6.65%)			1461 022612		113,210	100.00
1,635,315	Legal & General Group	3,549	2.98	April 2024 comparat	ives in brackets.		
758,350	Phoenix Group Holdings	3,725	3.12	*During the period th	nere has been a change in sector name	s and as a co	nsequence
				of this the comparat	ive percentage figures at 30 April 2024 m	ay have been	amended.
	Non-life Insurance 5.34% (6.34%)			¹ Cash equivalents.			
1,970,663	Direct Line Group	3,236	2.71	² Includes Cash equiv	alents.		
290,018	Hiscox	3,135	2.63				
	Total Financials	19,591	16.43	Total Purchases a			
				for the accounting per	iod 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024	2004	0000
HEALTH CARE 13.7		(0.0=0()				2024	2023
007 444	Medical Equipment and Services 2.96			Total purchases for t	the naried	£000 9,999	£000 21,646
367,414	Smith & Nephew	3,530	2.96	Total sales for the pe	· ·	19,013	48,535
	Pharmaceuticals and Biotechnology 1	10.80% (12.12%	6)	Total sales for the pe	51104	13,010	40,303
36,607	AstraZeneca	4,042	3.39				
459,815	GSK	6,401	5.37				
131,250	Hikma Pharmaceuticals	2,435	2.04				
	Total Health Care	16,408	13.76				
INDUCTRUS C.S.	240/ /00 000/ *						
INDUSTRIALS 20.6		FC0/ /0.040/ \					
404.0**	Electronic and Electrical Equipment 2		0.50				
184,940	IMI	3,052	2.56				
	General Industrials 2.02% (2.71%)						
157,312	Smiths Group	2,405	2.02				
,	•	,					

CT Sterling Medium and Long-Dated Corporate Bond Fund

Portfolio Statement

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
AUSTRALIA 0.00%	o (1.23%) BBB+ 0.00% (0.30%)			NETHERLANDS 0.	00% (4.10%) BBB+ 0.00% (2.43%)		
	BBB 0.00% (0.93%) Total Australia				BBB 0.00% (1.10%)		
CAYMAN ISLAND	S 0.00% (1.80%) A 0.00% (0.37%)				Not Rated 0.00% (0.57%) Total Netherlands		
	BBB 0.00% (1.02%)			REPUBLIC OF IRE	LAND 0.00% (4.13%) A+ 0.00% (0.77%)		
	Not Rated 0.00% (0.41%) Total Cayman Islands	_	_		BBB+ 0.00% (1.17%) Baa2 0.00% (0.66%)		
FRANCE 0.00% (6.3	39%) AA 0.00% (0.76%)				Liquidity Funds 0.00% (1.53%) Total Republic of Ireland		
	A+ 0.00% (0.67%)			SINGAPORE 0.00%	% (0.26 %)		
	A 0.00% (0.33%)				AAA 0.00% (0.26%)		
	A- 0.00% (0.37%)				Total Singapore		
	BBB+ 0.00% (1.19%)			SPAIN 0.00% (0.47			
	BBB 0.00% (2.68%)				BBB- 0.00% (0.47%) Total Spain		
	Baa2 0.00% (0.39%) Total France			SUPRANATIONAL	. 0.00% (5.06%) AAA 0.00% (5.06%)		
GERMANY 0.00%	(4.41%) AAA 0.00% (2.65%)				Total Supranational		_
	BBB+ 0.00% (0.98%)			UNITED KINGDOM	/I 0.00% (55.62%) AAA 0.00% (0.50%)		
	BBB 0.00% (0.78%) Total Germany				Aa1 0.00% (0.28%)		
	•				AA 0.00% (2.24%)		
ITALY 0.00% (1.01%	%) BBB 0.00% (1.01%)				Aa3 0.00% (0.85%)		
	Total Italy		_		Aa3u 0.00% (2.91%)		
JERSEY 0.00% (2.1	18%)				A+ 0.00% (4.07%)		
	AA- 0.00% (0.31%)				A 0.00% (3.17%)		
	BBB+ 0.00% (0.99%)				A2 0.00% (1.11%)		
	BBB 0.00% (0.45%)				A- 0.00% (5.66%)		
	(P)BBB 0.00% (0.21%)				A3 0.00% (0.23%)		
	BBB- 0.00% (0.22%)				BBB+ 0.00% (15.32%)		
	Total Jersey				Baa1 0.00% (1.78%)		
LUXEMBOURG 0.0					BBB 0.00% (5.81%)		
	BBB+ 0.00% (1.04%) Total Luxembourg				Baa2 0.00% (1.20%)		
MEVICO O DOO! /O	200/ \				BBB- 0.00% (5.39%)		
MEXICO 0.00% (0.2	26%) A- 0.00% (0.26%)				Not Rated 0.00% (5.10%)		
	Total Mexico	_	_		Total United Kingdom		_

CT Sterling Medium and Long-Dated Corporate Bond Fund

Portfolio Statement

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
UNITED STATES (DF AMERICA 0.00% (7.66%) AA+ 0.00% (0.27%)		
	AA- 0.00% (0.69%)		
	A 0.00% (0.68%)		
	A- 0.00% (0.24%)		
	BBB+ 0.00% (2.39%)		
	BBB 0.00% (2.48%)		
	BBB- 0.00% (0.91%)		
	Total United States of America		
Total value of invest	ments	_	_
Net other assets (4.3	38%)	17	100.00
Net assets		17	100.00
April 2024 comparat	ives in brackets.		
Total Purchases a	and Sales		
for the accounting per	iod 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024		
		2024	2023
		£000	£000
Total purchases for t	the period	6,895	57,080
Total sales for the pe	eriod	193,752	68,696

Portfolio Statement

	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value		Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
AUSTR	ALIA 2.119	% (1.97%)			FRAN	CE 6.89% (5.	.86%)		
		Aa3 1.39% (1.05%)					A+ 4.06% (2.54%)		
EUR	343,000	NBN Company 4.125% 15/03/2029	301	0.37	GBP	500,000	Banque Fédérative du Crédit Mutuel		
USD	200,000	NBN Company 4.25% 01/10/2029	152	0.18			5% 22/10/2029	498	0.61
USD	859,000	NBN Company 5.75% 06/10/2028	690	0.84	GBP	400,000	Banque Fédérative du Crédit Mutuel		
		A 0.700/ (0.000/)					5.375% 25/05/2028	405	0.49
ODD	070.000	A- 0.72% (0.92%)			GBP	1,500,000	*BNP Paribas 6% 18/08/2029	1,542	1.88
GBP	2/8,000	*Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Variable 16/09/2031	259	0.32	GBP	500,000	BPCE 4.875% 22/10/2030	490	0.60
GBP	357,000	*National Australia Bank Variable	233	0.32	GBP	400,000	Credit Agricole 4.875% 23/10/2029	397	0.48
GD1	037,000	15/09/2031	333	0.40			A 0.00% (0.39%)		
		Total Australia	1,735	2.11			71 0.00 /0 (0.00 /0)		
		_	.,				A- 0.12% (0.71%)		
RFIGII	JM 0.49% (0.76%)			GBP	100,000	*Credit Agricole 5.375% 15/01/2029	100	0.12
DELGIC	7111 O. 13 /0 (A- 0.12% (0.49%)					DDD 0.000/ /4.700/ \		
GBP	100 000	*KBC Groep Variable 20/09/2028	101	0.12	GBP	200.000	BBB+ 0.22% (1.72%)	105	0.00
OD.	100,000	1100 0100p variable 20/00/2020	101	0.12	GDP	200,000	*Credit Agricole Variable 09/12/2031	185	0.22
		BBB 0.37% (0.27%)					BBB 2.18% (0.50%)		
GBP	300,000	*KBC Group 6.151% 19/03/2034	303	0.37	GBP	300,000	*BPCE Variable 30/11/2032	271	0.33
		Total Belgium	404	0.49	EUR	1,000,000	Electricite de France 4.125%		
		_					17/06/2031	872	1.06
BERMU	JDA 0.45%	(0.39%)			GBP	300,000	*La Banque Postale Variable		
		BBB- 0.45% (0.39%)					21/09/2028	300	0.37
USD	480,000	Bacardi 4.7% 15/05/2028	369	0.45	EUR	394,000	WPP Finance 4.125% 30/05/2028	342	0.42
		Total Bermuda	369	0.45			Ba2 0.31% (0.00%)		
		_			EUR	300,000	Iliad 4.25% 15/12/2029	253	0.31
CANAD	OA 0.48% (0	0.58%)			LOIT	000,000	Total France	5,655	6.89
		A 0.00% (0.30%)					Total Trailed		
					GERM	IANY 5.61%	(8 37%)		
000	000 000	A- 0.48% (0.28%)			GE.III.	J. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1.	AAA 2.68% (5.64%)		
GBP	388,000	Toronto-Dominion Bank 5.288% 11/01/2028	390	0.48	GBP	306,000	KFW 0.75% 07/12/2027	274	0.33
			390	0.48	GBP	2,069,000	KFW 0.875% 15/09/2026	1,933	2.35
		Total Canada	390	U.48		,,		,	
CAVBA	ALICIANI	3C 4 F40/ /2 400/ \					BBB+ 0.73% (0.67%)		
CAYIVIA	AN ISLANL	DDD 0.00% (2.18%)			EUR	500,000	Vonovia 0.25% 01/09/2028	376	0.46
		BBB 0.00% (2.18%)			EUR	300,000	Vonovia 0.5% 14/09/2029	220	0.27
		BBB- 1.51% (0.00%)					Baa1 0.31% (0.34%)		
GBP	714,000	Southern Water Services 1.625%			EUR	300,000	Amprion 3.45% 22/09/2027	256	0.31
		30/03/2027	598	0.73	LOIT	300,000	Amphon 3.43 /0 22/03/2021	230	0.51
GBP	291,000	Southern Water Services 2.375%					BBB 1.14% (0.73%)		
		28/05/2028	237	0.29	EUR	400,000	*Commerzbank 5.25% 25/03/2029	357	0.44
GBP	434,000		400	0.40	GBP	400,000	*Deutsche Bank 6.125% 12/12/2030	406	0.49
		31/03/2026	403	0.49	EUR	200,000	Eurogrid 3.598% 01/02/2029	171	0.21
		Total Cayman Islands	1,238	1.51			DDD 0.050/ /0.000/)		
					CDD	E00 000	BBB- 0.65% (0.32%) *Commerzbank 8.625% 28/02/2033	EDE	0.05
DENM	ARK 1.18%				GBP	500,000	"Commerzbank 8.625% 28/02/2033	535	0.65
		A+ 0.86% (0.84%)					BB+ 0.10% (0.67%)		
GBP	682,000	*Danske Bank 6.5% 23/08/2028	707	0.86	EUR	100,000	Alstria Office REIT 0.5% 26/09/2025	81	0.10
		A- 0.32% (0.00%)					Total Germany	4,609	5.61
GBP	277,000		260	0.32			,		
	,,,,,,,		200	0.02	GREE	CE 0.17% (0.	00%)		
		BBB+ 0.00% (0.20%)					BB+ 0.17% (0.00%)		
		Total Denmark	967	1.18	EUR	150.000	*Eurobank Variable 28/11/2029	136	0.17
		_				,	Total Greece	136	0.17
FINLAN	ID 0.32% (0.00%)						100	3.17
	,	AA- 0.32% (0.00%)							
GBP	271,000	Nordea Bank 4.5% 12/10/2029	265	0.32					
		Total Finland	265	0.32					
		_							

Portfolio Statement

	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value		Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
JERSE	Y 2.36% (1.	65%)					BB+ 0.30% (0.23%)		
OLIIOL	.1 2.30 /0 (1.	Aa2 0.32% (0.00%)			EUR	300,000	ZF Europe Finance 4.75% 31/01/2029	246	0.30
USD	500,000	Galaxy Pipeline Assets 2.16%					N - 4 D - 4 - 1 0 720/ /0 F20/ \		
		31/03/2034	261	0.32	EUR	800,000	Not Rated 0.73% (0.52%) *Triodos Bank Variable 05/02/2032	599	0.73
		BBB+ 1.10% (0.94%)			Lon	000,000	Total Netherlands	4,880	5.94
GBP	269,000	Heathrow Funding 6.75% 03/12/2026	277	0.33			-		
GBP	599,000	Heathrow Funding 7.075% 04/08/2028	633	0.77	PORT	UGAL 0.64%			
		BBB 0.94% (0.47%)			EUR	3,100,000	Not Rated 0.64% (0.25%) Banco Espirito Santo 4% 21/01/2019		
GBP	320,000	CPUK Finance 5.876% 28/02/2047	320	0.39	LOIT	3,100,000	(Defaulted)	524	0.64
GBP	458,000	CPUK Finance Variable 28/08/2025	451	0.55			Total Portugal	524	0.64
		(P)BBB 0.00% (0.24%)					-		
		Total Jersey	1,942	2.36	REPUI	BLIC OF IRE	LAND 3.29% (3.44%) A 0.00% (0.26%)		
LUXEN	/IBOURG 1.3	74% (2.43%)					DDD 0.000/ /0.000/)		
		BBB+ 0.52% (0.84%)			USD	329,000	BBB+ 0.32% (0.25%) Johnson Controls 5.5% 19/04/2029	263	0.32
GBP	400,000	Aroundtown 3.625% 10/04/2031	336	0.41	USD	323,000	3011115011 C011111015 3.3 // 19/04/2029	203	0.32
EUR	100,000	Grand City Properties 4.375%		0.44			Baa1 1.80% (0.23%)		
		09/01/2030	86	0.11	GBP	296,000	CA AutoBank 6% 06/12/2026	298	0.36
		BBB 0.36% (0.22%)			EUR	189,000	*Permanent TSB Group 6.625% 30/06/2029	176	0.21
GBP	300,000	Traton Finance Luxembourg 5.625%			EUR	1,115,000		170	0.21
		16/01/2029	298	0.36			25/04/2028	1,006	1.23
		Baa2 0.20% (0.29%)					BBB 0.22% (0.26%)		
EUR	192,000	SELP Finance 3.75% 10/08/2027	164	0.20	USD	217,000		177	0.22
		BBB- 0.50% (1.08%)					Baa2 0.45% (1.05%)		
GBP	442,000	*Aroundtown Finance 8.625%			EUR	461,000	Hammerson Ireland Finance 1.75%		
		07/08/2172	409	0.50	20	.0.,000	03/06/2027	372	0.45
		Not Rated 0.16% (0.00%)					Baa3 0.00% (0.60%)		
EUR	176,000	*Aroundtown Finance 7.125%	104	0.10			2440 0.00 /0 (0.00 /0)		
		16/04/2173 Total Luxembourg	134 1.427	0.16 1.74	000	070.000	BB+ 0.48% (0.52%)		
			1,427	1.74	GBP	376,000	*Bank of Ireland Group 7.594% 06/12/2032	390	0.48
NETHE	RLANDS 5	.94% (6.09%)							
		A- 1.35% (0.78%)			CDD	14.000	Liquidity Funds 0.02% (0.27%) ¹		
GBP	400,000	*Cooperatieve Rabobank U.A. Variable	•••		GBP	14,263	BlackRock Institutional Cash Series Sterling Liquidity Platinum	14	0.02
GBP	200.000	12/07/2028 *ING Groep 4.875% 02/10/2029	369 296	0.45 0.36	GBP	3,648	Insight Liquidity Funds - ILF GBP		
GBP		*ING Groep Variable 07/12/2028	444	0.50			Liquidity Class 3	4	_
02.	000,000	6.666 1442.6 6.7, 12,2026		0.0 .			Total Republic of Ireland	2,700	3.29
FUD	014.000	A3 0.22% (0.50%)	100	0.00	01110	. DODE 0 340	V (0.540)		
EUR	214,000	Wolters Kluwer 3.25% 18/03/2029	183	0.22	SING	APORE 0.719	% (U.54%) A 0.71% (0.54%)		
		BBB+ 1.88% (2.29%)			USD	749,000	Pfizer Investment Enterprises 4.45%		
EUR	157,000	ASR Nederland 3.625% 12/12/2028	135	0.16		.,	19/05/2028	580	0.71
GBP	249,000	Deutsche Telekom International 8.875% 27/11/2028	285	0.35			Total Singapore	580	0.71
GBP	1,200,000	Volkswagen Financial Services	200	0.00					
		1.375% 14/09/2028	1,028	1.25	SPAIN	l 0.84% (0.74	4%) A+ 0.84% (0.74%)		
GBP	100,000	Volkswagen Financial Services 3.25% 13/04/2027	95	0.12	GBP	700.000	*Banco Santander Variable 30/08/2028	693	0.84
		10/04/2021	50	0.12	201	. 50,000	Total Spain	693	0.84
		BBB 0.68% (1.07%)							
GBP	400,000	*ING Groep Variable 6.25% 20/05/2033	405	0.49	SUPR	ANATIONAI	L 8.12% (14.37%)		
EUR	184,000	NE Property 4.25% 21/01/2032	158	0.19			AAA 8.12% (14.37%)		
		BBB- 0.78% (0.70%)			GBP	1,868,000	Asian Development Bank 0.75%	1 000	2.02
EUR	797,000	*Stedin Holding Variable 31/03/2170	637	0.78			07/12/2027	1,669	2.03

Portfolio Statement

	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value		Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
SUPR/		. 8.12% (14.37%) (continued)			GBP	881,000	National Grid Electricity Transmission		
GBP	1,649,000	European Investment Bank 4% 15/02/2029	1,621	1.97	GBP	448,000	4% 08/06/2027 Scottish Hydro Electric 1.5%	854	1.04
GBP	1,283,000	Inter-American Development Bank 2.5% 22/07/2027	1,218	1.48	GBP	312,000	24/03/2028 Unite Group 3.5% 15/10/2028	402 292	0.49 0.36
GBP	2,139,000	International Finance 5.5% 22/07/2026	2,164	2.64	ODI	312,000	·	232	0.30
		Total Supranational	6,672	8.12	GBP	320,000	Baa1 2.47% (0.96%) Bupa Finance 5% 08/12/2026	317	0.39
SWED	EN 0.00% (0). 25 %)			GBP	183,000	*Coventry Building Society 5.875%		
		Baa2 0.00% (0.25%)			GBP	258,000	12/03/2030 *Virgin Money UK Variable 19/08/2031	184 245	0.22 0.30
		Total Sweden			GBP	562,000	Wessex Water Services Finance 5.375% 10/3/2028	550	0.67
SWITZ	ERLAND 1.	23% (1.16%)			GBP	582,000	·	505	0.61
USD	836,000	AA 0.82% (0.90%) Roche Holdings 5.338% 13/11/2028	670	0.82	GBP	221,000		303	0.01
002	333,333	A- 0.41% (0.26%)	0.0	0.02		,	6.375% 15/11/2028	227	0.28
GBP	330,000	*UBS Group 7% 30/09/2027	339	0.41			BBB 5.07% (3.31%)		
		Total Switzerland	1,009	1.23	GBP	230,000	Anglo American Capital 3.375% 11/03/2029	213	0.26
UNITE	D KINGDO	Л 33.67% (31.49%)			GBP	830,000	*BP Capital Markets Variable 22/06/2169 GBP	800	0.97
		Aaa 0.00% (0.13%)			GBP	958,000	Cadent Finance 2.125% 22/09/2028	861	1.05
GBP	E70 000	AA 0.36% (0.35%) Telereal Securitisation 1.3657%			GBP	864,000	*Santander UK Group Holdings 7.482% 29/08/2029	921	1.12
GBP	570,000	10/12/2031	296	0.36	EUR	678,000	Southern Gas Networks 3.5% 16/10/2030	567	0.69
		Aa3u 3.30% (0.00%)			GBP	516,000		400	0.00
GBP	708,000	United Kingdom Gilt 3.75% 07/03/2027	697	0.85	GBP	288,000	10/12/2033 *Virgin Money UK 7.625% 23/08/2029	492 309	0.60 0.38
GBP	2,056,000	United Kingdom Gilt 4% 22/10/2031	2,013	2.45		,	Baa2 0.00% (1.68%)		
CDD	COE 000	A+ 1.68% (1.53%)							
GBP	605,000	Nationwide Building Society 6.125% 21/08/2028	626	0.76	GBP	1,230,000	BBB- 4.09% (6.53%) *Barclays 8.407% 14/11/2032	1,306	1.59
GBP	769,000	Unite USAF II 3.921% 30/06/2025	759	0.92	GBP	1,180,000	Delamare Finance 5.5457% 29/02/2029	550	0.67
		A 1.51% (1.27%)			GBP	506,000			
EUR	328,000	Motability Operations 3.625%			GBP	214 000	02/06/20233 *NatWest Group 7.416% 06/06/2033	516 329	0.63 0.40
0.00		24/07/2029	281	0.34	GBP	493,000	·	329 461	0.40
GBP	925,000	NatWest Markets 6.375% 08/11/2027	958	1.17	GBP		*SSE Variable 14/04/2169	195	0.24
		A- 3.33% (3.38%)					BB+ 0.61% (0.50%)		
GBP	204,000	Anglian Water Services Financing 2.625% 15/06/2027	188	0.23	GBP	1,221,000	*Marstons Issuer 5.1576% 15/10/2027	505	0.61
GBP	360,000	Diageo Finance 2.375% 08/06/2028	332	0.40		, ,			
GBP	1,912,000	*HSBC Holdings Variable 22/07/2028	1,799	2.19	CDD	004.000	BB 0.70% (0.53%)		
GBP	409,000	London Power Networks 6.125%	400	0.54	GBP	994,000	Mitchells & Butlers Finance 6.013% 15/12/2028	574	0.70
		07/06/2027	420	0.51			Co. 1 0 049/ (0 009/)		
		BBB+ 6.93% (7.21%)			EUR	450,000	Caa1 0.94% (0.00%) Thames Water Utilities Finance		
GBP	910,000	Arqiva Financing 7.21% 30/06/2045	959	1.17		,	0.875% 31/01/2028	289	0.35
GBP GBP	441,000 452 000	*Barclays 7.09% 06/11/2029 *Legal & General Group 5.125%	465	0.57	GBP	623,000	Thames Water Utilities Finance 3.5%	400	0.50
ODI	432,000	14/11/2048	443	0.54			25/02/2028	482	0.59
GBP	233,000	*Legal & General Group Variable 26/11/2049	212	0.26			C 0.02% (0.00%)		
GBP	500,000	Liberty Living 3.375% 28/11/2029	455	0.20	GBP	458,000	Thames Water Utilities Finance 4.625% 19/05/2026 (Defaulted)	18	0.02
GBP	864,000	*Lloyds Banking Group Variable							
GBP	1,240,000	12/04/2028 *Mitchells & Butlers Finance	801	0.97			Ca 0.00% (0.04%)		
		15/12/2028	528	0.64	GBP	327,000	Not Rated 2.66% (4.07%) Anglian Water Osprey Finance 2%		
GBP	1,369,000	Mitchells & Butlers Finance 5.574% 15/12/2030	278	0.34	UDI	J21,UUU	31/07/2028	263	0.32

Portfolio Statement

	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value		Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
UNITI	ED KINGDON	M 33.67% (31.49%) (continued)			USD	600,000	Broadcom 5.05% 12/07/2029	470	0.57
GBP	452,000	Newriver REIT 3.5% 07/03/2028	416	0.51	USD	662,000	Diamondback Energy 5.15%		
GBP	1,748,000	United Kingdom Gilt 0.5% 31/01/2029	1,501	1.83			30/01/2030	517	0.63
		Total United Kingdom	27,654	33.67	GBP	521,000	Digital Stout Holdings 3.3% 19/07/2029	476	0.58
					USD	217,000	Foundry JV Holdco 5.9% 25/01/2030	171	0.21
UNITI	ED STATES (OF AMERICA 21.59% (14.25%)			GBP	441,000	General Motors Financial Company 5.5% 12/01/2030	438	0.53
CDD	E00 000	AA+ 1.30% (1.29%)			EUR	277,000	Kraft Heinz Foods 3.5% 15/03/2029	237	0.29
GBP	508,000	Massmutual Global Funding 5% 12/12/2027	508	0.62	USD	532,000	Pacific Gas & Electric 6.1% 15/01/2029	429	0.52
GBP	338,000	New York Life Global Funding 4.95%	000	0.02	USD	402,000	T-Mobile USA 2.625% 15/02/2029	286	0.35
		07/12/2029	340	0.41			Baa2 0.36% (0.33%)		
GBP	224,000	Northwestern 4.88% 12/12/2029	225	0.27	EUR	338,000	Carrier Global 4.125% 29/05/2028	295	0.36
		AA 0.62% (0.00%)					DDD 1 0E0/ /1 E00/ \		
JPY	100,000,000	Berkshire Hathaway 0.974%			USD	292,000	BBB- 1.85% (1.50%) Campbell Soup 5.2% 21/03/2029	230	0.28
		23/04/2027	510	0.62	USD	626,000	Centene 3% 15/10/2030	422	0.26
		AA- 1.40% (1.04%)			GBP	287,000	Ford Motor Credit 6.86% 05/06/2026	291	0.35
GBP	392,000	Metropolitan Life Global Funding I			USD	410.000	Sprint Capital 6.875% 15/11/2028	342	0.42
וטט	332,000	0.625% 08/12/2027	343	0.42	EUR	275,000	Warnermedia Holdings I 4.302%	042	0.72
GBP	512,000	Metropolitan Life Global Funding I 5%				,	17/01/2030	234	0.29
GBP	290,000	10/01/2030 Pacific Life Global Funding II 5.375%	512	0.62			BB+ 1.13% (0.00%)		
UDI	230,000	30/11/2028	293	0.36	USD	1,200,000	Occidental Petroleum 5.2% 01/08/2029	930	1.13
		A+ 2.14% (0.63%)					Total United States of America	17,730	21.59
GBP	409,000	Equitable Financial Life Global							
ODI	403,000	Funding 6.375% 02/06/2028	424	0.52	DERIV	ATIVES -0.6	• •		
USD	319,000	*Morgan Stanley Bank 4.968%				()	Futures and Options 0.04% (0.11%)		
		14/07/2028	250	0.31	EUR	(64)	UBS EURO-Bobl Future Expiring December 2024	29	0.04
GBP	375,000	Toyota Motor Credit 5.625% 23/10/2028	382	0.47	EUR	(12)	UBS EURO-Schatz Future Expiring	29	0.04
USD	382,000	Bristol-Myrs Squibb 4.9% 22/02/2029	301	0.37	LUIT	(12)	December 2024 ²	_	_
USD	500,000	Elevance Health 4.75% 15/02/2030	386	0.47	GBP	32	UBS Long Gilt Future Expiring		
		A 0.00% (0.28%)			USD	5	December 2024 UBS US 2 Year Note Future Expiring	(188)	(0.23)
		A- 4.74% (3.89%)			030	J	December 2024	(7)	(0.01)
USD	386,000	Abbvie 4.8% 15/03/2029	302	0.37	USD	(100)	UBS US 5 Year Note Future Expiring		
GBP	800,000	Bank of America 7% 31/07/2028	852	1.04			December 2024	194	0.24
GBP	1,286,000	*Bank of America Variable 02/06/2029	1,142	1.39			Familiary Freshouse Contracts 0	C40/ /0.030/	1
EUR	375,000	Booking Holdings 3.5% 01/03/2029	322	0.39			Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts -0 Sell GBP 182,186	.04% (U.UZ%))
USD	410,000	Cigna Group 5% 15/05/2029	320	0.39			Buy EUR 218,533 J.P. Morgan	3	
USD	543,000	*JPMorgan Chase 5.581% 22/04/2030	434	0.53			Sell GBP 450,869	3	_
EUR	330,000	*Morgan Stanley 3.79% 21/03/2030	283	0.35			Buy EUR 540,535 Bank of Montreal	6	0.01
GBP	236,000	Realty Income 5% 15/10/2029	231	0.28			Sell EUR 240,200	· ·	0.01
		BBB+ 2.42% (1.97%)					Buy GBP 201,057 Lloyds	(2)	-
USD	932.000	Amgen 5.15% 02/03/2028	734	0.89			Sell EUR 3,931,499		
USD	412,000	FirstEnergy Transmission 4.55%	701	0.00			Buy GBP 3,279,717 CIBC	(41)	(0.05)
		15/01/2030	314	0.38			Sell EUR 4,531,224		
USD	210,000	Metropolitan Edison 5.2% 01/04/2028	164	0.20			Buy GBP 3,778,810 RBC	(48)	(0.06)
USD	410,000	Nextera Energy Capital 4.9%	000	0.00			Sell EUR 4,531,223	(40)	(0.06)
Hen	E07 000	15/03/2029 Nicource 5 39/ 01/07/2020	320	0.39			Buy GBP 3,779,431 Deutsche Bank Sell USD 495,042	(48)	(0.06)
USD	587,000	Nisource 5.2% 01/07/2029	463	0.56			Buy GBP 381,370 J.P. Morgan	(4)	(0.01)
		Baa1 0.29% (0.22%)					Sell USD 7,364,227		
USD	304,000	Microchip Technology 5.05% 15/03/2029	237	0.29			Buy GBP 5,526,624 Bank of Montreal	(201)	(0.25)
			207	0.20			Sell USD 7,364,270 Buy GBP 5,527,527 Barclays	(201)	(0.24)
		BBB 5.34% (3.10%)					Sell JPY 99,785,102	(201)	(0.27)
GBP	512,000	AT&T 4.375% 14/09/2029	495	0.60			Buy GBP 523,368 Lloyds	14	0.02
GBP	500,000	AT&T 5.5% 15/03/2027 Broadcom 4.25% 15/02/2020	503	0.61			Sell EUR 68,626		
USD	492,000	Broadcom 4.35% 15/02/2030	372	0.45			Buy GBP 57,256 HSBC	(1)	-

Portfolio Statement

(continued)

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
DERIVATIVES -0.6	60% (0.13%) (continued)		
	Sell EUR 79,219		
	Buy GBP 65,890 Lloyds	(1)	-
	Sell GBP 102,536		
	Buy USD 133,004 Lloyds	1	_
	Total Derivatives	(495)	(0.60)
Total value of invest	tments ³	81,084	98.74
Net other assets (2.0	1,045	1.26	
Net assets		82,129	100.00

April 2024 comparatives in brackets.

¹Cash equivalents.

ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENTS BY ASSET CLASS

Value	% of
£000	Investment
56,341	69.49
25,220	31.10
(495)	(0.61)
18	0.02
81,084	100.00
	£000 56,341 25,220 (495) 18

ANALYSIS OF UNDERLYING EXPOSURE FUTURES AND OPTIONS

7.11.7.12.10.10 0. 0.11.02.11.11.0 E.M. 0.00.11.2.10.10.11.20 0.1	
	Value
	£000
UBS EURO-Bobl Future Expiring December 2024	(6,324)
UBS EURO-Schatz Future Expiring December 2024	(1,070)
UBS Long Gilt Future Expiring December 2024	3,019
UBS US 2 Year Note Future Expiring December 2024	793
UBS US 5 Year Note Future Expiring December 2024	(8,262)
Total net exposure	(11,844)

Total Purchases and Sales

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024	2023
	000£	£000
Total purchases for the period	36,183	284,108
Total sales for the period	179,109	347,707

^{*}Variable rate bonds.

⁽P) refers to provisional rating.

²Less than £500, rounded to nil.

³Includes Cash equivalents.

CT UK Fixed Interest Fund

Portfolio Statement

	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value		Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
CANAI	DA 1.37% (1	.18%)			GBP	4,513,000	United Kingdom Gilt 4.125% 22/07/2029	4,478	4.43
		AAA 1.37% (1.18%)			GBP	5,241,000	United Kingdom Gilt 4.25% 07/12/2049	4,781	4.73
GBP	636,000	CPPIB Capital 1.125% 14/12/2029	537	0.53	GBP	3,202,000	United Kingdom Gilt 5% 07/03/2025	3,203	3.17
GBP	715,000	CPPIB Capital 1.25% 07/12/2027	645	0.64			•		
GBP	515,000	CPPIB Capital 1.625% 22/10/2071	198	0.20			Not Rated 38.60% (40.27%)		
		Total Canada	1,380	1.37	GBP	12,528,000	United Kingdom Gilt 0.875% 31/07/2033	9,369	9.28
		_			GBP	2,220,000	United Kingdom Gilt 1.5% 31/07/2053	1,077	1.07
GERM	ANY 0.00%	(0.34%)			GBP	8,099,000	United Kingdom Gilt 3.75% 29/01/2038	7,419	7.35
		AAA 0.00% (0.34%)			GBP	4,296,000	United Kingdom Gilt 4.125% 29/01/2027	4,268	4.23
		Total Germany	_	_	GBP	2,237,000	United Kingdom Gilt 4.375% 31/01/2040	2,151	2.13
					GBP	13,009,000	United Kingdom Gilt 4.5% 07/06/2028	13,076	12.95
JERSE	Y 0.20% (0.1	16%)			GBP	1,618,000	United Kingdom Gilt 4.75% 22/10/2043	1,603	1.59
OLIIOL	1 0.20 /0 (0.	AA- 0.20% (0.16%)					Total United Kingdom	95,228	94.30
GBP	315,000	States of Jersey 2.875% 06/05/2052	204	0.20	Total	alue of invest	monte?	100,057	99.08
ODI	010,000	Total Jersey	204	0.20		her assets (0.9		929	0.92
		Total Jersey	204	0.20		•			
DEDUID	I IC OF IDE	AND 0 500/ (0 000/)			Net as	sets	_	100,986	100.00
KEPUB	SLIC OF IKE	LAND 0.59% (0.00%)			Anril 2	024 comparat	ives in brackets.		
000		Liquidity Funds 0.59% (0.00%) ¹				equivalents.			
GBP	601,693	BlackRock Institutional Cash Series Sterling Liquidity Platinum	602	0.59		es Cash equiv	ralents.		
		• · · · —							
		Total Republic of Ireland	602	0.59	ANAL	YSIS OF INV	ESTMENTS BY ASSET CLASS		
CUDDA	NIATIONIAI	2 (20/ /2 (20/)			7114712		2011121110 21 710021 021100	Value	% of
SUPRA	ANAHUNAL	_ 2.62% (2.63%) _ AAA 2.62% (2.63%)						£000	Investment
GBP	1 020 000	AAA 2.62% (2.63%) Asian Infrastructure I 4.375%			Fixed i	nterest		99,455	99.40
GDF	1,039,000	11/06/2026	1,035	1.02	Collec	tive investmer	nt schemes	602	0.60
GBP	579,000	European Investment Bank 1%	1,000	1.02	Total v	alue of invest	ments ²	100,057	100.00
OD.	070,000	21/09/2026	542	0.54			_		
GBP	815,000	Inter-American Development Bank			Total	Purchases a	and Sales		
	,	2.125% 15/12/2028	744	0.74	for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024				
GBP	370,000	International Bank for Reconstruction				37	.,	2024	2023
		and Development 0.625% 14/07/2028	322	0.32				£000	£000
		Total Supranational	2,643	2.62	Total p	urchases for t	the period	73,569	199,353
		_			Total s	ales for the pe	eriod	233,546	206,254
UNITE	D KINGDOM	M 94.30% (94.78%)							
		AAA 0.19% (0.16%)							
GBP	525,000	Wellcome Trust 1.5% 14/07/2071	192	0.19					
		AA 1.04% (1.26%)							
GBP	1,050,000	LCR Finance 4.5% 07/12/2028	1,048	1.04					
		Aa3 0.19% (0.18%)							
GBP	450,000	University College London 1.625%							
	,	04/06/2061	194	0.19					
		Aa3u 54.28% (52.91%)							
GBP	2,064,000	United Kingdom Gilt 0.25% 31/01/2025	2,043	2.02					
GBP	4,250,000	United Kingdom Gilt 0.5% 22/10/2061	1,213	1.20					
GBP	6,788,000	United Kingdom Gilt 0.625% 31/07/2035	4,586	4.54					
GBP	5,507,000	United Kingdom Gilt 0.875% 31/01/2046	2,640	2.61					
GBP	7,042,000	United Kingdom Gilt 1.25% 31/07/2051	3,280	3.25					
GBP	5,440,000	United Kingdom Gilt 1.5% 22/07/2026	5,187	5.14					
GBP	1,707,000	United Kingdom Gilt 1.5% 22/07/2047	928	0.92					
GBP	1,397,000	United Kingdom Gilt 1.75% 07/09/2037	1,018	1.01					
GBP	8,679,000	United Kingdom Gilt 3.5% 22/01/2045	7,183	7.11					
GBP	5,992,000	United Kingdom Gilt 3.75% 07/03/2027	5,902	5.84					
GBP	1,817,000	United Kingdom Gilt 3.75% 22/10/2053	1,501	1.49					
GBP	3,725,000	United Kingdom Gilt 4% 22/10/2031	3,647	3.61					
GBP	84,000	United Kingdom Gilt 4% 22/01/2060	73	0.07					
GBP	3,682,000	United Kingdom Gilt 4% 22/10/2063	3,168	3.14					

CT UK Index Linked Fund

Portfolio Statement

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
FIXED INTEREST (D.00% (99.63%)		
	AA 0.00% (0.95%)		
	Aa3u 0.00% (90.02%)		
	Not Rated 0.00% (8.66%)		
	Total Fixed Interest	_	
Total value of invest	ments	_	_
Net other assets (0.3	37%)	30	100.00
Net assets		30	100.00
April 2024 comparat	ives in brackets.		
Total Purchases a	and Sales		
for the accounting per	iod 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024		
		2024	2023
		£000	£000
Total purchases for t	the period	9,793	16,187
Total sales for the pe	eriod	53,044	17,172

CT Pan European Focus Fund

Portfolio Statement

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
DENMARK 3.51%	(n 98%)				Electronic and Electrical Equipment 4.64	% (3 52%)	
DEIGNAMA 3.31 /0	Personal Goods 0.00% (0.98%)			46,946	Prysmian	2,567	4.64
	1 0.00.101 200.00 0.00 /0 (0.00 /0)				Total Italy	2,567	4.64
40.000	Pharmaceuticals and Biotechnology 2.0				_		
12,922	Novo Nordisk	1,115	2.02	JERSEY 5.95% (1.	10%)		
	Industrial Transportation 1.49% (0.00%)				Investment Banking and Brokerage Servi		
4,893	DSV	825	1.49	131,727	CVC Capital Partners	2,144	3.88
	Total Denmark	1,940	3.51		Industrial Support Services 2.07% (0.00%)	
FINI AND 0 040/ /0	050()			30,369	Experian	1,147	2.07
FINLAND 2.01% (0					Total Jersey	3,291	5.95
75,321	Industrial Engineering 2.01% (0.65%) Wärtsilä	1,111	2.01				
73,321	Total Finland	1,111	2.01	NETHERLANDS 1			
		1,111	2.01		Chemicals 0.00% (1.29%)		
FRANCE 20.23% (2	28.72%) Automobiles and Parts 0.00% (2.04%)				Automobiles and Parts 0.00% (0.99%)		
	Automobiles und l'ults 0.00 /0 (2.04 /0)				Media 3.95% (3.41%)		
	Media 4.20% (5.00%)			16,752	Wolters Kluwer	2,188	3.95
28,202	Publicis Groupe Personal Goods 0.00% (2.52%)	2,327	4.20		Aerospace and Defence 0.00% (4.61%)		
	rersollar doods 0.00% (2.52%)				Technology Hardware and Equipment 8.0	0% (1.01%)
	Travel and Leisure 0.00% (0.43%)			5,328	ASM International	2,303	4.16
	Aerospace and Defence 5.27% (5.25%)			4,046	ASML	2,122	3.84
16,606	Safran	2,914	5.27		Total Netherlands	6,613	11.95
,		,		DEDIIDI IC OE IDE	LAND 2.54% (0.98%)		
05.050	Construction and Materials 4.44% (5.16%			NEPUBLIC OF INC	Construction and Materials 2.54% (0.98%	١	
35,058	Compagnie de Saint Gobain	2,457	4.44	20,680	Kingspan Group	, 1,408	2.54
	Electronic and Electrical Equipment 6.32	2% (6.32%)					
17,466	Schneider Electric	3,498	6.32	270	Liquidity Funds 0.00% (0.00%) ^{1,2}		
	Industrial Support Services 0.00% (2.00%	6)		270	BlackRock Institutional Cash Series Sterling Liquidity Platinum	_	_
	Total France	11,196	20.23		Total Republic of Ireland	1,408	2.54
	_				_		
GERMANY 13.61%	o (18.87%) Automobiles and Parts 0.00% (2.77%)			SPAIN 1.52% (6.09	9%) Personal Goods 0.00% (1.31%)		
	Davisonal Canda 0 000/ /4 E40/ \				Retailers 1.52% (4.78%)		
	Personal Goods 0.00% (1.51%)			19,070	Inditex	842	1.52
	Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stores	0.00% (0.83	3%)	,	Total Spain	842	1.52
	Alternative Energy 0.71% (2.20%)				· —		
12,423	Siemens Energy	393	0.71	SWEDEN 5.80% (7	7.33%)		
.2,.20					Industrial Metals and Mining 0.00% (0.92	%)	
4.553	Investment Banking and Brokerage Serv				Electronic and Electrical Equipment 2.59	% (2 11%)	
1,557	Deutsche Boerse	281	0.51	42,243	Alfa Laval	1,433	2.59
	Non-life Insurance 8.94% (9.48%)						
8,991	Hannover Rueck	1,830	3.31	140.072	Industrial Engineering 3.21% (3.34%)	1 770	0.01
7,850	Munich Rueckversicherungs	3,116	5.63	140,072	Atlas	1,779	3.21
	Industrial Transportation 0.00% (1.14%)				Industrial Transportation 0.00% (0.96%)	3,212	5.80
	Software and Computer Services 3.45%	(0.94%)			_		
5,885	Nemetschek	494	0.89	SWITZERLAND 4.	99% (2.52%)		
7,849	SAP	1,419	2.56		Personal Goods 0.52% (0.70%)		
	Total Germany	7,533	13.61	2,559	Cie Financiere Richemont	288	0.52
ITALY 4.64% (4.24%	%)				Electronic and Electrical Equipment 4.47	% (1. 82 %)	
11ALI 7.07/0 (4.247)	Personal Goods 0.00% (0.72%)			37,184	ABB	1,602	2.90

CT Pan European Focus Fund

Portfolio Statement

Total sales for the period

(continued)

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
SWITZERLAND 4.	99% (2.52%) (continued)		
2,686	VAT Group	869	1.57
	Total Switzerland	2,759	4.99
UNITED KINGDOM	M 22.17% (19.99%)		
	Consumer Services 0.00% (0.75%)		
	Media 5.58% (4.53%)		
137,280	Informa	1,110	2.01
55,461	RELX (London listing)	1,974	3.57
	Retailers 4.76% (2.07%)		
26,917	Next	2,635	4.76
	Travel and Leisure 0.00% (0.89%)		
	Finance and Credit Services 0.89% (0.0	00%)	
4,702	London Stock Exchange Group	494	0.89
	Investment Banking and Brokerage Se		
31,033	3i Group	984	1.78
	Aerospace and Defence 9.16% (5.78%)		
947,404	Rolls-Royce Holdings	5,071	9.16
	Software and Computer Services 0.009		
	Total United Kingdom	12,268	22.17
Total value of invest	ments ³	54,740	98.92
Net other assets/(lia	ıbilities) (-2.78%)	600	1.08
Net assets		55,340	100.00
April 2024 comparat	ives in brackets.		
¹ Cash equivalents.			
Less than £500, roun			
Includes Cash equiv	ralents.		
Total Purchases a	and Sales		
for the accounting per	iod 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024		
		2024	2023
Tatal numahasas ford	sha mariad	20.520	£000
Total purchases for t	ine perioa	38,529	44,298

51,142

63,376

CT US Equity Income Fund

Portfolio Statement

			% of				% of
Holding	Investment	Value £000	Net Asset Value	Holding	Investment	Value £000	Net Asset Value
CORPORATE BON	DS 0.18% (0.19%)				Investment Banking and Brokerage Serv	vices 7.97%	(8.59%)
	Corporate Bonds 0.18% (0.19%)			31,676	Bank of New York Mellon Corporation	1,856	0.86
466,000	Air Canada 4% 01/07/2025	385	0.18	4,730	BlackRock Funding	3,608	1.67
,	Total Corporate Bonds	385	0.18	17,745	CME Group	3,110	1.44
				17,766	Moelis & Company Class A	918	0.43
BASIC MATERIAL	S 1 62% (1 75%)			33,703	Morgan Stanley	3,047	1.41
DAGIO MAI LINAL	Chemicals 1.62% (1.75%)			32,433	Northern Trust	2,535	1.18
39,738	Albemarle Corporation Preference			33,936	Voya Financial	2,119	0.98
33,730	Share	1,383	0.64				
41,856	FMC	2,116	0.98		Life Insurance 1.91% (1.85%)		
11,000	Total Basic Materials	3,499	1.62	67,453	Metlife	4,112	1.91
	Total Dasic Materials	3,433	1.02		Total Financials	29,823	13.83
CONSUMER DISC	RETIONARY 7.80% (8.22%)			HEALTH CARE 9.9	1% (10 79%)		
	Consumer Services 1.19% (1.14%)			IILALIII OAIIL 3.3	Health Care Providers 2.09% (0.00%)		
57,389	Ebay	2,565	1.19	7,761	Elevance Health	2,451	1.14
				4,655	UnitedHealth Group	2,044	0.95
	Media 0.51% (0.03%)			4,033	Omteurieaur droup	2,044	0.33
14,596	Walt Disney	1,092	0.51		Medical Equipment and Services 3.24%	(3.27%)	
	Personal Goods 1.20% (1.50%)			9,699	Becton Dickinson	1,762	0.82
39,017	Kontoor Brands	2,597	1.20	5,933	Danaher	1,134	0.52
50,517		2,001	1.20	58,985	Medtronic	4,094	1.90
	Retailers 3.86% (4.12%)				Pharmaceuticals and Biotechnology 4.5	8% (7 52%)	
12,431	Lowe's	2,533	1.17	66,624	Bristol-Myrs Squibb	2,888	1.34
13,741	Target	1,603	0.74	3,213	Eli Lilly	2,074	0.96
47,811	TJX Companies	4,203	1.95	61,939	Merck & Co	4,925	2.28
	Travel and Leisure 1.04% (1.43%)			51,555	Total Health Care	21,372	9.91
29,387	Starbucks	2,233	1.04		_	21,072	0.01
20,007	Total Consumer Discretionary	16,826	7.80	INDUSTRIALS 13.	15% (12 67%)		
		-,-		INDOOTHIALO TO.	Aerospace and Defence 0.53% (0.00%)		
CONSUMER STAP				27,368	Boeing Company Preference Share	1,144	0.53
10.000	Beverages 1.17% (1.33%)	2 525	1.17		Electronic and Electrical Equipment 1.10)% (1. 08 %)	
19,628	PepsiCo	2,535	1.17	40,346	Johnson Controls International	2,370	1.10
	Food Producers 2.01% (0.48%)						
37,731	Lamb Weston Holdings	2,281	1.06		General Industrials 5.33% (4.41%)		
38,367	Mondelez International	2,043	0.95	20,560	Eaton	5,302	2.46
				20,599	Honeywell International	3,294	1.53
	Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Store			5,852	Parker Hannifin	2,886	1.34
40,316	Procter & Gamble	5,179	2.40		Industrial Engineering 0.58% (0.56%)		
	Tobacco 1.69% (2.38%)			4,299	Caterpillar	1,258	0.58
35,291	Philip Morris International	3,642	1.69	4,233	Outer pinar	1,230	0.30
33,231			7.27		Industrial Support Services 2.38% (2.98%)	6)	
	Total Consumer Staples	15,680	1.21	10,103	Automatic Data Processing	2,272	1.05
ENERGY 7.26% (8.	020/ \			7,379	MasterCard	2,866	1.33
ENENUT 7.20% (0.	os %) Oil, Gas and Coal 7.26% (8.03%)				1 1 4 1 1 7 4 4 1 0 000/ /0 000/)		
21.000	ConocoPhillips	1 705	0.00	04.405	Industrial Transportation 3.23% (3.64%)	0.004	4.77
21,069 71,969	Exxon Mobil	1,795 6,533	0.83 3.03	21,165	Union Pacific	3,821	1.77
				30,215	United Parcel Service	3,150	1.46
18,672 25,495	Hess Valero Energy	1,952 2,573	0.90 1.19		Total Industrials	28,363	13.15
	• .						
69,142	Williams Companies	2,815	1.31	REAL ESTATE 5.68			
	Total Energy	15,668	7.26		Real Estate Investment Trusts 5.68% (5.4		
EINIANICIAI C 12 02	99/ /11 03 9/ \			38,691	BXP	2,424	1.13
FINANCIALS 13.83				41,979	Equity LifeStyle Properties	2,290	1.06
74.444	Banks 3.95% (1.49%)	0.014	1.07	44,093	Prologis	3,874	1.80
71,144	Bank of America	2,314	1.07	147,847	Vici Properties	3,652	1.69
35,957	JPMorgan Chase	6,204	2.88		Total Real Estate	12,240	5.68

CT US Equity Income Fund

Portfolio Statement

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
TECHNOLOGY 19.	73% (21.87%)		
	Software and Computer Services 7		
48,427	Microsoft	15,304	7.10
	Technology Hardware and Equipmo	ent 12.63% (14.10°	%)
29,462	Apple	5,165	2.40
71,763	Broadcom	9,472	4.39
7,287	KLA-Tencor	3,773	1.75
38,112	Lam Research	2,200	1.02
16,547	Qualcomm	2,095	0.97
20,394	Skyworks Solutions	1,389	0.64
27,432	TE Connectivity	3,147	1.46
	Total Technology	42,545	19.73
	ATIONS 5.10% (4.25%) Telecommunications Equipment 2.0 Cisco Systems		2.02
102,415	Cisco Systems	4,360	2.02
	Telecommunications Service Provi	ders 3.08% (2.39%	%)
139,417	AT&T	2,442	1.13
92,869	Comcast Class A	3,154	1.47
31,744	Verizon Communications	1,040	0.48
	Total Telecommunications	10,996	5.10
LITH ITIES 0 120/ /	7 750/ \		
UTILITIES 8.12% (
A7 769	Electricity 3.84% (3.50%) American Electric Power	2 660	1 70
47,763	Edison International	3,668	1.70
33,980 47,124	Xcel Energy	2,178 2,449	1.01 1.13
47,124	Acei Lilei gy	2,443	1.13
	Gas, Water and Multi-utilities 1.40°	% (1. 27 %)	
44,477	Ameren	3,014	1.40
	Waste and Disposal Services 2.88%	% (2.98%)	
40,311	Republic Services	6,211	2.88
12,211	Total Utilities	17,520	8.12
DERIVATIVES 0.00	Forward Foreign Exchange Contrac	ets 0.00% (0.00%)	
	Sell USD 200,366 Buy EUR 185,291 J.P. Morgan Sell EUR 79,912	1	-
	Buy USD 86,925 J.P. Morgan ¹	_	_
	Total Derivatives	1	_
Total value of invest Net other assets/(lia		214,918 750	99.65 0.35
Net assets	DITICIES/ (-0.12 /0)	215,668	100.00
1101 400010			
April 2024 comparat Less than £500, roun			
Total Purchases a			
тот ине ассоинину рег	iod 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024	2024	2023
		£000	£000
Total purchases for	the period	26,068	108,833
Total sales for the pe		70,608	5,449
. Star barbs for the pe		, 0,000	3,773

CT Global Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Portfolio Statement

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
BRAZIL 4.34% (7.2	4%)				Electronic and Electrical Equipment 0.42%	(0.40%)	
·	Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stores 0	.39% (0.30	%)	104,706	Zhejiang Sanhua Intelligent Control	250	0.42
70,181	Raia Drogasil	229	0.39				
	0:1 Con and Cont 0 070/ /2 200/ \			73,100	General Industrials 0.77% (0.92%) Fuyao Glass Industry Group	455	0.77
70.766	Oil, Gas and Coal 0.97% (2.39%) Petro Rio	390	0.65	70,100	rayao diasa maastiy dibap	433	0.77
70,766 18,269	Petroleo Brasileiro ADR	390 191	0.00		Industrial Transportation 0.70% (0.00%)		
10,209		131	0.32	159,100	Zhengzhou Yutong Bus	419	0.70
	Banks 1.20% (1.53%)				Technology Hardware and Equipment 0.819	/ ₂ (n nno/ ₂)	
71,691	Banco do Brasil	254	0.43	58,000	Sieyuan Electric	483	0.81
97,764	Itau Unibanco Holding ADR	459	0.77	30,000	•		0.01
	Investment Banking and Brokerage Servi	ces 0.57%	(0.96%)		Telecommunications Equipment 0.93% (0.0		
78,234	Banco BTG Pactual	342	0.57	209,600	Foxconn Industrial Internet-A Total China	555 5,762	0.93 9.69
	Industrial Engineering 0.87% (1.30%)					3,702	3.03
71,129	Weg	517	0.87	GREECE 3.87% (4.7	76%)		
				•	Banks 3.87% (3.83%)		
	Software and Computer Services 0.00% (0).41%)		721,499	Eurobank Ergasias Services	1,148	1.93
	Electricity 0.34% (0.35%)			189,989	National Bank of Greece	1,152	1.94
46,345	Equatorial Energia	200	0.34				
40,043	Total Brazil	2,582	4.34		Gas, Water and Multi-utilities 0.00% (0.93%	D)	
		2,302	4.34		Total Greece	2,300	3.87
CAYMAN ISLAND	S 18.47% (13.20%)				14 OF0()		
	Leisure Goods 0.46% (0.56%)			HONG KONG 2.60°			
22,160	NetEase	275	0.46	100.000	Life Insurance 1.03% (1.14%)	045	1.00
				100,000	AIA Group	615	1.03
	Travel and Leisure 3.00% (2.26%)				Industrial Engineering 1.57% (0.51%)		
35,682	Trip.com Group ADR	1,787	3.00	83,032	Techtronic Industries	932	1.57
	Finance and Credit Services 1.43% (0.81%	1		•	Total Hong Kong	1,547	2.60
72,503	Nu Holdings	850	1.43			.,	
72,303	Nu Holdings	030	1.43	INDIA 17.45% (21.	5 7 %\		
	Industrial Support Services 0.59% (0.00%)			INDIA 17.43 /0 (21.	Industrial Metals and Mining 1.62% (1.63%	١	
30,748	Kanzhun	348	0.59	68,669	APL Apollo Tubes	963	1.62
				00,003	Al E Apollo Tubes	300	1.02
	Industrial Transportation 0.87% (0.37%)				Beverages 0.96% (0.76%)		
73,910	Full Truck Alliance	515	0.87	102,482	Varun Beverages	569	0.96
	Real Estate Investment and Services 0.40	% (0 56%)			011 0 10 10 700 (0 000)		
14,017	KE Holdings	239	0.40	054.050	Oil, Gas and Coal 0.79% (0.64%)	470	0.70
,	ge	200	00	254,253	GAIL India	470	0.79
	Software and Computer Services 10.60%	(7.84%)			Banks 2.62% (5.46%)		
94,300	Meituan Dianping-Class B	1,722	2.89	3,937	HDFC Bank ADR	193	0.32
10,779	Pinduoduo ADR	1,010	1.70	57,971	ICICI Bank ADR	1,371	2.30
88,300	Tencent Holdings	3,574	6.01				
	Technology Hardware and Equipment 0.00	1% (0.80%)		10.510	Finance and Credit Services 2.65% (3.24%)		1.10
		70 (0.00 70)		10,516	Bajaj Finance	671	1.13
	Telecommunications Equipment 1.12% (0.	00%)		39,677	Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company	466	0.78
249,800	Xiaomi Class B	667	1.12	91,033	Rec	440	0.74
	Total Cayman Islands	10,987	18.47	31,000	1100	440	0.74
	_				Investment Banking and Brokerage Servic		
CHINA 9.69% (6.49	-			87,576	360 One Wam	876	1.47
	Automobiles and Parts 2.75% (2.11%)				Health Care Providers 1.29% (1.00%)		
58,000	BYD	1,633	2.75	81,632	Max Healthcare Institute	766	1.29
	Beverages 2.18% (2.54%)						
56,030	Eastroc Beverage Group	1,297	2.18		Construction and Materials 0.92% (3.42%)		
,	•		-	33,575	Astral Poly Technik	549	0.92
	Medical Equipment and Services 1.13% (). 52 %)					
23,031	Shenzhen Mindray Bio-Medical	070	4				
	Electronics	670	1.13				

CT Global Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Portfolio Statement

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
INDIA 17.45% (21.	57%) (continued)			PHILIPPINES 1.28	3% (0.9 7 %)		
	Electronic and Electrical Equipment 1	.22% (1.38%)			Banks 1.28% (0.97%)		
12,142	Polycab India	727	1.22	373,060	BDO Unibank	763	1.28
	Deal Fatata Innestment and Comice of	420/ /4 700/ \			Total Philippines	763	1.28
27,175	Real Estate Investment and Services 2 Macrotech Developers	302 (1.72%)	0.51				
68,585	The Phoenix Mills	965	1.62	POLAND 0.39% (1	.01%)		
00,000	THE THEOLIX WITE	000	1.02		Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stor	res 0.39% (1.01	%)
	Telecommunications Service Provider	rs 1.78% (1.28°	•	3,556	Dino Polska	229	0.39
70,501	Bharti Airtel	1,057	1.78		Total Poland	229	0.39
	Total India	10,385	17.45				
				REPUBLIC OF IRE	LAND 1.84% (0.00%)		
INDONESIA 2.22%				1 400 000	Liquidity Funds 1.84% (0.00%) ¹		
2 002 400	Banks 2.22% (3.85%)	1 000	0.00	1,408,988	BlackRock Institutional Cash Series US Dollar Liquidity Platinum	1,096	1.84
2,603,400	Bank Central Asia	1,322	2.22		Total Republic of Ireland	1,096	1.84
	Total Indonesia	1,322	2.22		Total nepublic of include	1,030	1.01
JERSEY 0.00% (0.1	120/\			RUSSIA 0.00% (0.0	00%)		
JENSET 0.00% (U.	Industrial Metals and Mining 0.00% (0	120/.\		11000111010070 (01	Retailers 0.00% (0.00%)		
	Total Jersey	.13 /0/		2,335,748	Detsky Mir (Suspended) ²	_	_
	iotai Jeisey				Total Russia	_	_
KAZAKHSTAN 0.4	5% (0 56%)						
KAZAKIIO IAN U.T	Banks 0.45% (0.56%)			SOUTH AFRICA 0.	.76% (0.90%)		
3,148	Kaspi.Kz ADR	270	0.45		Banks 0.76% (0.90%)		
•	Total Kazakhstan	270	0.45	3,259	Capitec Bank Holdings	454	0.76
					Total South Africa	454	0.76
LUXEMBOURG 0.8	32% (1.54%)						
	Personal Goods 0.00% (1.13%)			SOUTH KOREA 7.4	48% (10.64%)		
					Pharmaceuticals and Biotechnology		
0.074	Software and Computer Services 0.82		0.00	691	Samsung Biologics	390	0.66
2,971	Globant	485	0.82		Electronic and Electrical Equipment 1	62% (0.76%)	
	Total Luxembourg	485	0.82	5,221	Hyundai Electric & Energy	964	1.62
MALAVCIA 0 000/	(0.000/)						
MALAYSIA 0.80%	(U.UU%) Banks 0.80% (0.00%)				Technology Hardware and Equipment		
334,500	CIMB Group Holdings	475	0.80	20,574	SK Hynix	2,160	3.63
004,300	Total Malaysia	475	0.80		Telecommunications Equipment 1.57%	% (5.78%)	
	Total Malaysia	475	0.00	28,082	Samsung Electronics	937	1.57
MAURITIUS 0.80%	ر (n 52%)				Total South Korea	4,451	7.48
1417-01111100 0:00 /	Travel and Leisure 0.80% (0.52%)						
6,049	Makemytrip	477	0.80	TAIWAN 20.81% (17.02%)		
•	Total Mauritius	477	0.80		Electronic and Electrical Equipment (0.61% (0.58%)	
				36,000	Chroma ATE	363	0.61
MEXICO 2.02% (4.	40%)				Technology Hardware and Equipment	10 0/10/ /15 70	0/ \
	Beverages 0.54% (0.63%)			33,000	Asia Vital Components	510.54% (15.75 510	0.86
48,954	Arca Continental	324	0.54	6,000	ASMedia Technology	238	0.40
	D 1 4 040/ /0 000/)			8,000	Aspeed Technology	816	1.37
82,481	Banks 1.04% (2.08%) Banco del Bajio	141	0.24	10,000	Ememory Technology	773	1.30
88,654	Grupo Financiero Banorte	478	0.24	289,000	Hon Hai Precision Industry	1,484	2.49
00,034	Grapo i manoloro Danorte	770	0.00	38,000	MediaTek	1,185	1.99
	Non-life Insurance 0.44% (1.27%)			234,000	Taiwan Semiconductor		
48,360	Qualitas Controladora	261	0.44	0.000	Manufacturing	5,851	9.83
	Industrial Transportation 0.000/ /0.420/	1		9,000	Wiwynn	416	0.70
	Industrial Transportation 0.00% (0.42% Total Mexico		2 02		Telecommunications Equipment 1.26%	% (0.65%)	
	IUIAI WEXICO	1,204	2.02	55,818	Accton Technology	748	1.26
					Total Taiwan	12,384	20.81
					. C I WITTUN	12,007	20.0

CT Global Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Portfolio Statement

(continued)

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
UNITED STATES O	OF AMERICA 3.43% (2.98%)		
	Industrial Metals and Mining 0.27% (0.3	30%)	
4,571	Freeport-McMoRan	160	0.27
	Consumer Services 2.10% (2.06%)		
788	Mercadolibre	1,248	2.10
	Retailers 1.06% (0.62%)		
31,616	Coupang	634	1.06
	Total United States of America	2,042	3.43
Total value of invest	ments ³	59,215	99.52
Net other assets (0.5	7%)	285	0.48
Net assets	-	59,500	100.00
April 2024 comparati	ded to nil.		

Total Purchases and Sales

for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024

	2024	2023
	£000	£000
Total purchases for the period	23,093	135,904
Total sales for the period	32.754	177.005

CT Emerging Market Local Fund

Portfolio Statement

	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value		Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
	Holding	nivesunent	1000	Value		Holuling	nivestinent	1000	Value
ARGE	NTINA 0.029				EGP	17,450,000	Egypt Treasury Bill 0% 18/03/2025	249	0.98
ARS	10,000,000	Ca 0.02% (0.02%) Republic of Argentina 15.5%					Total Egypt	439	1.72
		17/10/2026	5	0.02	HUN	GARY 1.73%	(2.28%)		
		Total Argentina	5	0.02			Baa2 1.11% (1.72%)		
BRAZ	ZIL 7.47% (8.5	0%)			HUF	166,000,000	Hungary Government International Bond 3% 21/08/2030	284	1.11
		BB 7.47% (8.50%)							
BRL	7,667	Brazil Government International Bond 10% 01/01/2027	1,013	3.98	HUF	86,970,000	Not Rated 0.62% (0.56%) Hungary Government International		
BRL	7,000	Brazil Government International Bond	1,010	0.00	1101	00,070,000	Bond 4.75% 24/11/2032	157	0.62
		10% 01/01/2029	890	3.49			Total Hungary	441	1.73
		Total Brazil	1,903	7.47	INDI	A 7 000/ /7 04	0/1		
CVAI	ANN ISI AND	S 0.08% (0.09%)			INDI	A 7.90% (7.01	%) Not Rated 7.90% (7.01%)		
UATI	IIAN ISLAND	Cu 0.00% (0.09%)			INR	212,480,000	India Government Bond 7.26%		
							06/02/2033	2,013	7.90
USD	284,000	Not Rated 0.08% (0.00%) Country Garden Holdings 2.7%					Total India	2,013	7.90
USD	204,000	12/07/2026 (Defaulted)	21	0.08	INIDO	ONESIA 7.99%	/ IC 9/10/ \		
		Total Cayman Islands	21	0.08	IIVD	JIVESIA 7.33 /	Not Rated 7.99% (6.84%)		
	- 4 000/ /0 40/	2/1			IDR	15,719,000,000	Indonesia Government International		
CHILI	E 1.83% (2.10 ^o	%) Not Rated 1.83% (2.10%)			IDB	16,632,000,000	Bond 7% 15/02/2033 Indonesia Government International	787	3.09
CLP	605,000,000	Chile Government International Bond			וטח	10,032,000,000	Bond 7.125% 15/06/2043	828	3.25
		4.7% 01/09/2030	467	1.83	IDR	8,191,000,000	Indonesia Government International		
		Total Chile	467	1.83			Bond 7.5% 15/05/2038 Total Indonesia	2,037	7.99
CHIN	A 1.83% (2.76	5%)					iotai illuollesia	2,037	7.33
011111	A 1.00 /0 (2.7)	Not Rated 1.83% (2.76%)			MAL	AYSIA 2.49%	(4.93%)		
CNY	4,000,000	China Government Bond 3.13%					A3 2.49% (4.93%)		
		21/11/2029 Total China	465 465	1.83	MYR	3,601,000	Malaysian Government Bond 3.84% 15/04/2033	635	2.49
		Total China	400	1.83			Total Malaysia	635	2.49
COLO	MBIA 11.62%	% (13.84%)					•		
		BBB- 4.53% (1.40%)			MEX	ICO 7.52% (6.			
	4,937,900,000	Titulos de Tesoreria 7% 26/03/2031	736	2.89	NAVNI	150 400	BBB+ 7.52% (6.82%)	EOE	1.00
CUP	2,844,800,000	Titulos de Tesoreria 9.25% 28/05/2042	418	1.64	MXN MXN	152,400 11,440,000	Mexican Bonos 7.5% 26/05/2033 Mexican Bonos 8% 11/07/2047	505 355	1.98 1.39
		BB+ 7.09% (12.44%)			MXN		Mexican Bonos 8.5% 18/11/2038	1,057	4.15
COP 1	0,493,000,000	Colombia Government International Bond 9.85% 28/06/2027	1,806	7.09			Total Mexico	1,917	7.52
		Total Colombia	2,960	11.62	DED	14.050/ /0.00/	w.		
		_			PEK	J 1.85% (2.20°	%) Baa1 1.85% (2.20%)		
CZEC	H REPUBLIC	4.66% (4.77%)			PEN	2,344,000	Peruvian Government International		
CZK	41 0E0 000	Aa3 4.66% (4.77%) Czech Republic Government Bond					Bond 6.15% 12/08/2032	472	1.85
UZK	41,950,000	1.2% 13/03/2031	1,188	4.66			Total Peru	472	1.85
		Total Czech Republic	1,188	4.66	DOI /	AND 5.64% (7	0.40/. \		
					FUL	4ND 3.04 /0 (7	A 0.00% (3.59%)		
DOM	INICAN REP	UBLIC 2.13% (0.00%)							
DOP	34,850,000	BB 2.13% (0.00%) Dominican Republic International			PLN	7,353,000	Not Rated 5.64% (4.35%) Poland Government Bond 6%		
20.	0.,000,000	Bond 13.625% 03/02/2033	542	2.13	1 214	7,000,000	25/10/2033	1,436	5.64
		Total Dominican Republic	542	2.13			Total Poland	1,436	5.64
ECAL	T 1 720/ /4 4/	10/ ₋ \							
EGTP	T 1.72% (1.44	1%) Not Rated 1.72% (1.44%)							
EGP	13,050,000	Egypt Treasury Bill 0% 25/02/2025	190	0.74					

CT Emerging Market Local Fund

Portfolio Statement

	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value	Holding Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
REPUI	BLIC OF IRE	LAND 8.25% (2.48%) Liquidity Funds 8.25% (2.48%) ¹			Buy MYR 10,628,977 Barclays Sell USD 66,987	(12)	(0.05)
USD	2,702,058	BlackRock Institutional Cash Series			Buy PEN 251,692 Barclays ²	-	_
		US Dollar Liquidity Platinum	2,102	8.25	Sell USD 1,058,911		
		Total Republic of Ireland	2,102	8.25	Buy PLN 4,265,992 CIBC	2	0.01
enut	LI AEDICA 12	2.32% (15.77%)			Sell USD 1,267,933 Buy RON 5,847,913 Barclays	5	0.02
3001	II AFNICA 12	BB 8.02% (10.26%)			Sell USD 2,262,810	3	0.02
ZAR	11,033,893	South Africa Government Bond 7%			Buy THB 75,957,339 HSBC ²	-	-
ZAR	32,294,093	28/02/2031 South Africa Government Bond 8.25%	425	1.67	Sell USD 56,495 Buy TRY 2,096,493 UBS	2	0.01
	0=/=0 1/000	31/03/2032	1,298	5.09	Sell USD 77,914	_	0.0.
ZAR	4,431,688	South Africa Government Bond 8.5% 31/01/2037	163	0.64	Buy TRY 2,814,048 HSBC	2	0.01
ZAR	4,498,400	South Africa Government Bond 8.75%	100	0.04	Sell USD 112,302 Buy TRY 4,286,928 UBS	7	0.03
	,,	28/02/2048	157	0.62	Sell USD 252,480	,	0.03
		Not Rated 4.30% (5.51%)			Buy TRY 9,150,904 BNP Paribas	6	0.02
ZAR	31,000,000	Eskom Holdings 7.5% 15/09/2033	1,095	4.30	Sell ZAR 22,463,270		
		Total South Africa	3,138	12.32	Buy USD 1,264,039 Bank of Montreal Sell COP 11,966,553,094	1	_
SUIT	H KOREA 4.1	16% (2 70%)			Buy USD 2,735,781 Barclays	39	0.15
3001	II KUNLA 4. I	Not Rated 4.16% (2.70%)			Sell TRY 7,931,112	(4)	
KRW 1	1,853,410,000	Korea Treasury Bond 3.25%			Buy USD 213,489 HSBC Sell CLP 23,558,305	(1)	_
		10/03/2028	1,060	4.16	Buy USD 25,038 Barclays ²	_	_
		Total South Korea	1,060	4.16	Sell TRY 10,000		
THAIL	AND 2.78%	(2.41%)			Buy USD 263 Barclays² Sell TRY 11,362,700	-	-
		Not Rated 2.78% (2.41%)			Buy USD 314,290 BNP Paribas	(7)	(0.03)
THB	34,507,000	Thailand Government Bond 2% 17/06/2042	708	2.78	Sell TRY 11,741,882		
		Total Thailand	708	2.78	Buy USD 333,188 HSBC² Sell INR 51,148,953	-	-
		_			Buy USD 606,260 Deutsche Bank ²	_	_
TURK	EY 3.43% (0.9	-			Sell KRW 970,142,673		
TRY	22 177 011	Not Rated 3.43% (0.94%) Turkey Government International			Buy USD 706,694 Barclays ²	- (44)	- (0.46)
1111	32,177,011	Bond 11% 24/02/2027	481	1.89	Total Derivatives	(41)	(0.16)
TRY	18,071,723	Turkiye Government Bond 37% 18/02/2026	394	1.54	Total value of investments ³ Net other assets (4.88%)	24,783 699	97.26 2.74
		Total Turkey	875	3.43	Net assets	25,482	100.00
					April 2024 acomparatives in breakets		
DERIV	ATIVES -0.1				April 2024 comparatives in brackets. ¹ Cash equivalents.		
MXN	37,000,000	Interest Rate Swaps -0.18% (-0.52%) HSBC Interest Rate Swap Receive			² Less than £500, rounded to nil.		
	01,100,000	MXN 8.355% Pay Tije 4W 15/02/2029	(57)	(0.23)	³ Includes Cash equivalents.		
ZAR	15,600,000	UBS Interest Rate Swap Receive ZAR 8.8% Pay Jibar-Safex 03/06/2026	12	0.05	ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENTS BY ASSET CLASS		
		0.0 % 1 ay 31ba1-3a1ex 03/00/2020	12	0.03	ANALISIS OF INVESTIMENTS OF ASSET CLASS	Value	% of
		Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts 0.0	2% (-0.20%)			Investment
		Sell USD 512,173 Buy BRL 2,941,242 Barclays	(7)	(0.03)	Fixed interest Derivatives	22,722	91.68
		Sell USD 2,835,371	(2)	(0.00)	Collective investment schemes	(41) 2,102	(0.16) 8.48
		Buy CNY 19,996,299 BNP Paribas Sell USD 243,086	(13)	(0.05)	Total value of investments ³	24,783	100.00
		Buy CZK 5,667,405 BNP Paribas	1	0.01	Total Purchases and Sales		
		Sell USD 310,354		10	for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024		
		Buy HUF 116,030,420 HSBC Sell USD 1,272,627	(2)	(0.01)	• · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	2024	2023
		Buy IDR 19,858,578,780 Barclays	(10)	(0.04)	T	£000	£000
		Sell USD 1,051,026		. ,	Total purchases for the period Total sales for the period	14,171 4,845	3,198 12,529
		Buy MXN 21,095,102 Deutsche Bank Sell USD 2,450,259	(9)	(0.03)	iotal sales for the period	4,043	12,323

CT Global Extended Alpha Fund

Portfolio Statement

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
AUSTRALIA 0.00%	(0.82%)				Electronic and Electrical Equipment 2.	03% (1.97%)	
	Pharmaceuticals and Biotechnology 0.	.00% (0.82%)		6,700	Keyence	2,387	2.03
	Total Australia		_		Total Japan	4,052	3.44
CANADA 2.50% (1	86%)			JERSEY 0.81% (0.6	64%)		
O/111/15/1 2.00 /0 (1	Chemicals 0.53% (0.84%)			,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	Investment Banking and Brokerage Se	rvices 0.81%	(0.64%)
16,980	Nutrien	627	0.53	58,825	CVC Capital Partners	958	0.81
					Total Jersey	958	0.81
	Software and Computer Services 1.00%				-		
19,326	Shopify	1,175	1.00	MEXICO 0.00% (0.	88%)		
	Waste and Disposal Services 0.97% (1.	.02%)			Banks 0.00% (0.88%)		
8,364	Waste Connections	1,149	0.97		Total Mexico	_	_
	Total Canada	2,951	2.50		-		
				NETHERLANDS 1.	02% (0.78%)		
DENMARK 1.49%	(1.62%)				Chemicals 1.02% (0.78%)		
22.0	Pharmaceuticals and Biotechnology 1.	.49% (1.62%)		24,398	Akzo Nobel	1,205	1.02
20,314	Novo Nordisk	1,753	1.49		Total Netherlands	1,205	1.02
,	Total Denmark	1,753	1.49		-		
		,		NORWAY 0.00% (1	1.23%)		
FRANCE 4.56% (6.1	19%)				Oil, Gas and Coal 0.00% (1.23%)		
711711702 110070 (01	Personal Goods 0.00% (2.19%)				Total Norway	_	_
	,,				-		
	Oil, Gas and Coal 0.82% (0.90%)			REPUBLIC OF IRE	LAND 9.55% (7.08%)		
20,038	Totalenergies	971	0.82		Chemicals 1.70% (1.93%)		
	Non-life Insurance 1.39% (1.30%)			5,663	Linde	2,009	1.70
56,140	AXA	1,637	1.39				
30,140	AVA	1,007	1.00		Construction and Materials 1.50% (1.27		
	Medical Equipment and Services 1.20%	% (0.78%)		23,794	CRH (New York listing)	1,767	1.50
7,817	Essilor International	1,421	1.20		General Industrials 2.29% (0.00%)		
				5,313	Eaton	1,370	1.16
0.745	Electronic and Electrical Equipment 1.		1 15	33,217	Smurfit Westrock	1,331	1.13
6,745	Schneider Electric	1,351	1.15				
	Total France	5,380	4.56		Liquidity Funds 4.06% (3.88%) ¹		
OFDRAANIV O COO	(4.000/.)			6,150,936	BlackRock Institutional Cash Series US Dollar Liquidity Platinum	1701	4.06
GERMANY 0.00%					· · ·	4,784	4.06
	Personal Goods 0.00% (1.28%)				Total Republic of Ireland	11,261	9.55
	Total Germany			SINGAPORE 0.95%	/ /0.000/ \		
HOME KOME 3 CO	/ /1 0C0/ \			SINGAT ONE 0.33	Banks 0.95% (0.98%)		
HONG KONG 2.689	% (1.00%) Life Insurance 2.68% (1.06%)			49,100	DBS Group Holdings	1,116	0.95
E1/ 900	AIA Group	3,165	2.68	40,100	Total Singapore	1,116	0.95
314,000	Total Hong Kong	3,165	2.68		iotai Singapore	1,110	0.33
	Total Holly Kolly	3,103	2.00	SOUTH KOREA 2.9	2/10/ ₂ (N NN0/ ₂)		
INDIA 1 520/ /0 000	9/- \			SOUTH RUNEA 2.3	Technology Hardware and Equipment 2	94% (n nn%)	١
INDIA 1.52% (0.96	%) Banks 1.52% (0.96%)			32,994	SK Hynix	3,464	2.94
111,999	HDFC Bank	1,798	1.52	02,001	Total South Korea	3,464	2.94
111,333	-				iotai Soutii Kolea	7,707	2.37
	Total India	1,798	1.52	SWITZERLAND 0.	NN% (N 75%)		
INDONESIA 0.00%	(0.220/ \			SWITZEHLAND U.	Food Producers 0.00% (0.75%)		
HADONESIA U.UU%	(0.23%) Banks 0.00% (0.23%)				Total Switzerland	_	
	Total Indonesia	_			iotai Switzerianu		
	iotai illuviiesia			TAIWAN 2.25% (3	01%)		
JAPAN 3.44% (1.9)	7%)			171111111 2.23 /0 (J.	Technology Hardware and Equipment 2	2.25% (3.01%))
UNI NIT J.77 /0 (1.3.	Banks 1.41% (0.00%)			106,000	Taiwan Semiconductor	, 5.5 . 70	•
200,600	Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group	1,665	1.41	,300	Manufacturing	2,650	2.25
200,000	35.6 C. Canoidi Group	1,000			Total Taiwan	2,650	2.25
					-		

CT Global Extended Alpha Fund

Portfolio Statement

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
UNITED KINGDOM	1 10.91% (9.17%)				Real Estate Investment Trusts 1.56%	(0.36%)	
	Industrial Metals and Mining 0.00% (0.90) %)		2,597	Equinix	1,834	1.56
	Consumer Services 1.61% (1.38%)				Software and Computer Services 6.9	0% (5.21%)	
75,539	Compass Group	1,898	1.61	1,853	Adobe Systems	689	0.58
,		.,		2,417	Crowdstrike Holdings	558	0.47
	Media 1.53% (1.04%)			2,029	Intuit	962	0.82
43,492	Pearson	496	0.42	15,784	Microsoft	4,988	4.23
36,703	RELX (London listing)	1,307	1.11	2,354	Synopsys	940	0.80
	Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stores	0.00% (1.26	%)		Technology Hardware and Equipmen	nt 14 53% (9 41%	١
				17,420	Apple	3,054	2.59
	Oil, Gas and Coal 1.55% (2.43%)			21,648	Broadcom	2,857	2.42
70,747	Shell	1,823	1.55	20,880	Lam Research	1,206	1.02
	Finance and Credit Services 1.40% (1.10	%)		2,636	Marvell Technology	164	0.14
15,752	London Stock Exchange Group	1,655	1.40	43,091	Micron Technology	3,339	2.83
10,702	Editadi Otook Exolidiigo di dap	1,000	1.10	63,242	Nvidia	6,519	5.53
31,786	Industrial Transportation 1.56% (1.06%) Ashtead Group	1,840	1.56		Telecommunications Service Provide	ers 0.00% (3.59%	a)
	Telecommunications Service Providers	2 260/ /0 000	/ \		Electricity 1.02% (1.44%)		
2,781,780	British Telecommunications Group	3,846	3.26	19,441	Nextera Energy	1,198	1.02
2,701,700	Total United Kingdom	12,865	10.91		Total United States of America	59,206	50.21
		12,003	10.31				
UNITED STATES O	F AMERICA 50.21% (50.14%)			DERIVATIVES 0.35	5% (-0.0 2 %)		
	Chemicals 1.30% (1.59%)				Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts	s 0.00% (0.00%)	
7,996	ECOLAB	1,528	1.30		Sell sell USD 1,688,476		
					Buy SGD 2,224,901 J.P. Morgan	(3)	-
	Consumer Services 2.85% (0.59%)				Sell sell SGD 44,430		
185	Mercadolibre	293	0.25		Buy USD 33,613 J.P. Morgan ²	_	-
54,690	Uber Technologies	3,064	2.60		Portfolio Swap 0.35% (-0.02%)		
	Leisure Goods 0.00% (1.42%)				UBS Portfolio Swap	415	0.35
	D . II				Total Derivatives	412	0.35
31,143	Retailers 3.82% (4.17%) Amazon.com	4,509	3.82		. 2	440.000	05.40
31,143	Alliazon.com	4,309	3.02	Total value of invest Net other assets (9.3		112,236 5,688	95.18 4.82
	Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stores	1.55% (1.65	%)		70)		
14,231	Procter & Gamble	1,828	1.55	Net assets		117,924	100.00
	Figure 2 and One did Commission 0.770/ /4 #20	v 1		April 2024 comparati	ives in brackets.		
0.400	Finance and Credit Services 0.77% (1.43		0.77	¹Cash equivalents.			
2,436	S&P Global	910	0.77	² Less than £500, roun	ded to nil.		
	Investment Banking and Brokerage Serv	rices 0.00%	(0.90%)	³ Includes Cash equiv	ralents.		
	Medical Equipment and Services 9.12%	(11.68%)		Total Purchases a	and Sales		
45,207	Bio-Techne Corporation	2,593	2.20		iod 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024		
15,771	Boston Scientific	1,030	0.87	rer are accounting peri	100 - 1110 - 100 -	2024	2023
44,820	Cooper Companies	3,649	3.09			£000	£000
3,055	Intuitive Surgical	1,197	1.02	Total purchases for t	the period	82,145	35,223
5,393	Thermo Fisher Scientific	2,292	1.94	Total sales for the pe	•	97,409	49,003
	Pharmaceuticals and Biotechnology 1.4	6% (1 35%)					
2,667	Eli Lilly	1,722	1.46				
_,	•		****				
40.000	Electronic and Electrical Equipment 0.86						
10,688	Xylem	1,013	0.86				
	Industrial Support Services 2.17% (2.15%	b)					
6,597	MasterCard	2,562	2.17				
,		•					
45.000	Industrial Transportation 2.30% (1.26%)	0 705	0.00				
15,003	Union Pacific	2,708	2.30				

CT Global Equity Income Fund

Portfolio Statement

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
CANADA 1.84% (2	99%)			JERSEY 1.09% (2.0	17%)		
	Oil, Gas and Coal 0.93% (1.12%)			0_110_1 1100 /0 (_11	Media 1.09% (0.74%)		
52,926	Suncor Energy CAD	1,551	0.93	222,001	WPP	1,806	1.09
	Industrial Transportation 0.91% (1.87%)				Industrial Support Services 0.00% (1.3	3%)	
18,150	Canadian National Railway	1,520	0.91		Total Jersey	1,806	1.09
	Total Canada	3,071	1.84				
0.43/4.4.4.101.4.4.0	0.000/ /0.540/)			MEXICO 0.84% (1.			
CAYMAN ISLAND	S U.UU% (U.51%) Technology Hardware and Equipment 0	00% (0 E1%)		258,958	Banks 0.84% (1.26%) Grupo Financiero Banorte	1,395	0.84
	Total Cayman Islands	.00 /0 (0.51 /0)	<u> </u>	230,330	Total Mexico	1,395	0.84
	- Iotal Gayman Iolanas				Total Mexico	1,000	0.04
FRANCE 6.61% (8.2	20%)			NETHERLANDS 1.	11% (1.21%)		
	Oil, Gas and Coal 1.38% (1.70%)				Chemicals 1.11% (1.21%)		
47,221	Totalenergies	2,288	1.38	37,290	Akzo Nobel	1,842	1.11
	Banks 1.44% (1.60%)				Total Netherlands	1,842	1.11
45,342	BNP Paribas	2,403	1.44	NORWAY 0.53% (n 62%)		
	Non-life Insurance 1.68% (1.63%)			1101111111 0.30 /0 (0	Oil, Gas and Coal 0.53% (0.62%)		
96,174	AXA	2,803	1.68	47,275	Equinor	880	0.53
	O	1/ l			Total Norway	880	0.53
	Construction and Materials 0.00% (1.77	70)					
	Electronic and Electrical Equipment 1.2			REPUBLIC OF IRE	LAND 11.64% (10.18%) Chemicals 1.03% (0.80%)		
10,720	Schneider Electric	2,147	1.29	4,827	Linde	1,713	1.03
	Software and Computer Services 0.82%	(0.63%)		-,		.,	
10,120	Capgemini	1,361	0.82	206.762	Banks 1.27% (1.56%)	0 101	1 07
	Total France	11,002	6.61	296,762	Bank of Ireland Group	2,121	1.27
OFDRANN 7 400/	(C 4C0/)				Medical Equipment and Services 2.38		
GERMANY 7.18%	(6.16%) General Industrials 1.98% (2.01%)			57,142	Medtronic	3,966	2.38
21,914	Siemens	3,296	1.98		Construction and Materials 0.00% (0.8	0%)	
	0.6 10 . 0 : 4.54%	(4.040/)			Electronic and Electrical Equipment 1	020/ /1 640/ \	
13,940	Software and Computer Services 1.51% SAP	(1. 24 %) 2,520	1.51	51,625	Johnson Controls International	3,033	1.82
10,010				,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,		,,,,,	
100.004	Telecommunications Service Providers			71,508	General Industrials 1.72% (1.52%) Smurfit Westrock	2,864	1.72
199,634	Deutsche Telekom	4,692	2.82	71,500	Sillullit Westiock	2,004	1.72
	Gas, Water and Multi-utilities 0.87% (0.				Technology Hardware and Equipment		
137,933	E.ON	1,443	0.87	24,635	TE Connectivity	2,826	1.70
	Total Germany	11,951	7.18		Liquidity Funds 1.72% (1.61%) ¹		
HONG KONG 1.02°	% (1 00%)			3,674,933	BlackRock Institutional Cash Series	0.050	1 70
HONG KONG 1.02	Life Insurance 1.02% (1.00%)				US Dollar Liquidity Platinum Total Republic of Ireland	2,858 19,381	1.72
277,000	AIA Group	1,703	1.02		iotal nepublic of freialiu	13,301	11.04
	Total Hong Kong	1,703	1.02	SOUTH KOREA 1.6	66% (2.28%)		
	(Telecommunications Equipment 1.66%	% (2.28%)	
INDONESIA 1.04%				83,057	Samsung Electronics	2,771	1.66
7,299,400	Banks 1.04% (0.82%) Bank Rakyat Indonesia	1,736	1.04		Total South Korea	2,771	1.66
.,200,100	Total Indonesia	1,736	1.04	SPAIN 0.80% (0.92	20 / \		
	-			3FAHN U.8U% (U.92	2%) Retailers 0.80% (0.92%)		
JAPAN 1.27% (1.2	2%)			30,151	Inditex	1,331	0.80
	Industrial Engineering 0.00% (1.22%)			•	Total Spain	1,331	0.80
	Technology Hardware and Equipment 1	.27% (0.00%)	1				
17,700	Tokyo Electron	2,115	1.27	SWITZERLAND 2.			
	Total Japan	2,115	1.27	26 662	Food Producers 1.47% (1.68%) DSM-Firmenich	2 457	1.47
				26,667	DOM-ENHIGH	2,457	1.4/

CT Global Equity Income Fund

Portfolio Statement

Monifering Mo	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
Material Support Survivos 1.18% (0.00%) 1.78	SWITZEKLAND 2.0	55% (3.38%) (CONTINUED)				Non-life Insurance 1 56% (1 50%)		
Technology Hardware and Equipment 1.09% (17.09%) Technology Hardware and Equipment 1.89% (13.99%) Tec		Industrial Support Services 1.18% (0.00%)			15.330		2 601	1 56
Total Switzerland	23,855		1,963	1.18	10,000		_,-,	
Mary Note 1989 1								
TAIWAN 189% 39% 145%								
Part		Total Switzerland	4,420	2.65	6,225	UnitedHealth Group	2,733	1.64
Part	TABLE 4 000/ /0	000/				Medical Equipment and Services 2.49	% (3.12%)	
18,111 18	1AIWAN 1.89% (3.	-	/ /2 200/ \		45,707			0.76
Manufacturing 3,154 1,89 1,89 1,90 1,9	100 110		% (3.39%)		23,891	Quest Diagnostics	2,877	1.73
Total Taiwan	120,113		3.154	1.89		n clare	000/ /= 300/ \	
MITED KINGED 1-88% (7.48%) 1-80% (7.48%				1.89	10.766	•		1 00
Mathematic Metals and Mining 136% (2.09%) 1.08 14.07% 14.								
Media LaTy* (LOR9*)	UNITED KINGDOM	/l 7.88% (7.48%)						
Media 1.07% (0.00%))			•		
Moderal 1,77% (0,00%)	94,424	Anglo American	2,266	1.36				
156,677 Person		BE 1: 4.070/ /0.000/ \						
Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stroke 1,081 1,082 1,	150 670		1 70E	1.07				
## Part	130,070	realson	1,700	1.07				
Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stores 1,37%, 11,33%) 15,426 American Express 3,241 1,35		Beverages 0.65% (0.77%)			13,407	IDEX Corporation	2,371	1.34
Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stores 1.37% (1.37%) 1.37 2.8888 Prilogis 2.50% 1.58 1.5 1.58 1.58 1.58 1.58 1.58 1.58 1.58 1.58 1.5 1.5	45,115	Diageo	1,082	0.65		Industrial Support Services 1.95% (2.3	3%)	
Activity Benekitser Group 2,281 1,37 2,88 Prologis 2,62 3,18		D	20/ /4 22	0/ \	15,426	American Express	3,241	1.95
Plant	49 700	•				De al Fatata Investorant Tuesta 4 F00/ /0	. 000/ \	
Parmaceuticals and Biotechnology 1.17% (1.39%) 1.397 1.79	40,700	neckili belickiser droup	2,201	1.37	20 000	· ·	•	1 50
Multiral Transportation 0.75% (0.78%) 1,251 0.75 25,076 Microsoft 7,925 4,76		Pharmaceuticals and Biotechnology 1.17%	(1.43%)		23,003	riologis	2,020	1.50
A shaded Group	139,849	GSK	1,947	1.17		Software and Computer Services 6.96	% (5.54%)	
Telecommunications Service Providers 1.51% (1.14%) 6.97 71.00		Industrial Transportation 0.75% (0.70%)			241,811	Hewlett Packard Enterprise	3,668	2.20
Telecommunications Service Providers 1.51% (1.14%) 1.51% 1.61	21 625	•	1 251	0.75	25,076	Microsoft	7,925	4.76
Telecommunications Service Providers 1.5% (1.14%) 6,978	21,023	Asilteau Group	1,231	0.73		Technology Hardware and Equipment	3 23% /3 70%\	
1,813,155 Price		Telecommunications Service Providers 1.5	1% (1.149	%)	6 974	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		0.73
MERICA 50.97% (46.17%)	1,813,155	British Telecommunications Group	2,507	1.51		•		
NUITED STATES OF AMERICA 50.97% (46.17%) Automobiles and Parts 1.79% (1.99%) 2,986 1.79 41,946 Nextera Energy 2,585 1.55 1.55 Neglection of September 1.75,614 Received 1.67% (1.61%) 2,785 1.67 22,312 American American American Multi-utilities 0.91% (7.61%) 7.614 Nextera American Ame		Total United Kingdom	13,119	7.88				
Automobiles and Parts 1.79% (1.99%) 2,986 1.79 41,946 1.79 48,262 1.79 2.698 1.51 1.51 2.098 1.51 2.098 1.51 2.098 1.51 2.098 2.098 1.51 2.098 2.098 1.51 2.098					04.050	• • •	0.404	
Tarvel and Leisure 1.04% (1.02%) 1.79 48,262 Xcel Energy 2,508 1.59 1.67 22,312 American Multi-utilities 0.91% (0.78%) 1.67 22,312 American Multi-utilities 0.91% (0.78%) 1.50 0.91 1.	UNITED STATES O							
Consumer Services 1.67% (1.61%) Consumer Services 1.68% (1.43%) Consumer Services 1.68% (1.43%) Consumer Services 1.88% (1.43%) Consumer Services 1.48% (1.43%) Con	75.041		2 000	1.70		•,		
Ebay 2,785 1.67 22,312 Ameren 1.512 0.91	70,041	General Motors	2,980	1.79	10,202	Acci Energy	2,000	1.01
Retailers 1.18% (1.43%) Total value of investments S4,881 50.97		Consumer Services 1.67% (1.61%)				Gas, Water and Multi-utilities 0.91% (D. 78 %)	
Retailers 1.18% (1.43%)	62,322	Ebay	2,785	1.67	22,312	Ameren	1,512	0.91
16,862 Target 1,967 1,18 Net other (liabilities)/assets (0.14%) (27) (0.02)		Detailore 4 400/ /4 420/ \				Total United States of America	84,881	50.97
Net other (liabilities)/assets (0.14%) (27) (0.02) Net assets (1.46%) (1.66,531 100.00 Net assets (1.46%) (1.66,531 100.00 Net assets (1.46%) (1.66,531 100.00 April 2024 comparatives in brackets. (2ash equivalents. (2	16 962		1 067	1 10	Total value of invest	tments ²	166 558	100 02
Travel and Leisure 1.04% (1.02%)	10,002	rarget	1,307	1.10				
7,638 McDonald's 1,736 1.04 Beverages 1.68% (1.66%) 54,925 Coca-Cola 2,790 1.68 Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stores 2.03% (2.11%) 26,379 Procter & Gamble 3,389 2.03 Oil, Gas and Coal 1.66% (2.00%) 2,767 1.66 Banks 1.19% (1.01%) PNC Financials 1,981 1.19 Investment Banking and Brokerage Services 2.47% (1.91%) April 2024 comparatives in brackets. 1Cash equivalents. 2Includes Cash equivalents. Total Purchases and Sales for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024 2024 2023 Total purchases for the period 42,895 33,436 Total sales for the period 52,086 41,415		Travel and Leisure 1.04% (1.02%)				,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,		
Cash equivalents. Cosa-Cola 2,790 1.68 2/1ncludes Cash equivalents. Cash equivalents. Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stores 2.03% (2.11%) Procter & Gamble 3,389 2.03 Total Purchases and Sales for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024 2023	7,638	McDonald's	1,736	1.04				
Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stores 2.03% (2.11%) Procter & Gamble 3,389 2.03 Total Purchases and Sales for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024		Povoragos 1 60% (1 66%)			April 2024 comparat	ives in brackets.		
Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stores 2.03% (2.11%) 26,379 Procter & Gamble 3,389 2.03 Total Purchases and Sales for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024	54 925	_	2 790	1 68	•			
26,379 Procter & Gamble 3,389 2.03 Total Purchases and Sales for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024 2023 23,482 ConocoPhillips 2,767 1.66 Banks 1.19% (1.01%) 13,531 PNC Financials 1,981 1.19 Investment Banking and Brokerage Services 2.47% (1.91%) Total Purchases and Sales for the accounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024 2024 2023 Total purchases for the period 42,895 33,436 Total sales for the period 52,086 41,415	01,020	3000 3010	2,700	1.00	² Includes Cash equiv	valents.		
First Heaccounting period 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2024 2025		Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stores 2.0	03% (2.11	%)	T-4-I Db	d C-1		
Oil, Gas and Coal 1.66% (2.00%) 2024 2023 32,482 ConocoPhillips 2,767 1.66 £000 £000 Banks 1.19% (1.01%) Total purchases for the period 42,895 33,436 13,531 PNC Financials 1,981 1.19 Investment Banking and Brokerage Services 2.47% (1.91%) Investment Banking and Brokerage Services 2.47% (1.91%)	26,379	Procter & Gamble	3,389	2.03				
32,482 ConocoPhillips 2,767 1.66 £000 £0		Oil. Gas and Coal 1.66% (2.00%)			тог ите ассоинину рег	iou i iviay 2024 to 31 OCLUBEI 2024	2024	2023
Banks 1.19% (1.01%) Total purchases for the period 42,895 33,436 Total sales for the period 52,086 41,415 13,531 PNC Financials 1,981 1.19 Investment Banking and Brokerage Services 2.47% (1.91%)	32.482		2.767	1.66				
Banks 1.19% (1.01%) Total sales for the period 52,086 41,415 13,531 PNC Financials 1,981 1.19 Investment Banking and Brokerage Services 2.47% (1.91%)	,2	·	,		Total purchases for	the period		
Investment Banking and Brokerage Services 2.47% (1.91%)								
	13,531	PNC Financials	1,981	1.19				
		Investment Banking and Brokerage Service	es 2.47%	(1.91%)				
	33,956							

CT Global Focus Fund

Portfolio Statement

Holdin	g Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
CANADA 1.93 %	(1 96%)				General Industrials 4.58% (2.97%)		
OAIIADA 1.3370	Waste and Disposal Services 1.93% (1	1.96%)		26,670	Eaton	6,878	2.81
34,45	•	4,734	1.93	108,504	Smurfit Westrock (Frankfurt		
	Total Canada	4,734	1.93		Exchange)	4,346	1.77
					Total Republic of Ireland	23,035	9.41
FRANCE 2.40%				CWITZEDI AND O	DO0/ /O DE0/ \		
07.51	Media 1.27% (0.00%)	0.005	1.07	SWITZERLAND 0.0	Investment Banking and Brokerage S	ervices 0 00%	(0.85%)
37,51	5 Publicis Groupe	3,095	1.27		Total Switzerland	-	-
	Personal Goods 0.00% (2.44%)						
	Construction and Materials 1.13% (1.0	100/ \		TAIWAN 4.67% (2.	91%)		
39,58	· ·	2,773	1.13		Technology Hardware and Equipment	t 4.67% (2.91%)	
00,00	Total France	5,868	2.40	457,000	Taiwan Semiconductor		
	Total Trained	0,000	2.10		Manufacturing	11,427	4.67
HONG KONG 1.	04% (0.00%)				Total Taiwan	11,427	4.67
	Life Insurance 1.04% (0.00%)			UNITED KINGDON	/ 7 78% // 65%\		
414,80	0 AIA Group	2,550	1.04	ONLIED KINGDON	Consumer Services 1.90% (1.83%)		
	Total Hong Kong	2,550	1.04	185,023	Compass Group	4,650	1.90
GERMANY 1.95				201 400	Media 3.04% (2.63%)	0.007	1.00
12.02	Non-life Insurance 1.95% (0.00%)	4 776	1.05	231,433 134,886	Pearson RELX (London listing)	2,637 4,802	1.08 1.96
12,03	4 Munich Rueckversicherungs Total Germany	4,776 4,776	1.95 1.95	104,000	TILEX (London listing)	7,002	1.50
	Total definally	4,770	1.33		Investment Banking and Brokerage S		
INDIA 1.81% (1.	09%)			140,168	3i Group	4,446	1.81
	Banks 1.36% (1.09%)				Medical Equipment and Services 0.00) % (0.19%)	
278,74	5 ICICI Bank	3,339	1.36				
	Real Estate Investment and Services (N /150/_ (N NN0/_)		42.400	Industrial Transportation 1.03% (0.00%		1.00
78,22		1,100	0.45	43,400	Ashtead Group Total United Kingdom	2,512 19,047	1.03 7.78
70,22	Total India	4,439	1.81		iotai ointeu kinguoin	13,047	1.70
				UNITED STATES O	OF AMERICA 62.02% (69.91%)		
INDONESIA 0.6	0% (0.92%)			020	Consumer Services 0.81% (0.00%)		
	Banks 0.60% (0.92%)			1,246	Mercadolibre	1,974	0.81
2,867,90		1,457	0.60		Detailore 6 120/ (E 2/10/)		
	Total Indonesia	1,457	0.60	84,796	Retailers 6.13% (5.24%) Amazon.com	12,276	5.01
LADANI 4 000/ //	400/1			3,069	O'Reilly Automotive	2,752	1.12
JAPAN 4.80% (3	3.18%) Electronic and Electrical Equipment 3	250/_ /2 100/_\					
22,35		7,965	3.25	13,447	Travel and Leisure 1.00% (0.99%) Hilton Worldwide Holdings	2,454	1.00
22,00	,	,,000	0.20	13,447	Hillon Worldwide Holdings	2,434	1.00
40.70	Technology Hardware and Equipment				Beverages 0.00% (1.67%)		
16,70		3,791	1.55		Personal Care, Drug and Grocery Stor	ree N NN% /1 ///	0/a\
	Total Japan	11,756	4.80		i cisonal date, brag and diocely stor	0.00 /0 (1.44	,0)
JERSEY 0.32% (n nn%)				Finance and Credit Services 1.49% (2.		
0211021 010270	Investment Banking and Brokerage S	ervices 0.32%	(0.00%)	9,777	S&P Global	3,652	1.49
47,43	0 CVC Capital Partners	772	0.32		Non-life Insurance 1.27% (1.39%)		
	Total Jersey	772	0.32	18,370	Marsh & McLennan	3,117	1.27
					Health Care Providers 1.87% (2.11%)		
REPUBLIC OF I	RELAND 9.41% (9.31%)			14,466	Elevance Health	4,568	1.87
00 =	Chemicals 3.88% (3.96%)	0.400	0.00	17,700		1,000	1.07
26,74	3 Linde	9,488	3.88		Medical Equipment and Services 8.36		
	Travel and Leisure 0.00% (0.96%)			34,935 90.147	Abbott Laboratories Boston Scientific	3,081	1.26
	Construction and Materials 0.95% (1.4	12%\		80,147 19,872	Insulet Corporation	5,236 3,576	2.14 1.46
8,07		2,323	0.95	7,979	Intuitive Surgical	3,126	1.28
0,07		2,020	0.00		-		

CT Global Focus Fund

Portfolio Statement

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value				
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 62.02% (69.91%) (continued)							
12,793	Thermo Fisher Scientific	5,438	2.22				
	Pharmaceuticals and Biotechnology 2	.32% (4.09%)					
5,214	Eli Lilly	3,366	1.37				
16,683	Zoetis	2,319	0.95				
	Aerospace and Defence 2.38% (2.28%)						
75,083	Howmet Aerospace	5,823	2.38				
	Electronic and Electrical Equipment 0.	.00% (1.98%)					
	Industrial Support Services 7.34% (9.3	7%)					
34,406	MasterCard	13,364	5.46				
20,377	Visa 'A' Shares	4,594	1.88				
	Industrial Transportation 1.00% (0.99%)					
13,629	Union Pacific	2,460	1.00				
	Software and Computer Services 17.38	3% (16.69%)					
49,435	Alphabet Class A	6,576	2.69				
9,856	Intuit	4,676	1.91				
8,353	Meta Platforms	3,686	1.50				
66,174	Microsoft	20,913	8.54				
3,232	Servicenow	2,345	0.96				
10,901	Synopsys	4,351	1.78				
	Technology Hardware and Equipment	10.67% (10.74%	%)				
58,956	Broadcom	7,782	3.18				
128,993	Lam Research	7,448	3.04				
105,681	Nvidia	10,893	4.45				
	Total United States of America	151,846	62.02				
Total value of invest	ments	241,707	98.73				
Net other assets (1.6	9%)	3,112	1.27				
Net assets		244,819	100.00				
April 2024 comparati	ves in brackets.						
Total Purchases a	nd Sales						
	od 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024						
<i>3 p-1</i> 11	,	2024	2023				
		£000	£000				
Total purchases for t	he period	137,638	52,889				
Total sales for the pe		85,760	56,515				
		•					

Portfolio Statement

as at 31 October 2024

	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value		Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
AUST	RALIA 6.75%	(5.45%) AAA 1.07% (1.09%)			CAYM	AN ISLAND	S 0.17% (0.17%)		
AUD AUD	1,190,000 195,000	Housing Australia 2.38% 28/03/2029 Housing Australia 5.785% 08/11/2038	558 105	0.90 0.17	GBP	100,000	Not Rated 0.17% (0.17%) *Phoenix Group Holdings 7.75% 06/12/2053	105	0.17
	·	•					Total Cayman Islands	105	0.17
AUD	480,000	Aaau 0.39% (0.00%) Australia Government Bond 4.25% 21/06/2034	240	0.39	CHILE	1.07% (0.39	-		
AUD	1,359,000	AA+ 2.12% (1.18%) South Australian Government			EUR	450,000	A 1.07% (0.39%) Chile Government International Bond 0.555% 21/01/2029	339	0.55
	1,333,000	Financing Authority 4% 24/05/2029	680	1.10	USD	413,000	Chile Government International Bond		
AUD	1,290,000	New South Wales Treasury 4.75% 20/09/2035	628	1.02			4.85% 22/01/2029 Total Chile	322 661	0.52 1.07
		Aa3 1.05% (1.54%)			FRAN	CE 5.12% (10	1 83%)		
EUR	750,000	NBN Company 3.75% 22/03/2034	649	1.05	HAN	JL J. 12 /0 (10	AAA 0.14% (0.00%)		
EUR	200,000	A- 0.58% (0.26%) *Australia and New Zealand Banking			EUR	100,000	La Banque Post Home Loan 2.75% 30/10/2030	84	0.14
EUR	230,000	Group Variable 05/05/2031 Telstra Group 3.5% 03/09/2036	162 195	0.26 0.32			AA 0.00% (1.65%)		
USD	902,000	BBB 1.54% (1.38%) Ausgrid Finance 4.35% 01/08/2028	683	1.10	EUR	1,000,000	Aa2 1.01% (1.51%) UNEDIC 0.25% 16/07/2035	623	1.01
AUD	540,000	Ausgrid Finance 5.408% 28/03/2031	273	0.44			Aa2u 0.07% (0.07%)		
		Total Australia	4,173	6.75	EUR	60,000	France Government Bond 1.75% 25/06/2039	42	0.07
AUST	RIA 0.32% (1						AA- 0.25% (0.00%)		
EUR	65,000	AA+ 0.07% (0.07%) Republic of Austria 1.85% 23/05/2049	43	0.07	USD	200,000	Agence Centrale des Organismes de Securite Sociale 4.5% 05/03/2029	156	0.25
EUR	200,000	A+ 0.25% (0.96%) Erste Group Bank 0.125% 17/05/2028	154	0.25	EUR	200,000	A+ 0.28% (2.77%) BPCE 4.125% 10/07/2028	174	0.28
		Total Austria	197	0.32	2011	200,000		.,,	0.20
BELGI	UM 3.19% (2	-			EUR	200,000	A 0.28% (0.28%) Air Liquide Finance 3.375% 29/05/2034	171	0.28
EUR	600.000	A2 0.61% (0.51%) Belgium French Community 0.625%					BBB+ 1.67% (2.04%)		
Lon	000,000	11/06/2035	380	0.61	USD	1,100,000	Orange 9% 01/03/2031	1,034	1.67
EUR	900,000	A- 1.30% (1.86%) KBC Group 4.375 06/12/2031	803	1.30	EUR	1,200,000	BBB 1.42% (1.39%) Praemia Healthcare 1.375% 17/09/2030	881	1.42
		A3 0.87% (0.19%)					Baa2 0.00% (1.12%)		
EUR EUR	200,000 500,000	Region Wallonne 1.05% 22/06/2040 Region Wallonne 3.9% 22/06/2054	116 424	0.19 0.68			Total France	3,165	5.12
		Not Rated 0.41% (0.41%)			GERM	ANY 9.29%	(7.60%)		
EUR	300,000	Flemish Community 3.5% 22/06/2045	251	0.41			AAA 1.14% (0.91%)		
		Total Belgium _	1,974	3.19	USD GBP	904,000 130,000	KFW 0.75% 30/09/2030 KFW 3.875% 28/10/2027	575 128	0.93 0.21
CANA	DA 0.77% (0	1.00%)			ODI	130,000		120	0.21
		AAA 0.77% (0.00%)			EUR	119,000	Aaau 0.14% (0.23%) Bundesrepublik Deutschland 1.8%		
USD	600,000	Export Developmnt Canada 4.75% 05/06/2034	479	0.77	EUN	119,000	15/08/2053	84	0.14
		Total Canada	479	0.77			Aaae 1.53% (1.50%)		
		-			EUR	1,101,000	Bayerische Landesboden 2.875% 28/02/2031	945	1.53
					EUR	391,000	Aa1 0.54% (0.53%) Land Berlin 2.75% 14/02/2033	333	0.54

Portfolio Statement

(continued)

	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value		Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
GERM	ANY 9.29%	(7.60%) (continued) AA 0.65% (0.14%)			USD	800,000	Nederlandse Financierings 4.5% 12/06/2029	628	1.01
EUR	376,000	Land Nordrhein-Westfalen 2.5% 15/10/2029	316	0.51			AA- 1.04% (0.00%)		
EUR	104,000	North Rhine-Westphalia 2.9% 07/06/2033	89	0.14	EUR	758,000	Enexis Holding 3.5% 30/05/2036 Aa3 0.00% (0.14%)	644	1.04
		AA- 0.26% (0.26%)							
EUR	188,000	Deutsche Bahn Finance 3.375% 24/04/2034	162	0.26	EUR	200,000	A- 0.28% (0.55%) *ING Groep Variable 12/02/2035	173	0.28
		BBB+ 2.60% (2.11%)			5115	400.000	A3 0.14% (0.14%)		
EUR	211,000	E.ON 4.125% 25/03/2044	182	0.29	EUR	100,000	TenneT Holding 3.875% 28/10/2028	87	0.14
EUR	600,000	Vonovia 1.875% 28/06/2028	483	0.78			BBB+ 0.14% (0.14%)		
EUR	1,100,000	Vonovia 4.25% 10/04/2034	949	1.53	EUR	100,000	ASR Nederland 3.625% 12/12/2028	86	0.14
5115		Baa1 0.96% (0.90%)					BBB 0.22% (0.40%)		
EUR EUR	600,000 100,000	Amprion 3.85% 27/08/2039 Amprion 4% 21/05/2044	508 85	0.82 0.14	EUR	193,000	Digital Dutch Finco 1% 15/01/2032	135	0.22
Lon	100,000	·	00	0.11			BB 0.43% (0.00%)		
- LID		BBB 1.47% (0.45%)			EUR	300,000	*Telefonica Europe Variable 5.7522%		
EUR EUR	300,000	Eurogrid 1.113% 15/05/2032	214	0.35 0.83			15/04/2172 ·	267	0.43
EUR	600,000 200,000	*Deutsche Bank 4% 12/07/2028 *Commerzbank 5.25% 25/03/2029	514 179	0.03			Ba2 0.00% (0.42%)		
		BBB- 0.00% (0.57%) Total Germany	5,746	9.29	EUR	71,000	Not Rated 0.68% (0.54%) Netherlands Government 0.5%		
			0,7 10	0.20	LOIT	71,000	15/01/2040	43	0.07
ITALY	1.66% (1.46%	%)			EUR	500,000	*Triodos Bank Variable 05/02/2032	374	0.61
EUD	440.000	Aa3 0.19% (0.00%)					Total Netherlands	3,260	5.27
EUR	140,000	Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena 3.375% 16/07/2030	120	0.19	NEW ZEALAND 0.19% (0.18%) AAA 0.19% (0.18%)				
		BBB 1.47% (1.10%)			NZD	190,000	Housing New Zealand 1.534%		
EUR GBP	100,000 775,000	Banco BPM 4.625% 29/11/2027 Intesa Sanpaolo 6.625% 31/05/2033	88 819	0.14 1.33			10/09/2035	62	0.10
וטט	773,000	·	013	1.33	NZD	120,000	Housing New Zealand 2.247% 05/10/2026	54	0.09
		Baa2 0.00% (0.22%)					Total New Zealand	116	0.19
		BBB- 0.00% (0.14%)							
		Total Italy	1,027	1.66	NORW	'AY 1.72% (•		
IADAR	N 2.67% (2.2	20/.\			EUR	370,000	AAA 0.50% (0.00%) Kommunalbanken 2.625% 05/11/2031	310	0.50
JAI AI	4 2.07 /0 (2.2.	A+ 2.67% (2.22%)							
USD	1,600,000	Japan International Cooperation			EUR	E70 000	A+ 1.22% (1.21%) Statnett 3.5% 08/06/2033	487	0.70
		Agency 4% 23/05/2028	1,226	1.99	EUR	570,000 320,000	Statnett 3.375% 26/02/2036	267	0.79 0.43
USD	536,000	Japan International Cooperation Agency 4.75% 21/05/2029	422	0.68	LOIT	320,000	Total Norway	1,064	1.72
		Total Japan	1,648	2.67			•		
			.,		REPUB	LIC OF IRE	LAND 2.21% (3.85%)		
LUXEN	/IBOURG 0.4	11% (0.00%)			EUD	F4 000	AA 0.07% (0.07%)	40	0.07
FUD	202.000	A- 0.41% (0.00%)			EUR	54,000	Irish Treasury 1.35% 18/03/2031	42	0.07
EUR	293,000	Prologis International Funding 4.375% 01/07/2036	255	0.41			Baa1 0.32% (0.00%)		
		Total Luxembourg	255	0.41	EUR	233,000	*Permanent TSB Group 4.25% 10/07/2030	201	0.32
	-n	070/ /0.450/)							
NETHI	:KLANDS 5.	27% (3.45%)			EUR	999 000	BBB 1.63% (2.28%) *AIB Group 4.625% 23/07/2029	880	1.42
EUR	612,000	AAA 2.34% (1.12%) BNG Bank 2.75% 05/04/2029	520	0.84	EUR		*Bank of Ireland Group 5% 04/07/2031	127	0.21
USD	400,000	BNG Bank 3.5% 19/05/2028	303	0.49		-,	·	·	
							Baa2 0.00% (0.32%)		

Portfolio Statement

(continued)

	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value		Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
REPU	BLIC OF IRE	LAND 2.21% (3.85%) (continued) BB+ 0.17% (0.17%)			AUD	650,000	Council of Europe Development Bank 4.3% 03/04/2029	325	0.52
GBP	100,000	*Bank of Ireland Group 7.594% 06/12/2032	104	0.17	USD	1,691,000	European Investment Bank 0.875% 17/05/2030	1,099	1.78
		Liquidity Funds 0.02% (1.01%) ¹			GBP	10,000	European Investment Bank 3.625% 12/01/2032	9	0.01
GBP	10,626	BlackRock Institutional Cash Series Sterling Liquidity Platinum	11	0.02	GBP	260,000	European Investment Bank 3.625% 12/01/2032 (Luxembourg Stock		
		Total Republic of Ireland	1,365	2.21	USD	1,289,000	Exchange) Inter-American Development Bank	247	0.40
SLOV	ENIA 0.01%	(0.01%) AA- 0.01% (0.01%)			USD	60,000	3.5% 12/04/2033 International Bank for Reconstruction	943	1.53
EUR	10,000	Republika Slovenija 0.125% 01/07/2031	7	0.01 0.01	GBP	189,000	and Development 2.5% 29/03/2032 International Bank for Reconstruction and Development 3.875% 02/10/2028	41 185	0.07
SOUT	H KOREA 2.6				USD	1,080,000	International Bank for Reconstruction and Development 4.5% 10/04/2031	850	1.37
0001	II KONEA Z.	AAA 2.69% (2.31%)			USD	30,000	International Bank for Reconstruction	000	
EUR EUR	400,000 260,000	Kookmin Bank 2.75% 21/01/2028 Korea Housing Finance 2.7331%	337	0.55	USD	200,000	and Development 4.75% 15/02/2035 International Finance Corporation	24	0.04
EUR	1,265,000	02/07/2028 Korea Housing Finance 4.082%	219	0.35	EUR	106,000	4.375% 15/01/2027 Nordic Investment Bank 2.5%	156	0.25
		25/09/2027	1,105	1.79			30/01/2030	90	0.14
		Total South Korea	1,661	2.69			AA+ 1.83% (1.99%)		
SPAIN	N 3.25% (2.18	3%)			EUR EUR	741,000 1,210,000	European Union 0% 04/11/2025 European Union 0.3% 04/11/2050	611 517	0.99 0.84
	,	A 0.57% (0.89%)			LUIT	1,210,000	Total Supranational	6,624	10.71
EUR	100,000	Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria 0.75% 04/06/2025	83	0.13	SWED	DEN 0.00% (0	_		
EUR	100,000	Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria 3.5% 26/03/2031	86	0.14	01122	211 0.00 /0 (0	AA- 0.00% (0.13%)		
EUR	213,000	Community of Madrid 3.462%					Total Sweden	-	_
		30/04/2034	184	0.30	HAUTE	D VINCDOR	√ 17.56% (17.42%)		
		A- 0.52% (0.51%)			ONITE	יוטעטאווא ע.	AAA 1.82% (2.17%)		
EUR	400,000	*Caixabank Variable 21/01/2028 A3 0.29% (0.28%)	321	0.52	EUR	1,380,000	Wellcome Trust 1.125% 21/01/2027	1,123	1.82
EUR	206,000	Basque Government 3.4% 30/04/2034	177	0.29	FUD	200 000	Aaae 0.37% (0.36%)		
		BBB+ 0.24% (0.36%)			EUR	300,000	Yorkshire Building Society 0.01% 16/11/2028	227	0.37
EUR	200,000	Iberdrola Finanzas 1.375% 11/03/2032	149	0.24			AA 1.49% (0.90%)		
EUR	100,000	BBB 1.63% (0.14%) EDP Servicios Financieros España			USD	370,000	International Finance Facility for Immunisation 1% 21/04/2026	274	0.44
EUR	1,100,000	3.5% 16/07/2030 *Caixabank 3.625% 19/09/2032	85 924	0.14 1.49	GBP	660,000	International Finance Facility for Immunisation 2.75% 07/06/2025	651	1.05
		Total Spain	2,009	3.25			Aa3 0.37% (0.00%)		
SUPR	ANATIONAL	. 10.71% (11.55%)			GBP GBP	140,000 100,000	Saltaire Finance 4.809% 14/03/2053 Saltaire Finance 4.818% 01/12/2033	132 100	0.21 0.16
רוים	150 000	AAA 8.88% (9.56%)					A+ 1.88% (0.00%)		
EUR	150,000	Asian Development Bank 2.55% 10/01/2031	126	0.20	USD USD	254,000 1,204,000	AstraZeneca 6.45% 15/09/2037 Nationwide Building Society 5.127%	221	0.36
EUR	80,000	Asian Development Bank 2.55% 10/01/2031 (Frankfurt Stock Exchange)	67	0.11	000	1,207,000	29/07/2029	942	1.52
AUD	1,095,000	Asian Development Bank 4.8% 17/01/2033 *Asian Development Bank Variable	551	0.89	GBP	100,000	A 2.69% (3.02%) Aster Treasury 5.412% 20/12/2032	101	0.16
GBP USD	586,000 233,000	23/05/2029 Council of Europe Development Bank	603	0.98	EUR EUR	200,000 710,000	Compass Group 3.25% 06/02/2031 Compass Group 3.25% 06/02/2031	169	0.27
บงบ	233,000	3% 16/06/2025	180	0.29			(London Listing)	601	0.97
					EUR	930,000	Motability Operations 3.875% 24/01/2034	797	1.29

Portfolio Statement

(continued)

	Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value		Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
UNITE	D KINGDO	M 17.56% (17.42%) (continued)					A 3.86% (3.24%)		
		A- 0.16% (0.17%)			USD	820,000	Bristol-Myrs Squibb 5.65% 22/02/2064	640	1.03
GBP	100,000	Places for People Treasury 6.25%			USD	177,000	Elevance Health 5.7% 15/02/2055	138	0.22
		06/12/2041	101	0.16	USD	685,000	NSTAR Electric 4.95% 15/09/2052	498	0.81
		B2 4 440/ /4 020/ \			USD	1,547,000	Pfizer 1.75% 18/08/2031	1,000	1.62
FUD	705.000	A3 1.11% (1.93%)	207	1 11	EUR	160,000	Prologis Euro Finance 1.5% 08/02/2034	112	0.18
EUR	765,000	Bupa Finance 5% 12/10/2030	687	1.11			A 4 000/ /0 040/ \		
		BBB+ 3.01% (3.06%)			USD	516,000	A- 1.98% (2.04%) AbbVie 4.3% 14/05/2036	374	0.60
EUR	380,000	*NatWest Group 3.673% 05/08/2031	324	0.53	USD	68,000	Abbvie 5.4% 15/03/2054	53	0.00
EUR	980,000	*NatWest Group Variable 26/02/2030	742	1.20	USD	153,000	*Bank of America 6.204% 10/11/2028	124	0.09
USD	930,000	NXP USA 5% 15/01/2033	710	1.15	USD	930,000	Consolidated Edison 3.35% 01/04/2030	677	1.09
GBP	100,000	*Royal London Finance Bonds No 4			030	330,000	Consolidated Edison 3.33 /0 01/04/2030	077	1.03
		Variable 07/10/2049	81	0.13			BBB+ 4.71% (3.34%)		
		DDD 4 050/ /0 700/ \			USD	1,007,000	Amgen 5.75% 02/03/2063	784	1.27
FUD	141.000	BBB 1.35% (0.73%)	110	0.10	USD	16,000	*Prudential Financial Variable 6.75%		
EUR	141,000	Cadent Finance 3.75% 16/04/2033	118	0.19			01/03/2053	13	0.02
GBP	195,000	Cadent Finance 5.625% 11/01/2036 Vodafone Group 5.75% 28/06/2054	190	0.31	USD	1,295,000	Verizon Communications 3.875%		
USD	680,000	vouatorie Group 5.75% 28/06/2054	525	0.85	1100		01/03/2052	775	1.25
		Baa2 2.23% (0.00%)			USD	212,000	*Wells Fargo 4.54% 15/08/2026	164	0.27
GBP	1,045,000	Pearson 3.75% 04/06/2030	965	1.56	USD	1,630,000	Welltower 3.85% 15/06/2032	1,177	1.90
GBP	323,000	Pearson 5.375% 12/09/2034	314	0.51			BBB 2.77% (0.97%)		
GBP	100,000	Pearson Funding 5.375% 12/09/2034	97	0.16	USD	1,098,000	Becton Dickinson 2.823% 20/05/2030	768	1.24
					USD	223,000	CVS Health Corporation 3.875%		
		BBB- 0.14% (0.28%)				-,	20/07/2025	172	0.28
EUR	100,000	DS Smith 4.5% 27/07/2030	88	0.14	USD	810,000	GE Healthcare Technologies 4.8%		
		Baa3 0.25% (2.44%)					14/08/2029	629	1.02
GBP	200 000	*Bupa Finance Variable 24/03/2170	151	0.25	USD	200,000	Humana 5.5% 15/03/2053	144	0.23
OD!	200,000	24pa 1 manos vanasio 2 1,00,2170	101	0.20			PPP 2 929/ /2 629/ \		
		Ba2 0.34% (0.34%)			USD	2,013,000	BBB- 3.82% (2.63%) Centene 4.625% 15/12/2029	1,495	2.42
GBP	210,000	*Co-operative Bank Finance 6%			USD	437,000	HCA 3.5% 15/07/2051	232	0.38
		06/04/2027	211	0.34	USD	820,000	HCA 5.45% 15/09/2034	632	1.02
		Not Rated 0.35% (2.02%)			OOD	020,000	Total United States of America	15,507	25.07
GBP	110,000	Pension Insurance 8% 13/11/2033	118	0.19			Total Officed States of Afficia	13,307	23.01
GBP	198,100	United Kingdom Gilt 1.5% 31/07/2053	96	0.15	DEDIV	ATIVEC 24	00/ / 0.220/ \		
ODI	130,100	Total United Kingdom	10,856	17.56	DENIV	AIIVES -Z.I	8% (-0.22%)		
		Total Officed Kingdom	10,030	17.30	AUD	(24)	Futures and Options -0.20% (-0.24%) UBS AUS 10 Year Bond Future		
HAUTE	D CTATEC (DE ABAEDICA DE 070/ /40 000/ \			AUD	(34)	Expiring December 2024	89	0.14
UNITE	D 21AIE2 (DF AMERICA 25.07% (19.69%)			CAD	17	UBS CAN 10 Year Bond Future	00	0.11
USD	1 524 000	AA 2.37% (2.25%)	1 101	1.00	0, 12	• •	Expiring December 2024	(18)	(0.03)
USD	1,524,000	Roche Holdings 4.985% 08/03/2034	1,191 275	1.93 0.44	EUR	(30)	UBS EURO-Bobl Future Expiring		
บงบ	297,000	Roche Holdings 7% 01/03/2039	2/3	0.44			December 2024	18	0.03
		AA- 1.92% (1.78%)			EUR	(56)			
USD	399,000	Metropolitan Life Global Funding I					2024	59	0.10
		4.4% 30/06/2027	309	0.50	EUR	(5)		•	
USD	820,000	New York Life Insurance 4.45%			CDD	(11)	Expiring December 2024	3	_
		04/04/2069	522	0.84	GBP	(11)	UBS Long Gilt Future Expiring December 2024	52	0.08
USD	325,000	Pacific Life Global Funding II 1.375%	040	0.00	USD	19		32	0.00
HCD	100.000	14/04/2026	242	0.39	OOD	13	December 2024	(27)	(0.04)
USD	180,000	Teachers Insurance & Annuity Association of America 4.27%			USD	58		, ,	,
		15/05/2047	116	0.19			December 2024	(291)	(0.47)
		10,00,201		00	USD	1	UBS US Ultra Bond CBT Future		
		A+ 3.64% (3.44%)					Expiring December 2024	(6)	(0.01)
EUR	290,000	Eli Lilly 0.5% 14/09/2033	198	0.32			Command Consider Freshamer Control	1 000/ /0 000/	١
USD	1,707,000	Oncor Electric Delivery 4.15%					Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts - Sell GBP 28,428	1.36% (U.UZ%	ı
	05	01/06/2032	1,262	2.04			Buy AUD 55,230 Deutsche Bank ²		
USD	956,000	UnitedHealth Group 6.05% 15/02/2063	791	1.28			Sell GBP 35,091	_	_
							Buy AUD 68,185 Lloyds ²	_	_
							, 35,.00 Elojuo		

Portfolio Statement *(continued)*

Holding	Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value	Holding Investment	Value £000	% of Net Asset Value
DERIVATIVES -2.18	3% (-0.22%) (continued)			Buy GBP 3,403 BNP Paribas ²	-	-
	Sell GBP 612			Sell CAD 6,272		
	Buy CAD 1,096 Deutsche Bank ² Sell GBP 752	_	_	Buy GBP 3,491 CIBC ²	-	_
	Buy CAD 1,357 HSBC ²	_	_	Sell AUD 6,809,106 Buy GBP 3,530,245 J.P. Morgan	61	0.10
	Sell GBP 5,658			Sell CAD 84,528	UI	0.10
	Buy CAD 10,177 J.P. Morgan ²	_	_	Buy GBP 46,887 Morgan Stanley ²	_	_
	Sell GBP 5,842			Sell EUR 635,265		
	Buy CAD 10,365 Bank of Montreal ²	-	-	Buy GBP 532,225 HSBC	(4)	(0.01)
	Sell GBP 7,048			Sell CAD 12,015		
	Buy CAD 12,571 Deutsche Bank ²	-	-	Buy GBP 6,705 RBC ²	-	-
	Sell GBP 7,842			Sell EUR 9,404,286		
	Buy CAD 14,081 Deutsche Bank ² Sell GBP 10,170	_	_	Buy GBP 7,845,199 CIBC	(98)	(0.16)
	Buy CAD 18,089 Deutsche Bank ²	_	_	Sell EUR 923,414	(7)	(0.01)
	Sell GBP 1,415			Buy GBP 773,444 Bank of Montreal Sell EUR 10,838,848	(7)	(0.01)
	Buy CAD 2,552 Morgan Stanley ²	_	_	Buy GBP 9,039,046 RBC	(116)	(0.19)
	Sell GBP 1,692			Sell EUR 10,838,847	(/	(5115)
	Buy CAD 3,050 CIBC ²	-	-	Buy GBP 9,040,535 Deutsche Bank	(114)	(0.18)
	Sell GBP 2,749			Sell GBP 712		
	Buy CAD 4,917 CIBC ²	-	-	Buy NZD 1,526 Lloyds ²	-	-
	Sell GBP 2,839			Sell GBP 919		
	Buy CAD 5,094 CIBC ²	_	_	Buy NZD 1,966 Lloyds ²	-	-
	Sell GBP 286 Buy CAD 513 Deutsche Bank²	_	_	Sell GBP 1,465		
	Sell GBP 3,813			Buy NZD 3,144 Deutsche Bank² Sell GBP 146,265	_	_
	Buy CAD 6,805 J.P. Morgan ²	_	_	Buy USD 191,457 J.P. Morgan	3	_
	Sell GBP 1,008,622			Sell GBP 277,294	•	
	Buy EUR 1,212,661 Lloyds	16	0.03	Buy USD 364,994 CIBC	7	0.01
	Sell GBP 190,604			Sell GBP 300,216		
	Buy EUR 229,215 HSBC	3	-	Buy USD 393,086 Lloyds	5	0.01
	Sell GBP 203,604	0	0.01	Sell GBP 380,412	_	
	Buy EUR 244,775 Morgan Stanley Sell GBP 226,738	3	0.01	Buy USD 493,448 Lloyds	3	0.01
	Buy EUR 271,994 Deutsche Bank	3	_	Sell GBP 385,785 Buy USD 503,328 Morgan Stanley	6	0.01
	Sell CAD 2,706	Ü		Sell GBP 400,933	U	0.01
	Buy GBP 1,506 Bank of Montreal ²	_	_	Buy USD 520,768 RBC	4	0.01
	Sell NZD 256,938			Total Derivatives	(1,350)	(2.18)
	Buy GBP 121,884 Barclays	3	-			
	Sell USD 18,173,293			Total value of investments ³	60,549	97.92
	Buy GBP 13,638,492 Bank of Montreal	(497)	(0.80)	Net other assets (6.12%)	1,284	2.08
	Sell USD 18,173,399	(40E)	(0.90)	Net assets	61,833	100.00
	Buy GBP 13,640,722 Barclays Sell USD 196,115	(495)	(0.80)	April 2024 comparatives in brackets.		
	Buy GBP 147,559 RBC	(5)	(0.01)	*Variable rate bonds.		
	Sell EUR 232,137	(0)	(0.01)	¹Cash equivalents.		
	Buy GBP 193,583 CIBC	(3)	_	² Less than £500, rounded to nil.		
	Sell USD 253,200			³ Includes Cash equivalents.		
	Buy GBP 194,592 Lloyds	(3)	-			
	Sell CAD 3,731			ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENTS BY ASSET CLASS		
	Buy GBP 2,073 J.P. Morgan ²	-	-		Value	% of Investment
	Sell CAD 4,572 Buy GBP 2,542 RBC ²		_	Fixed interest	55,144	91.07
	Sell USD 350,453	_	_	Floating rate notes	6,744	11.14
	Buy GBP 268,360 CIBC	(4)	(0.01)	Derivatives	(1,350)	(2.23)
	Sell AUD 53,798	1.7	1/	Collective investment schemes	11	0.02
	Buy GBP 27,662 Lloyds ²	-	-	Total value of investments ³	60,549	100.00
	Sell CAD 504					
	Buy GBP 282 J.P. Morgan ²	-	-			
	Sell CAD 6,097					

Portfolio Statement

(continued)

ANALYSIS OF UNDERLYING EXPOSURE FUTURES AND OPTIONS

AD OF HOMS	
Value £000	
(1,924)	
1,148	
(2,964)	
(6,167)	
(549)	
(1,038)	
1,570	
5,270	
97	
(4,557)	
2024	2023
£000	£000
33,842	8,401
31,716	2,292
	Value £000 (1,924) 1,148 (2,964) (6,167) (549) (1,038) 1,570 5,270 97 (4,557) 2024 £000 33,842

Performance Summary for the six months ended 31st October 2024

Fund Name	Sector	Index	Class 1 Net Return %	Class 2 Net Return %	Sector Median Net Return %	Index Total Return %
UNITED KINGDOM						
CT UK Mid 250	IA UK All Companies	FTSE 250 Ex Investment Trusts	4.48	4.73	1.69	4.98
CT UK Sustainable Equity ¹	IA UK All Companies	FTSE All Share	2.72	2.72	1.69	1.81
CT UK Equity Alpha Income	IA UK Equity Income	FTSE All Share	3.68	3.98	2.20	1.81
EUROPE						
CT Pan European Focus	IA Europe Including UK	MSCI Europe	-1.36	-1.08	0.33	0.39
US						
CT US Equity Income	-	S&P 500	5.76	6.02	-	11.11
PACIFIC BASIN & EMERGING MARKETS						
CT Global Emerging Markets	IA Global Emerging Markets	MSCI Emerging Markets	3.72	4.02	3.81	6.15
GLOBAL						
CT Global Focus ^{2*}	IA Global	MSCI AC World Index	6.10	6.14	5.05	8.23
CT Global Extended Alpha	IA Global	MSCI AC World Index	8.45	8.90	5.05	8.23
CT Global Equity Income	IA Global Equity Income	MSCI AC World Index	3.06	3.36	5.45	8.23
BOND						
CT Emerging Market Local*	Morningstar Category Global Emerging Markets Bond – Local Currency	J.P. Morgan Government Bond Index- Emerging Markets (GBI-EM) Global Diversified	0.05	0.39	0.98	1.78
CT UK Index Linked ³	IA UK Index Linked Gilts	FTSE Actuaries UK Index-Linked Gilts All Stocks	1.76	1.87	2.07	2.23
CT Sterling Medium and Long-Dated Corporate Bond* ³	-	iBoxx GBP Non-Gilts 5+ Years	_	3.09	-	3.29
CT Sterling Short-Dated Corporate Bond	-	iBoxx Sterling Corporate 1-5	3.37	3.38	-	3.40
CT UK Fixed Interest	IA UK Gilts	FTSE Actuaries UK Conventional Gilts All Stocks Index	1.75	1.83	1.74	1.85
CT Global Social Bond	IA Specialist Bond	Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit GBP Hedged	4.70	4.72	3.79	5.02

Net returns (Source: Morningstar) are calculated using official noon prices, bid to bid basis with net income reinvested and are net of assumed fees and expenses but does not include any initial charges. All data shown in GBP.

The Fund Sector is taken from the UK Unit Trusts/0EICs universe. Comparing the fund's performance to this Fund Sector is only relevant for UK Investors.

¹Class 1 is showing T Income and Class 2 is showing Z Accumualtion.

²Class 1 is showing Z Gross Accumulation.

 $^{^3}$ Funds closed on 8 October 2024 and the performance disclosed in performance summary is to the closure date.

^{*}Gross shareclasses used.

Risk and Reward Profiles

Fund	Share Class	SRRI*
CT UK Mid 250 Fund	Class 1 – Accumulation shares	6
	Class 2 – Accumulation shares	6
	Class L – Gross accumulation shares	6
	Class X – Accumulation shares	6
	Class Z – Accumulation shares	6
CT UK Sustainable Equity Fund	Class 2 – Gross accumulation shares	6
, -	Class T – Income shares	6
	Class X – Gross accumulation shares	6
	Class Z – Gross income shares	6
	Class Z – Accumulation shares	6
CT UK Equity Alpha Income Fund	Class 1 – Income shares	6
	Class 2 – Income shares	6
	Class X – Income shares	6
	Class X – Gross accumulation shares	6
	Class Z – Income shares	6
CT Sterling Short-Dated Corporate Bond Fund	Class 1 – Accumulation shares	3
	Class 1 – Gross accumulation shares	3
	Class 2 – Income shares	3
	Class 2 – Gross income shares	3
	Class 2 – Gross accumulation shares	3
	Class 2 EUR Hedged – Gross accumulation shares	3
	Class X – Gross income shares	3
	Class X – Gross accumulation shares	3
	Class Y – Gross income shares	3
CT UK Fixed Interest Fund	Class 1 – Income shares	4
or or mountain	Class 1 – Accumulation shares	4
	Class 2 – Income shares	4
	Class 2 – Gross income shares	4
	Class X – Gross accumulation shares	4
	Class Z – Accumulation shares	4
CT Pan European Focus Fund	Class 1 – Income shares	6
or ran European rocus runu	Class 1 – Accumulation shares	6
	Class 2 – Accumulation shares	6
	Class X – Accumulation shares	6
	Class Z – Accumulation shares	6
CT US Equity Income Fund	Class 1 – Income shares	5
Cr OS Equity income runu	Class 1 – Accumulation shares	5
	Class 1 – Accumulation shares Class 2 – Income shares	5 5
	Class 2 – Income shares Class 2 EUR Hedged – Income shares	5 5
	Class L – Income shares	5 5
	Class X – Income shares	5 5
		•
	Class X – Gross accumulation shares Class Z – Income shares	5
		5
CT Clobal Emorging Maykets Facility Found	Class Z – Accumulation shares	5 6
CT Global Emerging Markets Equity Fund	Class 1 – Accumulation shares	
	Class 2 – Accumulation shares	6
	Class X – Income shares	6
	Class X – Accumulation shares	6
CT Empresion Market Land Firm	Class Z – Accumulation shares	6
CT Emerging Market Local Fund	Class 1 - Income shares	4
	Class 1 – Gross accumulation shares	4
	Class 2 – Gross accumulation shares	4
	Class X – Gross income shares	4
	Class X – Gross accumulation shares	4
	Class Z – Income shares	4
	Class Z – Gross accumulation shares	4

Risk and Reward Profiles

(continued)

Fund	Share Class	SRRI*	
CT Global Extended Alpha Fund	Class 1 – Accumulation shares	6	
	Class A – Accumulation shares	6	
	Class A SGD Hedged – Accumulation shares	6	
	Class 2 – Accumulation shares	6	
	Class P – Accumulation shares	6	
	Class X – Accumulation shares	6	
	Class Z – Gross income shares	6	
	Class Z – Accumulation shares	6	
CT Global Equity Income Fund	Class 1 – Income shares	5	
	Class 1 – Monthly Income shares	5	
	Class 1 – Accumulation shares	5	
	Class 2 – Income shares	5	
	Class 2 – Accumulation shares	5	
	Class L – Income shares	5	
	Class X – Income shares	5	
	Class X – Accumulation shares	5	
	Class Z – Income shares	5	
	Class Z – Accumulation shares	5	
CT Global Focus Fund	Class 2 – Gross accumulation shares	6	
	Class L – Gross accumulation shares	6	
	Class Q – Gross accumulation shares	6	
	Class X – Gross accumulation shares	6	
	Class Z – Gross accumulation shares	6	
CT Global Social Bond Fund	Class 2 – Gross income shares	4	
	Class 2 – Gross accumulation shares	4	
	Class Q – Gross income shares	4	
	Class Q – Gross accumulation shares	4	
	Class X – Gross income shares	4	
	Class X – Gross accumulation shares	4	
	Class Z – Gross income shares	4	
	Class Z – Gross accumulation shares	4	

^{*} As at 31 October 2024 the synthetic risk and reward indicator (SRRI) is explained in the table below:

SRRI	
1	The fund is in this specific category because historically it has shown a low level of volatility (how much the value of the fund went up and down compared to other categories).
2	The fund is in this specific category because historically it has shown a relatively low level of volatility (how much the value of the fund went up and down compared to other categories).
3	The fund is in this specific category because historically it has shown a medium to low level of volatility (how much the value of the fund went up and down compared to other categories).
4	The fund is in this specific category because historically it has shown a medium level of volatility (how much the value of the fund went up and down compared to other categories).
5	The fund is in this specific category because historically it has shown a medium to high level of volatility (how much the value of the fund went up and down compared to other categories).
6	The fund is in this specific category because historically it has shown a high level of volatility (how much the value of the fund went up and down compared to other categories).
7	The fund is in this specific category because historically it has shown a very high level of volatility (how much the value of the fund went up and down compared to other categories).

The Risk and Reward Profile is based on past performance data in pound sterling. If your investment in the fund is not in pound sterling, please check the figure for the risk and reward profile disclosed on our website (columbiathreadneedle.com) according to the currency of your investment in the fund.

Historical data may not be a reliable indication of the future risk profile of the funds.

The SRRI category shown is not guaranteed to remain unchanged and that the categorisation of the funds may shift over time. The KIID contains the current SRRI.

The lowest category does not mean a risk-free investment.

No form of capital protection or capital guarantee applies to any of the classes.

 ${\tt CT~UK~Index~Linked~and~CT~Sterling~Medium~and~Long-Dated~Corporate~Bond~were~closed~on~8~October~2024.}$

Columbia Threadneedle Specialist Funds (UK) ICVC (the Company) is an openended investment company with variable capital incorporated in England and Wales under regulation 14 (Authorisation) of the Open-Ended Investment Companies Regulations 2001 (as amended) and the shareholders are not liable for the debts of the Company.

The Company is structured as an umbrella company in which different subfunds (funds) may be established from time to time by the ACD with the approval of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and the agreement of the Depositary.

References in this document to any fund do not constitute an offer or invitation to subscribe to shares in such a fund. We recommend you obtain detailed information before the purchase of shares. Subscriptions to a fund may only be made on the basis of the current Prospectus or Key Investor Information document (KIID) and the latest annual and interim reports. Please refer also to the Risk Factors in the Prospectus.

Past performance is not a guide to future returns. The value of investments and any income from them is not guaranteed and may fall as well as rise and the investor may not get back the original investment. Exchange rate movements could increase or decrease the value of underlying investments/holdings. The dealing price of the funds may include a dilution adjustment. Further details are available in the Prospectus.

The mention of any specific shares or bonds should not be taken as a recommendation to deal and anyone considering dealing in these financial instruments should consult a stockbroker or financial adviser. The research and analysis included in this document has been produced by Columbia Threadneedle Investments for its own investment management activities, may have been acted upon prior to publication and is made available here incidentally. Any opinions expressed are made as at the date of publication but are subject to change without notice.

Prospectus

A prospectus (the Prospectus), which describes each fund in detail, is available from Threadneedle Investment Services Limited, International Financial Data Services, P.O. Box 10033, Chelmsford, Essex CM99 2AL and from the paying agents and distributors in the countries where the fund is distributed.

The funds are segregated portfolios of assets and, accordingly, the assets of a fund belong exclusively to that Fund and shall not be used to discharge directly or indirectly the liabilities of, or claims against, any other person or body, including the umbrella, or any other fund, and shall not be available for any such purpose.

The Company is authorised as a "UK UCITS Scheme" for the purposes of the FCA Rules and, under these rules, the Funds have the investment powers equivalent to those of an EEA UCITS Scheme.

Following the UK's departure from the European Union, the Funds can no longer be marketed in the EEA using a UCITS passport.

Other funds may be launched in the future.

Key Investor Information Document – Subscription requirements

The KIID is a pre contractual document and investors have to confirm that they have read the latest KIID before making a subscription. The ACD has the right to reject a subscription if the investor does not confirm that they have read the latest KIID at the time of application. Investors can obtain the latest KIID from columbiathreadneedle.com.

Changes to the Board of Directors of the ACD

During the period from 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024 the following changes were made to the Board of Directors of the ACD:

■ Appointment of Michael Fisher on 6 June 2024.

Additional appointments post period end

Appointment of Philip Doel on 27 November 2024.

Changes to the Board of the Directors of the Company

During the period from 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024 the following changes were made to the Board of Directors of the Company.

■ Appointment of Joseph LaRocque on 25 June 2024.

Changes to the Prospectus

During the period from 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024 the following changes were made to the Prospectus of the Company:

- Addition of a new director to the board of the Company;
- Update to the directors of the ACD;
- Removal of Russia / Ukraine risk to replace with a more general risk around global events;
- Update to tax section to reflect dividend rates for new tax year allowance and remove reference to NISAs;
- Addition of wording allowing inter group delegation of investment management services;
- Reflect changes to the Annual Management Charge of certain share classes in the CT US Equity Income Fund, CT Emerging Market Local Fund, CT UK Index Linked Fund and CT Global Focus Fund;
- Removal of reference to certain sub-fund's recognised registration in Singapore;
- Inclusion of references to the closure of the CT Sterling Medium and Long-Dated Corporate Bond Fund and the CT UK Index Linked Fund.

Changes to the Instrument of Incorporation

During the period from 1 May 2024 to 31 October 2024 there were no changes made to the Instrument of Incorporation of the Company.

AMC Discount

The ACD applies a discount to its annual management charge (AMC) on the primary share classes of funds with a Net Asset Value over £1 billion. This discount is applied on a sliding scale as set out in the table below, based on the Net Asset Value of the Fund as at 31 December each year. The discount will take effect from 1 May in the following year for a period of 12 months. If 1 May is not a business day in England and Wales, the discount will apply from the last business day prior to 1 May.

The primary share class, as defined by the Investment Association (IA), is the highest charging 'unbundled' (free of rebates or commission) class that is freely available in the retail market. The qualifying primary share classes, funds and the rate of any discount to be applied will be disclosed in the annual Value Assessment Report published on our website columbiathreadneedle.com.

Fund size As at 31 December	Annual Management Charge Discount
Under £1billion	None
£1billion to < £2billion	0.01%
£2billion to < £3billion	0.02%
£3billion to < £4billion	0.03%

(continued)

Fund size As at 31 December	Annual Management Charge Discount
£4billion to < £5billion	0.04%
£5 billion or more	0.05%

Example

A fund with a Net Asset Value of £2.5billion and a primary share class with an AMC of 0.75% would benefit from a discounted AMC of 0.73% (0.02% discount applied from 1 May for a full year).

Significant/Global Events

Significant local, regional or global events such as terrorism, civil conflicts and war, natural disasters, disease/virus outbreaks and epidemics or other public health issues, recessions, depressions or other events — or the potential for such events — could have a significant negative impact on the global economic and market conditions. These and other related events could have a negative impact on Fund performance and the value of an investment in the funds.

Value Assessment Report

As required by the FCA we have carried out an annual Value Assessment Report and this report is available on our website as follows:

https://www.columbiathreadneedle.co.uk/en/retl/value-assessment-report/https://www.columbiathreadneedle.co.uk/en/intm/value-assessment-reporthttps://www.columbiathreadneedle.co.uk/en/inst/value-assessment-report/

Taskforce for Climate-related Disclosures (TCFD)

TCFD information for the funds covered by this Report has been made available on the relevant Fund Details or Document Library pages of our website and can be found at www.columbiathreadneedle.com.

Characteristics of Shares

The Company is structured as an umbrella company and currently consists of 13 different sub-funds. Several classes of share may be issued in respect of each sub-fund, distinguished by their criteria for subscription and fee structure.

Share Class	Minimum Investment	Eligibility
Class 1 (including Hedged Shares)	GBP 2,000 EUR 2,500 – EUR 3,000 CHF 4,000 SGD 4,000 USD 3,000	All Investors not precluded by law or by terms of the Prospectus, and typically where rebates are paid to the investor or commission is paid to an intermediary.
Class 2	GBP 50,000 – GBP 500,000 EUR 100,000 – EUR 800,000 USD 750,000 – USD 800,000	Institutional investors and retail investors. At the discretion of the ACD, to eligible distributors that have entered into separate fee arrangements with their clients.
Class A	GBP 2,000 USD 3,000 SGD 4,000	All investors not precluded by law or by the terms of the Prospectus in the CT Global Extended Alpha Fund.

Share Class	Minimum Investment	Eligibility
Class L	GBP 100 million	Institutional investors and retail investors in the CT Global Equity Income Fund, CT US Equity Income Fund, CT Global Focus Fund and CT UK Mid 250 Fund at the ACD's discretion.
Class M (including Hedged Shares)	GBP 2,000 AUD 3,000 USD 3,000	All investors not precluded by law or by the terms of the Prospectus.
Class P	GBP 500,000 USD 800,000	Institutional investors in the CT Global Extended Alpha Fund.
Class Q	GBP 3 million	Eligible Shareholders in the CT Global Focus Fund and CT Global Social Bond Fund. Shares will only be available, at the discretion of the ACD, until the total Net Asset Value of the Fund reaches or is greater than GBP 100,000,000, or any other amount determined by the ACD.
Class T	GBP 2,000	All investors not precluded by law or by the terms of the Prospectus in the CT UK Sustainable Equity Fund.
Class X (including Hedged Shares)	GBP 3 million EUR 5 million USD 5 million	Eligible Shareholders investing under a specific agreement.
Class Y	GBP 150 million	Eligible Shareholders in the CT Sterling Short-Dated Corporate Bond Fund.
Class Z	GBP 5,000 EUR 2,500 USD 3,000 CHF 4,000	All investors not precluded by law or by the terms of the Prospectus. At the discretion of the ACD, to eligible distributors that have entered into separate fee arrangements with their clients.

The limits for minimum initial investment, minimum subsequent investment and minimum holding of shares may be waived at the discretion of the ACD. The level of net income attributable to each share class will differ. For further information please refer to the Prospectus.

Hedged Share Classes (HSCs)

HSCs use currency hedging transactions to try to reduce the exposure to the Reference Currency and replace it with an exposure to the hedged Currency. The terms Reference Currency, Portfolio Currency and Hedged Currency are defined as follows:

(continued)

- "Reference Currency" or "Reference Currencies" means (according to the context) the primary investment currency of the share class against which the currency hedging transaction will be applied in order to reduce any exchange rate fluctuation with the Hedged Currency;
- "Portfolio Currency" or "Portfolio Currencies" means (according to the context) the currency or currencies in which the underlying assets of the fund are invested in line with the investment objectives applicable to the fund;
- "Hedged Currency" is the currency in which the Hedged Share Class is

These HSCs should not be confused with other share classes that may be denominated in other currencies but will not be hedged. For full details of the HSCs available, including details of the Reference Currency or Portfolio Currency of each fund for which HSCs are available, please refer to the latest version of the Prospectus.

Income Equalisation

Since each Fund operates equalisation, the first allocation made after the acquisition of shares will include an amount of equalisation. This amount represents the ACD's best estimate of the income included in the price at which the shares were acquired (subject to grouping where appropriate) and represents a capital repayment for UK tax purposes which should be deducted form the cost of shares in arriving at any capital gain realised on their subsequent disposal.

Performance

For the period under review, where applicable, fund performance has been compared to the relevant peer group. We show a peer group comparison as this more accurately reflects the way the fund is managed. We continue to show stock market indices for information purposes and for those funds where The Investment Association sector is not felt to be a representative peer group. Audited peer group information is only available from Morningstar's Fund Services at month end points.

Investor Reports

Annual long-form reports and financial statements of the Company will be made available and published within four months of the close of each annual accounting period and half-yearly long report and financial statements will be published within two months of the close of each interim accounting period.

The annual accounting period for the Company ends on 30 April and the interim reporting period ends on 31 October.

The documents will also be available from the paying agents in the countries where the funds are registered. The reports will provide information on the performance of the funds, the market background, and details of each of the portfolios.

Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA)

Columbia Threadneedle Investments and its funds (Columbia Threadneedle) have registered with the US Internal Revenue Service in accordance with FATCA and other current related legislation. Columbia Threadneedle has put in place appropriate processes and procedures to maintain its compliance with the statutory requirements, including ensuring that Threadneedle obtain the required certification from its clients and investors as necessary to mitigate any requirement upon Columbia Threadneedle to withhold or report such clients under the legislation. This registration and compliance process will ensure that Columbia Threadneedle will not suffer withholding tax under FATCA.

Common reporting standard (CRS)

The Common Reporting Standard ('CRS') has come into effect in stages, starting from 1 January 2016, was developed by the Organisation for Economic Co operation and Development ('OECD'). The CRS has been adopted in the UK by The International Tax Compliance Regulations 2015, and may require Columbia Threadneedle funds to report account holder information to HMRC about their shareholdings. HMRC will in turn pass this information onto the competent authorities with which it has an agreement.

Holdings in shares of other funds of the Company

None of the funds of the Company held shares in other funds of the Company (listed on the contents page on page 1) at the end of the period.

(continued)

Securities Financing Transaction Regulation (unaudited)

The Securities Financing Transaction Regulation ("SFTR") introduces reporting requirements for securities financing transactions ("SFTs") and total return swaps. A SFT is defined as per Article 3(11) of the SFTR as:

- a repurchase/reverse repurchase agreement;
- securities or commodities lending and securities or commodities borrowing;
- a buy-sell back transaction or sell-buy back transaction; or
- a margin lending transaction.

As at 31 October 2024 the ICVC held Portfolio Swaps which are a type of instrument in scope of the SFTR.

Global data

		Unrealised gain and loss in the portfolio	
Name of Portfolio	Type of asset	base currency and in absolute value	% of Net Assets
CT Global Extended Alpha Fund	Portfolio Swap	415	0.35

Data on collateral reuse

There was no collateral reuse during the period ended 31 October 2024.

Concentration data

All collateral received in respect of Portfolio Swap as at 31 October 2024 is cash collateral. The ten largest issuers disclosure is therefore not applicable.

The following table provides details of the top ten counterparties (based on gross volume of outstanding transactions) in respect of the Portfolio Swaps held per Portfolio as at 31 October 2024:

Name of Portfolio	Type of asset	Counterparty	Unrealised gain and loss in the portfolio base currency and in absolute value
CT Global Extended Alpha Fund	Portfolio Swap	UBS	415

Safekeeping of collateral received

Cash collateral is received on each Portfolio's cash account at Citibank UK Limited.

The amount of collateral received for Portfolio Swaps as at 31 October 2024 is as follows:

Name of Portfolio	Type of collateral	Counterparty	Currency of collateral	Amount of collateral			
CT Emerging Market Local Fund	Cash	Barclays	USD	140,000			
		Total	USD	140,000			
CT Global Extended Alpha Fund	Cash	UBS	USD	1,320,000			
		Total	USD	1,320,000			

(continued)

Aggregate transaction data

Name of Portfolio	Type of collateral	Maturity tenor (collateral)	Currency of collateral	Maturity tenor (SFT/TRS)	Country of establishment (counterparty)	Settlement and clearing	Quality of collateral
CT Emerging Market Local Fund	Cash	Open maturity	USD	Less than 1 month	UK	Bilateral	N/A – Cash
CT Global Extended Alpha Fund	Cash	Open maturity	USD	Less than 1 month	UK	Bilateral	N/A – Cash

Safekeeping of collateral granted

Cash and security collateral paid to the counterparties is delivered to segregated accounts at the counterparty.

The amount of collateral granted for Portfolio Swaps as at 31 October 2024 is as follows:

Name of Portfolio	Type of collateral	Counterparty	Currency of collateral	Amount of collateral	% of collateral held at period- end by category
CT Emerging Market Local Fund	Cash	Barclays	USD	140,000	0.44
		Total	USD	140,000	0.44
CT Global Extended Alpha Fund	Cash	UBS	USD	1,320,000	0.89
		Total	USD	1,320,000	0.89

Return/Costs

Return and costs of Portfolio Swap transactions for the period ended 31 October 2024 are disclosed in the Statement of Total Return of the relevant Fund under the headings, "Net capital gains/(losses)", "Revenue" and "Interest payable and similar charges".

(continued)

Key Risks of the Fund:

The following table below shows the key risks applying to each Fund. A definition of the key risks can be found overleaf.

Funds/ Key risks	Investment	Currency	Counterparty	Issuer	Political and Financial	Liquidity	Effect of Portfolio Concentration	Interest Rate	Valuation	Investment in Derivatives	Leverage	Derivatives for EPM / Hedging	Volatility	High Volatility	China-Hong Kong Stock Connect	China Interbank Bond Market - Hong Kong Bond Connect	Sustainable Investment Criteria	ESG Investment Criteria	Social Investment Criteria	Style Bias
CT UK Mid 250 Fund	Х	Х										Х		Х						Х
CT UK Sustainable Equity Fund	Χ											Х		Х			Х			
CT UK Equity Alpha Income Fund	Х	Х					Х					Х		Х						
CT Sterling Short-Dated Corporate Bond Fund	Х	Х		Х		Х		Х				Х	Х					Х		
CT UK Fixed Interest Fund	Х	Х		Х		Χ		Х				Х	Х							
CT Pan European Focus Fund	Х	Х					Х					Х		Χ						
CT US Equity Income Fund	Х	Х										Х		Х						
CT Global Emerging Markets Equity Fund	Х	Х			Х	Х						Х		Х	Х			Х		Х
CT Emerging Market Local Fund	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х		Х	Х	Х	Х		Х			Х				
CT Global Extended Alpha Fund	Х	Х	Х		Χ				Х	Х	Χ			Х						
CT Global Equity Income Fund	Х	Χ										Х		Х				Х		
CT Global Focus Fund	Х	Х					Х					Х		Χ				Х		Х
CT Global Social Bond Fund	Х	Х		Х		Х		Х	Х			Х	Х						Χ	

CT UK Index Linked and CT Sterling Medium and Long-Dated Corporate Bond were closed on 8 October 2024.

Description of the Key Risks:

Investment Risk: The value of investments can fall as well as rise and investors might not get back the sum originally invested.

Currency Risk: Where investments are in assets that are denominated in multiple currencies, or currencies other than your own, changes in exchange rates may affect the value of the investments.

Counterparty Risk: The fund may enter into financial transactions with selected counterparties. Any financial difficulties arising at these counterparties could significantly affect the availability and the value of fund assets

Issuer Risk: The Fund invests in securities whose value would be significantly affected if the issuer refused, was unable to or was perceived to be unable to pay.

Political and Financial Risk: The fund invests in markets where economic and regulatory risk can be significant. These factors can affect liquidity, settlement and asset values. Any such event can have a negative effect on the value of your investment.

Liquidity Risk: The fund holds assets which could prove difficult to sell. The fund may have to lower the selling price, sell other investments or forego more appealing investment opportunities.

Effect of Portfolio Concentration Risk: The Fund has a concentrated portfolio (holds a limited number of investments and/or has a restricted investment universe) and if one or more of these investments declines or is otherwise affected, it may have a pronounced effect on the fund's value.

Interest Rate Risk: Changes in interest rates are likely to affect the fund's value. In general, as interest rates rise, the price of a fixed rate bond will fall, and vice versa.

Valuation Risk: The fund's assets may sometimes be difficult to value objectively and the actual value may not be recognised until assets are sold.

Short Selling Risk: Short selling intends to make a profit from falling prices. However if the value of the underlying investment increases, the value of the short position will decrease. The potential losses are unlimited as the prices of the underlying investments can increase very significantly in a short space of time.

Investment in Derivatives Risk: The Investment Policy of the fund allows it to invest materially in derivatives.

Leverage Risk: Leverage amplifies the effect that a change in the price of an investment has on the fund's value. As such, leverage can enhance returns to investors but can also increase losses, including losses in excess of the amount invested.

(continued)

Derivatives for EPM / Hedging Risk: The investment policy of the fund allows it to invest in derivatives for the purposes of reducing risk or minimising the cost of transactions.

Volatility Risk: The fund may exhibit significant price volatility.

High Volatility Risk: The fund typically carries a risk of high volatility due to its portfolio composition or the portfolio management techniques used. This means that the fund's value is likely to fall and rise more frequently and this could be more pronounced than with other funds.

China-Hong Kong Stock Connect: The Fund may invest through the China-Hong Kong Stock Connect programmes which have significant operational constraints including quota limits and are subject to regulatory change and increased counterparty risk.

China Interbank Bond Market - Hong Kong Bond Connect: The Fund may invest in the China Interbank Bond Market (CIBM) via Hong Kong Bond Connect which is subject to regulatory, volatility and liquidity risk, as well as risks associated with settlement, default of counterparties and market suspension. Furthermore, the Fund may incur significant trading, taxation and realisation costs.

Sustainable Investment Criteria: The Fund aims to invest in companies which deliver sustainable outcomes and in doing so adheres to a set of Sustainable Investment Guidelines. The Guidelines will affect the Fund's exposure to certain sectors, which may impact the performance of the Fund positively or negatively relative to a benchmark or other funds without such restrictions.

ESG Investment Criteria: The Fund applies a range of measures as part of its consideration of ESG factors, including the exclusion of investments involved in certain industries and/or activities. This reduces the investable universe, and may impact the performance of the Fund positively or negatively relative to a benchmark or other funds without such restrictions.

Social Investment Criteria: The Fund aims to invest in assets that are deemed to be supporting and funding socially beneficial activities and development and utilises a Social Assessment Methodology. This will affect the Fund's exposure to certain issuers, industries, sectors, and regions, and may impact the relative performance of the Fund positively or negatively, depending on whether such investments are in or out of favour. The concept of socially beneficial activities and development is subjective. It is therefore possible that an investment may not perform in a way that an investor considers to be a socially beneficial activity or development, even though it has been selected in accordance with the Social Assessment Methodology.

Style Bias Risk: An investment style bias can impact a fund's performance relative to its benchmark in a positive or negative way. No investment style performs well in all market conditions. When one style is in favour another may be out of favour. Such conditions may persist for short or long periods.

A fund exhibits a growth style bias relative to its benchmark if the majority of the fund invests in companies with above average growth rates, or good growth potential (based on indicators such as earnings and sales growth) relative to its benchmark. However, there is no guarantee that such companies will continue to show such characteristics in the future. A fund's investment style may also change over time.

Further risks applicable to the fund can be found in the Prospectus.

Directory

The Company and Head Office:

Columbia Threadneedle Specialist Funds (UK) ICVC

Registered Address and Head Office

Cannon Place 78 Cannon Street London EC4N 6AG

The Company Board:

Joseph LaRocque (Independent Non-Executive) appointed to the Board on

Kirstene Baillie (Independent Non-Executive) Authorised Corporate Director (ACD)

Threadneedle Investment Services Limited Cannon Place

78 Cannon Street London EC4N 6AG

Investment Manager (for all Funds other than the CT Global Emerging

Markets Equity Fund):

Threadneedle Asset Management Limited

Cannon Place 78 Cannon Street London EC4N 6AG

Investment Manager (for the CT Global Emerging Markets Equity Fund):

Columbia Management Investment Advisers, LLC

225 Franklin Street

Boston MA 02110

United States of America

Depositary

Citibank UK Limited

(Authorised by the Prudential Regulatory Authority (PRA)

and regulated by the FCA and PRA)

Citiaroup Centre 33 Canada Square Canary Wharf London E14 5LB

Authorised Corporate Director Client Services Details

UK Investors

Address: Threadneedle Investment Services Limited

PO Box 10033 Chelmsford Essex CM99 2AL

Telephone (dealing & customer enquiries): 0800 953 0134*

Fax (dealing): 0845 113 0274

Email (enquiries): questions@service.columbiathreadneedle.co.uk

Asian Investors

Address: Threadneedle Investment Services Limited

International Financial Data Services

47, avenue JF Kennedy

L-1855 Luxembourg

Telephone (dealing & customer enquiries): +852 3667 7111*

Fax (dealing): +352 2452 9807

Email (enquiries): threadneedleenquiries@statestreet.com

Non-UK Investors (excluding investors in Asia)

Address: Threadneedle Investment Services Limited

International Financial Data Services

47, avenue JF Kennedy

L-1855 Luxembourg

*Calls will be recorded.

Telephone (dealing & customer enquiries): +352 464 010 7020*

Fax (dealing): +352 2452 9807

Email (enquiries): questions@service.columbiathreadneedle.co.uk

Registrar

Threadneedle Investment Services Limited

Delegated to:

SS&C Financial Services Europe Limited

(Authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA))

St Nicholas Lane

Basildon

Essex SS15 5FS

Legal Advisers

Eversheds Sutherland (International) LLP

One Wood Street

London EC2V 7WS

Independent Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Aria One

144 Morrison Street

Edinburgh EH3 8EX

Paying and Information Agents in Italy:

Allfunds Bank S.A., filiale di Milano

Via Bocchetto, 6 20123 Milan

Italy

BNP Paribas Securities Services

succursale di Milano

Piazza Lina Bo Bardi, 3

20124 Milan

Italy

SGSS S.p.A.

con sede legale in Milano

via Benigno Crespi 19/A - MAC2

State Street Bank S.p.A. Via Ferrante Aporti, 10

20125 Milan

Paying and Information Agent in Sweden

Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB

Kungsträdgårdsgatan

SE - 10640

Sweden

Representative and Paying Agent in Switzerland

BNP Paribas, Paris, Zurich Branch

Selnaustrasse 16 8002 Zurich

Switzerland

